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Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General
with the

European Theater of Operations REGRAMUU”CLA 8 S_fF'ED
s0872 . o
BY AUTHORITY R TVAG
BOARD OF REVIEW v o
/ N Ay - *
. 31 A7 1904 pY.RectinLn C. Miien Cop
LPeC, Exec. oy 24 Fen 12
UNITED STATES 3 9TH INFANTEY DIVISION.
Ve ) Trial by G.C.M,, convened at Cefalu,
) ' Sicily, 22 September 1943, Sentence:
Private GARREIT KING ) Dishonorable discharge, total
(15054073), Company "A", ) forfeitures and confinement at hard
39th Infantry. ) labor for 20 years., NATOUSA Disciplin-
) ary Training Center, Casablanca, French
) Morocco,

OPINION by the BCARD CF REVIEW
RITER, VAN BENSCHOTEN and SARGENT, Judge Advocates

l, The record of trial in the case of the soldier named above hag
been examined in the Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General with the
European Theater of Operations and there found legally insufficient to
support the findings in part. The record has now been examined by the
Board of Review which submits this, its opinion, to the Assistant Judge
Advocate General in charge of sald Branch Office,

2. Accused was tried upon the following Charge and Specification:

CHARGE: Violation of the 58th Article of War,

Specification: In that Private Garrett King,
Company "A", 39th Infantry, did, at French
North Africa, on or about July 8, 1943,
desert the military service of the United
States by absenting himself without proper
authority from his organization located 5
miles west of Bizerte, French North Africa,
with intent to avoid hazardous duty, to wit:
"Action against the enemy", and did remain
absent in desertion until he was apprehended
at Setif, French North Africa by the 299th
M.P.Company, on or about July 15, 1943.

He pleaded not guilty to and was found guilty of the Charge and Specifica=-
tion, Evidence was introduced of one previous conviction by summary court
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for absence without leave for seven days in violation of Article of War é1.
He was sentenced to be dishonorably discharged the service, to forfeit all
pay and allowances due or to become due and to be confined at hard labor,
at such place as the reviewing authority may direct, for 30 years, The
reviewing authority approved only so much of the findings of guilty of the
Specification of the Charge and the Charge as involved a finding of guilty
of desertion at the time and place and under the circumstances as alleged
and terminated in a manner not proven at the time and place alleged,
approved the sentence, remitted ten years of the confinement imposed,
ordered the sentence executed but suspended the execution of that portion
thereof adjudging dishonorable discharge until the soldier's release from
confinement, and designated NATOUSA Disciplinary Training Center, Casa-
blanca, French Morocco, as the place of confinement,

The result of trial was promulgated in General Court-Martial
Orders No, 75, Headquarters 9th Infantry Division, APO 9 dated 28 March
1944,

3. Evidence for the prosecution is substantially as follows:

First Lisutenant Ralph G. Edgar testified that immediately prior
to 8 July 1943 he was executive officer of Company "A", 39th Infantry,
Accused was a member of said company (R7) which was stationed at a staging
area near Bizerte (French North Africa)., "Indications pointed that we
would soon be in combat again," and that it was a matter of common know-
ledge in the company, After accused "was reported absent at the reveille
report of July 8th," a search was made of the area and it was revealed that
he had taken his "0.D,'s," and toilet articles, but had left his combat
equipment behind, So far as witness knew, accused did not have permission
to be absent from his organization, which after 8 July went from Bizerte to
Licata, Sicily without him, and engaged in combat in the Sicllian campaign,
At no time during this combat was accused present with his organization,
Witness next saw him about 15 August after the combat was completed (R8),

First Sergeant James H, George testified that on or about 8 July
he was First Sergeant of Company "A", 39th Infantry, which, in the early
part of July was stationed at Bizerte because "it was a port of embarka-
tion," and that his understanding was that "we were going some place, * * ¥
combat duty.," "One evening" after retreat, the Battalion Commander had the
whole battalion together, and informed them that "we were going somewhere --
he didn't know where, but it would be soon," It was a matter of common
knowledge and conversation among the members of the company that they were
preparing to move into combat, Witness received a report from the platoon
sergeant of accused's absence without leave from reveille on 8 July., A
search of the area failed to reveal his presence, George identified an
authenticated extract copy of the morning report for Company "A", received
in evidence without objection by the defense, containing the following
entries:

-2-
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" July 8, 1943
Pvt, King, fr duty to A.W.O.L, 0600 RBM
| July 12, 1943
Pvt, King, fr. A.W.0.L, to des, RBM

August 17, 1943

Pvt, King, erroneously carried fr. AWOL to
des, . Correct status AWOL, Fr, AWOL to abs
hands military authorities Setif, FNA as
of July 16/43 to arrest in qrs, RBM "

The organization went from Bizerte to Sicily efter 8 .Tuly and engaged in -
combat with the enemy. Accused was not present with the company at these
times although permission was not given to him to be absent (R7).

First Lisutenant Ross B. Manley testified that on 10 July he was
Compeny Commander of Company "A", 39th Infantry, then stationed at Bizerte.
Accused was carried AWOL when he assumed command and he never saw him until
after the fighting at Randazzo (8icily). So far as he knew, accused was
not present with his company at any time during the Sicilian campaign.
Witneas identified a written Military Police report of accused!'s apprehen-
sion, The law member, overruling an objection by the defense on the ground
of the absence of the person who made the entry, admitted the document in
evidence (R9). The document, addressed to "Commanding Officer, 9th Div,
39th Inf, Co. 'A'™ and signed "For the PROVOST MARSHAL Edward F. Todd, lst
Lt. 299th M.P.Co.," recited that accused "was arrested by Military Police
at 1720 hours 15 July 1943 Constantine for being A.W.0.L, 7 days - appre-
hended in Setif Witnesses Sgt. Alvin G, Bush = 299th M.P, Co. Disposition:
released to 30th Repl. Center." (Ex,II),

4o No evidence was introduced for the defense, After his rights were
explained to him, accused made an unsworn statement, in part as follows:

"I was not apprehended in Setif, I turned in
myself, * % ¥ The M,P, came by and talked to
us, and we told him we were AWOL and wanted
to go back to ocur ocutfit, He said that he
could not furnish us transportation to Con-
stantine. He said it would be better for us
to hitch-hike to Constantine, He said it
would be more bother for him if he had to
pick us up and turn us in, The following
day * % * he told us to get out of town or
he would have to pick us up and take us to
Constantine * * %, The (next) following day
* % % we went up and tried to get a ride
* % % We told him we could not get a ride
out; we were going with him, We got ina

-3 =
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jeep, and he said, 'All right,! and hauled
us over to the M.P., Headquarters, * * *
They took us to Constantine the following
morning about ten o'clock." (R10)

5. (&) Accused's absence without leave from his organization was
established prima facie by the extract qopy of the morning report of his
organization for the period in questi8fl testimony of those having per-
sonal knowledge, and was confirmed by his own unsworn statement, The
question for determination is whether the evidence in the record is legally
sufficient to support the finding that he absented himself with the intent
to avoid hazardous duty, within the meaning of Article of War 28, The
necessary elements of proof of the offense in addition to proof of unauthor-
ized absence are: (1) that accused or his organization "was under orders or
anticipated orders involving * * * hazardous duty", and (2) that accused
was notified, or otherwise informed, or had reason to believe, that his
organization was about to engage in hazardous duty, and (3) that his absence
was with the intent to avoid such duty (MCM, 1921, par,409, p.344; CM ETO
455, Nigg; CM ETO 564, Neville;.CM ETO 2432, Durise).

(b) The.first element, (1) above, was established by evidence that
accused's organization on and immediately prior to 8 July 1943 was stationed
in the Bizerte staging area; that the Battalion Commander at an unstated
time informed the battalion (of which accused's company evidently was a
component) that they "were going somewhere" socon and that the organization
did in fact move from Bizerte to Sicily sometime in July after the 8th and
thereafter engaged in combat with the enemy in the Sicilian campaign, The
foregoing facts support the legitimate inference that accused's organization
on 8 July 1943 "was under orders or anticipated orders involving ¥ * ¥
hazardous duty" '

As to the second element, however, the only evidence that accused
when he absented himself knew or had rcason to believe that his erganization
was about to engage im such duty, consists of opinions and conclusions of
the executive officer of his company as to "indications" and "common know-
ledge" of impending combat in the company, and the personal understanding
of the first sergeant of.the company based upon the above mentioned inform-
ation given to the battalion together with his eonclusions as to "common
knowledge" and "conversation" in the company as to preparation for combat,
The latter testimony.refers to "the early part-of July.® The extract copy
of the morning report (Ex,I) records accused as absent without leave at 0600
hours 8 July. There is therefore no proof in the record with respect to
accused's presence in his unit either at the time of the "common knowledge"
or "conversation" in.regard to prospeective combat or at the time the
battalion commander informed his command it "was going somewhere". Such
vital facts in the prosecution's case are left to the imagination or at best
to speculative inferences which are as exculpatory as they are inculpatory,
Judicial notice may not be taken of the facts necessary to raise the incul-
patory inference (CM ?TO 455, Nigg), nor is the Board of Review at liberty

-4-
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to supply omissions in the prosecution's case, however obvious they may
appear or however desirable it may be to sustain accused's conviction.

Neither does the record show when the unit embarked for Siecily,
well have been after the return of accused to military control,

(e)

UCircumstantial evidence alone or when it is
considered with all the evidence in arriving
at a verdict, may Jjustify-a conviction., But
when circumstantial evidence alone is relied
upon, the facts and circumstances must form
a complete chain, and point directly and un-
erringly to the accused's guilt, * * ¥ Mere
susplcions, probabilities, or suppositions
do not warrant a conviction. The circun-
stances must be sufficient to show guilt ve-
yond a reasonable doubt! (2 Wharton's Criminal
Evidence, sec.922, pp.1603-1605),

"If the circumstances tending to show his guilt

are as consistent with the defendant's inn-

ocence as with his guilt, they are insufficent"

(ibid., p.1609).

"Where circumstantial evidence is relied on,
the circumstances must be proved and not them=~
selves be presumed or rest in conjecture."

(32 C.J.S., sec.1039, pp.1103=1104) (See alsc

2 Whearton's Criminal Evidence, sec.922, p.161l),

"No inference of fact or of law is reliably

drawn from premises which are uncertain, When-

ever circumstantial evidence is relied upon to

prove a fact, the circumstances must be proved,

and not themselves presumed., * * * Nowhere is
the presumption held to be a substitute for
proof of an independent and material fact."
(United States v, Ross, 92 U.S, 281,283, 23 L,
Ed., 707,708) (CM ETO 455, Nigg).

It may

The following comment is particularly applicéble to the instant case:

"Proof that accused's unit had been notified of
prospective movement without additional proof
that accused was actually present when such
-announcements were made does not suffice, (CM
230826, McGrath). Nor does proof of knowledge
by accused that his unit was stationed at an
embarkation camp and that eventually his unit
would depart for fover-seas' meet the require-
ment of proof. (CM 231163, Sinclair), In the

-5 -
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instant case the evidence, tharacterized by
hearsay and opinion testimony, is far short
of establishing the vital fact that accused
was informed or advised of prospective move-
ments of his unit, or that he otherwise knew
his organization was about to depart * * *
for duty beyond the seas and that he absent-
ed himself for the purpose of avoiding
accompanying the same, * * ¥, Such evidence
considered alone or in conjunction with the
other evidence submitted is not legally
sufficient to permit the inference that * * *
accused was given notice that his unit immed-
iately was to engage in hazardous duty,
Whether there is evidence in the record
. legally sufficient to support such inference
. is a question within the province of the
Board of Review (Bull,JAG, Aug.1942, par.422,
ps162), The proof of the Charge therefore,
fails on this item." (CM ETO 455, Nigg).

In view of the foregoing, the Board of Review is of the opinion that the
record lacks competent substantial evidence that accused when he absented
himself had reason to believe his organization was about to engage in
hazardous duty and could therefor have intended to avoid such quty,

(d) The law membpr overruled an objection by the defense to the
admission in evidence of the report of accused's apprehension and release
by Military Police (R9; Ex,II), The ruling was improper in view of the
hearsay character of the evidence (SPJGJ 250,46, May 26, 1942, Bull,JAG,
Aug 1942, Vol,I, No.3, sec.395(22a), pp.158-159; CM 23691, (1943), Bull,JAG,
July 1943, Vol,II, No.7, sec.416(7), pp.270-27l$. In view of accused's
unsworn statement that he was not apprehended but turned himself in, the
ruling may well have prejudiced his substantial rights. The Board of Re-
view cannot, and indeed may not properly, measure the extent to which this
incompetent evidence influenced the court in its determination (CM ETO 1201,
Pheil). In view of the state of the record, however, further discussion
of the effect of the error is unnecessary.

6. The reviewing authority executed the following actions herein:

" * % * 7 October 1943

v In the foregoing case of Private GARREIT -
KING, 15054073, Company 'A?', 39th Infantry,
only so much of the findings of guillty of the
Specification of the Charge, and the Charge,
as involves a finding of guilty of desertion
at the time and place and under the circum-
stances as alleged, and terminated in & manner
not proven at the time and place alleged, is

-6 -
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that accused did, at the time and place alleged, absent himself without
proper authority from his organization and did remain so absent for the
period alleged, in violation of Article of War 61, and legally sufficient

to support the sentence,

blu

// y
[ Ma‘\‘b Judge Advocate

c
%Z/%f%/ Judge Advocate

Judge Advocate

-8 -
CONFIDENTIAL



GONFIDENTIAL

9)
1st Ind,

WD, Branch Office TJAG,, with ETOUSA. 31 MAY 1944 TO: Commanding
General, ETOUSA, APO 887, U.S. Army.

1., Herewith transmitted for your action under Article of War 50% as
. amended by Act 20 August 1937 (50 Stat, 724; 10 U.S.C, 1522) and as fur-
ther amended by Act 1 August 1942 (56 Stat, 732; 10 U.S.C, 1522), is the
record of trial in the case of Private GARRETT KING (15054073), Company
WAY, 39th Infantry.

2+ I concur in the opinion of the Board of Review and, for the
reasons stated therein, recommend that the findings of guilty of the
Charge and Specification, except so much thereof as involves findings of
guilty of absence without leave in violation of Article of War 61, be
vacated, and that all rights, privileges and property of which he has
been deprived by virtue of that portion of the findings, viz: conviction
of desertion in time of war, so vacated, be restored,

3. The legal insufficiency of the record to support the findings,
except so much thereof as involves absence without leave, was apparently
dus to the inadequacy of the testimony adduced for the prosecution rather
than the unavailability of sufficient evidence, A few appropriately
worded questions by the trial judge advocate with reference to the time
of the notification to accused!s organization of impending combat in re-
lation to the commencement of accused's unauthorized absence would very
probably have elicited enough evidence to support the court's findings.
As there is now no way to remedy the defect in the record, the action
taken by the Board of Review and myself is necessary,

4e Inclosed is a form of action designed to carry into effect the
recommendation hereinbefore made, Also inclosed 1s a draft GCMO for use
in promilgating the proposed action., Please return the record of trial

with required copies of GCMO,
/Mééy

/ E. C. McNEIL,
Brigadier General, United States Army,
Agsistant Judge Advocate General.
3 Incls:
InclJdRecord of trial
Incl,2 Form of action
Incl.3 Draft. GCMO

(Findings vacated in part in accordance with recommendation of
the Assistant Judge Advocate General. GCMO 39, ETO, 9 Jun 1944)
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Branch Office of The Juige Advocate General
with the
European Theater of Operatiomns
APO 871
BOARD OF REVIEW
20 JUN 1944

ETO 1922 \\

VWESTERN BASE SECTION, SERVICES
OF SUPFLY, EURQPEAN THEATER OF
OPERATIMNS.

UNITED STATES
Ve

)
)
)
Private WILLIAM C, FORESTER ) Trial by G.CeM,, convened at
(34686405) and Private TRACEY ) Whittington Barracks, Lichfield,
BRYANT (34686280),. both of ) Staffordshire, England, 17,18
L25th Military Police Escort ) Merch 19lis Sentences Each accused,
Guard Companye ) dishonorable discharge, total for-

) feitures and confinement at bhard

) labor for life, Unhited States

) Penitentiary, Lewisburg, Pennsyl-

) vania,

HOLDING by the BOARD OF REVIEW
RITER, VAN EENSCHOTEN end SARGENT, Judge Advocates

le The record o trial in the case of the soldiers named above has

been examined by the Board of Review,
2+ The accused were tried upmm the following Charge and Specifications

CHARGE: Violation of the 92nd Article of Ware

Specification: (As amended at trial before arraignment):
In that Private William C, Foarester, 425th Military
Police Escort Guard Company, Rugeley, Staffordshire,
England,Private Tracey (NMI) Bryant, 425th Mili-
tary Police Escort Guard Companys Rugeley, Stafford-
shire,England, acting jointly and in pursuance of a
comnon intent, did, at Rugeley, Staffordshire,
England, on or about 4 March 1944, with malice afore-
thought, wilfully, deliberately, feloniously, unlaw-
fully and with premeditation, kill one Technjician
Fifth Grade Robert Stafford, Company D, 390th
Engineer Regiment (General Service), Rugeley, Stafford-
shire, England, a human being, by striking him with
their hands, kicking him with their feet, by strang-
ling him, and abendoning hims

SIRFILENTIA
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The accused were originally charged jointly with Private Drewey
Fe Joyce, Private Dennis N, Branch and Private Ira F, Hall, all of 425th
Military Police Escort Guard Company, Rugeley, Staffordshire, England with
the murder of Stafford. Upon motions on behalf of the three soldiers last
above named the court seversd their trials, and amended the Specification
by striking their names and unit designations therefrome. The trial then
proceeded as to accused Forester and Bryant upon the Charge and Specifica-
tion as amended.

Each accused pleaded not guilty to and was found guilty of the
Cherge and amended Specification, No evidence of previous convictions was
introduced as to accused Forester, ZEvidence was introduced of one previous
conviction of accused Bryant by special court-martial for absence without
leave for 13 deys in violation of the 6lst Article of War, Each accused
was sentenced to be dishonorably discharged the service, to forfeit all
pay and allowances due or to become due, and to be confined at hard labor
for the term of his natural life at such place as the reviewing authority
may direct. The reviewing authority approved each of the sentences,
designated the United States Penitentiary, Lewisburg, Pennsylvania, as
the plaece of confinement of each accused and forwarded the record of trial
for action pursuant to the provisions of Article of War 0%

3¢ The prosecution's evidence summarizes as follows:

On and prior to 4 March 1944 there was located a prisoner of war
camp about one and one~half miles south westerly from the town of Rugeley,
Staffordshire, England, A public road connecting Rugeley end Hednesford,
a towmn in Staffordshire, passed immediately in front of the camp and
afforded access to it (R12)e

Technician Fifth Grade Robert Stafford and Technician Fifth Grade
William H, Walton, colored scldiers, both of Compeny D, 390th Engineer
Regiment, stationed at the prisoner of war camp, went on proper pass into
the town of Rugeley on the evening of 4 March 194)je They arrived in the
town sbout 8 p.me and visited several public houses and a carnivale They
left Rugeley between 10 p.me and 10315 peme on their return to their camp
by way of the aforesaid public road (R13,16)e There had been a fall of
snow that evening and while it was dark there was a certain degree of
luninosity (Rl16)es Stafford and Walton passed two groups of soldiers
which were proceeding on the highway in the same direction as they travel-
ed (R13,42)e After passing the second group one of its members shouted
to Walton and Stafford "Hey, wait", The two colored men did not halts
Shortly afterwards another voice from the scldier group called, *Hey, wait,
I am talking to you®s. Stafford replied,

*We haven't got times We are on our way to campe

We haven't tims to stand here in the cold and

fool with youe You had better wake up®* (RL3)e
Walton and Stafford resumed their cowse and again the voice called,

*0.Ks Whather you wait or not, you black s

-2 ""DHE”]E”I!”
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of-a~bitch, we'll get you* (R13)e.

The two colored soldiers ignored the response. They were joined by an
English sailor and the three proceeded in the direction of the camp (RlL).
A few moments later the sailor and Walton and Stafford were overteken by
two of the white soldiers, A conversation ensued, Stafford and Walton
then resumed their walk towards campe The former looked back and seid,

*Ists go, fellows; it looks like they're go-
ing to start something; lets go* (Rl}).

The colored men commenced to run, but were again overtaken by
two white American soldiers. Cne of them expressed the desire to fight.
The two calored men retreated, Stafford stated to the two white men
that they were meking a mistake and declared he did not know "what it was
about®s One of them attempted to strike Stafford, but such action met
the objection of his white companion (Rl4)e In the course of the argu-
ment which followed Stafford protested,

*Don't hit me, don't hit me. Let me telk to
you* (R15).

Two sailors arrived at the scene and attempted to stop ths fight (RL5).
Walton freed himself and ren to the prisoner of war camp. He reported
the incident to his company duty officer, First Lieutenant Maxwell T,
Hasty (R15,32)e

On the night of 4 March 194);, Privates Lawrence L, Moss, Drewey
F,Joyce, Dennis N. Branch, Foster M. Coats, Ira F. Hall and both accused
all of j25th Military Police Escort Guard Company, then stationed at the
prisoner of war camp, were at a public house at or near Rugeley (R20,21,
42). At about 10:00 peme the named soldiers left the public house and
proceeded in the direction of the prisoner of war camp on the public road
above described (R20,21,42), Bryant and Hall, accompanied by some girls
walked in advance followed by Forester, Joyce and Branch (R4j2). Coats
walked by himself (R20) end Moss followed in company with an English girl.
in wmiform (R21). About half way to the prisoner of war camp, Bryant
and Hall engaged in an argument with a colared Americen soldier., Farester
*ran into the three® and the colared soldier was knocked to the ground
(RILZ). Joyce intervened in an apparent effort to stop the disturbance
but he was held by eitherFarester or Bryant (Ri2). Beth Forester and
Bryant beat end kicked the prostrate colored scldier, who protested, "Let
me alone® and "Don't mess with me* (R43).

Charles Albert Martin, Naval Air Fitter, Harold Arthur Thompsm,
Alr Mechanic Second Class, Arthur James Pyatt, Air Mechanic, all of the
Royel Naval Air Service and a fourth unnamed member of that Service were
in Rugpley attending a dance on the night of 4 March 194 (R23,25+28).
Martin and the unnamed rating lsft the dance at about 10:30 p.me and pro-
ceeded on foot on the Rugeley - Hednesford road in the direction of
Hednesfarde Thompson and Pyatt departed from the dance a few minutes
later and followed on the Rugeley - Hednesford roed. The la tter two, at
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a point about 400 yards from the prisoner of war camp gate heard a "bit
of scuffling" (R23,25,27,28)s They waited until Thompson and Pyatt join-
ed them and the four men proceeded togetner until two white American
soldiers, who said that they were under restrictions, asked them to stop
a fight between "two black Americans and four white ones™ (R24,26,28).
Proceeding further the Englishmen discovered a '

*black man lying on the ground on the left hand
side of the road, and two white Americans with
another black one, dragging him across the
road, and he was asking them if he might ask a
question; he was saying 'Wait a minute, fellows,
let me ask a question'' (R23).

The ratings intervened eand tried to stop the disorder. A whive American
soldier addressed the Englishmen thus:

*You go on your way, We don't want any trouble
with the English seilors" (R23,26,28).

The sailors, being also "under restrictions", then left the scene and went
to the prisoner of war camp gate and reported the affair to the Corporeal
of the Guards As the four men left the disturbance Martin, Thompson and .
Pyatt saw a wnite soldier jump from the grass verge on the side of the
road and "land with his feet"on the back of the prostrate black soldier
(R23,24,26,27,28)s At this poirt in the affair Thompson and Pyatt heard
one of the white soldiers say, "Lets kill this fe-e~ black bastard" (R26,
28),

Evan John Savage, & British civalian, residing at 76 Cennock Road,
Rugeley, his wife, his brother-in-law, Brynmore Owen and sister-in-law
Annie Owen, the latter two of 21 Moreton Street, Chadsmoor, Staffordshire,
on the evening of 4 March 194} ettended a wedding in Rugeley. They left
that town about 10 p.m. 2nd walked in the direction of Hednesford on the
aforesaid roade As they proceeded along the road at about 1l peme they
heard the noise of a disturbance ahead of them (R29,30,31)s Upon proceede-
ing further they saw a colored soldier lying on the road with his head to-
wards Rugeley (R29,30)e Two white Americans approached Savage and said
to hims: '

*Clear off, if you don't want no trouble" {(R29)
Savage replied:

*T don't want no trouble, but you can't leave
a men . in the road" (R29),

One of the soldiers answered:
"Leave him alone. I put him (this demn nigger)

in the middle of the road for the goddam truck
to run over him as he is no good, He has been
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out with a wnite girl, and out in the States

we don't have anything to do with them, Ve

treat them like dogse The girls are lower .
tnan them for to go out with them" (R19,30).

Savage 's response wass

*Well, you can't do thates Put him on the
bank out of the way of the traffic" (R29,30).

The white solaier then picked up the colored soldier and placed him on the
banke Mr, and Mrs, Savege aid Mr. and Mrs, Owen then walked to the
prison camp -gate and reported the incident to the guardes The two white
soldiers followed them and passsd through the gate wnistling while the
Savages and Owens stood at the camp gate (R29,30).

, After Walton had informed lieutenant Hasty ot the incident they
went to the place on the highway where the disturbance had occurred and
after some difficulty found Stafford on the ground, Lieutenant Hasty could
not feel Stafford's heart beat, Stafford was placed in a truck and was .
taken to the 312th Station Hospital (R15,32).

Captain Morris Kleinerman, Medical Corps, exemined Staffurd when
he reached the hospital at about 11:20 p.m. and pronounced him deade
There was a laceration at the outer side of his left eye-brow; a contused
swollen area over tne left cheekbone; and suome dried blood on the left
side of his nose (R33)s Captain Kleinerman was of the opinion that
Stafford had died witnin an hour prior to the exemination (R34)e

On 6 Marcn 194l Captain Semuel Kantor, Medical Corps, performed
an autopsy on Stafford's body. Without objection the autopsy report (Pros.
EX,1) was received in evidence (R35)s Pertinent excerpts from the report
are ag follows:

"Upon removing the over-coat ii is found that
the neck tie is pulled to the left and is
markedly tightened around the neck exerting
extreme pressure on the tissues beneath * * %,
The knot of the tie is o firm that it bhad to
be cut in order to be removed,
®x Xk %k % ¥ %

This negro American soldier, appearing abuut
30 years of age, was dead when he was brough
(sic) to the hospital on 4 March 19l) at 2320
hourse About an hour previous to admission he
was alleged to have been involved in a fight
with a2 number of white American soldiers near
Rugely about 300 yards from his cemps. External
exemination of the body disclosed a number of
abrasions, contusions, lacerations, and
ecchymoses, His neck was markedly constricted
just above the level of the hyoid bone by his
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neck-tie which was pulled tightly. The neck,
ospecially on the left above and below this
constriction, showed marked swelling of the
tissues, That portion of the neck-tie around
the neck measured 12 inches, The collar of
the shirt that he wore was 16 inches, The
circunference of the neck was 15f inchese
X-ray examination of the head, neck, face, and
chest, as well as post-mortem examination dis-
closed no evidence of fracture of the skull,
facisl bones, cervial vertebras, or thoreic
(sic) cages There was no gross evidence of
damage to the brain or any of the tharacic or
abdominal viscera, There were a number of
petechiae noted in the conjunctivae and the
buceal mucous membrenes, There was marked con-
gestion of both lungs, Post-mortem findings
in this case are compatible with death due to
strangulations® (Pros¢Exel,pDe2,5)¢

Accused Bryant signed a written statement when interviewed by
Harold J. Metzler, Agent, Criminal Investigation Department on 8 March
194 (R4l)e The trial judge advocate, with the concurrence of defense
counsel, cautioned the court that the statement should not be considered
as evidence against accused Forester. The statement was admitted in
evidence as Pros.Ex.} (R}5)s, with proper cautionary instructions from
the law member, The material part of the statement is as follows:

T was born on the 28th July 1923, I was in-
ducted into the U,Se Army in February 1943. I
have been overseas here in Englend since the
latter pert of January 194l

On Saturday )4 March 194, I left my ceamp
without a legal pass. I knew I was going to
be absant without official leave, I left the
camp thru the fence instead of going out thru
the gate. I was accompanied by Pvts. Hall,
Joyce, Moss, Forrester, Branch and Coats, all
members of my campany. We left camp about
1930 hrse
We went toward the town of Rugeley and stopped
at the first pub on the right hand side of the
roads We all had several drinks of beer and
ales I had about twelve pints of beer myself.

Around closing time of the pub, we all
lefte I knew it to be near o osing time, be=-
cause the operator of the Pub came around call-
ing 'time's When we got out on the street
most of the boys started toward camp, but Hell
and I lingered around a bit waiting for some
WAAF's to come out of the 'Pub's Hall & I
then started up the road toward cemp with the
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WAAF's, When we got near about middle way to
the camp, Ball & I and the WAAF's passed a

bunch of American soldierse Just as were (sic)
were alongside of them I knew that Joyce,

Branch and Forrester were part of the bunch of
soldiers and the remaining two were colored boyse
Hall asked what was going on and Joyce answered
it was just a little erguments. Hall decided to
g0 on and said to me, 'Lets go, catch the girlst,
I followed after him, I believe I walked about
seventy-five yards just behind Hall end then

Hall turned around end met me and said, 'Let's go
back and help our buddies's We never did catch
up to the WAAF's, When Hall & I got back to the
other fellows, namely PForrester, Branch and Joyce
and the two colored boys, they were already fight-
ing, however I only saw that one colored boy was
left with Branch, Joyce and Forresters

I remember seeing Joyce and Forrester punching
the colored boy with their fistse The colored boy
was pleading with them to leave him alone. Even
though the calored boy was pleading with them to
leave him alone, I decided to get in on the fight
tooe I hit the colored boy ebout two or three
times in the face with my left fiste I think
Forrester was hitting him at the same tims I was
and then the calored boy either fell down or was
knocked downe I stumbled down on top of the
colored boy and while I was on top of him I hit
him again about three times in the face with my
left fist, While I was down on top of the color-
ed boy hitting him, Forrester was kicking him m
the head, face and shoulder, Joyce ran toward
me end hit me in the shoulder, while I was punching
the colored boy down on the ground and told me to
come one (sic) as a truck was cominge I jumped
up off the colored boy and then ran away follow-
ing Joyce, Hall and Branche Forrester followed
mes We went thru the fence of the camp and I
went straight to my hute When I jumped off the
colored boy, I don't remember anyone picking him
upe The last I saw of him he was laying on his
back on the ground,*

) The prosecution specifically identified the eccused, Forester
and Bryant, as the immsdiate assailants of the deceased by means of the
following evidence: :

(a) - Court room identification by Walton, made during the course
of his testimony, of both accused as two of the white American soldiers
who participated in the altercation wherein Stafford was killed (R15)e
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(b) - Testimony of Ceptain Richard E, Lobuono, Assistant Provost
lershal, 10th Replacement Depot, that on the evening of 5 March 1944 Walton
identified Joyce, Forester and Bryant as three of the participants in the
fight on the road on the night of 4 lMarch 194ls Walton selected the three
men from a group of nine men on two separate occasions and from different
arrangexents of the nine men in the identification parades (R18,19).

(¢) - Coats' and Moss' positive testimony that Forester and
Bryant were in the group of white soldiers who departed from the publie
house in Rugeley about 10 p.ms on the night of 4 March 194}, proceeded to-
wards the prisoner of war camp on the Rugeley-Hednesford road and who en-
countered two colored soldiers on the road and engaged in an argument with
them (R20-22),.

(d) - Partial identification by Annie Owen of Bryent as one of
the white soldiers seen by her on the occasion on the night of L March 194
when she saw the body of a soldier in the roed (R31).

(e) - The evidence of Corporal Joseph Miko, L4Oth Military Police
Frisoner of War Processing Company, that acting under arders at about 2300
hours, 4 March 194, he searched all barracks of the prisoner of war camp
and found Bryant on his back in a stupor evidencing intoxication with his
clothes "tusseled up* and with mud on them, abrasions on one of his hands
and on the top of his hand and stains on his leggings and trousers which
looked like blood (R36,37).

(f) = Testimony of Major Bernard 0'Neill, Prisoner of War Enclo-
sure No. 2, that he observed accused Bryant about midnight }-5 March 194)
and discovered blood on the buttons of Bryant's overcoat, blood on his
legegings wnich was then moist and stains which appeared to be blood on his
shoes, There was also a fresh bruise on the second knuckle of his left
hand (R39).

(g) - Testimony of Captain Rudolph E. Warnecke, Medical Corps, who
mede examination of the hands of both accused on 7 Merch 194)ie Forester's
exanination showed a quarter inch scratch on the fourth finger, dorsum of
the left hand, over the medial phalanx, Bryant's examination revesled a
scratch on the base of the ring finger, dorsum, left hand and also scratches
on the distal end of the proximal phalanx and one on the distal end of the
proximal phalanx of the fourth digit, all on the dorsum, The scratches
had been inflicted more than 24 hours prior to the examination (R40).

(h) - Branch's testimony that Bryant and Forester engaged in en
argument and altercation with a colored soldier about 10:30 pems to 10:45
Pelme On L March 194li on the Rugeley-Hednesford road and that both Bryant
and Forester beat and kicked the negro after he had been knocked to the

ground (R42,43)e

(1) - Evidence that Bryant's trousers (Pros.Ex.2) end leggings
(Pros.Ex.3) were found to be blood stained (R38,39,45,46)e
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Se Each accused elected to remain silent.

The only testimony presented by the defense was that of Private
George Kohnke, l4Oth Military Police Prisoner of War Processing Company,
who stated that at the Prisconer of War camp gate between 10 peme and 12
midnight, 4§ March 19/J), there were several civilians who conversed as to
a "scuffle® down the rosd from the gate (R48).

6s (a) - There is competent, substantial evidence in the record of

trial identifying the accused, Forester and Bryant, as Stafford's princi-
pel assailants, Their presence at the scene of the homicide is establish-
ed without contradiction, Branch's testimony that the two accused beat
and kicked the deceased and otherwlse mistreated him stands unimpeached
and undisputed, Such direct and specific evidence in connection with the
circumstances and events set forth Iin paragraphs three and four hsreof
proved beyond reasonable doubt that the two present accused -are primerily
responsible for Stefford's deathe The findings of the court in this re-
spect are fully supported by the evidence (CM ETO 78, Watts; CM ETO 492,
lewis; CM ETO 503, Richmond; CM ETO 531, McLurkin; CM ETO €85, Ven Horn;
CM ETO 1360, Poe; CM ETO 1351. Leatherberry; CM ETO 1671, Matthews;

CiM ETO 1673, Denny; CM ETO 2358, Pheil)s

(v) ~ Beyond all doubt Stafford's necktie was tightened about his
neck during the essault and battery on him committed by the group of white
soldiers which included the two accuseds The knot of the tie was so tight
that the post mortem surgeon was compelled to cut it from his necke The
proximate cause of deceased's death was strangulation. The record fails
to reveal whether it was Farester, Bryant or one of the other of Stafford's
assailants who tightened the death noose asbout his throate

The distinctions between principals, aiders and abetters have
been abolished by Federal statute:

*Whoever directly commits any act constituting
an cffense defined in any law of the Thnited
States, or aids, abets, counsels, commands,
induces, or procures its commission, is a
principal® (35 Statell52; U.S.Criminal Code,
sece332, 18 USCA.8ece590)s

In the administration of military justice the distinction between principals,
aiders and aebetters and accessories is not recognized (Winthrop's Military
Lew and Precedents - Reprint, p.108)e

The above statute and the rules of law cognate thereto are
applicable to this cases. It was unnecessary for the prosecution to estab-
lish that Paester and Bryant personally fashioned Stafford's tie into a
garrote and applied it as a death producing instrument. In the assault on
Stafford and in the commission of the homicidal act which evolved therefrom,
the two accused were active and violent partici pantse They were legally
responsible not only for the individual acts committed by each, but also
for the acts of each and every participant in theillegal and wholly inex-
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cusable attack on the unoffending calored scldier. The Board of Review
bhas heretofore considered and analyzed the principle of law here involved
in CM ETO 72, Jacobs and Farley; CM ETO 393, Caton and Fikes; CM ETO
804, Ogletree et al; CM ETO 895, F.A.Devis, et al; CM ETO 1052, Geddies
et al; CM ETO 128}, A.Davis et al; CM ETO 1453, Fowlere In view of the
discussions contained in said holdings and the authorities therein cited,
further presentation of authorities and argument are unnecessary to sup-
port the conclusion that both Faester and Bryant are responsible as prin-
cipels for Stafford's death.

(¢) - The deceased and his companion, Walton, were returning to
their camp from Rugsley in a law abiding, peaceable manner, Farester
and Bryant in company with Joyce, Branch and Hall overtook them on a pub-
lic highway, In spite of the fact that the two colored soldiers on at
least two occasions sought to evade conflict with them and retreated,
Forester andBryant persisted in their evident purpose of provoking an
altercation, There is neither evidence nor inferences in the record of
trial that either Stafford or Walton was the aggressor; appositely the
evidence is substantial that they were the victims of an unlawful, inex-
cusable interference by the accused and companions which interference
developed into a cruel battery on the deceased resultant in his deaths
No queation of self defense can arise fram the evidence, Forester and
Bryant were vicious aggressors from beginning to ende

*Murder is the unlawful killing of a human being
with malice aforethought, '"Unlawful'! means
without legal justification or excuses
* & % % % % *

Malice does not necesssrily mean hatred or per-
sonal ill-will toward the perscn killed, nor an
actual intent to take his 1lifs, or even to take
anyone's 1ife., The use of the word 'afore-
thought' does not mean that the malice must
exist for any particular time before cammission
of the act, or that the intention tokill must
have previously existeds It is sufficient that
it exist at the time the act is committeds
(0181'](0)

Malice aforethought may exist when the act is
unpremeditateds It may mean any one or more of
the M llowing states of mind preceding or co-
existing with the act or omission by which death
is caused: An intention to cause the death of,
or grievous bodily harm to, any person, whether
such person is the e rson actually killed or
not (except when death is inflicted in the heat
of a sudden passion, caused by adequate provoca-
tion); knowledge that the act which causes
death will probably cause the death of, or
grievous bodily harm to, any person, whether
such person is the person actually killed or not,
although such knowledge is accompanied by in-
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difference whether death or grievous bodily
harm is caused or not or by a wish that it
may not be caused® (MCM, 1928, par.l,Ba,rpe
162-16)),

*In every case of apparently deliberate and

un justifiable killing, the law presumes the
existence of the malice necessary to consti-
tute murder, and devolves upon the accused

the onus of rebutting the presumption, In
other words, where in the fact and circum-
stances of the killing as committed no de-
fence appears %he accused must show that the
act was either no crime at all or a crime

less than murder; otherwise it will be held to
be murder in law® (Winthrop's Military Law and
Precedents - Reprint, D.673)e

*a deliberate intent to kill must exist at the
moment when the aet of killing is perpetrated
to render the homicide murder. Such intent
may be inferred under the rule that everyome
is presumed to intend the natural consequences
of his act® (1 Wharton's Criminal Law, 12th Ed.
59304200130633)0

*Malice aforethought is either 'express' or 'im-
plied!'; express, where the intent, - as mani-
fested by previous enmity, threats, the absence
of eny or of sufficient provocation, &ce, = is
to take the life of the particular person kill-
ed, or, since a specific purpose to kill is
not essential to constitute murder, to inflict
upon him some excessive bodily injury which may
naturally result in death * * ** (Winthrop's
Military Law and Precedents = Reprint, p.673)
(Underscoring supplied).

Prior to and simmltaneous with the assault on deceased, threats to kill him
emanated from the group of white scldiers of which the two accused were
members., Stafford was knocked to the ground and was then kicked and beaten.
While helpless one of the attackers jumped from the verge of the road and
landed with his feet on his prostrate forme After he had becoms uncon-
scious he was either intentionally left in the road or was placed in such
location thereon as to become almost a certain victim of passing vehicles,
Only the intervention of British civilians prevented the consummation of
such atrocious deeds The exact moment and the actual perpetrator of the
act of strangulation are not definitely shown by the evidence, but there

is substantial proof that the accused was strangled during the attack upon
him in which the two accused were active, vicious participants, The
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evidence, without doubt or qualification shows that the accused intended

to inflict upon deceased "some excessive bodily injury which may naturally
result in death®s The motive of the attack, the purpose of the assault
and the nature of the death producing act, constitute intrinsic proof of

a most substantial nature that Forester and Bryant acted with malice aforea-
thought when they caused Stafford's deaths The evidence of the homicide
fully supports the findings of murder (CM ETO 255, Cobb; CM ETO 422, Green;
CM ETO 438, Smith; CM ETO 739, Maxwell; CM ETO 969, L. Davis; CH ETO
1901, Mirenda; CM ETO 2007, Harris).

7« The charge sheet shows that Forester is 26 years, two months of
age and Bryant is 20 years, seven months of age, and that each accused was
inducted on 26 Jenuary 1943 at Fort McPherson, Georgia, and that their
respective service periods are governed by the Service Extension Act of
1941, Neither accused had any prior service.

8, The court was legally constituted and had jurlisdiction of the per-
sons and the offenses, No errors injuriously affecting the substantial
rights of the accused were committed during the trial, The Board of
Review is of the opinion that the record of trial is legally sufficient to
support the findings of guilty and the sentence.

9+ Confinement of the accused in a penitentiary is authorized by AW
42 and sec.275 and sec.330 of the Federal Criminal Code (18 USCA, secs.454
and 567) and the designation of the United States Penitentiary, Lewisburg,
Pennsylvania, as the place of confinement is authorized (Cir.291, WD, 10
Nov 1943, sec.V, pars.3a and b)e

W

.
Judge Advocate

a3

«
(CZ&‘//ZV,?f Do Judge Advocate
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WD, Branch Office TJAG., with ETOUSA. 20 JUN (944 TO: Commanding
Officer, Western Base Section, Communicetions Zone, ETQUIA, APO 515, U.S,
Army.

1, In the case of Privates WILLIAM C. FORESTER (34686405) and TRACEY
BRYANT (34686280) both of 425th Military Police Escort Guard Company,
attention is invited to the foregoing holding by the Board of Review that
the record of trial is legally sufficient to support the findings of
guilty and the sentence, which holding is hereby approveds Under the pro-
visions of Article of War 504, you now have authority to order execution
of the sentence. ’

2+ When copies of the published order are forwarded to this office
they should be accampanied by the foregoing holding and this indorsement.
The file number of the record in this office is ETQO 1922, For convenience
of refsrence please place that number in brackets &t the end of the order:

(ETO 1922),
Sy

Prigadier General, United States Army,
Assistant Judge Advocate General.
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Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General

with the (25)
European Theater of Operations
APO 871
BOARD CF REVIEW
ETO 1926 6 MAY 1944
UNITED STATES 29TH INFANTRY DIVISION,
' Trial by G.C.M., convened at AFPO 29,

U.S, Army, 23 February - 19 March
1944+ Sentences Dishonorable dis-
charge, total forfeitures and con-
finement at hard labor for ten years.,
United States Penitentiary, Lewis-
burg, Pennsylvania,.

Private JAMES P. HOLLIFIELD
(24171736), Company L, 175th
Infantry.

Nt St Sl st s e ait? it et

HOLDING by the BOARD OF REVIEW
RITER, VAN BENSCHOTEN and SARGENT, Judge Advocates

1. The record of trial in the case of the soldier named above has
been examined by the Board of Review,

2. Accused was tried upon the’following charges and specifications:

CHARGE I: Violation of the 6lst Article of War.
(Nolle Prosequi)
Specification: (Nolle Prosequi)

CHARGE II: Violation of the 69th Article of Tar,
(Disapproved)
Specification: (Disapproved)

ADDITIONAL CHARGES

GE.I: Vio he 96th Artic

U e S B oo TBFey
Mrs. Agnes Mary Brown, did, at Torquay, England,
on or gbout 3 January, 1944, unlawfully pretend
to lirs. Agnes Mary Brown that he was Johnana
Thomas and was expecting B100 ($400.00) to be
sent him from America, that he had to visit
Andover to await its arrival and needed money
with which to pay his fare and meet his expenses;
well knowing that said pretenses were false and
by means thereof did fraudently obtain from the
said Mrs. Agnes Mary Brown the sum of B45 ($180.00),
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CHARGE II: Violation of the 58th Article of War.
Specification: In that * * %, did, at Penzance, Cornwall,
Fngland, on or gbouwt 10 December 1943, desert the
service of the United States and did remain sbsent
in desertion until he was apprehended at Torquay,
England on or sbout 4 February 1944.

He pleaded not guilty to and was found guilty of all charges and specifica-
tions, Evidence was introduced of one previous conviction by special
court-martial for larceny of a bicycle in violation of the 93rd Article of
Waer. He was sentenced to be dishonorably discharged the service, to forfeit
all pay and allowances due or to become due and to be confined at hard labor,
at such place as the reviewing authority may direct, for 20 years. The
reviewing authority disapproved the findings of guilty of Charge II and its
Specification (escape), approved the sentence but reduced the period of
confinement to ten years, designated the United States Penitentiary, Lewis-
burg, Pennsylvania as the place of confinement and forwarded the record of
trial for action pursuant to the provisions of Article of ar 50%.

3s The court was legall; constituted and had jurisdiction of the
person and offenses. No errors injuriously affecting the substantial rights
of accused were committed during the trial, The Board of Review is of the
opinion that the record of trial is legally sufficient to support the
findings of guilty and the sentence,

4. The charge sheet shows thdt accused was 21 years eight months of
age, that he was inducted 9 October 1941 at Fort Bragg, North Carolina for
the duration of the war plus six months. He had no prior service,

5. The punishment for desertion in time of war ie death or such other
punishment as a court-martial masy direct (AW 58) and confinement may be in
a penitentiary (AW 42), Obtaining money under false pretences in the
amount of $50,00 and upwards is a crime under the District of Columbia Code
punishable by imprisonment in the penitentiary (District of Columbia Code,
22-1301 (6385); 24-401 (6:401) )s Accused is under the age of 31 years
and the confinement is for ten years, The place of confinement should be
changed from the United States Penltentiary, Lewisburg, Pemnsylvania to the
Federal Reformatory, Chillicothe, Ohio (Cir. 291, WD, 10 Nov 1943, sec.V,

pars.3g and b).
f 4"4’7ZJ Judge Advocate
W Judge Advocate

p Judge Advocate
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WD, Brench Office TJAG., with ETOUSA. 6 MAY 1944  T0: Commanding
General, 29th Infantry Division, APO 29, U.S. Army,

1. In the case of Private JAMES P, HOLLIFIELD (34171736), Company L,
175th Infentry, attention is invited to the foregoing holding by the
Board of Review that the record of trial is legally sufficient to support
the findings of guilty and the sentence, which holding is hereby approved.
Under the provisions of Article of War 50%, you now have authority to order
execution of the sentence.

2+ Attention is invited to the designated place of confinement, which
should be changed to the Federal Reformatory, Chillicothe, Ohio (Cir. 291,
WD, 10 Nov 1943, sec.V, pars.3g and b)., This may be done in the published
general court-martial order.

3. TWhen coples of the published order are forwarded to this office
they should be accompanied by the foregoing holding and this indorsement.
The file number of the record in this office is ETO 1926, For convenience

of reference plesse place that number in brackets at the end of the order:
(ETO 1926).

5 Ve
7 BEJes McNEIL,
Brigadier General, United States Army,
Assistant Judge Advocate General,
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Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General
with the
Eurcpean Theater of Operations
APO 871
BOARD OF REVIEW
3 JUN1944
ET0 1941
UNITED STATES ) SOUTHERN BASE SECTION, SERVICES
) OF SUPPLY, EUROPEAN THEATER CF
v, ; OPERATIONS.
Private HENRY O. BATTIES ) Trial by G.C.M,, convened at Exeter,
(32199498), Detachment C, ) Devonshire, England 1112 March 1944.
3197th Quartermaster Ser- ) Sentence: Dishonorable discharge,
vice Company. ) total forfeitures and confinement at
; hard labor for life, United States
Penitentiary, lewisburg, Pemnsylvanie,

HOLDING by the BOARD OF REVIEW
RITER, VAN EENSCHOTEH and SARGENT, Judge Advocates

1. The record of tiial in the case of the soldier named above has
been éxamined by the Board of Review,

2, Acoused was tried upon the following Charge and Specification:

CHARGE: Violation of the 92nd Article of War.

Specification: In that Private Henry O, Battles,
Detachment C, 3197th Quartermaster Service
Company, did, at Exster, Devon, England, on
or about 6 February 1944, with malice afore-
thought, wilfully, deliberately, felonicusly,
unlewfully, and with premeditation ki1l ome
Ronald H., Schulz, a human being by stabbing
him in the chest with a kmife,

He pleaded not guilty to and was found guilty of the Charge and Specifica-
tion, three-fourths of the members of the court concurring, Evidence was
introduced of five previocus convictions by summary court as follows: breach
of arrest in violation of Article of Wer 69, drunkenness in quarters in
violation of Article of War 96, absence without leave for two and three
dsys respectively, and absence without leave "Mar 3, 1943" in violation of
Article of War 61, He was sentenced to be dishonorably discharged the
service, to forfeit all pay and allowances due or to become due and to be
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confined at hard labor, at such pluce as the reviewing euthority may direct,
for the term of his natural life, three-fourths of the ceurt concurring.
The reviewing authority approved the sentence, designated the United States
Penitentiary, Lewlsburg, Pemnsylvania, as the place of confinement and for-
warded tg; record of trial for action pursuant to the provisions of Article
of War 508,

3. The evidence for the prosecution was substantially as follows:

On the evening of 6 February 194, Electrician Third Class Garland
G, Lynch, Jr., 29th Construction Battalion, United States Navy, left a train
in a railroad station at Exeter, England, As he started up a stairway he
heard someone call, turned, and saw that it was Ronald H, Schulz (the de-
ceased, an American sa.ilors whom he had known for about 15 months and who
was a member of his om "outfit." Sclulz said "I'm having trouble with
sone jigh. The term "jigs" signified colored men to Lynch, who testified
"I looked around and I saw all the jigs there, so I figured it was just too
many for two of us,* He said "I'1l see what we can do about it Schulz" and
left to look for some of ™the boys" of his organization who were on his
train, He returned with four Ameriéen sailors about five minutes later,
but Schulz was not there, Two colored soldiers were then on the platform
and some others were boarding a train. A few minutes later Lynch and his
conpanions found Schulz lying on a tridge over the platform., He was un-
able to talk, was taken down stairs and laid on a small "push cart," and
then removed to a hospitel in a "jeep", Iynch did not strike or speak to
aryone before he left to get the other sailors, nor did anyone strike at
him (R28"34)0

About 11:00 p.m. the same evening Schulz was brought to the Royal
Devon and Exeter Hospital with a wound in the upper left side of his chest,
and was immediately operated on by Dr. David Longridge, the resident surg-
ical officer, Dr. Longridge enlarged the external wound in the chest,
removed two ribs and found a wound at the apex of the left ventricle of the
heart, He stitched the wound but Schulz died on the operating table about
11,25 p,e. (R8,10-11), Dr, Longridge did not notice any odar of aleohol
on the patient's breath, Lieutenant Francis T, Kelly, Medical Corps,
United States Naval Reserve, attached to the 29th Construction Battalionm,
who knew deceased (R19), performed a post-mortem on the body on 7 February
(RR1). An examination of contents of the stomach for alcohol revealed
7¢5 milligrams per 100 cubic centimeters of extract content, which was in-
sufficient in amount to cause a man to be under the influence of alcohol
(F23). In the opinicrsof Lieutenant Kelly and Dr, Longridge, accused was
stabbed once and the cause of death was a penetrating wound of the heart
which was probably caused by a knife (R12,16=17,23«24,26), Dr. Longridge
believed that the wound wes inflicted shortly before 11100 p.m. (R15),
lieutenant, Kelly identified & naval "P, Jacket", swester, dress jumper and
"schiw{‘ shirt, which were worn by deceased when on the operating table
(R20-21), The articles were admitted in evidence (R13«15,21,136; Pros,
Exs.1,2,3,4)

o2 -
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About noon 6 Fetruary 1944, accused arrived at Exeter, England,
with five other soldiers, namely, Private First Class Archie L. Jackson
and Privates Ortho V., Patrick, Frank Fishér, James Fisher and William Bell,
all members of the 3197th Quartermaster Service Company, They drank beer,
ate at a cafe, and then consumed some more bser, They also drank some
"spirits®, About 10:20 p.e. they arrived at the railrcad station in
Exeter to take a train to Taunton (R50=51,56=57,62-63). Jackson and
Patrick got on the train together, Frank Fisher who was on the train
said that somecne had hit him, His eye was bleeding (R52-53,56,63),
Patrick testified that as he and Jackson were looking out of the train
window, two sallors approached and asked "Don't one of you wanted to get
off and fight" (R63), Jackson testified that he heard a sailor ssy some-
thing about "bloody fellows"™ and "figured he wes talking to all of us who
was in the car® (R59«60), Accused left the train despite Jackson's re-
quest not to do so, and started toward a sailor whé began to walk backwards
acrogs the platform, Acoused said two or three times *What did you hit
xy buddy for," Jackson shouted *Battles, come back and get on the train”,
Accused did not answer but continued to walk toward the sailor who was
backing away towards a stairway leading to the tridge (R51-55,61,63),
Jackson and Patrick left the train and went after accused who swung at the
sallor with an over-arm motion, The sailor made no effort to strike
accused who was seized by Jackson and Patrick and taken toward the train,
He pulled back saying "Turn me loose = he hit my buddy", He was then

aboard the train and held forcibly until the train left the station,
Patrick testified that he did not believe accused succeeded in striking
the sailor, and that there was nothing in accused's hand when they pushed
hin on the train (R51,55,63=66).

Mr, James V. Vince, carriage and wagon examiner, 18 Foxhayes Road,
8t. Thomas, Exeter, waa examining the last vehicle of the train shortly
after 10:30 p,m, when he noticed a sailor "backing out® of a compartment
followed by a colored soldier who shouted "Fhat did you hit my buddy for®,
The sailor did not reply but backed across the platform to the end of a
bookstall by a stairway., The colored soldier continued to shout excitedly
"What did you hit my buddy for =~ he ain't said nothing®, The sailor re-
plied "I didn't", whereupon the soldier shouted "You're a liar® and struck
at the sailor with his left hand, striking him in the vicinity of the groin,
A lighted torch fell to the pletform, Theamsldier then hit the sailor
fairly high in the chest with a right overhand blow but the sailor, who was
the much larger of the two, made no attempt to defend himself, Vince then
observed three cclored soldiers leave the train, One of these soldiers,
who was bleeding just above the left eye, remained Yy the train while the
other two seized the firet soldier and led him protesting to the train
(R35-36,38,40),

On the evening in question, Mr. George Coles, 17 Clayton Road,
Exeter, leading parcel porter at the station, saw a sailor with his back
to the stairs with his right arm raised in defending position and a torch
in his hand, Before him was a “"derk™ soldier who said “What did you hit
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my father for" or words to that effect, When the sailor replied "if you
dare hit me", the soldier struck him "somewhere below the face", The
sailor did not attempt to strike the soldier or to defend himself (B42e44).

Miss Betty M, Ware, 9 Raleigh Road, Exeter, saw three American
colored soldiers arguing with an American sailor at the foot of the stairs
shortly before 11:00 p.,m, on the evening in question. Two of the soldiers
were pulling back the third soldier who was tryihg to get forward and who
was saying "You hit my father" or "You had my wallet?, She did not see
any blows, As Miss Ware and the sailor walked up the stairs together, his
head was dowmn and his hand was approximately on a level with hias heart,

She said to him "How disgusting « Fancy fighting on the station, Ares they
drunk?? He replied "Yes, I think so?, Miss Ware left the sailor behind,
As she went across the bridge overhead she heard a groan "and a slipping of
feet", turned, and saw the sailor lying face downward on the top of the
steps (R46-47)

At the trial neither Vince nor Coles could identify the soldier who
struck the sailor (R38,45), At some undetermined date after the occurrence
Vince identified Frank Fisher as the soldier with the injury over the eye
(R39). ILynch festified at the trial that he saw accused "before" but could
not remember "whether it was him that night or not" (RR), MimsWare testi-
fied that she later identified accused as one of the men who were holding
back the "center colored soldier®, and that she subsequently identified
Frank Fisher as the second of the group of three soldiers, &he could not
describs the center soldier, was positive of her identification of accused,
but was not certain about Fisher (R49).

Admitted in evidence by stipulation were four photographs of cert-
ain portions of St,David's rallroad station at Exeter which showed the
station platform, the stairway and the overhead bridge, The witnesses
marked the photographs with various figures to indicate the position of ths
sailor-when confrontéd by his assailant, and the place where the former was
‘found lying on the bridge (R28,30,37,45,47-48; Pros.Exs.A,B,C,D),

About 10:25 p,m. on the evening concerned, Gerald H.J.Hooton, lead-
ing motor mechanic, Royal Navy, entered a compartment on the train to Taun-
ton, together with a Royal Navy petty officer named Jones, The train was
not lighted, Two American soldiers (Privates James Fisher and Willianm
Bell) entered the carriage and shortly thereafter there was a scuffle and
shout on the platform, followed by commotion in the corridor of the train,

A “rather excited" man, identified by Hooton as accused, was shoved into the
carriage. The railroad guard switched on the light and Hooton saw sevaral
colored soldiers, Accused had a knife in his right hand and was shouting
that he wanted to get at the "'goddam Yankee sailor!®, He wanted to leave
the train but was restrained from doing so, When an American lieutenant
silenced the group, accused pointed to another colored soldier who had a
cut over his eye and said "Look, Lieutenant, the goddam Yankse sailor has
hit my father with a torch, over the eye.® The lieutenant replied that "it
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was dons now, and he couldn't do anything else sbout 4t." Accused safy
"Yes, * * # tut he shouldn't have done it = I'm going to get even with him",
whereupon the officer replied "You keep quiet and keep in here or I'll pre-
fer charges against you myself,® When the lisutenant left the commotion
started again, Accused shouted that hes wanted to get out and the other
soldiers held him back, He went through his pockets saying "I wish I had
By 45". The train left the station and a civilian entered the compart-
ment, An American major and the guard removed most of the colored sole-
diers and six people were left in the compartment, namely, accused, Hooton,
Jones, the civilian and the two American soldiers who entered the train
shortly after Hooton and Jones., Accused who was rather excited still held
the knife in his hand, He said that as he and his father were descending
the stairs a Yankee sailor told his father "Get out of my way, you black
bastard" and hit hiam above the eye with a torch. Accused stated " # # #
I wasn't going to have that, so I went for him with my knife, I went for
his chest, but he dived out of the way and I hit him in the arm, in the
left arm, * # # I was just unlucky, I couldn't finish him, * % %, With
that my other boys came along and pushed me into this carriage," In order
to quiet accused it was suggested that he sing spirituals, whereupon he
replied "Boy, I love singing, but it is not singing in my heart tonight,
its killing,* He further stated that he "hated white Yankees, but he
loved Englishmen®, At ancther point in the general conversation accused
remarked to the civilian “"If you hit my buddy I would kill you, and I
would have paid off my debt", TWhen the civilian replied "If you did kill
me you would die for it," accused anaswered "That makes no difference - I'd
have paid off my debt." The civilian asked to see accused's knife and he
gave it to him., He then requested that it be given back to him and put

it in his right breast pocket, Hooton identified the knife at the trial
and it was admitted in evidence, the defense stating that there was no
objection thereto (R68-76; Pros.Ex.5%),

About 11:30 p,m, that evening, Corporal Anthony J. Tolt, 707th
Military Police Battalion, stationed at Exeter, as the result of informa-
tion received, telephoned the military police at Taunton and directed that
all army and navy personnel should be removed from the train when it arriv-
ed at Taunton (R77). Six colored soldiers, including accused, were taken
from the train at Taunton and brought to the military police station, Five
of the soldiers were searched by Techniclan Fifth Grade Barney B. Edmunds,
Company A, 707th Military Police Battalion, who found a "amall paring
knife" on accused, His trousers were tucked in his socks and the kmife
was in the trousers down by his left sock, Edmunds identi¥™ed Pros.Ex,5
as the knife in question, and testified that accused was normal and did not
appear to be under the influence of intoxicating liquor, He did not find
a knife on the person of any of the other four soldiers when he searched
them, but testified that "they' found a knife on the sixth man (R78-79),

On 8 February, after being warned of his rights, accused made a
statement to Staff Sergeant George W, Russa, Criminal Investigation Divi-
sion Detachment, Headquarters 19th District, which was reduced to writing
and signed by accused after its contents had been read to him (R80-81),

5w
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It was adnitted in evidence over objection by the defense (RS2; Pros.Ex.E).
The contents of the statement are not set forth herein except triefly as
accused!s testimony in his own defense was substantially in conformance
therewith. Accused in pertinent part stated therein that he boarded the
train after being told by a "big" American sailor to "get on that train",
He then heard Frank Fisher, who was cut over the eye, ask a ghort, gtout
American sailor why he hit him, When he saw that Fisher had been hit, and
Yafter what the big American had said to me," accused "got mad" at the
"big" sailor, left the train and asked him why he hit histmddy, The sallor
smung at him with a torch but accused dodged the blow, Holding a knife in
his right hand he then jumped at the man who backed away :

"because I guess he saw the knife in my hard,
%* % #, When I hit him with the knife it was
more to protect myself than because I had
lost my temper, I figured he intended to
hurt me by the way he swung at me * * ¥, I
had hit him because after my tuddy had got
hit and after the big American had talked
to me the way he hild I went up to the big
one end asked him why he had hit my buddy*
(Underscoring supplied).

Accused further stated that he was searched at camp before going on pass,
and that he then went back to his hut and obtained his knife, *We always
go back and get out knives aftar we draw our passes.,® He carried the
knife for self-proteciion only (R83; Pros Ex.E),

4o For the defense, Private Frank Fisher testified that the party of
six soldiers approached the train where two sailors were "standing stagger-
ing®, TWhen accused asked one of them "Pardon me, sailor, is this the
train for Taunton", the man replied *Yes, and git on it.," Accused did not
answers and walked on, When Fisher then remonstrated with one sailor for
calling another man a *nigger" and kicking him, the other sailor hit him
over the eye and then ran up the platform where there were other sailora.
About five sailors then approached the train, "called us niggers and sons
of bitches" and told them all to come out and fight (R89-90,92-93). Accused
zu on ;.ha train when Fisher boarded it and he did not see accused get off

R91-93).

Private James Fisher testified that he and Bell entered a compart-
ment on the train and acoused entered the compartment about four mimites
later, A sailor appeared at the window of the train and said "The best
man get off apd fight." Fisher did not see accused leave the train but
heard him say "Did you hit my buddy®™ both before and after accused entered
the train, VWitness was in the same compartment wilh accused on the way
to Tamnton and heard someone ask him to sing, Accused was not excited in
any way but had in his hand the knife adm{tted in evidence as Pros,Ex,5,
Witness fell asleep ten minutes after the train started and slept until
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they arrived at Taunton (R96~97,99-100),

Patrick testified that when accused left the train he approached
a sallor who was "large and low", When Lynch was brought into the court-
roou, witness was not sure whether or not he saw him that evening (R110),

Accused testified that on the afternoon of 6 February the six sol-
diers ate and then went to a "pub® where they "had quite a number of drinks®,
They ate again, went to a show, had dinnsr and then went to a "pub® where
they again had "quite a mumber of drinks", They then had supper and went
to the station, When accused came to ths bottom of the stairas a *big tall
Amsrican sailor* shone a light in his face and said "Get on that train,
nigger”, Accused replied "Okay, buddy", got on the train-and then heard
Frank Pisher, outside the train say "Don't hit me « why should you hit me.,*
Accused left the train, asked the sailor why he hit his "buddy®, The sallor
"only answered with a smashing blow of his torch" at accused, who jumped
back "and cut underhanded with my knife, a little potatom knife I had in my
hand # # # J£ T hit him I would have got it on his leg or his hands * % a®,
The sallor then ran away, Accused further testified that the sallor he
"cut at" with his knife was Iynch, whom he recognised ons afternoon when
the soldiers were later rought to Exeter to be identified by a group of
sailors, Accused did not hit any other sailor (R116-118),

Corporal Elmer D, Moorhead, 707th Military Police Detachment,
testified that when he arrived on the bridge where Schulz was found, the
latter was unconscious and his breath smelled of liquor (R127).

Ca Charles L, Helms, commanding officer of accused's organ-
isation (R7), testified that he had known asccused since about 20 July 1943
and had never known him to tell a Ile, During a mobilization training
test, accused acted as "runner® for the witness and "did a Jam up job®
(R113), Based on remarks of accused's non-commissioned officers, the wit-
ness believed his efficiency was "a little above the average" (R114),

5¢ There is competent substantial evidence that ascused at the time

and place alleged, stabbed Scimls with a knife and that&huls died the same
evening as a result of the injury received, The question presented for
consideration is whether the evidence is legally sufficient to support
findings that aceused was gullty of muarder, _
®lMurder 1s the unlawful killing of a human

being with malice aforethought, *Unlawful!

means without legal justification or excuse, )

IER X RN RN RN

Malice does not necessarily mean hatred or

personal 11l-will toward the person killed,

nor an actual intent to take his life, or

even to take anyone's life, The uss of the

word faforethought'! does not msan that the

malice must exist for any particular time
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before commission of the act, or thatthe in-
tention to kill must have previously existed,
It is sufficient that it exist at the time
the act is committed, (Clark),
Malice aforethought may exist when the act

is unpremeditated. It may mean any one or

~ more of the following states of mind preced-
ing or coexisting with the act or omlssion by
which death is caused: An intention to cause
the death of, or grievous bodily harm to, any
person, whether such person is the person
actually killed or not (except when death is
inflicted in the heat of a sudden passiom,
cansed by adoquate prcvocation); mm

Lm;m whethermh person Ts the
porson a.ctual]s killod or not, althoygh such
o1 A i [} 1€ [ “,:_ BI'e P

groer deatlh g Sy B Y-
caused; intent to commlit any felony." Zucu

1928, par.l48a, pp.162,163-164) (Underscoring

Bupplied).
%It is murder, malice being presumed or inferred,
where death is ¢ the tional

The use of a doadly veapon is
not conclusive a.a to malice, but the inference
of malice therefrom may be overcome, and where
the facts and circuastances of the killing are
in evidence, its existence of malice must be

determined as a fact from all the evidence,
XMW MWW N R R

o This, like other matters of
intent, is to be gathered from the circumstances
of the case, such as the fact that accused had
the weapon prepared for use, or that it was used
in such a mamner-that the natural, ordimry and
probable result would be to take life.* (29 C.J.,
86c.T4, PP.1099-1101) (Underscoring supplied).

The definition of the offense of voluntary manslaughter and its
distinction from murder is as follows:
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"Manslaughter is distinguished from murder )
by the absence oi deliberation and malice

aforethought, Ths intent to kill being

formed suddenly under the influence of

violent paasion or emotion which, for the

time being, overwhelms the reason of the

accused, It is # # % the uncontrollable

passion, aroused by adequate provocation,

which for the time being renders the

accused incapabls of reasoning and unable

to control his actions.* (1 Wharton's

Crininal Law, sec.423, pp.640-642).

. The elements of uncontrollable passion and adequate provocation
are analyzed as follows:

"The passion thus aroused must be so violent
as to dethrone the reason of the accused,
for the time being; and prevent thought and
reflection, and the formation of a deliber-
ate purpose. The theory of the law is that
malice and passion of this degres cannot
coexist in the mind at the same time; and
the grade of the offense is fixad by the

preponderance of passion, or the legal pre-
sumption that the ast was malielous and for

motives of revenge, Mere enger, in apd of

mm_?nmmm_;_mu
W" 1 Yharton's Criminal law,

00,426, pp.646-647) (Underscoring supplied).

" B-A-h

1O

9Ty : e maawial xilling
?u_mmm:‘ 1bid,, sec.426, p.
Underscoring supplied).
"Deadly weapon used by the accused, the provo-
sation must have been very great in arder to
reduce the erims in a homicide to that of
voluntary manslanghter. Mere use of deadly
weapon does not of itself ralse a rresumption
of malice on the part of the accused; but
where stich a weapon 13 used ih a mannet likely
t0, and does, canse death, the law presumes
malice from the ast, * #* %, Nere fear, aprre-
hension, er belisf, though honestly entertain-
od, when not justifiable, will not excuse or

nitigats a killing where the danger was not
urgent.” (ibid., 860,426, pp.652-655).
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*Heat of passion, aloms, will not reduce s
honicide to voluntary manalaughter; to do
this there mst have been an adequate prov-
Oc‘tiono. (1hid.’ ”00426’ pp0655"656)0

In considering the facts involved in the instant ecass the following
citations are pertinent:

"Where the evidence shows an intent on the
part of the defendant to kill, no words of
reproach, no matter how grievous, are
provooation sufficient to free the party
killing from the guilt of murdér; nor are
indecent proweking actions or gestures
expressive of contempt or reproach without
an asssult upon ths person.® (1 Wharton's
Crininal law, 12th Ed., sec,584, pp,802-803),

*But if a party, under coler of fighting upon
equal terms, used from the begimning of the
contest a deadly weapon without the knowledge
of the other party, and kill the other party
wvith such weapon; or if at the beginning of
the contest he prepare a deadly weapon, so as
to have the power of using it in some part of
the contest, and use it accordingly in the
course of the combat, and kill the other party
with the weapon, = the killing in both these
gu;l will be murder.* (ibid., sec.603, pp.8l6-

17) .

Construing the evidence in a light most favorable to accused, in-
cluding his statement to Russa and his own testimony, and considering the
foregoing authorities, the Board of Review is of the opinion that such
evidence is legally sufficient to sustain the findings of guilty of murder,
The opprobrious words directed toward accused by the "big" American sailor
(presumably the deceased) before accused got on the train, clearly did mot
constitute sufficient provocation to reduce the offense committed from
murder to voluntary manslanghtsr, Nor would mere anger on the part of
accused because of such treatment, serve to reduce the offenss to voluntary
manslaughter, The evidence shows that after being addressed in a slurring
mamer by deceased, accused boarded the train and then heard Fisher ask a
short, stout saiior why he hit him, Accused immediately jumped off the
train, approached deceased instead of the ghort, stout sailor and asked him
why he hit his "buddy?, Deceased responded by attempting to strike him
with his torch., Accused dodged the blow and immediately jumped at deceased
with a 1ittle potato knife which he had in his hand, Deceased backed
across the platform "because I guess he saw the knife in my hand®, He was
followed by accused who struck him in the chest with his knife after de-
ceased had retreated to the foot of the stairs, The court evidently
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refused to belisve accused's testimony that Lynch was the sailor at whom he
struck,

It 1s reasonabls to infer frem the evidence that accused was

angared by the contemptuous words addressed to him by deceased
bafore hs boarded the train, and that he was, as a consequence, "itching
for a fight", It 1s significent that whan leaving the train he did not
spproach the short, stout sailer who presumably struck Fisher, but wext
directly toward deceased who had previously insulted eccused, Turther, it
i3 clearly established by the evidencs that accused made no effort to re-
treat when deceased attempted to strike him, tut "under color of fighting
upon equal terms, used from the begimning of the contest a deadly weapon
without the knowledge of the other party" (supra)e The use of the knife
in such a desdly manner was intentional, deliberats end cold«~blooded, amd
the svidence disclosed no circumstances "serving to mitigate, excuse, or
Justify the act.,® The requisite element of malice 1s, therefors, clearly
inferred (supra), Accused's claim of self-defenss im his statement to
Russa is entirely unsupported by the evidenoce,

His actions after being forced aboard the train corroborate the
foregoing analysis of the evidence, Although he had already stabbed de-
coased he had to be foreibly restrained by his companions from leaving the
train and contimuing the fracas, He said that he wished he had his “457,
and was unlucky because ks "ocouldn't finish hia®, When requested to sing
he said "Boy, I love singing but it 1s not singing in my heart tonight, its
xilling.* He stated to a fellow passenger "If you hit my buddy I would
ki1l you, and I would have paid off my debt,"

The Board of Beview is of the opinion that the evidence is legally
lurﬁ.c%ont to support the findings of guilty and the semtense (CM ETO 2007,
Harris).

6. The charge sheet shows that accused is 37 years of age and that he
was inducted 7 February 1942 to serve for the duration of the war plus six
months, He had no prior service,

7. The court was legally constituted and had jurisdiction of the per-
son and offense, No errors injuriously affecting the substantial rights
of accused were committed during the trial, The Board of Review is of the
opinion that the record of trial is legally sufficient to support the find-
ings of guilty and the sentence, The penalty for murder is death or life
imprisonment as a court-martial may direct (AW 92), Confinement in the
United States Penitentiary, Lewisburg, Pennsylvania, is authorized by AN 42
and Sections 275 and 330 Federal Criminal Cods (18 U.S8.C.A. 454,567) and
Cir.291, WD, 10 Nov 1943, sec,V, par,33 and }.

=1l = GONFIDENTIAL
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(40)
1st Ind,

WD, Eranch Office TJAG., with Erous,  —5 JUN1944 T0: Coumanding
General, Southern Base Section, S0S, ETOUSA, APO 519, U.S. Army,

1, In the case of Private HENRY O. BATTIES (32199498), Detachment C,
3197th Quartermaster Service Company, attention is invited to the fore=~
going holding by the Board of Review that the record of trial is legally
sufficient t0 support the findings of guilty and the sentence, which holde-
ing is hereby approved, Under the provisions of Article of War 503, you
now have authority to order exscution of the sentence,

2+ Then copies of the published order are forwarded to this office,
they should be accompanied by the feregoing holding and this indorsement,
The £ile mumber of the record in this office is ETO 1941, For cenvenience

of reference please place that mumber in brackets at the end of the orders
(ET0 1941).

/' /E. C. ¥cKEIL,
Brigadier General, United States Army,
Assistant Judge Advocate General,
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Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General
with the
European Theater of Operations
APO 871

(41)

BOARD OF REVIEW

ETO 1953
UNITED

ve.

First Lieutenant GRAHAM B,
IEWIS (0-506127), 1274th
Military Police Company

(Aviation).

1, The
been examined

27 APR 1944

STATES EIGHTH AIR FORCE

Trial by G.U.M., convened at AAF
Station 101, 31 January - 1 February
194/, Sentence: To be dismissed
the service,

HOLDING by the BOARD OF REVIEW
RITER, VAN BENSCHOTEN and SARGENT, Judge Advocates

record of trlal in the case of the officer named above has
by the Board of Review and the Board submits this, its

holding, to the Assistant Judge Advocate General in charge of-the Branch

Office of The
tions.

Judge Advocate General with the European Theater of Opera-

2. Accused was tried upon the following chafges and specifications:

CHAR!
Spec

GE I: Violation of the 83rd Article of War.
ification: In that 1st Lt Graham B. Lewis,

127,th Military Police Company (Aviation), AAF
Station 234, APO 633, did, on the Oxford Henley
Road, at a point about 1% miles north of Nuneham
Courtenay, Oxfordshire, England, on or about the
26th day of November 1943, wrongfully, and through
neglect, suffer a 3 ton truck, 4 X 4 Willys, 1942
Modsel MB, Serial Number 206011, U. S. Army Serial
Number 20337390 of the value of more than fifty
dollars ($50.00), military property belonging to
the United States, to be damaged by collision with
another motor vehicle,

CHARGE II: Violation of the 95th Article of War,
Specification: 1In that * * %, did, at AAF Station #234,

APO 633, on or about 26th day of November 1943,
with intent to deceive Cpl Woodrow W, Breig, 1274th
MP Co (Avn), then on duty as guard at the majin gate
of AAF Station #234, APO 633, officially state to
the said Cpl Brelg, that "he was going to drive his

1- 1953

s -
CONFIDENTIAL

831



CONFIDENTIAL

vehicle to Site #3%, or words to that effect, which
statement was knowaz by the said Lt Lewis to be un-
true in that he, the said Lt Iewis, intended to
drive the vehicle elsewhere on an unauthorized trip.

(42)

CHARGE III: Violation of the 96th Article of War,

Specification 13 In that * * ¥, did, at AAF Station
#234, APO 633, on or about the 26th day of November
1943, wrongfully take and use, without proper auth-
ority, & certain automobile, to wit, a truck, % ton,
4 X 4 Willys, 1942 Model MB, Serial Number 206011,
U. S. Army Serial Number 20337390, property of the
United States Government of a value of more than
fifty dollars ($50,00).

Specification 2: In that * * %, did, at AAF Station
#23/4,, APO 633, on or about the 26th day of November
1943, wrongfully, and in violation of standing or-
ders of said station, introduce L.A.C.W. Adina B,
Imray, WAAF, an unauthorized person into the limits

~ of gald station.
Specification 3: 2Finding of Not Guiltyg
Specification 4: Finding of Not Guilty

CHARGE IV: Violation of the 63rd Article of War.
éFinding of Not Guilty)

Specification: Finding of Not Guilty).

He pleaded not guilty to all charges and specifications, He was found

guilty of Charge I and its Specification, of Charge III and Specifications

1 and 2 thereof, and of the Specification of Charge II; mnot guilty of

Specifications 3 and 4, Charge III, of Charge IV and its Specificationm,

and of Charge II not guilty, but guilty of a violation of the 96th Article

of War., No evidence of previous convictions was introduced. He was sen-

tenced to be dismissed the service, to forfelt all pay and allowances due

or to become due, and to be confined at hard labor, at such place as the

reviewing authority may diresct, for one year, The reviewing authority, the

Commanding General, Eighth Air Force, approved only so much of the sentence

as provides for dismissal from the service and forfeiture of all pay and

allowances due or to become due, and forwarded the record of trial for action

under Article of War 48, The confirming authority, the Commanding General,

European Theater of Operations, confirmed the sentence as approved but re-

mitted the forfeitures and withheld the order directing execution thereof

pursuant to the provisions of Article of War 50%,

3« The evidence for the prosecution shows that shortly after noon
on 26 November 1943 the accused, with jeep and driver, was dispatched from
AAF Station 23/, where he was assigned as transportation officer (R.7,
10-12,40; Ex.1). The jeep was identified on the trial as the vehicle de-
scribed in the Specification, Charge I, and Specification 1, Charge III
(R.46-47; Ex,1,5). It belonged to the military service of the United States
and its official list price, as a basic item, was $1000 - with spares and

-2-

CONFIDENTIAL



CONFIDENTIAL

(43)
accessories, $1360 (R.11,46-47). The trip ticket assigning it to the ac-
cused from the base motor pool showed a speedometer reading of 773 miles
and Widewing as the destimation (R.10; Ex 1). The accused was authorized,
upon his return from the destination designated on the trip ticket, to the
use of the jeep for the remainder of the day, for official duties., He
was not required to sign the ticket until, at the end of the day, he returned
the jeep to the motor pool (R.12-13).

At that time, AAF Station 234 comprised several sites, each entered
from the highway through a separate gate (R.13,27). In order to drive from
headquarters - site 1 - to Bachelor Officers quarters - site 3 - where the
accused was billeted, it was necessary to proceed through the main gate on
to the public highway, thence on to the base again through gate 3 (R.9).
However, all vehicles leaving for destinations off the base were required
to depart through the main gate, where the base clearance stamped on the
trip ticket was checked and the destination recorded by the sentry on
duty (Re27,41; Ex.2). An officer using on the same day an assigned vehicle
for a subsequent off-base trip, after completing the trip originally desig-
nated, was not required to obtain a new trip ticket or base clearance stamp,
but was required to enter his second destination on his original trip ticket
and to report it, at the time of his departure, to the sentry at the main
gate (R.13,27). A vehicle was permitted to leave the main gate without a
base clearance only for the purpose of proceeding along the highway through
another entrance to another site on the same base, in which case its des-
tindtion was not recorded (R.17,24,25,27).

The accused returned from his original trip at about 5 p.m., bringing
with him an enlisted member of the British Women's Auxiliary Air Force
(R.8). Outside the base, about 25 or 30 yards short of gate 3, the driver
stopped the jeep and accused and the girl alighted, The driver, in conm-
pliance with accusedfs instructions, drove into the base through the main
gate, procured gasoline for the car, drove out again, then through gate 3
into site 3 of the’base where he left the car parked in front of the accused?s
quarters (R.8-9; Miss Imray's Dep.2). Meanwhile the accused and the girl,
by climbing through the hedge and over the fence, thus reached the accused's
billet without entering the site through gate 3 (R.15,19; Imray Dep.2).
Standing orders prohibited civilians from entering the station or any areas
designated as a part of it except upon presentation of a Civilian Special
Pass signed by the Commanding Officer or adjutant (Ex.3). Typed instructions
to the guard at Post Number 1 required the roster at the main gate to be
signed by all visitors to the base with certain exceptions which did not
include enlisted members of the British Women'!s Auxiliary Air Force (Ex.4).
By verbal order of the commanding officer, issued at an officers! meeting
prior to date in question, all officers assigned to the base had been in-
formed that military guests, though accompanied by station personnel, must
show, their military credentials and register at the guard gate (R.42-45).

The sentry at gate 3 saw the accused!s visitor enter through the hedge
(R.15,16), he made prompt report to the officer of the day, who proceeded to
the accused!s quarters, and after one interview returned with the provost
marghal for another (R,15,17-22). At about 6 p.m, shortly after ‘the

TESCS1
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second interview, the accused and the girl got into the jeep, which he, as
transportation officer, was authorized to drive personally on official busi-
ness, left the base through gate 3, and "turned into the road heading for
the main gate" (R.15-16; Imray Dep.3). The sentry at Gate 3 did not require
the accused to show his trip ticket because "It was not a habit at 2 or 3;
it is part of the base and all vehicles leave from the main gate" (R.16).

The accused drove into the main gate, stopped the jeep, inatructed the
sentry to tell the officer of the day that he was back and proceeded into the
station (R.23-24,28; Imray Dep.3). Four or five minutes later he again ap-
proached the main gate from the inside still driving the jeep with the girl
beside him (R.25-26,28; Imray Dep.6). "He stopped; said he was going to
his quarters or words to that effect; I saluted him and that was all there
was," the sentry testified (R.24). The sentry knew the accused's quarters
were in Area 3 and that to reach it from Gate 1, it was necessary to go
outside the base and re-enter through Gate 3 (R.24). He did not require
the accused to exhibit his trip ticket or any other authority at that time,
explaining "when he said he was going to Area 3, he was not required to show
a trip ticket because that is considered part of the station even though
he had to go on the civilian road to get to that part of the station" (R.24).

Instead of driving in through Gate 3, the accused proceeded six or
seven miles along the Oxford highway to the King'!s Arms Hotel, where he and
his companion dined, They left at about 8 p.m, to return to the base., The
road was a narrow one; the night was "foggy in patches'; visibility obscure,
fix* *¥ 1t was the fog," the girl testified, "and I thought the lights of

the jeep was very poor, but Lt, Lewis thought otherwise; said the trouble
was they were too good" (Imray Dep.4). The accused was driving "just about
normal speed" when the jeep passed a cyclist travelling in the same direction
(Re30=-31), The cyclist pedalled three or four hundred yards along a straight
stretch of road after the accused passed him; then, simultaneously he heard
a crash and observed a red light in front of him, Continuing approximate-
ly 200  yards, he reached a stationary "fairly tall built in lorry * * *
something about the same size" as an American Army truck, Tacing south,

the direction in which the jeep was travelling when it passed the cyclist
(Re31,32)., The lorry was parked on the left side of the highway, close to
the verge, While it covered a good half of the road there was room for a
double decker bus to get by (R.34). The lorry'!s tall light was "set in some
inches" from the extreme right of the vehicle, about 2 feet above the ground
just under the tailboard (R.35). It was burning and the cyclist identified
it as the light he observed whea he heard the crash and continuously there-
after until he reached the lorry (R.31-32,36), It had not moved in the
interim, The tallboard was halfway down, on long chains, projecting its
full, undetermined width in a horizontal pgsition .from the back of the lorry
about a foot and a half above the tail-light (R.35,37). The jeep!s wind-
shield lay in the middle of the road "Jjust past" the lorry, The jeep itself
was on the righthand side of the road about 20 yards in front of the lorry,
facing in the same direction (R.31) with its windshield off and its steering
wheel bent (R.34). The accused and the girl, both injured, were .lying on
the bank to the right of the road (R.33). At the scene of the acaident,
according to the cyclist, the fog "was not too bad, * % * From where the
Jeep passed me it was very thick and ‘then it gradually eased off until at
the scene of the accident there was hardly any at all,®  There was only a
8light fog when he first saw the lorry!s tail light, about 200 yards

away (Re32),
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The girl testified that the accused was driving slowly and carefully,
about 30 miles an hour, However, she was constantly looking ahead, "strain-
ing all the time", As for the lorry and its tail-light, "We saw this
truck;" she testifjed, "it just happened (indicating by snap of the fin-
ger); there was a tbang! and we crashed." Asked on cross examination .
how long she saw the lorry "before the jeep went into it," she testified
to her impression that it was more than a fraction of a second - "just for
a moment I saw it." "But you did not have time to utter anything?", the
assistant defense counsel persisted, "No", she responded, "I did not have
tm." (Imray Depol}" 5’7) .

. Repairs to the jeep, as a result of the accident, involved the in-
stallation of two front windshield glasses and a new steering wheel as
well as 8 hours of military labor at an aggregate estimated cost of $18,30
(Re47-48) 4

4e The only evidence adduced on behalf of the defense was the testi-
mony of the accused, who, after being duly advised of his rights, elected
to take the stand under ocath and testify as to Charge II and its Specifi-
cation only (R.48)., He denied that he told the guard at the main gate
that he was going to drive to his quarters when he was leaving the base
for the last time on the night of the accident (R.49), He drove to the
main gate with his "passenger" beside him at about 10 minutes to 6. There
he stopped the jeep, inquired for the officer of the day and being in-
formed he was not there requested the sentry, "Would you please tell him
I have cleared out." Because he did not want to "advertise" what he
characterized as "a violation I had already committed," he said to the
sentry, "If you tell the OD I have cleared out, he will understand" (R.50).
He then drove into the station - "I had to drive about 100 yards to turn
around," he testified, "and I was gone 3 or 4 minutes and of all places
to tell the guard I was going to Site 3!" When he reached the gate on
his way out, instead of stopping he merely slowed down into first gear,
tha guard shone a light on him, the accused said, "goodnight boys," and
drove the jeep qut through the gate (R.49,51-52)., Asked if his remark
could have been indistinct enough for the guard to have thought he had
sald he was going to his quarters, the accused replied:

"I am not saying, because he is not indifferent

to his job, that is what he thinks, I said I
thought he really believed I said that, I don't
doubt that, but I always go by and say !Goodnight
boys?!, I call out to all the gates, They know
me and I know them and I always say !Goodnight!?,
That is all I ever say to any of them, I am about
as sure as I could be that I didn't say I was
going to Site 3,M

He did not think the sentry was lying but, "knowing the jeep didn!t go to
Site 3, is using all the art he has to say he wasn!t lax. on the job", The
accused expressed the opinion that the sentry made a mistake in letting
him go without a trip ticket "insofar as I didn't go to Site 3 but had an
accident! (R.52), ‘
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He testified and produced honorable discharge certificates to show
that he had served over 21 years in enlisted grddes (R.49). He was last
honorably discharged as Master Sergeant, temporary grade, in December 1942.
During his 21 years of enlisted service, he received no punishment except
nthree days restriction ebout 15 years ago. * * %, That was one of the
two times I missed reveille, * * ¥, I didn't get anything for the second
one" (R,50). '

5, Recalled by the prosecution in rebuttal, the sentry at the main
gate on the night of the accident testified that when the accused drove
in that night, "he said words to the effect of 'Tell the (D I am back?
and I had no further conversation with him until he came out again and he
?aid ;ords to the effect !l am going to my quarters!., That was all"

Re53)e

As the car entered the bage at gate 1, the Jeep definitely
stopped, It was dark and the sentry had to put his light on to see who
the accused was, On his exdt, the accused did not stop the car complete-
ly. "It was one of those rolling stops," but long enough for the sentiry
to determine who was in the car, In passing, the witness on rebuttal
concluded, "He said words to the effect 'I am going to my quarterst"

(Re 53-54)e

6. The Specification, Charge I, alleges that the accused wrongfully
and through neglect suffered g government vehicle of the value of more
than $50.,00 to be damaged by collision with another vehicle, in violation
of AW 83, The value of the vehicle described is established as more than
$50 by evidence of the list price and the speedometer reading, That it
was substantially damaged when the accused drove it in collision with a
parked lorry is also established, The evidence shows that the accused
was using the vehicle wrongfully and supports the inference that he was
operating it negligently when the collision occurred, and that, in the
absence of his wrongful use and negligent operation, the vehicle would
not have been damaged as it was on the occasion in question, Article of
War 83 provides that

"Any person subject to military law who * % %
through neglect, suffers to be * * % damaged
* % % any military property belonging to the
United States shall * % % suffer such punishe-
ment as a court-martial may direct."

Thus it appears that competent evidence sustains the court!s findings of
guilty of Charge I and its Specification (CM ETO 393, Caton & Fikeg).

7. The Specification Charge II, alleges a false official statement
made with intent to deceive the guard on duty at the main gate of the
accused’s statlon, iy violation of AW 95, The guard's testimony, contra-
dicted by the acqused, supports the courtt!s finding that the accused made
the statement to the guard substantially as alleged., Abundant, competent,
substantial and uncontradicted testimony establishes the falsity of the

=6
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statement if made, and strongly supports the inference that it was motivated
and accompanied by an intent to deceive the guard for the purpose of pre-
venting his anticipated compliance with his orders to inquire and make a
record of the destination of the off-base trip upon which the accused was
then and there kmowingly and surreptitiously setting forth in a government
vehicle, Knowingly meking a false officiael statement is, for an officer,
a viclation of Article of War 95 (MCM,1928, par.lSl,p.186$ and has been
so held when the accused was a field officer and the person to whom the
false statement was made an army nurse officially engaged within the line
of her professional duties as a ward nurse in a hospital ward in which
the accused was a patient (CM 153703 (1922) Dig.Op.JAG,1912-1940, sec.
453 (18) p.345). However, the offense alleged is equally a viclation

of Article of War 96 (CM 122249 (1918), Dig.Op.JAG,1912-1940,sec.454(49),
Pe357) and the court!s finding that the offense established by the evi-
dence was a violation of the latter article and not of Article of War

95, was an authorized exercise of the court!s discretiom, Accused!s
denial that he made the statement attributed to him by the guard at the
gate presented a question of fact solely within the province of the court
to décide and unless palpably in error lts determination will not be dis-
turbed by the Board on appellate review (CM ETO 132, Kelly and Hyde; CM
ETO 397,Shaffer; CM ETO 1191, Acosta). As to Charge II and its Specifi-
cation, the evidence is legally sufficient to sustain -the findings of the
court,

8, Specifications 1 and 2, Charge III, allege respectively the
wrongful teking and use without proper authority of a government vehicle
adequately described,of a value in excess of §$50,00, and the wrongful
introduction into station limits, in violation of standing orders, of a
named member of the Women!s Auxiliary Air Force, both offenses in viola-
tion of Article of War 96, The evidence is uncontradicted'that the
accused used the Jeep assigned to him for official business to drive his
guest to a hotel 6 or 7 miles away from his base for purposes purely
personal to the two of theit, The value of the jeep was satisfactorily
shown to be more than $50. The offense alleged and proved constitutes
a violation of Article of War 96 (CM ETO 393, Caton and Fikes). Whether
or not the member of the British Women'!s Auxdiliary Air Force whom the
accused "introduced" into the limits of his station through the hedge and
~over the fence was a civilian visitor within the purview of the memorandum
identified as Exhibit 3, need not be decided in view of the clear showing
of a prior verbal order of the commanding officer issued at an officers!
meeting and known to the accused, that military guests, though accompanied
by station personnel, must show their credentials and register at the guard
gates This verbal order was a standing one and disobedience of it was a
disorder and neglect to the prejudice of good order and military disci-
pline, in violation of Article of War 96 (MCM, 1928, par.1l52a, p.187).

As to Charge III and Specifitations 1 and 2 thereunder, the evidence is
legally sufficient to sustain the findings of the court,

9« The Manual for Courts-Martial provides that

o "After being read to the court a deposition
°orgf31 will be properly marked as an exhibit’with
a view to incorporation in the record." (MM,
1928, par. 119a, p.124).
’ > P -)'7_ igsg
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The record does not indicate that either of the depositions introduced at
page 29 were marked at all, The trial judge advocate, upon introducing
Miss Imray?!s in evidence, stated:

At this time I would like to read the deposition
of ADINA BERYL IMRAY, the girl about whom testi-
mony has been given here, This deposition-was
taken at the St.Hughes British Military Hospital,
Oxford, England, on 26 January, 1944, by agree-
ment and waiver of formal written notice at which
time the TJA and Assistant Defense Counsel were
present, Is there any objection on the part of
the esccused to reading thils deposition taken at
that time?"

The accused replied, "No sir.," Appended to the record following the
prosecution'!s exhibits is an unmarked deposition of Adina Beryl Imray
which shows on its face that it was taken at the St,.Hughes British
Military Hospital, Oxford, England, on 26 January 1944, by agreement and
waiver of formal written hotice at which time the TJA and Assistant De-
fense Counsel were present, The Board of Review is of the opinion that
it is warranted in assuming that the appended unmarked deposition of
Adina Beryl Imray 1s the identical deposition which was read to the
court by the trial judge kdvocate on the trial of the case,

10. The charge sheet shows that the accused is 44 years of° age with
continuous enlisted service from 8 August 1918 until commissioned "direct"
2 Decéember 1942,

11. The court was legally constituted and had jurisdiction of the
persoh and offenses, Ne errers injuriously affecting the substantial
rights of the accused were committed during the trial, The Board of Re=-
view is of the opinion that the record of trial is legally sufficient to
support the findings of guilty and the sentence gs confirmed, Dismissal
of dn officer is authcrdized upon conviction of a violation of AW 83 or

96.
J/sé;25£:ﬁ‘§:'— /ié;;' Judge Advocate
W Judge Advocate

Y

“fudge Advocate

=8

CONFIDENTIAL


http:accus.ed

CONFIDENTIAL

(49)
1st Ind.

WD, Branch Office TJAG., with ETOUSA. 27 APR1944  TO: Commanding
General, ETOUSA, APO 887, U.S.Army,

1, In the case of First Lieutenant GRAHAM B, LEWIS (0-506127),
127,4th Military Police Company (Aviation), attention is invited to the
foregoing holding by the Board of Review that the record of trial is
legally sufficient to support the findings of guilty and the sentence as
confirmed, which holding is hereby approved. Under the provisions of Arti-
cle of War 503, you now have authority to order execution of the sentence.

2, When coples of the published order are forwarded to this office
they should be accompanied by the foregoing holding and this indorsement.
The file number of the record in this office is ETO 1953, For convenience
of reference please place that number in brackets at the end of the order:

(ET0 1953).
%// Zﬁ@

. C. McNEIL,
Brigadier General, United States
Assistant Judge Advocate General,

(Sentence as mitigated ordered executed. GCMO 27, ETO, 5 May 1944)

CONFIDENTIAL






CONFIDENTIAL

(51)
Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General
with the
European Theater of Operations

APO 871
BOARD OF REVIEW
ETO 1954 2 3 MAY 1944
UNITED STATES EIGHTH AIR FORCE.

)
)
Ve ) Trial by G.C.M,, convened at AAF
) Station 115, APO 634, 17 March 1944.
Private First Class FRED ) Sentence: Dishonorable discharge,
LOVATO (37341891), 6lst Station ) total forfeitures and confinement
Complement Squadron, ) at hard labor for ten years, East-
; ern Branch, United States Disciplin-

ary Barracks, Greenhaven, New York,

HOLDING by the BOARD OF REVIEW
RITER, VAN BENSCHOTEN and SARGENT, Judge Advocates

1, The record of trial in the case of the soldier named above has
been examined by the Board of Review,

2+ Accused ias tried upon the following Charge and Specification:

CHARGE: Violation of the 93rd Article of War.

Specification: In that Private First Class Fred
(NMI) Lovato, 6lst Station Complement Squadron,
AAF Station 120, APO 634, K did, at Norwich,
Norfolk County, England, on or about 3 February
1944, with intent to cormit a felony, viz: rape,
commit an assault upon Lily Ada Bobbins, by
wilfully and feloniously throwing the said Lily
Ada Bobbins to the ground, getting on top of
her, striking her on the face and choking her
on the neck with his hands,

He pleaded not guilty to and was found guilty of the Charge and Specifica-
tion, No evidence of previous convictions was introduced. He was sentenced
to be dishonorably discharged the service, to forfeit all pay and allowances
due or to become due, and to be confined at hard labor for 20 years at such
place &s the reviewing authority may direct, The reviewing authority
approved the sentence but remitted ten years of the confinement imposed,
designated the Eastern Branch, United States Disciplinary Barracks, Green-
haven, New York, as the place of confinement and forwarded the recerd of

trial for action pursuant to the provisions of Article of War 50%,

-]l -
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3. A sharp issue of fact was created by the evidence in this case as
to the existence, on the part of accused of the specific intent to rape
Miss Bobbins when he cormitted the assault and battery upon her, While
the Roard of Review 1s fully conscious of the fact that the offense with
which accused is charged is within the category of crimes where the
“accusation /is/ easy to be made, hard to be proved but harder to be defend-
ed by the party accused, though innocent" (MCM, 1928, par.148b, p.165) it is
of the opinion that the testimony of the victim is of such substantial ard
credible nature as to indicate accused's coexistent intent to rape her when
he subjected her person to violence, The determination of the issue
presented by the total evidence was peculiarly within the province of the
court, and its finding is entitled, upon appellate review, to the full
benefit of the presumption that it is true and correct (CM 192609, Hulme
(Rehearing), Dig.Op.JAG, 1912-1940, sec,408(2), p.259; CM ETO 132, Kelly and
Hyde; CM ETO 397, Shaffer). The Board of Review therefore concludes that
the finding of guilty was supported by substantial evidence (CM ETO 1673,
Denny and authorities therein cited).

4e The charge sheet shows that accused is 25 years six months of age
and was inducted at Fort Logan, Colorado, 13 February 1943, for the duration
of the war plus six months, He had no prior service,

5 The court was legally constituted and had jurisdiction of the per-
son and offense, No errors injuriously affecting the substantial rights
of accused were committed during the trial, The Board of Review is of the
opinion that the record of trial is legally sufficient to support the find-
ings of guilty and the sentence. The sentence is less than the maximum
for the offense charged (MCM, 1928, par.104ic, p.99). Confinement in the
Eastern Branch, United States Disciplinary Barracks, Greenhaven, New York,
is authorized (AW 42; Cir. 210, WD, 14 Sep 1943, sec.VI, par.2a, as amended
by Cir. 331, WD, 21 Dec 1943, sec.II, par,2),

/ééjgi:;k221/¢£§; Judge Advocate
"4
@MQ Judge Advocate
<X et

Z~/ Judge Advocate
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1st Indo ( 53 )

WD, Brench Office TJAG., with ETousa, » o MAY 1944 TO: Commanding
Generel, Eighth Air Force, AAF Station 101, APO 634, U.S. Army.

1., In the case of Private First Class FRED LOVATO (37341891), 6lst
Station Complement Squadron, AAF Station 120, APO 634, attention is invited
to the foregoing holding by the Board of Review that the record of trial is
.legally sufficient to support the findings of guilty and the sentence,
which holding is hereby approved, Under the provisions of Article of War
50%3 you now have authority to order execution of the sentence,

2, When copies of the published order are forwarded to this office
they should be accompanied by the foregoing holding and this indorsement,
as well as by copies of letters to civilians, as required by Circular 72,
ETOUSA, 9 September 1943, section II, paragraph 5¢. The file number of
the record in this office is ETO 1954, For convenience of reference please
olace that number in brackets at the end of the order: (ETO 1954).

. C. McNEIL,
Brigedier Generel, United States Army,
Agsistant Judge Advocate General,
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Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General (55)

with the
European Theater of Operations
APO 871

BOARD COF REVIEW

20 1957 -8 MAY 1944

UNITED STATES ; 2D INFANTRY DIVISION,

Ve ) Trial by G.C.M., convened at Armagh,
Northern Ireland, 17 March 1944.

Private EDWARD J. WARD (€950124),

Company "C", 234 Infantry,

)

)

Sentence: Dishonorable discharge,
total forfeitures and confinement at
hard lebor for 15 years. Eastern
Branch, United States Disciplinary
Barracks, Greenhaven, New York,

HOLDING by the BOARD OF REVIEW _
RITER, VAN BENSCHOTEN and SARGENT, Judge Advocates

l, The record of trial in the case of the soldier named above has
been examined by the Board of Review,

2. Accused was tried upon the following Charge and Specifications:

CHARGE: Violation of the 58th Article of War,

Specificationt In that Private Edward J. Ward, Com-
pany C, 23d Infantry, did, at Tynan Abbey Camp,
County Armagh, North Ireland on or about 10
November 1943 desert the service of the United
States and did remain absent in desertion until
he was apprehended in the vicinity of Rich Hill,
County Armagh, North Ireland on or sbout 2 March

1944,

He pleaded "Not Guilty, but Guilty of absence without official leave"

to both the Specification and the Charge. (Accepted by the court as a
plea of not guilty to the 58th Article of War, but guilty under the 6lst
Article of Uar)., He was found guilty of the Specification and the Charge.,
Evidence of one previous conviction was introduced, for absence without
leave for 47 days in violation of Article of War 61, He was sentenced to
be dishonorably discharged the service, to forfeit all pay and allowances
due or to become due and to be confined at hard labor for 40 years at
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such place as the reviewing authority may direct. The reviewing authori-
ty approved the sentence but reduced the period of confinement to 15 years,
designated the Eastern Branch, United States Disciplinary Barracks, Green-
haven, New York, as the place of confinement and forwarded the record of
trial pursuant to the provisions of Article of War 50},

3. The charge sheet shows that the accused is 22 years of age and
that he enlisted 18 October 1939. He had no prior service,

4Le The court was legally constituted and had jurisdiction of the
person and offense. ~ No errors injurilously affecting the substantial rights
of the accused were committed during the triale. The Board of Review is of

the opinion that the record of trial 1s legally sufficlent to support the
findings of guilty and the sentence. The designated place of confinement

is authorized,
m / é Judge Advocate
/ C
: ~  Judge Advocate

Judge Advocate
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1st Ind,

WD, Branch Office TJAG., with ETOUsA, S MAY1944  10; Commanding
General, 238 Infantry Division, APO 2, United States Army.

1. In the case of Private Edward J. Ward (6950124), Company *C",
23d Infantry, attention is invited to the foregoing holding by the Board
of Review that the record of trial is legally sufficient to support the
findings of guilty and the sentence as approved, which holding is hereby
approved, Under the provisions of Article of War 50%, you now have
authority to order execution of the sentence,

2. Then copies of the published order are forwarded to this office
they should be accompanied by the foregoing holding and this indorsement,
The file number of the record in this office is ETO 1957, For convenience
of reference please place that number in brackets at the end of the ordert

(ETO 1957). '

/ E. CO Ty
Brigadier General, United States Army,
Assistant Judge Advocate General,






CONFIDENTIAL

Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General (59)
with the
European Theater of Operations
- AP0 8A

BOARD (OF REVIEW

ETO 1965

UNITED

Private JACK IEMISHOW
(12040530), 554th Bombardment
Squadron, 386th Bombardment

Group.

Ve

19 MAY 1944

CENTRAL BASE SECTION, SERVICES
Cr SUPPLY, EUROPEAN THEATER OF
CFERATIONS,

STATES

Trial by G.C.M.,, convened at London,
England, 24 March 1944. Sentence:
Dishonorable discharge, total for-
feitures and confinement at hard
labor for 15 years, United States
Penitentiary, Lewisburg, Pennsyl-
vania,

LN L L S L WL L L L

HOLDING by the BOARD OF REVIEW
RITER, VAN BENSCHOTEN and SARGENT, Judge Advocates

1., The record of trial in the case of the soldier named above has been
exarined by the Board of Review,

2, Accused wasg tried upon the following charges and specifications:

CHARGE I: Violation of the 58th Article of War.
Specification: In that Private Jack Lemishow, 554th

Bombardment Squadron, 386th Bombardment Group,
ETOUSA, did, at Great Dumnmow, England, on or
about 9 October 1943, desert the service of the
United States and did remain absent in desertion
until he was apprehended at London, England, on
or about 3 March 1944.

CHARGE II: Violation of the 93rd Article of War.
Specification 1: In that * * %, did, at London,

England, on or about 1 December 1943, feloniously
take, steal and carry‘away, seven one pound notes,
English currency, of the value of about Twenty
Eight dollars ($28,00), the property of Private
Rudolph Amrien, 327th Glider Infantry, ETOUSA.

-l-
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Specification 2:¢ In that * * %y 4id, at London,
England, on or about 6 January 1944, feloniously
take, steal and carry away, iwo one pound notes,
English currency, of the value of about Eight
dollars ($8.,00) the property of Staff Sergeant
Philip L, Feske, Headquarters, 385th Bombardment
Group, ETOUSA. !

Specification 33 (Withdrawn by direction of appointing

authority).

Specification 4: In that * * %, did, at London,
England, on or about 28 January 1944, feloniously
take, steal, and carry away, five one pound notes,
English currency, of the value of about twenty
dollars (§$20,00), the property of Sergeant Glade
A, Nell, 36th Bombardment Squadron, 482nd Bombard-
ment Group, ETOUSA.

Specification 53 In that * * ¥, did, at London,
England, on or about 7 February 1944, feloniously
take, steal and carry away one one pound note,
English currency, of the value of about four
dollars ($4.,00), the property of Staff Sergeant
George H, Finney, 351st Fighter Squadron, ETOUSA.

He pleaded to the Specification,” Charge I, guilty, except the words "desert"
and "in' desertion", substituting therefor respectively the words "absent
himself without leave from" and "without leave", of -the excepted words, not
guilty, of the substltuted words, guilty, and to Charge I, not guilty,

but guilty of a violation of the 61st Article of Wer; and not guilty to

Charge II and its specifications, He was found guilty of all charges and
specifications, No evidence of previous convictions was introduced, He was
sentenced to be dishonorably discharged the service, to forfeit all pay and al-
lowances due or to become due and to be confined at hard labor for 15 years at
such place as the reviewing authority may direct, The reviewing authority
approved the sentence, designated the United States Penitentlary, Lewisburg,
Pennsylvanla, as the place of confinement and forwarded the record of trial
for action pursuant to the provisions of Article of War 503,

3. The charge sheet shows that accused is 24} years of age, He

enlisted 5 January 1942 at New York City, New York, for the duration of the
war plus six months,

4e The court was legally constituted and had jurisdiction of the person
and offenses, No errors injuriously affecting the substantial rights of ac-
cused were committed during the trial, -The Board of Review is of the opinion
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that the record of trial is legally sufficient to support the findings of
guilty and the sentence, The punishment for desertion committed in time of
war is death or such other punishment as the court may direct (AW 58). The
place of confinement designated is authorized (AW 42).

mé Judge Advocate

%@U« (,\1.02/6' f(nu Judge Advocate
%P.h;i;a Advocate
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' 1st Ind.

WD, Brench Office TJAG., with ETOUSA. 19 MAY1944  10: Commanding
General, Central Base Section, SOS, ETOUSA, APO 837, U.S. Army.

1. In the case of Private JACK IEMISHOW (12040530), 554th Bombardment
Squadron, 386th Bombardment Group, attention is invited to the foregoing
holding by the Board of Review that the record of trial 1s legally sufficient
to support the findings of gullty and the sentence, which holding is hereby
epproved, Under the provisions of Article of War 504, you now have authority
to order execution of the sentence,

2e ihen copies of the published order are forwarded to this office,
they should be accompanied by the foregoing holding and this indorsement,
The file number of the record in this office is ETO 1965, For convenience
of reference please place that number in brackets at the end of the order:

(ETO 1965). / /;, //f&%t

E. C. McNEIL,
Brigadier General, United States Army,
Assistant Judge Advocate General,
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Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General )

with the
European Theater of Operations
APO 871

BOARD CF REVIEW

ETO 1981 17 MAY 1944

UNITED STATES EIGHTH AIR FORCE

Ve Trial by G.C.M., convened at AAF
Station 117, 11 February 1944,
Sentences Dishonorable discharge,
total forfeitures and confinement
at hard labor for ten years, East-
ern Branch, United States Disci-
plinary Barracks, Greenhaven, New
York,

General Prisoner ROY E,.
FRAIEY (14070757),(formerly
Private), 527th Bombardment
Squadron, 379th Bombardment
Group (Hs

Ut et et s S N Nl S v

HOIDING by the BOARD (F REVIEW
RITER, VAN BENSCHOIEN and SARGENT, Judge Advocates

1, The record of trial in the case of the soldier named above has
been examined by the Board of Review,

2¢ Accused was tried upon the following charges and specifications:

CHARGE I: Violation of the 58th Article of War,

Specifications In that General Prisoner Roy E.
Fraley did on or about the 14th November
1943, desert the service of the United States
at Station 117, APO 634, U. S. Army and did
remain absent in desertion until he was appre-
hended at Station 594, APO 635, U, S. Army -on
or about 14 December 1943,

CHARGE II: Violation of the 69th Article of War,.
Specification 13 In that * * %, having been placed
in confinement in Guardhouse, AAF Station 117,
APQ 634, on or about 25 September 1943, did at
AAF Station 117, APO 634, on or about 1, Nov-
ember 1943, escape from said confinement before
: he was set at liberty by proper authority,

-] -
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Specification 23 In that * * *, having been duly
placed in confinement in Guardhouse, Eighth
Air Force Replacement Depot, AAF Station 594,
APO 635, on or about 14 December 1943, did at
Eighth Air Force Replacement Depot, AAF Sta-
tion 594, APO 635, on or about 15 December
1943, escape from said confinement before he
was set at liberty by proper authority,

CHARGE III: Violation of the 96th Article of War,

Specification 1: In that * * % did at AAF Station
117, APO 634, on or about 14 November 1943,
wrongfully take and use without proper auth-
ority a certain motor vehicle, to.wit: a 3
ton 4%/ jeep, serial number 20339009, prop-
erty of the United States of the value of more
than. $50,00.

Specification 2: (Disapproved by reviewing authority)

He pleaded not guilty to and was found guilty of all charges and specifica-
tions., Evidence was introduced of three previous convictions by summary
court for absence without leave for 15, 2 and 3 days respectively in violation
of AW 61, He was sentenced to be dishonorably discharged the service, to for-
feit all pay and allowances due or to become due and to be confined at hard
labor for 10 years at such place as the reviewing authority may direct, The
reviewing authority disapproved the finding of guilty of Specification 2,
Charge III, approved the sentence, designated the Eastern Branch, United States
Disciplinary Barracks, Greenhaven, New York, as the place of confinement and
forwarded the record of trlal for action pursuvant to the provisions of Article
of Viar 50%.

3. The evidence shows that on 14 November 1943 the accused was a private
(R8) confired in the guardhouse (R8-12,26-27; Exs.l,2). The present charges
were preferred against him on 18 December 1943, An examination of the records
of this office (Cl ETO 1219) discloses that accused was sentenced by General
Court Martial on 9 November 1943 to dishonorable discharge, totsl forfeitures
and confinement at hard labor for three years., The approved sentence suspending
the dishonorable .discharge until the soldier's release from confinement, was
promulgated in GCMO No,106, Headquarters VIII Bomber Command, APO 634, 28
December 1943, The Board of Review may take judicial notice of the foregoing
data upon appellate review of the present case (CM ETO 1538, Rhodes,citing Caha
v. United States, 152 US 211, 222, 38 L.Ed. 415,419; Thornton v, United States,
271 U.S. 414,420,70 L,Ed.pp.1013,1017), No question as to accused's amenability
to trial by General Court-Martial can arise in the instant case inasmuch as the
dishonorable discharge on the prior conviction was suspended. The issue in this
cagse is therefore distinguichable from that which arose in CM ETO 960, Fazio,
Nelson and Potest.

-2e
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The Manual for Courts-Martial provides:

"In the case of a general prisoner, whether
the sentence of dishonorable discharge was
suspended or not, the rules as to an
enlisted man apply, except that the evidence
of previous convictions should be limited to
evidence of offenses committed during his
status as a general prisoner." (MCM, 1928,
par.79¢c, p.66).

Accused at time of trial on 11 February 1944 was a general prisoner inasmuch
as he had been sentenced to confinement and dishonorable discharge (AR 600-
375, sec. III, par.,12(b)). He became such on 28 December 1943, the date of
GCMO No, 106, Headquarters VIII Bomber Command.

The foregoing restriction precludes proof of the convictlon evidenced
by the foregoing general courtemartial order upon deliberation of the court
in the instant case to adjudge the sentence., The trial Judge advocate correctly
made no reference to such conviction,

Under the same provisions of the Manual for Courts-Martial, the
evidence of three other previous convictions introduced on the trial after
the findings of gullty were announced, was improperly admitted. However,
no objection was asserted to the introduction of this evidence and the Manual
for Courts-Martial expressly provides, with particular reference to evidence
of previous convictions, that

"Any objection not asserted may be
regarded as waived," (MCM, 1928,

par,79b, p.66).

Moreover the sentence adjudged in the instant case is so far below the maxinum
authorized for the first of the four offenses of which the accused was con-
victed as to clearly indicate that none of his substantial rights were injurious-
ly aeffected by the admission in evidence of the previous convictions (AW 37).

e 4o The charge sheet shows that the accused is 23 years of age, that he
enlisted at Jackson, Mississippi, 16 Jan 1942, to serve for the duration of
the war plus six months, and that he had no prior service,

5« The court was legally constituted and had jurisdiction of the person
and offenses, No errors injuriously affecting the substantial rights of the
accused were committed during the trial, The Board of Review is of the opinion
that the record of trial is legally sufficient to support the findings of guilty
and the sentence,
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6. The designation of the Eastern Branch, United States Disciplinary
Barracks, Greenhaven, New York, as the place of confinement is authorized
(Cir. 210, WD, 14 Sep 1943, sec.VI, per.2a, as amended by Cir. 331, VD,

21 Dec 1943, sec.II, par.2).
m"é Judge Advocate

e
—
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1st Ind. (67)

WD, Branch Office TJAG., with ETOUSA. 17 MAY 1944  TO: Commanding
General, Eighth Air Force, APO 634, U.S.Army.

1, In the case of General Prisoner ROY E., FRAIEY (14070757),
527th Bombardment Squadron, 379th Bombardment Group, attention is invited
to the foregoing holding by the Board of Review that the record of trial
is legally sufficient to support the findings of guilty and the sentence,
Under the provisions of Article of War 504, you now have authority to order
execution of the sentence.

2, TWhen coples of the published order are forwarded to this office,
they should be accompenied by the foregoing holding and this indorsement,
The file number of the record in this office is ETO 1981, For convenience
of reference please place that number in brackets at the end of the orders

(ETO 1981). ///é//%

o Co McNEIL,
Brigadier General, United States Army,
Assistant Judge Advocate General.

-1-
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Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General (69)
with the
European Theater of Operations
APO 871

BOARD (F REVIEW
ETO 1982 18 MAY 1944
UNITED STATES NORTHERN IRELAND BASE SECTICN,
SERVICES (I SUPPLY, EUROPEAN

Ve THEATER OF OPEZRATIONS.
Techniclan Fourth Grade

CHARIES E, TANKARD (32828494),
273rd Port Company

Trial by G.C.M., convened at Wilmont
House, County Antrim, Northern Ire-
land, 21 March 1944. Sentence: Dis-
honorable discharge, total forfeitures
and confinement at hard labor for five
years. Eastern Branch, United States
Disciplinary Barracks, Greenhaven,

New York,

Vs s S S S S N v i e wrat o

HOLDING by the BOARD COF REVIEW
RITER, VAN BENSCHOTEN and SARGENT, Judge Advocates

1.. The record of trial in the case of the soldier named -above has been
examined by the Board of Review,

2, Accused was tried upon the following Charge and specifications:

CHARGE: Vlolation of the 93rd Article of War,

Specification 1t In that Technician Fourth Grads
Charles E. Tankard, 273rd Port Company, didg,
at Belfast, Northern Ireland, on or about
14 December 1943, with intent to do him
bodily harm, commit an assault upon Private
Herbert Hall, 376th AAA, A.W. Battalion, by
unlawfully and feloniously cutting him with
a dangerous instrument, to wit: a dagger.

Specification 2: In that * * %, did, at Belfast,
Northern Ireland, on or about 14 December
1943, with intent to do him bodily harm,
commit an assault upon Private First Class
James F, Knuckles, 376th AAA, A.W.Battalion,
by unlawfully and feloniously cutting him
with a dangerous instrument, to wit: a
dagger.

—1-
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He pleaded not guilty to and was feund guilty of the Charge and specifica-
tions, No evidence of previous convictions was introduced, He was sentenced

to be dishonorably discharged the service, to forfeit all pay and allowances

due or to become due and to be confined at hard labor for five years at such
place as the reviewing authority may direct. The reviewing authority approved
the sentence, designated the Eastern Branch, United States Disciplinary Bar-
racks, Greenhaven, New York as the place of confinement and forwarded the record
of trial pursuant to the provisions of Article of War 50%.

3. The record contains competent substantial evidence in support of the
conviction of accused of two assaults of the character and under the circum-
stences alleged (CM ETO 1284, Davis et al, and authorities there cited).

Les The order appointing the court (SO #45, 14 Feb 1944), otherwise in
proper form, is captioned "HEADQUARTERS NORTHERN TRELAND BASE SECTION APO 813,"
The Board of Review may take juydicial notice that the incompletely designated
commend is an official geographical and administrative subdivision of the Ser-
vices of Supply, European Theater of Operations, U.S.Army. Furthermore, the
clerical orission from the designation was ratified by the subsequent action
of the reviewing authority, referred to above, approving the sentence (Cf CM
ETO 1606, Sayre). The Board of Review is therefore of the opinion that the
irregylarity is not fatal (Cf CM 120875 (1918), Dig. Op. JAG 1912-1940, sec.

9+ The charge sheet shows that accused 1s 20 years of age, that he was
inducted 9 March 1943 and that his pericd of service is governed by the Ser-
vice Extension Act of 1941.

6. The court was legally constituted and had jurisdiction of the
person and offenses, No errors injuriously affecting the substantial rights
of accused wore committed during the trial, The Board of Review is of the
opinicn that the record is legally sufficient to support the findings of.
guilty and the sentence., The sentence does not exceed the maximum for elther
of the offenses charged (MCM, 1928, par.104ig, P.99). Confinement in the
Eastern Branch, United States Disciplinary Barracks, Greerhaven, New York
is authorized (AW 42; Cir,210, WD, 14 Sep 1943, sec.VI, par.2z, as amended
by Cir,331, WD, 21 Dec 1943, sec,II, par,2).

. “‘% Judge Advocate

- ‘o
G de L MMC"%udge Advocate
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1st Ind.

WD, Branch Office TJAG., with ETOUSA. 18 MAY 1944 TO: Commanding
General, Northern Ireland Base Section, SO0S, ETOUSA, APO 813, U.S. Army.

1, In the case of Technician Fourth Grade CHARIES E. TANKARD (32828494),,
273rd Port Company, attention is invited to the foregoing holding by the Board
of Review that the record of trial is legally sufficient to support the find-
ings of guilty and the sentencei_which holding is hereby approved, Under the

provisions of Artlcle of War 503, you now have authority to order execution
of the sentence,

. 2, Vhen copies of the published order are forwarded to this office they
should be accompanied by the foregoing holding and this indorsement. The
file number of the record in this office is ETO 1982. For convenience of

reference please place that number in brackets at the end of the order:
(ETO 1982),

Brigadi¢r General, United States Army,
Assistant Judge Advocate General.
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Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General (73)
with the
European Theater of Operations
AP0 871
BOARD OF REVIEW
210 1991 1 0 MAY 1944
UNITED STATES 30TH INFANTRY DIVISION

)
)
Y. ) Trial by G.C.M., convened at AFO 30,

) 18 March 1944. Sentence: Dismissal,
First lieutenant WILLIAM V. ) total forfeitures and confinement at
PIERSON (0-1297421), Service ) hard labor for five years., Eastern
Company, 119th Infantry. § Branch, United States Disciplinary

Barracks, Greenhaven, New York.

HOLDING by the BOARD OF REVIEW
RITER, VAN BENSCHOTEN and SARGENT, Judge Advocates

1. The record of triel in the case of the officer nemed above has beeid
examined by the Board of Review and the Board submits this, its holding, to
the Assistant Judge Advocate General in charge of the Branch Office of The
Judge Advocate General with the European Theater of Operations.

2. Accused was tried upon the following charges and specifications:

CHARGE I: Violation of the 93rd Article of Wer.

Specifi cationt In that First Lieutenent William V.
Pierson, Service Company, 119th Infantry, did,
at Camp Atterbury, Indiana, on or ebout Jenuary
2, 1944, feloniously embegzle by fraudulently
converting to his own use the sum of $18.75 in
lawful money of the United States, the property
of Technicien Grade V Victor C. Navone; the sum
of $37.50 in lawful money of the United States,
the property of T/Sergeant Henry I, Crawford;
the sum of $18.75 in lawful money of the United
States, the property of Sergeant George Bailes;
the sum of $18,75 in lawful money of the United
States, the property of S/Sergeant William J.
Andrews; the sum of $1.00 in lawful money of the
United States, the property of Pfc¢ Ralph K.Davis;
the sum of $18.75 in lewful money of the United
States, the property of Technician Grade V Alvin
L. Piper; the sum of $2.25 in lawful money of
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the United States, the property of Technician
Grade V Harry H. Morro; the sum of $75.00 in
lawful money of the United States, the property
of Technician Grade IV Ronald M. Ruth; the sum
of $1.00 in lawful money of the United States,
the property of Sergeant Clerence E, Heles; the
sum of $27.75 in lawful money of the United
States, the property of Techniclan Grade IV
Michele Corhan; the sum of $5.00 in lawful
money of the United States, the property of
Technician Grade V Roy A, Hankins; the sunm of
$2.00 in lawful money of the United States,

the property of Technician Grade V Robert J.
Drury, entrusted to him by the individuals afore-
mentioned for the purchase of United States War
Bonds or Stamps or both.

CHARGE II: Violation of the 6lst Article of War.

Speci fi cations In that ® ® & 4id, without proper
leave absent himself from his organization and
station at AFO #30, c¢/o Postmaster, New York,
New York, from about 0600 9 February 194k to
about 0600 10 February 194k.

He pleaded not guilty to Charge I and its Specificatiom, guilty to Charge
II and its Specification and was found guilty of both charges and their
respective specifications, No evidence of previous convictions was intro-
duced, He was sentenced to be dismissed the service, to forfeit all pay
and allowances due or to become due, and to be confined at hard labor at
such place as the reviewing authority may direct, for five years., The
reviewing authority, the Commanding General, 30th Infantry Division,
apmroved the sentence and forwarded the record of trial for action under
Article of Wer 48, The confirming authority, the Commanding Genersel,
Europeen Theater of Operations, confimed the sentence, designated Eastern
Branch, United States Disciplinary Barracks, Greenhaven, New York, as the
place of confinement and withheld the order directing execution of the sen-
tence pursuant to the provisions of Article of War 503.

3. The evidence for the prosecution summarized as follows:

On 2 Jenuary 1944 at Camp Atterbury, Indiana, accused assisted
Captain Oliver W, Franklin, commanding officer, Service Company, 119th
Infantry, in the payment of his troops. In the same room, Lieutenant Guy
Drennan, of the seame organization, in accordance with a customary procedure,
collected money from the soldiers, for the purchase by them of war bonds
and stemps (R21-22,32)s Prior to January 194l similar collecti and
lists of buyers were, upon completion, delivered by the collectd) g S Tthe
first sergeant of the company who personally attended to the purchase and
distribution of the bonds abd stamps. On the occasion in question,
Captain Franklin and Lieutenant Drennan were obliged to leave before payment
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of the troops was completed. In complience with Captain Franklin's
instructions, Liéutenant Drennan delivered to accused the money which he
had collected, espproximating $220, together with the list of names of bond
and stamp purchasers and their respective deposits. Captein Franklin
directed accused "to stay and pay the other men and to turn the bond money
over to the first sergeant--or who was actually the acting first sergeant--
the first sergeant was on furlough."(R22,31). After completing the pay-
ment-of the troops present oh 2 January 1944, accused attached to the pay-
roll the list of bond and stamp purchasers, and placed it with an envelope
marked *bond money" in the field desk in the orderly room, where it was
?een By)the acting first Sergeant, who left camp én furlough that night
RLO=42).

The following night (3 January 1944) a number of men, including
the first® sergeant, returned from furlough. Some of them were -.4 the
next afternoon - L January - by accused, At that time the first sergeent
opened and “laid the payroll and money back on" the field desk. The pay-
roll was in the money bege No list was attached to it and thé fitst ser-
geant saw no sign of ‘any Bond money in a separate folder. Accused nevelr
gave him any money or "list to buy bonds for," nor talked to him at all
about the January payday collection for the purchase of bonds and stamps
(R42-4Y)e  Accused continued to pay men returning from furlough after pay~-
day and to collect bond and stamp subscriptions from them until 5 or 6
January 194L4. Sergeant Andrews who returned from his furlough 4 January
194), was paid by accused 5 January 194 at which time he gave accused $18.75
for the purchase of a bond. 'Each of the other enlisted men nemed in the
Specification, Charge I, peid the amount of money alleged to have been
embezzled from him, either to Lieutenamt Drennan or to the accused on 2 Jane-
uary or to the accused between 4 and 6 Jenuary 1944. All emounts paid %o
lLieutenant Drennan were delivered by him to accused on 2 January 1944
(R7-22,31).

On 2 January 1944, the officers of the 119th Infantry received
their paychecks at regimental headquarters, where’, between 3:30 end 4 p.,m.,
Captain Franklin inquired if accused desired to accompany him to the bank
for the purpose of cashing his checks He replied that he would cash his
own check from the "bond money," a not unprecedented procedure as the post
office would accept government checks as well as cash in payment for war
bonds and stamps. Returning from the bank an hour later, Captain Franklin
again saw accused "and asked him about his check, and he said he had cashed
it, intimating, if not actually saying, that he hed cashed it with bond
money”(R23,28-30).

"About Jenuary 4th or 6th" accused paid his officers' clud bill
which had been delinquent for several months, to Corporal Casey, a club
employee, with $36.93 in cash (R33-35). On 15 January, accused returned
$75 in cash to an enlisted man who had peid that amount” for the purchase of
bonds on 2 January but who later desired to have it returned to him because
he was being married (R39-40).

About 12 Jehuary 1944, Captain Franklin learned that no bonds and
stemps had been purchased for the men and that some of them "were getting
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pretty hot" about it, They hall never waited for delivery of their bonds
and stazps more than four or five days after thus paying their money,

The captain ascertained that the first sergeant had received no money for
the purchase of bonds and stamps, and thereupon telephoned accused direct-
ing him to "turn the money over®" to the first sergeant. He replied *he
would be by in fifteen minutes to do this.* lLater the ssme afternoon, the
captain lesrned he had not seen the first sergeant. At that time and
daily thereafter until 18 January Captain Franklin repeated by telephons
his instructions to accused to deliver the "bond money® to the first serge
eant, Each time he received these instructions from Ceptain Franklin,
accused proxised to comply with same within a few mimtes (R23-24).

On 18 Jenuary 1944 in a personal interview with Captain Franklin,
accused first asserted the money hed been stolen frem his roows, Captain
Franklin suggested that ke would cause to be traced accused'’s cisck which
he had cashed with bond money, accused "expleined that tbe thief would
probably throw the check away."(R25«26)¢ Captaim Franklin d4id mot thea
denend the money dut the next day he demended it, whereupon accused stated
he was waiting for his wife to drimg the money to camp, 'He said she was
at homs-=llew Jersey or New York or scmewhere in the east to get the money
from his father.*(R25,29-30)s The accused never delivered the bond money
es directed nor did he ever reimburse the soldiers nor deliver to them the
bonds and stamps to which their payments to the fuid entitled them (R25,27«

29,43)

On 25 Jamusry 1925, having decided to purchase the bonds and
stexps with his own private funds, Captain Franklin asked accused for the
list. ©He replied that it was in a laundry roster folder in the field desk.
The captaia and the first sergeant thoroughly searched the field desk; they
found the laundry roster but no bond and stamp liste Obtaining the nece~
ssary infermation from otbsr undiseclosed sourses, Captaim Franklin, the
sse day, sdvancod from his own funds a sum of money to the first sergeant,
who purechased donis and stamps and distributed the same ‘to the soldiers, In
particuler instances refunds in cash were effected (R25+26,28,44)e On 1 Peb-
ruary 1944, accused delivered his pay check to Captain Franklin in reimburse-
ment of $143.83 of the sum 30 edvanced, axd, after Maren peyday paid R12 in
addition. Thers remained ax unpaid balavce of approximately $150,00 (R27,31).

According to extract copies of moraing reports of ascused‘’s come
pany, properly oertified, introduced in evidence, amd ifentified by Captain
Franklix on the witness stand as true and correct, aceussd was adbsent without
leave from his organizatioca from 0600 hours 9 February 1944 to 0600 hours
16 Februgry 19k4 (R26; Pros.Exs.l,2).

he Yor the defense, it was stipulated that if accused’'s wife were
present in court she would testify that her husbamd ®told her on or about
5 Jsauary 1944, that he collected some money for the purehase of war boends
which ke had put ia his foot locker and the locker was broken open and the

tskene He further told her that he found this ouwt about Jamuary
et geitan

- k -
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Lieutenant Colonel Danie’ W, Quinn, 119th Infantry, having testi-
fied for the prosecution, was recalled as a witness for the defense, He
testified that he made an informal investigation of the case on 18 January
194} in bis capacity as regimental exsoutive officer without orders from
higher authority, 4s a result of this he concluded that the incident was
%apparently® clesed, provided sccused continued to repay the money Captein
Franklin had advanced for the war bonds, "but there was no threat that any-
thing would happea if be didn't pay it back,® and no sgreement or under-
standing between the witness and accused,

5¢ Aocused, after being duly adviged of his rights, elected to testi-
fy under oath. He testified as follows:

*Yhen the men were paid off, they gave

their money to Lt Drennan. The Captain
and Lt Drennan were called off on some
kindof business and Ceptain Franklin left
me in charge to see that the rest of the
men were paid off, I padid the rest of

the men off and put the money in the field
deske That night Captain Frenklin and I
went to get our pay cheoks and Ceptain
Sency (personnsl officer) was mot there.
The Captain picked up my checks He went
to the bank and had his cashed =and gave me
my check and esksd if I wanted it cashed end
Y seid I would cash it from the bond monsey.
¥We went in the officer’s club and then I
went homs that night, The money was in the
field desks Sunday morning I got the money
and went to the hospital and’ paid three or
four men there who had missed the pay day.
Lt Smith was there when I got the money and
had the key to the desks I had soms busi-
ness in town on Mondey and I had planned to
take the money in with me and buy the bonds
there as I had to go in to see about a tele.
phone anywaye I had the money in my foot
locker over nignt., Then on Monday we
started turning in property and I got too
busy to go to town to buy the honds, I
bhad not turned the mopey over to the first
sergeant because he was on furloughs I
figured I would get the bonds snd stampe
when I had the chance to go to town. Tues-
day afternoon I paid the remainder of the
company off and t0ld the sergseant I had the
rest of the money in my foot lockere I
collected some money from the men that day
for the purchase of war bonds and added that
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with tos other mensy ia my foot loecker, That
night the locker was broksn open snd the money
taken out of it I 4id mot .report it because
I 4idn't want anyone to kmew of my careless-
ness with the bond money end I told my wife
about it and we figured we could make it good
by getting the money from my father, Ve
tried to get it from him and had no luck, so
we tried to get it from xy dxuiker-in-law and
bhad 1o luek there either. Vhesn Captain
Franklin asked me about it, I was expesting
ny wife back and I told hir I was waiting for
a call from Ker, 8he called and told me she
was unable to get the money from my father or
anybody else., That afternoon I was called
in to Colonel Quinn's office and I explained
the whole situation to him."(R47).

He obtained the $75.00 from the proceeds of his wife's allotment check to
repay the man who oontemplated marrisge (Ri7)s He peid his clud bill by
delivering his December pay sheck to Corporeal Kieth, who was smployed at
the officers' club, He received in cash the difference between the amount
of his pay check and the sxmount of his bill, From 2 January to 10 Feb-
ruary, he neither made any wnusual expendituresof money nor 4id he incur
any unusuel expenses, His authority to hold the bond and stemp money
received on payday until 6 January was "the fact that some of the men hed
pot returned from furlough.® He explaized the Yeasons for the delay in
obtaining the war bonds by stating that "after the money was stolemn, there
was no place I could raise the money at that time,* He believed but was
not sure that the list of bond buyers was im the field desk, to which he had
no key (R50).

On cross examinatioa, he testified that on 4 Jenuary he stated to
the first sergeant he would turn the money over to him the next day, 7The
next might he revealed his discovery of his loss to his wife, but to mo one
else, Ho was familiar with the practioce of delivering the bond monsy to
the first sergeant, but, in this cass, he oould not do it, although the first
sergeant was there on the 4th, He recalled telling Captain Franklin that
he intended to cash his check out of the dond money, but denied that when he
informed Captain Franklin the bond money was stolen, Captain Franklin made
the swggestion that he could probably trace the accused's check if it was ia
the bond monsy, or that he t0ld Captain Franklin that the check would be
thmwa awvay. Although he reiterated $hat he paid his bill at the officers'
eludb by check to Corporel Kieth, he later testified that he would »ot swear
that it wyas Corporsal Kieth to whom he paid it, or that it was pot Corporal
%my (;ho hed testified for the prosscution that the ascused paid him)

R4j9-50).

He placed Lieutenant Drennan's end his own subsequdnt bomd’
oollections ~= $400 in paper and change -~ in the tray of his foot locker
- 6 -
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fastened with an 0ld lock in his barracks, which was located about 300
yards distant from the orderly room. Hs locked it but he later found it
open -= the lock not knocked off, just open -~ and the money gone. IHa
later exchanged his 0ld locker for a new one without showing it to anyone
(R50=51)s He decided to buy the bonds himsslf because of the first
sergeant's absence, although he admitted that the first sergeant returned
on the 4th and that his locker was not broken into until sometime between
the night of the 4th gand the morning of the 5th (R52),

After he informed Captain Franklin he intended to cash his check
out of bond money, *I just didn't and instead got it cashed at the clud,.*
He claimed that he paid his billl with his pay check and not with cash as
Corporal Cesey testified (R52-53)e

Questioned as to the reason he went absent without official leave
sccused answered: "I missed my train backe My train was 20 minutes late
and I missed my last oonnection until 6115 back to Atterbury. . I got some
liquor and started 4rinking and incapacitated myself and that is all I
Temember.® (R51),

6. Im redbuttal, by direct evidence it was shown that accused paid
his officers' elub bill to Corporal Cassy and mot to Corporal Kieth, in
cash « *in twenties and tens® - and not by delivery of his pay check (R53-

5k)e

7« The Specification, Charge I, alleges embezzlement in violation of
Article of War 93, Competent substantial evidence established every ele-
ment of +he offense, within the doctrines announced and elucidated in QM
ETO 1302, Splain, and affirmed in CM ETO 1538, Rhodes and M ETV 1588,
Mogeff. Accused's evidence created an issue of fact which was resolved
sgainst him by the court and its finding is binding on the Board of Review

(G BT0 132, Kelly and Hrde; GM ETO 397, Shaffer; G ETO 1191, Acoats).

8. The Specifiocatioa, Charge II, alleges absence without leave for
one day in violation of Article of War 61, Competent evidence established
the offense, to whieh accused pleaded guilty (Cu XTO 364, Howe).

9+ The court properly overruled the defenss counsel's motion that
the Specification of Charge I be stricken snd & findiag.of not guilty
entered at the coneclusion of the prosecution's evidance-in-chief, an abune -
dance of substantiali evidencs having then clearly established every essen-
tial elemsnt of the offense charged. The motion was properly denied (MCM

1928, par.713, p«56; O XT0 393, Caton and Fikes).

10¢ Immediately following the testimeny of the presecution's witness,
George H, Bailes, Jr,, Sergeant, Service Company, 119th Infantry, it was
stipulated "between accused, the defengs and the Trial Judge Advocate that
that portion of the Specification of Charge I resading as follows, 'the sum

of $18 in lawful money of the United States, the of Sergeant
Goorgo.gtslnu)‘ be amsended to read as follows, Ythe spml;oof 59.55. rgn

lawful money of the United States, the property of Sergeant
- 7 -
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George Bailes'*(R10)s The total amount alleged to have been embezzled,
scoording to the original specification in question, was $226.50. Thus
the smendment neither altered the nature nor imcreased the grade of the
offense, It 414 not subject accused to liability for any greater pumish-
mont than the original specification, which in the light of the proof was
defeoctive merely as to the inconsequential amount of ons contributor's
interest in the embezzled fund, While

"Neither the julge advocate nor the court
has the power to make substantial emend-
monts to specifications witbhout the author-

\ ity of the convening emthority. (Par.97,
}il, Law and Precedents, reprint, p.l155.)
C. M. 129525 (1919)* (Dig.Op.JAG, 1912-
1940, pares28(9), pe296)s

ths oourt may during trial permit the eppropriate amendment of a defective
specification which originelly was sufficient to apprise the scoused fairly
of the offemse intended to be charged, provided it clearly eppears that the
accused has not been misled, and that a contizuanes is uanecessary for the
protection of his substantial rights (MGI 1928, pare73, pe57)e Had the
original specificaetion alleged embeszzlement of $18,75 amd 30 more, amend-
ment by the court to meet the proof adduced would have been unamthorized as
increasing the guantity of the offezse originally alleged (MCM, 1928, par.
104g, Pe99)e Had the smendment affected the corpus of the embezzlement,
substituting bdoads for money, for exsmple, it would have besn unauthorised.
Such smendment would have changed the guglity of the original offense,
alleging in lieu thereof, one separate and distimct (CM 189741 (1930);

Q¢ 188571 (1929); Gf 185034 (1929); DigeOpeJAG 1912-1940, pare}51(20),pps317=
318)s Since the amendment affected neither the quality nor the quantity of
the offemse originally alleged, the court properly permitted it, under the
eircumstances disclosed by the record of trial,

11. ‘The charge sheet shows that the accused is 28 years of sge and
that he wes conmissioned a second lisutenant, Army of the United States, at
TJort Beaning, Georgia, 20 October. 1942, \

12, The ocourt was legally comstituted and had jurisdiction of the
person and offenses, No errors iajuriously affecting the substantiasl rights
of acoused were committed during the trial, The Board of Review is of the
opinion that the reeord of triel is legally sufficient to support the fimde
ings of guilty and the sentence as confirmed, Dismissal of an offiocer is
suthorized upen oconviction of a violation of Article of War 93 or 96.
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13. The designation by the confirming authority of Eastern Branch,
United States Disciplinary Barracks, Greenhaven, New York, as the place
of confinement is authorized (Cir. 210, WD, 14 Sep 1943, sec.VI, par.2a,
@s amended by Cir.331, WD, 21 Dec 1943, ssc.II, per.2).

/% A % Judge Advocate

W Judge Advocate
«

N2 5 iTudge Advocate
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WD, Branch Office TJAG., with ETOUSA, 1 0 MAY 1944 TO: Cosmanding
G.wd. K‘I'OUSL. AFRQ 887' U.S. Am.

1. In the cese of First Lieutenant WILLIAM V. PIERSON (0-1297421),
119th Infantry, attention is invited to the foregoing holding by the
Boerd of Review that the record of trial is legally sufficient to support
the findings of guilty and the sentence as confirmed, which holding is
hereby approved. Under the provizions of Article of War 504, you now
have authority to ordar exscution of the sentence,

2. The record of triel shows that accused's commanding offioer was,
on or ebout 18 January 194k, fully informed of all of the material facts
establishing embezzlement by the accused of the fund descrided in the
Specification, Charge I« No charges were preferred until 16 Februsry
194} after the accused had been absent from his organization without leave
for one day, as alleged in the Specificetion, Cherge II, At the end of
January he had delivered his pay check to Captain Franklin, He received
the maximm sentence for the offense under the 93rd Article of War,

3¢ Wken copies of the published order are forwarded to this office,
they should be accompanied by the foregoing holding and this indorsement.
The file number of the record in this office is ETO 1991, For cenypnienea
of reference please place that number im brackets atv the end of [i¢ ordax:

(ETO 1991).
/ZZ //
¥. C. MeNEIL,

Brigadier Goneral. United States Artly
Assistant Judge Advocate General.

(Sentence ordered executed., GCMO 31, ETO, 15 May 1944)
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Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General
witk the
European Theater of Operations
AFO 871
BOARD OF REVIEW
ETO 2002 30 MAY 1944
UNITED STATES ) SOUTHERN BASE SECTION, SERVICES
‘ ) OF SUPFLY, EUROFEAN THEATER OF
Ve ) OPERATIONS,
)
Private JOSEPH BELIOT ) Trial by G.C.M., convened at Camp
(382629L44), 958th Quarter- ) Rugby, Hampshire, England, 29 Feb-
master Service Company. ) Tuary and ‘'l Marea 194l Sentence:
) Dishonorable discharge, total for-
) feitures and confinement at hard
) labor for life. The United States
) Penitentiery, Lewisburg, Pennsaylvania.

HOLDING by the BOARD OF REVIEW
RITER, VAN BENSCHOTEN and SARGENT, Judge Advocates

l, The record of trial in the case of the soldier named above has
been examined by the Board of Review,

2¢ Accused was tried upon the following Charge and Specifications

CHARGE: Violation of the 92nd Article of War.

Specifications In that Private Joseph (NMI) Bellot,
958th Quartermaster Servica Corpany, did, at
Cosham, Hants, Englanmd on, or about, 9 February
1944, forcibly and feloniocusly, against her will,
have carnal knowledge of Miss Mary Restall.

He pleaded not guilty to and was found guilty of the Charge and Specifica-
tione No evidence of previous convictions was introduced, He was
sentenced to be dishonorably di scharged the service, to forfeit all pay and
allowmces due and to become due and to be confined et hard labor, at such
place as the reviewing authority may direct, for lifes The reviewing
authority approved the sentence, designated the United States Penitentiary,
Lewlsburg, Pennsylvania as the place of confinement and forwarded the record
of triel for action under Article of Wer 50},

-1-
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3. The evidence for the prosecution, in substance shows that Mary
Restall, 22 Mable Thorp Road, Wymering, Portsmouth, England, a 16 year old
factory worker, attended a dance on the night of 9 February 194} at Anger-
stein Hall in that city (Rl5«16), She left the hall to go home about ten
o'clock with Frederick J. Welch, a fellow factory employee (R32) and
Sheila May Knight (R31)e They accompanied her part of the way and when
they left her at about 10115 pem. she continued alone. As she was cross-
ing a street by a railroed, a black soldier seized her by the neck and
pulled her into some bushes behind a pile of rubble (R16) located mext to
the bus parking lot (Pros.Ex.A). When she tried to scream he held her
moutn and told her to shut ups He tore her underclothes amd forcibly had
sexual intercourse with her (R16-17) rupturing her hymen, scratching her
face and brusing end scratching her neck (R33)e The next day her chin was
blue and her cheeks end mouth very swollen (R25)e¢ Ronald Steward, a War
Reserve Constable of Portsmouth, at about 11:35 the night of 9 Pebruary
while on duty on the Portsmouth Road reer the reilroed, heard screeams from
the direction of & pile of rubble and on investigeting found a colored
American soldier lying on top of a girl on the ground, He flashed his
torch and ordered the man to get up, at which time he saw that the lower
part of the girl's body was exposed, She was moaning and said "He has
torn my clothes and tried to strangle me,* She was in an extremely dis-
tressed conditione While the officer was holding the soldier with one
band end attempting to assist the girl with the other the soldier broke
away and rene The officer gave chase and ran toward the Portsmouth bridge
but lost sight of the soldier in the darke He then took a bicycle from a
passer-hy and rode it in an attempt to catch the soldiers When he reached
the bridge and while asking the constable stationed there if he had seen
any colored soldier, he saw accused running along the left hand side of the
bridges Steward pursued accused and apprehended him., Accused's jacket
was unbuttoped end he was out of breath (Rl10=11)s He was ceptured "two
or thres hundred yerds® from the place where the soldier had broken away
from Steward and "just the time it took me to get from where I was to Forts-
mouth Bridge' (R15)e The reserve constable 4id not see the face of the
soldier (R12)s Steward returned to the scene of the crime but the girl
was gone (Rl4)e VWhen the police officer followed the soldier, she picked
up her "mack" and ran homs. The clothing of both the colored soldier and
of Mary Restall, exhibits at the trial, showed blood and seminal steins (R27),

be Accused was taken to the Cosham Police station in Portemouth.
He made a written signed statement to the British police as follows:

*Coshem Police Station, Portsmouth, 10 Feb=
ruary, 1944 Joseph Bellot, Private, No.
38262914, United States Army stationed at
Hlsea College, I have been told by Detece
tive Sgt Elwood that I need not say anythirg.
I em making this statement of my own free
will s/ Joseph Bellot About 93130 M on
Wednesday February 9, 1944 I met a girl in

a beer joint near Hilsea College, We had a
drink togethere I don't know her name, I

o2 a
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left the beer .joint with her. I asked
her if I could screw her and she told me
to give her a pound for & short tims. I
walked with her tp a place- where: there.
are busses parked, Someone started to
run accross the street and the girl said,
*Who's that running?" and she started to
let fire running too. I grabbed her and
eszked her for my pound backe She wouldn't
answer me and she wouldn't give me back my
money 80 I just went with her, She didn't
scream and she didn't struggles A police=
man came over and said to me, "get up', and
I d1d. I had only just started when thne
policeman came over, s/ Joseph Bellot,
This statement has been read over to me and
it is true® (R23; Pros.Ex.I).

5¢ Two questions only need be considered, first, the lapse of
approximately an hour and & haif between the time Mary left the dance hall
and the occurrence at the rubble pile located less than two miles from the
dance hall, and second, the proof of the identity of the black American
seen on top of the girl,

Mary Restall testified that at the dance somebody kicked her
ankle while ®jitterbugging® and it bothered her in walking (R20)., Sheile
May Knight testified that she was with Mery during all of the evening,
that Mary 4id not leave the dence hall and that someone kicked her ankle
an® hurt her while dancing (R31)e The injury to her ankle was not ques-
tioneds There was therefore a reasonable explanation of the time element
which the court was free to accept,

Mary identified her assailant as a member of the United States
army because "there is no black soldiers in our army so it could not have
been our army". She was positive he was blacke It wes dark and she
could not see his face (R21)s Constable Steward did not see tne face of
the soldier at the acene of crime but said he was "a colored American sole
dier® (R12); he lost sight of him momentarily in the dark when he broke
away and ran (R12), However, accused was apprehended, running, within two
or three hundred yards of the crime, His coat was unbuttoned. His
sxplanation of his whereabouts dquring the evening and of his actions des-
cribe the crime herein except in a few details, Further corroborating
evidence of accused's identity is found in the fact that his victim's
hymen had been ruptured, "It was torn and bleeding and the tears sxtended
to the base * * ¢, It was in shreds® (R33,34)e The doctor's subsequent
exemination produced a severe hemorrhage. Accused's clothing bore blood
and seminal stains, These circumstances considered in connection with the
fact that he was teken in the proximity of the crime support the presumpe
tion that the black American soldier found at the scene of the crime and who
broks away from the police officer, and the accused who was captured a short
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distance sway from the locus with his clothes unfastered and while running,
were one and the same person,

*When evidence is of sufficient probative
force, a crime may be established by
circumstantial evidence, provided that
there is positive proof of the facts
from which the inference of guilt is to
be drawn and that the inference is the
only one which can ressonably be drawn
from these facts.® (People v, Razezicz
206 NuoYe 2493 99 NeEe 55745646

*whatever may be established by direct
evidence ip a eriminal case may also be
established by circumstantial evidence,

The rule is one of necessity; only few
convictions could be bhad if direct testi-
mony of eye witnesses were required®

(20 Am,Jur.- Evidence, 36c.273, pp«260,261).

®"A few circumstences may be consistent with
several solutions but the whole context of
the circumstances can consist of but one
truthe Moral certainty is a strong presumpe
tion, grounded on probable reasons, and which
very seldom fails or deceives us"(Burrell on
Circumstantiel Evidence, pe199).

The court, whose duty 1t is to resolve questions of fact and who
saw and heard the witnesses and could best judgs of their credibility, has
found the accused and the black Americean soldier who attacked the girl to
be one snd the same man, Inasmuch as there is substantialL evidence to
sustain the finding the same will not be disturbed on appellate review (CM
ETO 1621, Leatherberry, and authorities therein cited).

6e Accused was required upon motion of the prosecution and by direc-
tion of the Law Member to disrobe before the court and clothe himseif in
trousers, shirt and cotton shorts (Pros.Exs.JK,L) which had been introduced
in evidence and identified as clothing which was teken from his person on
the night of the crime, The defense resisted the motion but its objections
were over-ruled, While such practice is susceptible of abuse and should be
edopted only in cases of extreme necessity, accused®s constituted privilege
under the Stn Amendment of the Federal Constitution not to give evidence
egainst himself was not infringed by such procedure (MCM, 1928, par.122b,
Pel30; 1 Wharton's Criminal Evidence, 1llth Ed, sece382, p.607; Holt v,
United States, 218 U.S. 245, 25235 54 L.Eds 1021,103v)e

7« There is attached to the record of trial a certificave of correc-
tion exscuted pursuant to 36¢.87h, Pe75, MCM, 1925, Also attached is a
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sworn list of “irregularities, discrepancies and inaccuracies of the (87)
transcribed record of trial®, signed by the defenss counsel and assistant
defense counsel with statements of e spectator and a witness at the trial
in support thereof; +two signed statements of the Trial Judge Advocate,
and ons each by two members of tne cours and one by the president of the
court in answer thereto., Records of trial befores generai courtvs-martiai
cannot be impeached by extranecus evidence in the form of certificates and
arfidavits (4 CJS sec.780, pe.1263; Hopt v. People, 114 U.S. 488, 491, 29 L.
Ed, 183, 184; Johnson v, United States, 225 U.S. 405, 56 L.Ed. 1142; In re
McCall, 145 Fede838)e The Manual for Courts-Martial 1928 specifically
provides methods for correction of erromeous or defective records of trial
(MM, 1928, sec.87b, p.75) and the same are exclusive, Even if ihe
verity of the alleged errors in the record be conceded the substantiai
rights of the accused have not been injuriously affected by them as viewed
by the requirements of Article of War 37.

8s Attached to the record of trial is aleo a petition for clemency
signed by various citizens of Porismouth,

9¢ The charge sheet shows the accused to be 21 years of sge, He
was inducted 6 November 1942 for duration of the war plus six months,

10 The court was legally constituted and had jurisdiction of the
person and offenses No errors injuriously affecting the substantial
rights of the accused were committed during the triale The Board of
Review is of tne opinion that the record of trial is legally sufficient
to support the findings of guilty and the sentence (M ETO 1886, Simmons
and authorities therein cited).

11, A sentence of death or life imprisomment is mandatory on convice
tion of the crime of rape under the 92nd Article of War, Confinement in
a penitentiary is authorized by AW 42 and secs., 278 and 330 Federal Crimi-
nal Code (18 USCA secs.)57 and 567)s The designation of the United States
Penitentiary, Lowisburg, Pennsylvania as the place of confinement is
authori zed (Cir,291, WD, 10 Nov 1943, sec.V, pars.3a and b),

/
/Z./% %L/Z _ Judge Advocate

@W Judge Advocate

Judge Advocate
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WD, Branch Office TJAG., with ETOUSA. 30 MAY 1944  70; Commending
General, Southern Base Section, SOS, ETQUSA, APO 519, U.S. Army,

l. In the case of Private JOSEPH BELIOT (3826294L), 958th Quartier-
master Service Company, attention is invited to the foregoing holding by
the Board of Review that the record of trial is legally sufficient to
support the findings of guilty and the ssntence, which holding is hereby
approved, Under the provisions of Article of War 50}, you now have
suthority to order exscution of the sentence.

2« VWhen copies of the published order are forwarded to this office,
they should be accompanied by the foregoing holding and this indorsement.
The file number of the record in this office is ETO 2002, For convenience
of reference please place that number in brackets at the end of the order:

(ET0 2002).
Z %}7

E. C. McNEIL,
rigadier General, United States Army,
Asgistant Judge Advocate General.
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Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General
with the
European Theater of Operations
APO 871

BOARD OF REVIEN

22 JuL 1944
ETO 2005
UNITED STATES WESTERN BASE SECTION, successor
to NORTHERN IRELAND BASE SECTION,
COMMUNICATIONS ZONE, EUROPEAN
THEATER OF OPERATIONS.

Ve

)
)
)
Staff Sergeant LIOYD E,
WIIKINS (33741318) and Trial by GCM, convened at Wilmont
Sergeant FRANKLIN D, WILLIAMS House, County Antrim, Northern Ireland
(35056431), both of 3992nd ) 3 March 1944. Sentences: Wilkins
Quartermaster Truck Company. ) dishonorable discharge (suspendeds,
total forfeitures and confinement at
hard labor for five years, 2912th
Disciplinary Training Center, Shepton
; Mallet, Somersetshire, England;
, dishonorable discharge, total
) forfeitures and confinement at hard
) labor for fifteen years, Eastern
) Branch, United States Disciplinary
) Barracks, Greenhaven, New York,

HOLDING by the BOARD CF REVIEW
RITER, SARGENT and STEVENS, Judge Advocates

1. The record of trial in the case of the above named accused Wilkins
has been examined in the Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General with
the European Theater of Operations and there found legally insufficient to
support the findings and sentence in part. The record of trial has now
been examined by the Board of Review as to the said accused Wilkins and also
as to the above named accused Williams (forwarded pursuant to Article of War
50%) and the Board submits this, its holding, to the Assistant Judge Advocate
General in charge of sald Branch Office,

2+ Accused were charged separately and tried together without objection.

Accused Wilkins was tried upon the following charges and specifica-
tions;

-l -
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CHARGEs Violation of the 64th Articls of War,

Specificationt In that 8/Sgt. Lloyd E. Wilkins,
3992 QM Truck Company, having received a law-
ful command from Captaln Robert C, Bradley,
his superior officer, to take reveille on the
morning of 7 February 1944, did, at Camp Ard-
naveigh, Antrim County, Northern Ireland, on
or about 7 February 1944, willfully disobey

the same,

ADDIT JONAL CEARGE

CHARGE: Violation of the 96th Article of War,

Specification: In that Staff Sergeant Lloyd E,
Wilkins, 39924 Quartermaster Truck Company,
did, at Camp Ardnaveigh, County Antrim,
Northern Ireland, on or about 6 February
1944, participate in an unauthorized assem-
bly of enlisted members of the 39924 Quarter-
master Truck Company, with intent to arouse
insubordination among the enlisted personnel
thereof and impede the exercise of the author-
ity of its commissioned officers, to the prej-
udice of good order and military discipline,

He pleaded not guilty, and, two-thirds of the members of the court present
when the vote was taken concurring, was found guilty of the Specification of
the Charge, except the words, "willfully disobey the same," substituting
therefor the words, "fail to obey the same," and inserting after the words
"the morning of 7 February 1944" the words "said Captain Bradley being then
in the execution of his office," and of the excepted words not guilty, but
of the substituted and added words, guilty, and not guilty of the Charge but
guilty of a violation of Article of War 96, and guilty of the Additional
Charge and its Specification. No evidence of previous convictions was
introduced. Two=thirds of the members of the court present when the vote
was taken concurring, he was sentenced to be dishonorably discharged the
service, to forfeit all pay and allowances due or to become due and to be
confined at hard labor, at such place as the reviewing authority may direct,
for ten years, The reviewing authority approved the sentence, remitted all
confinement at hard labor in excess of five years and as thus modified order-
ed the sentence executed but suspended the execution of that portion thereof
adjudging dishonorable discharge until the soldier's release from confinement,
and designated the 2912th Disciplinary Training Center, Shepton Mallet,
Somerset, England, as the place of confinement. The proceedings were pub-
lished in General Court-Martial Orders No., 7, Headquarters Northern Ireland
Base Section, Services of Supply, European Theater of Operations, U.S. Army,
APO #813, 4 April 1944.

Accused Williams was tried on the following cha.rgea. and spscifica-
tionsas
-2 .-
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CHARGE: Violation of the 64th Article of War,

Specification: In that Sgt. Franklin D, Williams,
3992 QM Truck Company, having received a law-
ful command from 2nd Lt, Francis S. Clarke,
his superior officer, to report to Captain
Robert C, Bradley at the company orderly-room
forthwith, did at Camp Ardnaveigh, Antrim
County, Northern Ireland, on or about 7 Feb-

ruary 1944, willfully disobey the same,

ADDTITIONAL CHARGE

CHARGE: Violation of the 96th Article of War,

Specification 1: (Disapproved by Reviewing Authority).

Specification 2t In that Sergeant Franklin D, Williems,
39924 Quartermastser Truck Company, did, at Camp
Ardnaveigh, County Antrim, Northern Ireland, on
or about 7 February 1944, participate in an un-
authorized assembly of enlisted members of the
39924 Quartermaster Truck Company, with intent
to arouse insubordination among the enlisted per-
sonnel thersof and impede the exercise of the
authority of its commissioned officers, to the
prejudice of good order and military discipline,

He pleaded not guilty, and, two-thirds of the members of the court present
when the vote was taken concurring, was found guilty of the charges and
specifications, No evidence of previous convictions was introduced., Three-
fourths of the members of the court present when the vote was taken concurr-
ing, he was sentenced to be dishonorably discharged the service, to forfeit
all pay and allowances due or to become dus, and to be confined at hard labor,
at such place as the reriewing authority may direct, for 15 years. The re-
viewing authority disapproved the finding of gullty as to Specification 1 of
the Additional Charge, approved the sentence, designated the Eastern Branch,
United States Disciplinary Barracks, Greenhaven, New Iork, as the place of
confinement and forwarded the record of trial for action pursuant to Article
of War 50%0

3. Evidence introduced by the prosecution showed that on 6 and 7 Feb-
ruary 1944, accuséd Wilkins and Williams were Staff Sergeant and Sergeant,
respectively, of the 3992d Quartermaster Truck Company, commanded by Captain
Robert C. Bradley, Quartermaster Corps (R15), and were then stationed at
Ardnaveigh, County Antrim, Northern Ireland (R18). On the e vening of 6
February 1944, Captain Bradley relieved the first sergeant of the company,
(Pruitt) of his duties (R17)., Before issuing his order, at about 1930
hours, Captain Bradley informed accused Wilkins that he "believed" he would
want the latter "to take over the job as Acting 1lst Sergeent.,! Accused
Wilkins demurred, He said: "There were two other Platoon Sergeants that
outranked him, % ¥ % had been in the Service longer * % ¥, Finally Captain
Bradley told Wilkins: "to-morrow morning I want you to take reveille and
report to the Duty Officer * # ¥, and after that he could decide about con-
tinuing as "acting lst sergeant" (R16). "To take reveille® in that organ-
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ization was to form the company in the courtyard at 0600 hours, take the
1(-eporta)from the platoon sergeants, and report to the company duty officer
R17,40).

Iieutenant Colonel Algon B. Johnson, Quartermaster Corps, command-
ing officer, 152nd Quartermaster Battalion Moblle, of which accused Wilkins'
company was a unit, testified for the prosecution. He identifled a written
statement and said that it was made and signed by accused Wilkins in answer
to questions he propounded on 7 February 1944. Colonel Johnson said that
he had informed accused of his rights and imstructed him with respect to
same under the 24th Article of War (R39,40; Pros.Ex.2). In this statement,
Wilkins said that he attended a meeting of Mall the platoon sergeants" (of
his company) on the evening of 6 February at about 1900 hours, It was held
at the headquarters platoon barracks. The occasion of the meeting was the
demotion of First Sergeant Pruitt. At this meeting it was concluded that
Pruitt was the best man to serve as first sergeant and it was decided to
draft, circulate and present a petition (round-robin in form) to Colonel
James A, Doyle, District Commander, 36th District, Northern Ireland Base
Section, It was also d ecided to hold a meeting in the mess hall the next
morning of all the enlisted men and officers to determine the reason for the
demotion of Pruitt and to inform the officers that they (the enlisted men)
were not in favor of the replacement of the first sergeant (Pros.Ex,2).

The following morning, Corporal Joseph E, Tilley, charge of quarters,
awoke Sergeant Wilkins at 0515 hours. Neither first call nor reveille sound-
ed that morning (R18,19). In his statement made to Lieutenant Colonel
Johnson (Pros.Ex,2) Wilkins admitted that Captain Bradley had ordered him to
act as first sergeant of the company and "take reveille" on the morning of 7
February but that he did not obey the order. He gave as the reason for his
failure to comply with the order, "I got up in the company area too late®.

He explained the reason he did not hold reveille formation that morning after
he discovered it‘'‘had not been held as follows:

®At that time I looked at the clock in the
courtyard and it showed that the hour was
0635, I went to headquarters platoon, then
1lst platoon, then to the 2nd platoon, and
sent a runner to the 3rd platoon. The men
started falling out into the mess hall,®

He excused his action in permitting the men to assemble in the mess hall in-
stead of causing them to fall out for reveille formation:

"Because after I learned there was not an
officer there and it was past the time for
reveille and it was also time for btreakfast,"

After Tilley started his fires he went back to the mess hall and found thers,
as he assumed, the whole company (R19), He then awoke all the officers be-
tween 0620 and 0700 hours (R20,23) and informed the following officers that
the presence of all the officers was requested in the mess hall: Captain

coRFfbENTIAL 2015
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Bradley (R23), Second Lieutenant Joseph M. Gwin, Quartermaster Corps, officer
of the day at the time in question (R35,36), and Second Lieutenant Francis S,
Clarke, Quartermaster Corps (R27,28). On being awakened, Captain Bradley
sent a message by the charge of quarters to the company sergeants, including
both accused, Wilkins and Williams, "to report to the office right away"
(R23-24), No ome appeared, About 0735 hours the captain gave a similar
message to be conveyed by Lieutenant Clarke. This did not evoke the ex-
pected result, Accordingly at 0800 hours Captain Bradley gave further or-
ders as a result of which Lieutenant Clarke went to the mess hall, accom-
panied by Lieutenant Rice, and there individually told accused Williams and
four other sergeants, not inecluding accused Wilkins who was not present: "I
hereby order you to go to the orderly room", Accused Williams, who was the
spokesman of the meeting, said "I will not go", nor did he go (R24,29-30,34).
The mess hall was less than 100 yards from the office, also relferred to as
the ordsrly room (B20,29,31), Ilieutenant Clarke reported back o Captain
Bradley at about 0810 hours. After waiting ten minutes, no sergeant having
appeared, Captain Bradley went to the mess hall where the men were assembled,
Sergegt Eimm said to Captain Bradley, upon being asked if he was spokes-
mant *Yes" and '

"The men in the Company want to know why you
have relieved Sergeant Pruitt, # # %, We
want them to hear from you first % * % why
you have been treating the Company as you
have" (R24,25,32).

Captain Bradley described the ensuing events as follows:
®"About that time Staff-Sergeant Jones rose to
his feet and said: 'Captain, can I say some-
thing? I sald 'No, Sergeant; sit down,!
which he did, Sergeant Williams then said in
the course of conversation: 'I will call upon
certain of the non-coms, or certain men in
the Company to tell you how they feel, after
you have spoken.,' Then I said to Sergeant
Williams: 'Sergeant Williams, so long as I am
Company Commander I will teke charge of the
meeting, and I will call upon those persons
whom I wish to speak when I want them to
speek.' I also said that so far as my re-
lieving Sergeant Pruitt from his duties as
First-Sergeant was concerned I saw no resson
why I needed to explain that or any other
promotiors or demotions in the Company to the
entire Company., I then said that my junior
officers and myself had been doing everything
we could to make the life to the men comfort-
able and that we had gotten for the men many
things which other Companies did not have,
which was solely the responsibility of the
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officers, and that they had taken it upon
themselves to do that for the Company., At
about that time Lt., Rice came up to me and
said that Colonel Johnson had arrived and
for me to report to the Orderly Room., I
left the Company in the Mess Hall, saying
to them: 'You men will have a ten-mimute
break and will remain in the Mess Hall, I
then left and met Colonel Johnson in the
Company Orderly Room, Briefly telling him
what had happened, he and I came back to
the Mess Hall, within approximately a ten-
mimite period, and the Company was called
to attention. Colonel Johnson spoke, call-
ing the names of the non-coms I had given
him, and gave instructions to the Platoon
leaders, the lisutenants, to have the men
fall our for close order drill and physical
training.” (R25).

When Captain Bradley left the mess hall to report to Colonel Johnsom,
accused Williams said to the men in the mess hall "our plan is working
better than we expected" (R32).

At about 0900 hours, 7 February, accused Wilkins presented the
petition to Colonsl James A, Doyle, Field Artillery, District Commander,
36th District, NIBS (R45; Pros.Ex,3). This petition asigned by a large
number of men of this quartermaster company asked the removal and transfer
of three of the company officers and the retention of Pruitt as first serg-
eant, It was also signed by accused, Wilkins and Williams (R45). Wilkins,
without authority of Captain Bradley used a Government truck for the pur-
pose of delivering the petition to Colonel Doyle (R25).

4e For the defense:s Private First Class Kyle Knight, 3992d Quarter-
master Truck Company, testified that he did not sound bugle call the morn=-
ing of 7 February because the mouthpiece of his btugle was missing (R47-49).
This was confirmed by Corporal Tilley, called by the defense (R49). Colonel
Doyle called by the defense testified in effect that at one time the con-
dition of this company "was not too good", that he had spoken to Captain
Bradley, and that afterwards he had found conditions "quite good" (R41,50).
Willie E, Jones, staff sergeant, 3992d Quartermaster Truck Company on 6 and
7 February, charged separately and tried together with accused Wilkins and
Williams, substantially confirmed the proof offered by prosecution, as set
forth above (R58).

Accused Wilkins, advised of his rights, elected to testify in his
own behalf, He admitted that Captain Bradley had "told" him to take re-
veille the morning of 7 February; admitted that he had been at the head-
quarters platoon and discussed with others the functioning of the company
and the planning of the petition, and admitted that it had been prepared
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and that he delivered it Colonel Doyle., He admitted that he had not taken
reveille on 7 February, His claim was that there was no duty officer
present and he believed that this fact was cause for not taking it., He
Justified his presence and participation in the meeting the night before on
the ground that he believed he was contributing to betterment of company
conditions (R58-62).

Accused Williams, advised of his rights, elocted to testify in his
own behalf, He testified that when he visited the barracks of one of the
platoons on the night of 6 February, he heard accused ¥Wilkins tell the men
"how important it was to go and try to straighten things out so we could
have an ideal company®, He said that he was appointed spckesman for the
meeting held the following morning "perhaps" because he had -une of the
bhigher I.Q. in the company®, He, in effect, admitted attendi: ' “he meeting
held the following morning and explained that it was prompted pr .aarily be-
cause of the reduction of the first sergeant (R62-64).

5. (a) The undisputed evidence shows that accused Wilkins did not obey
a lawful command given him by his company commander, Captain Bradley, that
he take reveille on the morning of 7 February (Cha.rge and Specification).
The excuse given by accused was trifling, invalid, and was properly rejected
by the court, The court found accused did not willfully disobey the order
of Captain Bradley, as charged, but found him guilty of the lesser included
offense of failure to obey in violation of Article of War 96, the maximum
punishment for which 1s confinement at hard labor for six months and forfei-
ture of two-thirds of his pay per month for a like period (MCM, 1928, par.
104e, p.100). The court in its findings on the Charge, was generous to-
wards Wilkins as there i1s substantial competent evidence that accused's dere-
liction was something more than a "failure" to obey Captain Bradley's order.
Rather the record bespeaks a situation involving elements of a conspiracy
having for its purpose the thwarting of Captain Bradley's intention to dis-
place Pruitt as first sergeant. The mouth-piece of the bugle mysteriously
disappeared and reveille was not sounded at the appropriate time., Wilkins
made a tardy appesrance and instead of promptly assembling the men in re-
veille formation allowed them to assemble in the mess hall for an illegal
neeting, At the convenient moment he departed and, using a Government truck
without authority, delivered the "round-robin®" petition to Colonel Doyle.
This evidence is without doubt abundantly adequate to sustein the finding of
guilty of the offense of failure to obey the order in violation of the 96th
Article of War (MCM, 1928, par.l34b, p.149; CM 223336, Bull.JAG, Aug 1942,
Vol.l, No.3, sec.422(5), pp.159-163).

(b) The evidence shows that accused Wilkins participated in an
assembly of enlisted members of his company on the evening of 6 February 1944
whereat the demotion of Pruitt was discussed and & plan was conceived which
was intended to frustrate Captain Bradley's determination to replace Prultt.
According to Wilkins:
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"We talked about the demotion of the lst/
Sergeant, We concluded that Sergeant Pruitt
was the best man in the company to serve as
lst/Sergeant and decided to write up the
petition, which we did" (Pros.Ex,2),

The petition in "round-robin" form in three parts was written and circulated
for signatures as a direct result of this meeting (Pros.Ex.l1).

The gravamen of the offense alleged in the Specification of the
Additional Charge is that accused

fdiq # # % participate in an unauthorized
assembly of enlisted members of the * * %
Company, with intent to arouse insubordin-
ation among the enlisted personnel thereof
and impede the exercise of the authority
of its commissioned officers®.

Relevant to this charge is the Act of Congress in pertinent part as follows:

¥(a) It shall be unlawful for eny personm,

with intent to interfere with, impair, or
influence the loyalty, morale, or discipline
of the military or naval forces of the United
States =~

(1) to advise, counsel, urge, or in any mann-~
er cause insubordination, disloyalty, mutiny,
or refusal of duty by any member of the mil-
itary or naval forces of the United States;

I EEE N

(b) For the purposes of this section, the
term 'military or naval forces of the United
Statea' includes the Army of the United
States, as defined in section 1 of the Nation-
al Defense Act of June 3, 1916, as amended
(48 stat, 153, U.S.C., title 10, sec,2)" (Act
June 28, 1940, c.439, Title I, sec.l; 54 Stat.
670; 18 USCA 39009)0

®(a) Any person who violates any of the provi-
sions of this title /sections 9 to 13 of this
title/ shall, upon conviction thereof, be
fined not more than $10,000 or imprisoned

for not more than ten years, or both,

(b) No person convicted of violating any of
the provisions of this title shall, during the
five years next following his conviction, be
eligible for employment by the United States,
or by any department or agency thereof (in-
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cluding any corporation the stock of which
is wholly owned by the United States)" (Act
June 28, 1940, c.439, Title I, sec.5; 54
Stat. 6713 18 USCA 860013)0

It is doubtful whether the draughtsman of the specification in
question was informed of the existence of this statute when he prepared it.
However, such fact is not controlling and can have no bearing as to the
applicability of the statute if the facts alleged in the specification state
an offense thereunder.,

"We must look to the indictment itself, and
if it properly charges an offense under the
laws of the United States that 1s sufficlent
to sustain it, although the representative
of the United States may have supposed that
the offense charged was covered by & differ-
ent statute" (Willisms v, United States, 168
U.8. 382,389, 42 L.Ed., 509,512).

The Board of Review has heretofore followed the principle of the Williams
case in CM ETO 1109, Armgtrong and CM ETO 12/9, Marchetti. Reference isa
made to sald holdings for a detailed discussion thereof., It will be applied
in the instant case,

The statute obviously requires that the accused at the time he com-
mits the prohibited acts shall entertain a gpecific intent tos

(1) interfere with) ( (1) loyalty
(2) :I.!npa.i.1'°r the ( (2) mo:'ZIe

or or
(3) influence ) ( (3) aiscipline

Ll

of the military forces of the United States.

It is therefore necessary that the specification particularly allege and
that the prosecution's proof show this specific intent.

"A specific intent which is made part of the
offense by the statute creating it must be
charged; as * * % where an act 1s criminal
only if done with a particular intent" (31
C.J., Becs244, p.697).

In support of the foregoing rule see: United States v, Cruikshank, 92 U,S,

542, 23 L.Ed., 588; United States v. Wentworth 11 Fed, 52; United States v,
Jackaon, 25 Fed. 548; United States v, Green 136 Fed, 618,658, affirmed 199
U.S. 601; 50 L.Ed., 328; Baender v. United States 260 Fed. 832,834.

The accused Wilkins is charged with entertaining the specific in-
tent

9
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"to arouse insubordination among the enlisted
personnel ¥ # % and impede the exercise of
the authority of # %* % commissioned officers
[of the ¢

When a person entertains the intent to arouse insubordination among soldiers
there is no difficulty in concluding that he intends to impair discipline,
Insubordination is the direct opposite of discipline, An intent to produce
insubordination is an intent to set aside disciplinary control, The allega-
tions clearly bring accused's intent within the specific description of the
statute "o impajr the discipline"., Further it requires no strained con-
struction of language to hold that the allegation also charges an intent "io
dnterfore with the digcipline" or "o influence the discipline" of the en-
listed personnel of the company. In any event, a mere comparison of the
allegations of the specification with the specific intents described in the
statute mskes 1t obvious that this aspect of the specification is adequate
to bring the charge under the statute, The Board of Review thus concludes.

In order to constitute a crime under the statute in reference,
accused must not only entertain one or more of the specific intents above
enumerated, but he must also,

(1) advise ( (1) insubordination
or or

(2) counsel 2 (2) aisloyalty
or ) ( or

(3) urge ) ( (3) mitiny
or ) ( or

(4) in any man- ; ( (4) refusal of duty

ner cause

by eny member of the military forces of the
United States,

The specification alleges that accused with the intent to arouse
insubordination dids
®participate in an unauthorized assembly of
enlisted members of the ¥ * % Gompany.”

The demunciatory clause of the statute cogent to the facts alleged appears
as followss
%It shall be unlawful for any person ¥ * #
to ¥ # ¥ in any manner ceuse insubordina-
tion # # # by any member of the military
* % ¥ forces®,

The phrase "in any manner® is equivalent in meaning to "in any way® (3 W and
P. Perm., p,588) and it designates all actions and conduct on the part of a
person not included in the preceding specifically denounced acts of advis-

ips, counpelling and urging. The rule of Busdem Generis clearly does not
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apply in this instance inasmuch as the specific words, "advise", "counsel"”
and "yrge® embrace all objects of their class so that the general words
®in any manner cause" must bear a different meaning from the specific
words or bs meaningless (59 C.J., sec.581, p.984; Mason v, United States
260 U.8, 545, 67 L.Ed., 396; Mid-Northern 0il Co, v. Walker, 268 U.S, 45,
69 L.Ed., 841). Nor can the rule control where the plain purpose and in-
tent, of Congress would thereby be hindered or defeated (59 C.J., sec.581,
PpP.982-983; Helvering v, Stockholms Engkilda Bank, 293 U.S. 84, 79 L.Ed.,
211), It is obvious that Congress intended to protect the military forces
of the Kation from all subversive influences which are destructive of its
integrity, fidelity and valor and for that purpose enacted a statute which
is intended to denounce all such influences whether they be overt and vi-
olent or of a more subtle approach,

The problem therefore reduces itself to the concrete qusstions

Boes the allegation that accused participated
in an unauthorized assembly of the enlisted
men of the company state facts that constitute
an offense under the clause of the statute mak-
ing it an offense to cause in any manner in-
subordination by any member of the company?

The isaue thus presented is a narrow one, Were the problem presented in
connection with an indictment or information in a civil court the answer
would probably be in the negative as all doubts would be resolved in favor
of the accused and against the pleader (31 C.J., sec.187, p.667)., In the
instant case, however, the specification charges that Wilkins, a gtaff

gergeant of a military organization at a pmilitary camp papticipated in an

unsuthorized assembly of enlisted military persomnel., These facts
differentiate this case from a charge that a civilian participated in an

unauthorized meeting of ¢jvilians, The phrase "participated in an un-
authorized assembly" is broader than an allegation that he attended an un-

assembly or was pregent at an unauthorized assembly. The word
fparticipate” means,

%! to take part in' and connotes to average
person meaning and effect of 'engage in'
rather than mere presence" (Martin v. Mutual
Life Ins, Co. of New York, 189 Ark., 291, 71
SW (2nd) 694,696; Cfs 31 W, and P. Perm.,
Pp.132-134).

The word "unauthorized" possesses under certain circumstances the same
meaning as the word "unlawful® (Central Transportation Company v. Pullman's
Palace Car Company, 139 U.S. 24,60, 35 L.Ed., 55,69; Yonkers v, Downey,
309 U.25 590,597, 84 L.Ed., 964,969; McDaniel v, United States, 87 Fed.
3244326) «

The reasonable import of the allegation is that accused, a Staff
Sergeant in the United States Army, took part in an unlawful meeting of the
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military personnel of his company and that he gave aid and sympathy to its
purpose., The idea that he was merely an observer or that he attended in
order to prevent the accomplishment of its purpose is negatived., Such con-
duct is well within the denouncement of the statute "in any manner cause
insubordination" by any member of the military forces, When a staff serg-
eant takes an active, sympathetic part in an unlawful assembly of his
subordinates he ipso facto causes insubordination, His presence in the
role of a participant gives approval to an unlawful gathering, and such
conduct is damaging to the disciplinary control of the men, Any other
conclusion would be opposed to all processes of military discipline and is
unthinkable, The Board of Review is of the opinion that the Specification
alleges an offense under the quoted statute,

The proof in support of the specification is positive that Wilkins
was not only present but was a leading agitator at the unauthorized meeting
of members of his company on the night of 6 February 1944; that he actively
engaged in its deliberations and proceedings; that the "round-robin" peti-
tion to Colonel Doyle (seeking the displacement of the company officers and
the retention of Pruitt as first sergeant) was the product of this meeting;
that he was responsible for its circulation among the personnel for sig-
natures and that he finally delivered it to Colonel Doyle the next morning.
These facts coupled with the means by which he avoided "taking reveille® on
the morning of 7 February constitute substantial proof that he with intent
"to impair discipline” did "cause insubordination" among the members of his

company,

The Board of Review is of the opinion that the record is legally
sufficlent to sustain the findings of Wilkina'! guilt of the Additional
Charge and its Specification against him,

6. (a) The evidence is undisputed, with respect to accused Williams,
that he received an order from Lieutenant Clarke, his superior officer, to
go to the orderly room, This was a direct order and called for immediate
compliance, Accused deliberately disobeyed this order., His disobedience
was willfull as is fully established by the fact that when given this order
he announced: "I will not go". The evidence fully supports the findings
of guilty of the Charge and its Specification in which this disobedience is
alleged, in violation of Article of War 64 (Charge and Specification) (CM
ETO 2569, Loyd Davis; CM ETO 2921, Span; CM ETO 2764, Huffine; CM ETO 2644,
Pointer; CM ETO 1096, Stringer; CM ETO 1232, Baxter).

(b) The Specification of the Additional Charge against Williams
alleges that accused participated in an unauthorized assembly on 7 February
1944 with intent to arouse insubordination and to impede the exercise of
authority to the prejudics of good order and military discipline, The
same language, except for the date, was employed in this Specification as in
the Specification charging accused Wilkins with similar conduct. The comments
hereinabove set forth with respect to the sufficiency of the Specification
as it applies to accused Wilkins are equally applicable with respect to accu-
sed Williams, and the same conclusion must be reached,

.12 -
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Williams' conduct at the meeting on the morning of 7 February ex-
hibited an assumption of authority by him in derogation of that of the
company officers, He was obviously the chief spokesman of the assembled
group of soldiers, His arrogant statement to Captain Bradley, at the

opening of the meeting:

"The men in the Company want to know why you
have relieved Sergeant Pruitt, #* #* ¥, We
want them to hear from you firgt # ¥ ¥ ywhy
you have been treating the Company as you
have" (R24,25,32)

was an overt attempt to assert paramount authority and dangerously approach-
ed the border-line of mutinous conduct. His comment to the soldiers in
the absence of the company officers - "our plan is working better than we
expected" (R32) - reveals that Williams was an active participant in a
scheme - if not a conspiracy - to frustrate the authority of Captain Bradley
and his officers and eventually to displace them., Williams and his con-
federates also sought to select the company's first sergeant in opposition
to the company commander's choice. The evidence is adequate to sustain
Williams'! guilt of specifically intending to impair the discipline of the
company by causing insubordination of its members.

The Board of Review is of the opinion that the record is legally
sufficient to sustain the findings of Williams' guilt of the Additional
Charge and Specification against him, ‘

7. The Additional Charges were properly laid under the 96th Article
of War, inasmich as the Act of Congress of June 28, 1940, above quoted, de-
nounces a crime or offense not capital (MCM, 1928, par.l52¢, pp.188,189;
CM ETO 2210, Layelle et al), Penitentiary confinement is authorized by
Article of War 42; MCM, 1928, par.90a, p.81 ; sec.335, Federal Criminal Code
(18 USCA 541) and Act of June 14, 1941, c.204, 55 Stat, 252 (18 USCA 753f)
and Title I, sec.5, Act of June 28, 1940 (18 USCA 13), gupra, upon convic-
tion of the offenses alleged under Additional Charges and Specifications.
However, confinement of Wilkins in Disciplinary Training Center No., 2912,
Shepton Mallet, Somerset, England, and Williams in Eastern Branch, United
States Disciplinary Barracks, Greenhaven, New York, is authorized,

8. Accused, though charged separately, were tried together in com-
pany with four others, also charged separately, Since there was no ob-
iection by any of the six accused, there is no obiection to such procedure

CM 195294 (1931), Dig.Op.JAG, 1912-1940, sec,395(33), p.223).

9. Accused Wilkins is 21 years five months of age, He was inducted
10 May 1943 and his service period is governed by the Service Extension Act
of 1941, No prior service is shom,

Accused Williams is 21 years one month of age, He was inducted
26 March 1943 and his service period is governed by the Service Extension
Act of 1941, No prior service is shown,

- 13 -
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10. The court was legally constituted and had jurisdiction of the
persons and offenses., No errors injuriously affecting the substantial
rights of either accused were committed during the trial, The Board of
Review 1a of the opinion that the record of trial is legally sufficient
to support the findings of gullty and the sentences,

/1//4/ /

/ !
% Judge Advocate

Judge Advocate

%‘é /( @e Judge Advocate

ﬁ
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1st Ilﬂo

WD, Branch Office TJAG., with ETOUSA. 2 2 JUL 1944 TO: Gommanding

Officer, Western Base Section, Communications Zone, ETOUSA, APO 515, U.S.
Army.

1, In the case of Sergeant FRANKLIN D. WILLIAMS (35056431), 3992nd
Quartermaster Truck Company, attention is invited to the foregoing holding
by the Board of Review that the record of trial is legally sufficient to
support the findings of guilty and the sentence, which holding is hereby

approved, Under the provisions of Article of War 50%, you now have author-
ity to order execution of the sentence,

2. When copies of the published order are forwarded to this office
they should be accompanied by the foregoing holding and this indorsement,
The file number of the record in this office is ETO 2005, For convenience
of reference please place that mumber in brackets at the end of the order:

 d

) MCNEHI,
Brigadier General, United States Army,
Assistant Judge Advocate General.
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Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General
with the
Europesn Theater of Operations
APO 871
BOARD OF REVIEW
ETO 2007 15 MAY {944
UNITED STATES) XV CORPS,
: )
Ve )
) Trial by G.C.M,, convened at Victoria
Private WILEY EARRIS, JR., ) Barracks, Belfast, Northern Ireland,
(6924547), 626th Ordnance ; 17 March 1944, Sentences To be
Ammmition Company,. hanged by the neck until desad,

HOLDING by the BOARD OF REVIEW
RITER, VAN BENSCHOTEN and SARGENT, Judge Advocates

1., The record of trial in the case of the soldier named above has
been examined by the Board of Review and the Board submits this, its
holding, to the Assistant Judge Advocate General in charge of the Branch
Office of The Judge Advocate General with the European Theater of Opera-
tions,

2. Accused was tried upon the following Charge and Specification:

CHARGE: Violation of the 92nd Article of War,

Specification: In that Private Wiley Harris, Jr.,
626th Ordnance Ampmnition Company, did, at
Belfast, N.I., on or about 6 March 1944, with
malice afqrethought, wilfully, deliberately,
felonicusly, unlawfully, and with premedita-
tion kill one Harry Coogan, a human being, by
stabbing him in the chest, head, and abdomen

with a sharp instrument,

He pleaded not guilty to and was found guilty of the Charge and Specifica-~
tion, Evidence was introduced of one previous conviction by special
court-martial for absence without leave for 25 deys in violation of Article
of War 61, He was sentenced to be hanged by the neck until dead, all
members of the court concurring. The reviewing authority, the Commanding
General, XV Corps, approved the sentence and forwarded the record of trial
for action under Article of War 48, The confirming authority, the Command-
ing Gensral, European Theater of Operations, confirmed the sentence and
withheld the order directing execution thereof pursuant to the provisions
of Article of War 50%, )
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3. Ths evidence for the prosgcution summarizes as followa:

Eileen M, Megaw, 78 Ava Street, Belfast, Northern Irelend, had been
drinking all afternoon on 6 March 1944, Some time after 9:00 p,m. she was
in the Diamond Bar, North Queen Street, Belfast, An American negro soldier
of slight build came into the box where she was sitting and spoke to her, He
was a "high brown", not ®too dark", about a head taller than Miss Kegaw who
was 5 feet 2«3 inches tall, He wore an overcoat and a small cap, He was
followed into the box by deceased. Miss Megaw and the American “"had a
little talk" and the latter sat down, Deceased asked the American "Do you
want a woman?", to which he replied "Yes", and deceased pointed at Kiss
Megaw, saying "There she is." Deceased asked her if she were agreeable and
she replied "All right®, They discussed terms and Miszs Megaw sald the
price would be one pound, Aftor drinking some "Guinness® the three left
the bar and upon deceased's suggestion, went to the first air-reid shelter
at the head of Earl Street acrosa North Queen Street from the Diamond Bar
(See Pros.,Ex.A, chart of vicinity, and Pros.Exs, B and C, photographs of air-
raid shelter, all admitted in evidence without objection by defense; Ri=~6).
Before entering the shelter Miss Megaw asked for the money. Deceased held
an "electric torch® while the American counted out and handed to her one
pound in halfecrowns and two-shilling pieces, which she put into her pocket,
Thereupon she and the American entered the shelter. Deceased remained
outside "in case the police would come,* The American put his coat on the
floor and Miss Megaw lay down (R8), Shortly thereafter deceased "shouted
the police were coming," Miss Megaw, frightened, told the American to "get
up quickly" and arose, went to the door of the shslter followed by the
American and both went out on the street, The American took the torch
(£lash=-light) from deceased, shone it up and down the street and said there
were no police coming, He then asked Miss Megaw to return to the shelter.
She refused., She removed the money from her pocket and held it in her
hand, The three then "had some words" (R9), Miss Megaw at first stated
she would return the American's money to him, but deceased protested, ssying
"No,no,no," (R14,18,25), The three were within a few feet of each other,
and the American was "highly intoxicated” but "seemed to talk all right® and
"walked all right®, He did no% threaten her, and she saw only a flashlight
in his hand (R10-12), Miss Megaw testified:

"0f course, I had some drink, Ardthe American
agked me for the money again, I said, he
wasn't going to get it, If I hadn't been
drunk I would have handed it to him."

Deceased said to the American "'You are not getting the money back.'® Then
followed more words, the American pushed Miss Megew and she dropped some of
the money in front of the shelter, She described ensuing events:

"I bent down to get it and the American had the
torch in his hand and he tried to get some =~
pick it up himself, But I got it. Well,
Harry struck out and hit the imerican chap, I
screamed, I saw the American making for him,
And I run off* (R9).
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Bridget Murdock, 160 Eari Street, Belfast, testified she was stand-
ing on the step of her house at No, 160 Earl Street near the acene about
10:10 po, She heard monsy drop to the ground and saw a woman and a man
bend down to look for it, &he asked deceassd what was wrong, to which he
replied that the socldier was about to stab the woman, but he was not going
to let him do so and was going to hit him, She said, "'Don't do 1t,'® and
caught him by the arm, but he stepped forward and struck the soldier, The
witness fled screaming (R1,), The soldier had a torch in his left hand
and a sharp instrument in the other, Shortly thereafter she returned, saw
the soldier's dark face and "saw him with his hand up and he had a sharp
thing and he was going at the man,” She left and saw no more (Rl4{=15) un-
ti%aheagainretumdandmthecivilian]qingacrouthedoonay (R16-
17).

Mrs., Annie Murdock, 158 Earl Street, Belfast, asserted that on the
evening in question she was standing at the door of the home of her sister-
in-law (Bridget Murdock), SLe heard money fall on the ground and saw a
soldier "getting cut with a flash looking around®, A civilian said that
the soldier was going to stab the woman, but he was not going to let him,
whereupon Bridget said "'No, don't'™, The civilian struck the colored
soldier,

"and the soldier straightened himself up and I
seen a shining thing - I seen it flash - and I
flew in my omm house yelling * # %, Then I ran
out again and seen the civilian stagger from
the wall on to the ground and seen the soldier
getting on top of him, And I meen him with a
flash and seen him doing that.” (R19).

The record of trial then discloses the followings

"Prosecution: Witrness indicating striking with the

right hand,

A, TUsing the flashlight,

Prosecution: Using the flashlight in the left hand

Q. About how many times would you say?

A, I couldn't tell, He was just getting down

¢ that quick,

Q. More than once?

A, Yes it was more than once, * # %, I gsen
the soldier getting up and as he flew I flew
after him, (R19).

Y EEREE

Q. You stated you saw something shining?

A, Yes, sir,

Qe Yhen did you first seé that shining object?

Ao At the Qhﬂltero

Q. You stated you saw the civilian strike him}

A, Yes, :

- 3 -
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Q. Did you see the shining object before the
civilian struck him?

A, TYes, sir, I seén it whensever he stooped
looking for the money." (R20).

The soldier went up Earl Street, across the road (North Queen Street) and
up into Spamount Street. The civilian was small and the soldier "seemed

to)be rather tall", The incident was between 10300 and 10:15 pem. (E19~
21),

Kathleeh McGinness, 126 Earl Street, Belfast, testified that she
and her aunt were proceeding along Barl Street a few minutes past 10:00
pPemt. when a soldier came ocut of the shelter and she heard money strike the
ground, A girl

"wag picking it up and she was down on her knees
« not exactly dewn =~ bending over to pick up the
money, and the fdoldier was leaning over, too,
and had the flashlight looking around, He had
the flashlight on the ground and he had an in-
strument in his left hand, He had it on her
back, Well, then the civilian tried to hit him,
The soldier made a grab for the civilian, Then
everybody flew, And I ran down about three win-
dows, When I turned around again I ‘saw the man
on the ground, # # #, The soldier was bigger
than the civilian # # # about head and shoulders
"bigger * # % when I looked back he had the man
on the ground and the civilian was shouting,
You are killing me.'" (R22,23),

The following colloquy then occurred:

Q. And who was the man on top?

A, It was the soldier,

Q. And what was the soldier doing?

A, Well, he was stabbing the man." (R23),

Contimuing with her testimony Miss McGinness declared she could not tell
whether he (the soldier) was stabbing him (the civilian) with a knife or
& dagger, The blade came down to a point and was between five and six
inches long, The soldier stabbed the civilian "from six to eight times.®
The civilian was on his back on the ground (R22-24),

Mrs, Kathleen Dickey, 120 Earl Strest, Belfast, testified that she
and another woman (Kathleen McGinness) walked down Earl Street about 10:00

pPoRe She heard money dropped and saw a woman down on her knees picking it
upe She contimeds

- 4 -
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"Ths colored soldier was lesaning over her amd
this civilian was standing at the other side.
# % %, He /the colored soldier/ was leaning
over her with the torch in his hand, He had a
sharp instrument in his left hand over her

back," (R26),

The following particularized interrogation of Mrs. Dickey appears:

*Q. Yhich hand was the torch in?

A, Right hand,

Q. Then what happened?

A, One of the Murdocks asked the civilian
what was wrong and he said he was going
to stab her because she wouldn't give him
his money back, but she was going to give
the money back., Shé said, 'Surely you
couldntt let him do that to her.' The
civilian said, 'No I will not.' And he
struck the colored soldier, ahd he threw
up his hand to defend himself, At that
time I ran into the house. When I came
c(mt6;.he man was lying in a pool of blood."

R26).,

The soldier had in his hand either a knife or a dagger (R26). The civilian,
who struck the soldier the first blow with his fist, had no weapon of any
kind, The instrument in the soldiet's left hand was not pressed against
the woman in any mamner but it was "upraiséd above her back,® She saw ths
colored soldier "make to strike® and then ran into the house,

Each of the four eye-witnesses (R15-16,21,24,27) testified that
they did not hear the soldier use threatsning language towards the woman
prior to the fight with deceased, Miss Megaw affirmed the same fact (R12),
Neither Bridget Murdock, Amnnie Murdock, Kathleen McGinness nor Kathleen
Dickey were able to identify accused as the American soldier involved in
the fight (R7,15,18-20,24,27),

James Tynan, 34 Pittsburgh Street, Belfast, observed deceased and
a soldier struggling immediately outside the shslter, Tynan crossed the
street and saw "the colored man" come from the place of the struggle, "and
I chased him (across North Queen Street) up Spamount Street where he ran
around the shelter,* After chasing him "to about the fourth air raid
shelter® he returned to the man in the street, whom he recognized as de-
ceased, "I felt his pulsé and put my ear down to his heart, It was.my
impression that he was dead at that time,* The soldier was colored, five
feet 10-11 inches tall, fully dreassed in American service uniform and car-
ried his overcoat over his right arm (R30-33),

- 5 -
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Head Constable James Armstrong, Victoria Barracks, Belfast, went
to the scens on Earl Street where he saw the body of a man whom he recog-
nized as Harry Coogan. In his opinion Coogan was then dead, The body
was placed in an ambulance and taken to the Mater Hospital (Belfast), He
was present when deceased's body was photographed on 7 March, and noticed
several wounds, He identified two photographs of deceased's body as true
and accurate representations of his condition at that time (Pros.Ex,D,
photograph of upper half of body in prone position on back; and Pros.Ex.E,
photograph of shoulders, neck and head, both showing wounds) both of which
were admitted in evidence without objection by defense (R33-35).

S8ergeant William J, Harron, Royal Ulster Constabulary, Belfast,
accompanied Head Constable Armstrong and another policeman to Earl Street,
where deceased's body was lying on the footpath about four feet from the
wall nsar the second entrance to the air-raid shelter, He accompanied
the body in an ambulance to the Hater Hospital, where the chest and abdomen
were stripped. The wounds were substantially as represented by Prosecu~
tion's Exhibit D (R36-37),

Dr. James Crilly of the Mater Hospital made a superficial examina-
tion of deceased's body at about 10:25 p.,m, on 6 March, and a more thorough
postsmorten examination at 2:30 p.m. on 7 March which he recorded in Pros-
ecution's Exhibit P, An extract copy of the portion relating to deceased
was substituted, admitted in evidence, and read into the recdérd, without
objection by defense (R56-57,60). The extract deascribed the various
wounds on the trunk, arms and head of deceased (R57-59) and concluded:

"The cause of death in my opinion was shock
following the injury to the braia and vital
organs plus a asvere hasmorrhage, The
wounds appear to have besen cansed by a heavy
sharp two-edged knife which had a blade at
least four inches long,®

Dr, Crilly testified there were 16 skin wounds, one in the back of the neck
appearing to have two stabs through it, or an actual total of 17 wounds
(R59), He also testified to the accuracy of the photographs of the body
(Pros.Bxs.,D and B} R60),

Private Clarence J, Fuller, a member of accused's company, saw
accused with "Eileen" at the Diamond Bar between 9 and 9:30 p.m. that even-
ing (R40,42). Accused was dreased in "his suit and overcoat.® Later in

the evening he saw accused at the Red Croaa (R4l),

Private Robert Fils, also a member of accused's company, drank wine
and whiskey with him about 5-6:00 p.m. on 6 March, He (accused) was
"rretty high', but did not stagger, and talked "normal" (R51,54). He also
saw accused at the Diamond Bar between 9 and 10:00 p.m. (3515. Later in
the evening, before midnight, he saw accused at the "colored Red Cross*,

"He told me he got in a 1ittle trouble and he was wiping some of the blood
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off his clothes, * # % his trousers and his coat®, Fils'attempted to re-
move ons spot on the back of accused's trousers (R52-53).

Master Sergeant John W, London, another member of accused's company,
saw accused, wearing an overcoat, at the Red Cross about 11:30 p.m, Accused
stated "he had got in some troubls.* (R43-45). After refreshing his memory
by reference to a statement previously signed by him, he testified without
objection by defense that accused had blood on his right hand (R45-46). It
was agreed between prosescution and defense that a statement voluntarily made
upon the official investigation and signed by Sergeant London should be sub-
mitted to the court, to be read in closed session, So much of the statement
as referred to "Eileén" and deceased was admitted in evidence and an extract
was attached to the record (R48-50; Def. Ex.A), The extract showed in sub-
stance that Sergeant London in company with Privates Fuller and Harris met
"Rileen" in Diamond's "Pud” and that a "civilian man" was present who said
he knew a place where London and Eileen could go to engage in sexual inter-
course, Eilleen asked him for a pound and the civilian took them to an aire
raid shelter across the street, where Sergeant London and Eileen had inter-
courss, Thereafter at another bar the civilian asked Eileen for money, but
she refused, Fuller thereupon gave Sergeant London a shilling which he gave
to the civilian,

Staff Sergeant James E, 0O-Connor, Criminal Investigation Division
Detachment, APO 813, testified that accused's blouse and trousers, each
bearing the serial number H-4547, were delivered to him by accused on 7 March,
at Headquarters 626th Ordnance Company. Thers was a spot on the trousers
indicating the presence of blood, Accused informed witness that he wore
them of 6 March while in Belfast, These garments were admitted in evidence
and permission was granted to withdraw them and substitute a verbal descrip-
tion (R73-75; Pros.Exs, H and I),

Technician Fourth Grade Herbert L, Nash, 12th Military Police
Criminal Investigat Section; APO 813, received accused's coat and trousers,
. both marked "H-45,7" (Pros.BExs, H and I) on 8 March from Agent O'Connor, He
took them to the 317th Station Hospital where Captain Thomas N. Lide, Medical
Corps, examined them with the Benzidine blood test.

Captain Lide testified that under the microscope it was impossible
to identify scrapings of the stains from the clothing, but the Benzidine test
was positive (indicating the presence of blood) both on the cloth and on the
scrapings and it was negative in other parts of the material, In Captain
Lide's opinion the stains were blood stains, but he could not state definitely
that they were human blood (R76-78),

4. (a) Staff Sergeant O'Comnor testified that at headquarters 626th
Ordnance Ammunition Company, APO 813, accused was duly warned of his rights
under Article of War 24 and in the presence of Constable Ray of Royal Ulster
Constabulary, voluntarily, without force or duress, dictated a statement to
the witness., Accused read and signed the statement (R61-63). Witness
denied telling accused that he was his friend and came to help him (R64).
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(b) By permission of the court, accused, after having been warned
of his rights, testified in his own behalf with respect to the statement
only, that when Agent O'Connor first came in,

"he got acquainted with me and made me
acquainted with the other fellow, Then he
told me he was from the States, He came
here to help me, He was my friend."

He told accused it would be easier for him if he made a statement and told
the truth, but he made no promises or threats, Accused read and signed
the statemesnt, He did not remember anyone telling him that any statement
he might make might be used against him (R65-67),. but he thought that
Article of War 2/ was read to him, He could not "make out eyerything" in
the statement (R68-69), _

(c) Staff Sergeant O'Connor, recalled for the court, testified that
he questioned accused as to his name, read him the 24{th Article of War,
showed him clothes which accused identified as his own and then asked him
to tell witness inh his own words what happened in Belfast on 6 March,
%ccuged made no objection and made the statement a second time for dictation

R70).

(d) In rebuttal for the prosecution, Second Lieutenant A.J. Wood-
ward, of accused's company, testified that as summary court officer he
witnessed accused's signature to the statement and had him swear to its
truth, Accused signed freely, asked no questions concerning it and raised
no objection, The court admitted the statement as voluntarily made by
accused (R71-72; Pros.EBx,G),

(e) The statement in pertinent pert was as followa:

Accused, on pass in Belfast after 5:00 p.m. on 6 March, drank some
wine and beer in a "pub" in York Street with Private Robert Fils, Just as
it was getting dark they went to Diamond's public house, where they had a
number of glasses of "Guinness®, Accused joined three girls, two of whom
left, and a civilian man approached, spoke t0 the remaining girl and sat at
the table with them, The man said ™If you want to go out with this girl
I will get her for you.'® Accused said he wanted to go and the man said he
would watch for them outside an air-raid shelter and that accused would
have to pay her a pound as he had to get something for watching., The three
then left the "pub" together and went to an air-raid shelter on a nearby
atreet, opposite the "pub", Accused paid the girl a pound in two-shilling
and half-crown pieces. The girl and acéused entered the shelter and the
man remained at the door. Accused took off his overcoat and spread it on
the shelter floor and the girl laid down on the coat and raised her dress.

"I got down on top of her and before I comld
do what I intended to do the man said 'Hare
come the police,' % # # the girl hopped up."

-8 -
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Accused shone his flashlight, and not seeing any police coming, asked the
girl for his money.

"The man said, 'She can't give you the money
back.,' The girl started to run and I grabbed
her and she dropped some money, As I had hold
of her she was screaming, and the girl and I
were trying to pick up the money. Just at
this time the man hit me a blow on the right
cheek with his fist, and a crowd began to
gather, After the man hit me I reached in my
right hand pocket and pulled out my Jack knife,
I then opened the big blade on xy knife and
struck the man, The man did not fall the first
time I struck him, btut made a swing at me again,
I then struck him again with the knife, # # ¥
he kicked me across the knees and I atruck him
again, I do not know how many times I struck
this man with the knife because I was just
swinging the knife, I saw the man fall to the
ground and I plcked up myvcoat and ran up the
street, # # # I could hear gome one following
me for quite a bit, I stepped behind an air-
raid shelter and the person * # % ran by, * % %
I threw the knife on the etreet."

Accused took a street car and horse cab to the Red Croass, where he saw Pvt,
Robert Fils and

¥gaw there was blood on my pants at this time
and I wiped it off with my hendkerchief, At
this time I told Pvt Fils that I had a fight
near Diamonds, As I was coming out of the
latrine I met M/Sgt. London of my outfit and
told him about the fight, # # # I threw the
bloodsteined hankerchief (sic) with which I
had cleaned my pants out of the train window,
between Belfast and Fortadown.®

(Pros.Ex,G),

5 At the close of the prosecution!s case in chief the defenss moved
the court for a finding of not guilty on the ground the prosecution had
failed to show either premeditstion or malice aforethought, as there was
sufficient provocation for accused's act, The court denied the motion
(R79). Defense thereupon moved that the specification be amended by delet-
ing the words "with malice aforethought® and "with premeditation® and that
the charge be changed from violation of the 92nd Article of War to violation
of the 93rd Article of War, The court also denied this motion (R79-80),

- 9 -
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6. For the defenss, Captain Earl R, Garner, commanding officer of
accused's company, testified that he had known accused, as a member of his
company, since 9 August 1943; that his charscter from that time up until
6 ¥arch (1944) was "very satisfactory”; that he performed his duties
efficiently; that he had received no company punishment nor had he been
, court-martialed, and that he bad "no trouble with noncoms, or any of the
other men that were in the company,* Due to the trouble he was in, how-
ever, witness would not now desire accused in his arganization (R80-81),

After his rights were explained to him, accused elected to remain
silent,

7. Certain preliminary matters of procedure and evidence will be
discussed before consideration of the merits of the case.

(a) There was a direct conflict between prosecution and defense
testimony on the issue of the voluntary nature of accused's statement (Pros,
Ex,G), The Board of Review will assume arguendo, that the statement was
a confession rather than an admission., An issue of fact was thereby
presented for the determination of the court, The court believed that the
circumstances surrounding the making of the confeasion were such that it
was voluntary, as indicated by the statement of the Presidents

"It is the opinion of the court that the
z(i.ccussed voluntarily made this statement"
R72).

The court's determination will not be disturbed upon appellate review, in
view of the substantial affirmative evidence of its voluntary nature (mu,
1928, par.llis, pp.114-116; CM ETO 559, Mopsslve; CM ETO 1606, Savre). The
fact that the confession was reduced to writing by one other than accused
does not militate against its admissibility ( CM ETO 438, Smith).

(b) The corpus delicti is adequately established by the testimony
of eys-witnesses to the stabbing and related events, Therefore accused!s
confession, having been voluntarily given, was properly admitted in evi-
dence (MCM, 1928, par.llia, p.115; Forte v. United States, 9 Fed.(2d) 236,
127 AIR 1120, annotation at p.1130, and authorities there cited), It was
thus competent evidence of accused's identity as the colored American
soldier who stabbed deceased and would sustain his conviction even without
other evidence of identity (ibid.; CM ETO 559, Mopgalve). But there was
other evidence of his identity, including testimony that accused was seen
at the Diamond Bar with the girl just prior to the stabbing, that he was
seen later in the evening at the Red Cross Club wiping stains. from his
clothing, that he made statements to other soldiers there that he was in
trouble, admissible as admissions agaimst interest (CM ETO 895, Dayis et al
and authorities there cited), and duly qualified expert evidence that there
was in fact blood on his clothes, Such was competent evidence of identity
and supports the court's determination of the question against accused (CM
ETO 996, Burkhart, and authorities there cited),

-10 = °
nNYFINENTIAL


http:allita.te

CONFIDENTIAL
. (115)

(¢) The court admitted, for the defense, so much of the statement
of Master Sergeant London, voluntarily made after due warning as to his
rights during the official investigation, as referred to "Eileen" and de-
ceased, The Prosecution expressly agreed to its admission (R48-50; Def,
Ex.,A), The admission was proper (MCM, 1928, par.119¢, p.124, par.126g,
P.137), and in any event could not have injuriously affected accused's
rights since the evidence was in his favor, .

8, There 18 competent substantial evidence that accused at Belfast,
Northern Ireland, on 6 March 1944 killed Harry Coogan by stabbing him in
the chest, head, and abdomen with a sharp instrument, as alleged in part,
The vital question is whether the record is legally sufficient to support
the findings that the killing amounted to murder in violation of Article
of War 92,

"Marder is the unlawful killing of a human
being with malice aforethought, *Unlawful?
means without legal justification or ex-
cuse, ,

I EREER R R R

Malice does not necessarily mean hatred or
personal ill-will toward the person killed,
nor an actual intent to take his life, or
even to take anyone's life, The use of the
word ‘aforethought! does not mesan that the
malice must exist for any particular time
before commission of the act, or that the
intention to kill must have previously ex-
isted. It is sufficient that it exist at
the time the act is committed. (Clark.,).

Malice aforethought may exist when the
act is unpremeditated, It may mean any one
or more of the following states of mind pre-
ceding or coexisting with the act or omission
by which death is caused: An intention to
cause the death of, or grievous bodily harm
to, any person, whether such person is the
person actually killed or not (except whenr
death is inflicted in the heat of a sudden
passion, caused by adequates provocation);
knowledge that the act which causes death
will probably cause the death of, or griev-
ous bodily harm to, any person, whether such
person is the person actually killed or not,
although such knowledge is accompanied by
indifference whether death or grievous bodily
harm 1s caused or not or by a wish that it
may not be caused; intent to commit any
felony,* (ICM, par,li83, pp.162,163=164),

- 11 -
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"The term palice, as ordinarily employed in
criminal law, i3 a strictly legal term,
meaning not personal spite or hostllity but
simply the mropgful intent essential to the
commission of crime, When used, however,
in connection with the word 'aforethought!
or 'prepense,' in defining the particular
crine of murder, it signifies the same evil
intent, as the result of a determined pur-
pose, premeditation, deliberation, or brood-
ing, and therefore as indicating, in the view
of the law, a malignant or depraved nature,
or, as the early writer, Foster, has express-
ed it, 'a heart regardless of social duty and
fatally bent upon mischief.! The deliberate
purposs nesd not have been long entertained;
it 1s sufficient if it existed at the moment
of the act,
_ I EEEERRE

In every case of apparently deliberate and
unjustifiable killing, the law presumes the
existence of the malice necessary to constitute
murder, and devolves upon the accused the ornus
of rebutting the presumption, In other words,
where in the fact and circumstances of the
killing as committed no defence appears, the
accused must show that the act was either no
crime at all or a crime less than murder;
otherwise it will be held to be murder in law.®

(Winthrop's Military law & Precedents - Reprint,

PP.6T2673),

"A specific intent to kill does mqt enter into
the definition of murder at common law or
under statutes declaratory thereof; it 1s
sufficient if the unlawful killing is with
malice aforethought either express or implied,
and a homicide may be malicious, and hence
may be murder, although there was no actual
design to take life, If an unlawful act,
dangerous to, and indicating disregard of,
human 1ife, causes the death of another, the
perpetrator is guilty of murder, although he
did not intend to kill, Thus, if an assault
was nmade upon deceased, not with -the design
of killing him, but of inflicting great bodily
harm upon him, it 1s murder if his death 1is
caused thereby; and it is murder where death
results from an assault or other unlawful act,
intentionally done in such a manner as was

12 =
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likely to cause death or ssrious bodily
harm, even though there may have been no
actual intent to cause death or great
bodily harm, but the injury intended must
be such as involves serious conssquences,
either in endangering life or leading to
great bodily harm, and death or great
bodily harm 'must have been a reasonable
or probdable consequence of the act.," (29
C.J., “0.69, pp.1w5-lm6)o

"It is murder, malice being presumed or
inferred, where dedth is caused by the
intentional and unlawful use of a deadly
weapon in a deadly manner provided in all
cases that there are no circumstances
serving to mitigate, excuse, or justify
the act, The use of a deadly weapon is
not conclusive as to malice, but the infer-
ence of malice therefrom may be overcoms,
and wheres the facts and circumstances of
the killing are in evidence, its existence
of malice must be determined as a fact from
all the evidence,

IEEEERER R’

In order that an implication of malice
may arise from the use of a deadly weap-
on it mist appear that its use was will-
ful or intentional, or deliberate, This,
like other matters of inteat, is to be
gathered from the circumstances of the case,
such as the fact that accéused had the weapon
prepared ‘for use, or that it was used in
such a mannsr that the natural, ordinary,
and probable result would be to take life."
(29 c Jo’ “co74, pp.1099-1101).

The definition of voluntary manslaughter (in violation of Articls
of War 93) and its distinction from murder are tlms stateds

"Manslaughter is distinguished from murder
by the absence of deliberation and malice
aforethought, The intent to kill being
formed suddenly under the influence of
violent passion or emotion which, for the
time being, overwhelas the reason of the
accused, It is * # # ths uncontrollable
passion, arcused by adequate provocation,
which for the time being renders the
accused incapable of reasoning and unable
to control his actions." (1 Wharton's
Criminal Law, sec,423, pp.640-642),
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®*The proof of homicide, a&s necessarily in-
volving malice, must show the facts under
which the killing was effected, and from
the whole facts and circumstances surround-
ing the killing the jury infers malice or
its absence. Malice in connection with the
crime of killing is but another name for a
certain condition of a man's hsart or mind,
and as no one can look into the heart or
nind of another, the only way to decidse
upon its condition at the time of a killing
is to infer it from the surrounding facts
and that inference is one of fact for a jury.
The pressnce ot absente of this malice or
mental condition marks the boundary which
separates the two crimes of murder and man-
slaughter." (Stevenson v. United States,
162 U.S, 313,320; 40 L.Bd., 980,983). (Cfs
Jerry Wallace v. United States, 162 U.S, 466,
40 L.Ed,, 1039; John Brown v. United States,
159 U.S. 100, 40 L.Ed., 90). (See CM ETO 739,
. Maxwell).

The two elements of (1) uncontrollable passion and (2) adequate
provocation are thus analyzed:

®"The passion thus aroused must be so violent
as to dethrone the reason of the accused,
for the time being; and prevent thought and
reflection, and the formation of a deliber-
ate purpose, The theory of the law is that
malice and passion of this degree cannot
coexist in the mind at the same time; and
the grade of the offense is fixed by the
preponderance of passion, or the legal pre-
sumption that the act was malicious and for
motives of revenge, Mere anger, in and of
itself, is not sufficient, but must be of
such a character as to prevent the individual
from cool reflection and a ¢tontrol of his
actions.” (1 Wharton's Criminal Law, sec.426,
ppo646'647).

"Malice is not an ingredient of manslaughter,

Malice being present, passion and anger, what-
ever their extent or degree, will not serve to
reduce an unlawful killing to voluntary man-
slaughter.” (1bid, sec.426, p.659).

-l .
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®Such passion must be produced by due and
adequate provocation, and be such that
would cause an omdiinary man to act upon
the impulse of the moment, engendered by
such passion, and without due reflection
and the formation of a determined purposs,
The moving cause of the action of the
accused in any given incident under inves-
tigation may be either such anger as above
described, or fear, or terror of such a
character or degree as to render the accused
incapable of cool reflection, What may
reasonably inspire these feelingsis not
viewed alike." (ibid., 860,426, pp.647=649).

"Deadly weapon used by the accused, the
provocation rmust have been very great in
order to reduce the crime in a homicide to
that of voluntary manslaughter., Mere use
of deadly weapon does not if itself raise
a presumption of malice on the part of the
accused; but where such a wgapon is used
in a manner likely to, and does, cause
death, the law presumes malice from the act,
% # %, Mere fear, apprehension, or belief,
though honestly entertained, when not justi-
fiable, will not excuss or mitigate a kill-
ing where the danger was not urgent.® (ibid.,
8ec,426, pp.652~655),

"Mutual combat will reduce a homicide to
voluntary manslaughter in those cases only
where it is shown that the deed was per-
petrated in a transport of passion, ‘or in
the heat of blood, upon an adequate provoca-
tion, and that the act was without malice,
But homicide with deadly weapons in mutual
combat willingly entered into is murder."
(1bid., uc.426, po659)0

The necessity for the concurrence of the two elesments in order to
reduce a homicide to voluntary manslaughter is thus expresseqd:

"Heat of passion, alone, will not reduce a
homicide to voluntary manslaughter; to do
this there pmmst have been an adequats provoca-
tion,"” (ibid., sec.4R6, pp.655-656),

Accused had paid Eileen Megaw one pound in colins, as a considera-
tion for sexual intercourse, The deceased thwarted accused in the
gratification of his lustful desire, Accused was denied the return of the

-15 -
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nmoney, Megaw dropped the coins to the ground and while she was stooping over
in an attempt to recover same, accused produced a knife or dagger and held it
over her back, At this point decea.sed, a smaller man than accused, struck him
a blow in the face, A fight ensued in which accused stabbed deceased, In
one respect only does accused's confession differ substantially from the
prosecution's evidence, This difference is in accused's assertion that it
was not until deceased struck him that he pulled out his knifs, The court
was warranted in believing ths testimony of eye-witnesses that accused had
produced the knife before deceased struck him and held it over the woman in a
position that strongly suggested his jintention to strike her with it, It was
logical and reasonable for the court to infer that deceased's action in strik-
ing accused was justified by deceased's reasonable apprehension that accused
was about to stab the girl, Under this view of the evidence accused was the
aggressor, although deceased astruck the first blow,

There were seventeen knife wounds in deceased's body. Some of the
blows were applied with such force and vigor as to drive the kmife into de-
ceased's skull, fracture both tables thereof and loosen pieces of sknll bone,
Another blow inflicted a wound thres or four inches in depth and the knife
plerced deceased's diaphragm transfixing the left lobe of the liver, De-
ceased's abdominal cavity was plerced by another thrust and a plece of his
omentum two inches in length protruded at the time of the post-mortem, The
other wounds ranged from superficial cuts to depth-wounds of two or three
inches, The mumber and nature of the wounds are mute but unimpeachable wit-
nesses = "poor dumb mouths" - of the ferocity and persistence of accused's
attack, From this silent but undisputed evidence the court was logically and
legitimately justified in concluding that accused commenced and persisted in
his attack upon deceased not only with the purpose of inflicting great bodily
harm upon him, but with the specific intent of killing him,

There is no evidence in the record, nor is it even suggested in
accused's confession, that he was selized with uncontrollable passion or fear,
or that he lost control of himself after deceased struck him or that he was
intoxicated to a degree that he had no control of his mental faculties, Anger
alone will not reduce the crime of murder to manslaughter, There mist also
be adequate provocation, Within the principles of CM ETO 82, McKenzie and
CM ETO 72, Jacobg and Farley, there was neither adequate provocation nor hot-
blooded mutual combat,

The function of the Board of Review 1n examining the record of trial
in this case is to determine if there exists competent, substantial evidence
to support the findings of the trial court. .

"In the exercise of its judicial powsr of

A appellate review, the Board of Review treats
the findings below as presumptively correct,
and examines the record of trial to determine
whethe: they are supported in all essentials
by substantial evidence. To constitute itself
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a trier of fact on appellate review, and to

determine the probative sufficlency of the

testimony in a record of trial by the trial

court standard of proof beyond a reascnable

doubt would be a plain usurpation of power

and frustrative of justice. C.M,192609, Re=-

hearing (1930).* (Dig.Op.JAG, 1912-1940,

sec.408(2), p.259). (C£s CM ETO 268, ;

CM ETO 422, Green). (CM ETO 82, McKensle).

The Board of Review has examined the record of trial with care and
circumspection and it is entirely satisfied that there was competent sub-
stantial evidence before the court to support its findings that accused

killed deceased with malice aforethought and thereby committed the crime of
rurder,

9+ The issus of whether accused was sufficiently intoxicated to pre-
vent his entertaining the intent requisite to constitute murdsr was one of
fact for the determination of the court, As there was substzntial evidence
that he was not so intoxicated, its findings will not be disturbed (CM ETO
82, McKenzie; CM ETO 969, Davis).

10, The fact that deceased might have been a moral degenerate or even
that he was a menace to ths social well-being of his community is no legal
Justification for his death under the circumstances revealed by the record:

"A amurderer is not excusable merely because
the person murdered was a bad man (Under-
hill's Criminal Evidence, 4th Ed., sec,562,
p.1111), (See CM ETO 506, Brvsom).

11, In view of the foregoing considerations, the dsnial by the court
of the motions by the defense for a finding of not guilty and for a finding
of guilty of voluntary manslaughter only (R79-80) was proper (MCM, 1928,
par.713, p.56). As indicated, the prosecution established at least a
prima facle case of murder against accused,

12, The charge sheet showas that accused is 25 years nine months of age
and enlisted 21 May 1937 at Fort Benning, Georgla to serve three years,
"Deserted service from 4 Oct 1937 to 14 Dec 1937, Deserted service 12 Jan
1939. Restored to duty 9 Oct 1942," -

13. The court was legally constituted and had jurisdiction of the per=-
son and offense. No errors injuriously affecting the substantial rights .
of accused were committed during the trial, The Board of Review 1s of the
opinion that the record of trial is legally sufficient to support the find-
ings of guilty and the sentence, The penalty for murder is death or life -
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The sentence that

imprisonment as a court-martial may direct (AW 92),
accused be hanged by the nsck uptil dead is legal (CM ETO 1621, leather-

berry, and authorities there cited).

m/ Judge Advocate

M Judge Advocate

Elliwa Fitesose Ko s
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1st Ind,

WD, Branch Office TJAG,, with EToUsa, 15 MAY 1944 T0: Commanding
Gensral, ETOUSA, APO 887, U.S, Army, .

1. In the case of Private WILEY HARRIS, JR., (6924547), 626th Ord-
nance Ammunition Company, attention is invited to the foregoing holding of
the Board of Review that the record of trial is legally sufficient to
support the findings of guilty and the sentence, which holding is hereby
appraved. ‘

2+ FWhen copies of the published order are forwarded to this office,
they should be accompanied by the foregoing holding and this indorsement,
The file number of the record in this office is ET0 2007, For convenience
of reference please place that nmumber in brackets at the end of the order:
(ETO 2007).

3., Should the sentence as imposed by the court be carried into exe-
cution it is requested that a full copy of the proceedings be furnished
this office in order that its files may be complete,

E. C, McNEIL,
Brigadier General, United States Army,
Assistant Judge Advocate General,

{Sentence ordered executed. GCMO 32, ETO, 19 May 1944)
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Braach Office ef The Judge Advocate Gemeral

with the

Buropeax Theater of Operatioms

BOARD OF REVIEW

ETO 2023

UNITED STATES
Ve

Private CKLAND J. CCRCORAN,

(7003734), Cempamy C, 336th
Engineer Combat Battalion,

APO 871

6 MAY 1944

FIRST UNITED STATES ARMY,

Trial by G.C.M., comvened at
Perllergaer, Glamorgan, Wales

20 February 1944 aad Headquarters,
5th Engineer Special Brigade 8 March
1944. Sentemce: Dishonorable dis-
charge, total forfeitures and com-
finement at hard labor for six years.
Eastern Branch, United States Dis-
ciplinary Barracks, Greemhaven, New
York,

HOIDING by the BOARD OF REVIEW
RITER, VAN EENSCHOTEN and SARGENT,Judge Advocates

le The record of trial im the case of the soldier mamed above has
been examimed by the Board of Review,

2 Accused was triesd upom the followimg charges and specifications:

CHARGE I: Violatiom ef the 6lst Article of War,

Specification 1:

In that Private (kland J,

Corcoram, Company C, 336th Engineer Combat
Battalion, did, without proper leave,
abseat himself from his station at Camp
Mynydd Lliw #1, Wales, from about 16 January
1944 to about 17 Jawuary 1944.

Specification 2:

In that * * %, did, without

proper leave, absent himself from his
station at Camp Mymydd Lliw #1, Wales,
from about 17 Jamusry 1944 to about 24 Janm-

vary 1944,

wle
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CHARGE II: Violatiom of the 69th Article of War.

Specification 1: Im that * * %, haviag been duly
placed im confimement in the 5th Engineer
Special Brigade, Stockade, Camp Mymydd Lliw,
Wales, om or about 25 Jawuary 1944, did, at
Camp Mynydd Lliw #1, Wales on or about 25
Jaruary 1944, escape from said confimement
before he was set at liberty by proper
authority,

Specification 23 Im that * ¥ %, having been duly
placed im confinement im the 5th Engineer
Special Brigade Stockade, Camp Mynydd Lliw,
Wales, om or about 25 Jamuary 1944, did, at
Camp Mynyd" Lliw #1, Wales, on or about 28 Jan-
uary 1944, escape from sald confinement before
he was set at liberty by proper authority.

Specificatiom 33 - In that # * %, having been duly
placed in confirement in the 5th Engineer
Special Brigade Stockade, Camp Mynydd Lliw,
Wales, om or about 25 Jamuary 1944, did, at
Camp Myaydd Lliw #1 Wales, om or about 30
Jamuary 1944, escape from said confimement
before he was set at liberty by proper author-
ity.

CHARGE IIX: Vielation of the 96th Article of War,

Specificatioms Im that % * %, having beem restrict-
ed to the limits of the Battalion Area, 336th
Engineer Combat Battalion, Camp Mymydd Lliw
#1, Wales, did, at Camp Mymydd Lliw #l1, Wales,
or or about 17 Jamuary 1944, break said
restriction,

He pleaded mot gullty to and was found guilty of all charges amd specifica~
tions, Evidence of one rrevious conviction by Summary Court was imtroduced,
for absence without official leave for six days in violatiom of Article of
War 61, He was seatenced -to be dishonorably discharged the service, to for-
feit all pey and allowances due or to become due and to be confined at hard
labor at such place as the reviewing authority may direct, for six years,

The reviewing authorlity approved the sentence, designated the Eastern Branch,
United States Disciplimary Barracks, Greemhaven, New York as the place of
confinement and forwarded the record of trial for actiom pursuant to the
provisions of Article of War 503,

3+« The question as to accused!s legal responsibility for his acts
was one of fact for determimatiom by the court, There was substantial
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evidence that accused was sane at the times of the commission of the
offemses charged, The fimding of the court under such circumstances is
binding on the Board of Review (CM ETO 559, Momsalve; CM ETO 739, Maxwell).
. 'The gemeral finding of gullty suffices to cover the issue of Iinsaxity and
all of its elements, No interlocutory fimding of accused!s sanity was
necessary, The ruling of the law member was irregular but harmless (CM

) 225837’ M)o

4e The charge sheet shows accused to be 23 years of age, BHe
enlisted at Fort McClellan, Alabama, 18 December 1939 for three years,.
His service was governed by the Service Extension Act of 1941, He had
no prior service.

- De The court was legally constituted and hed jurisdiction of the
person and offenses, No errors affecting the substantial rights of the
accused were committed during the trial.. The Board of Review is of the -
opinion that the record of trial is legally sufficient to support the
findings of guilty and the sentence,

6o Confinement im Eastern Branch, United States Disciplinary Barracks,

Greenhaven, New York is authorized (AW 42; Cir,210, WD, 14 Sep 1943, sec.VI,
par,2a as amended by Cir, 331, WD, 21 Dec 1943, sec.II, par.2).

W/ é
,ﬂé—ﬂ/ Judge Advocate
/
@é:( :3,, W,ZQ ,
~ Judge Advocate
et

' f&%: Advocate
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lst Imd,

WD, Bramch Office TJAG., with ETOUSA. -6 MAY 1944 TO: Commanding
General, First Army, APO 230, U.S.Army.

1, In the case of Private OKLAND J. CQRCCRAN (7003734), Company C,
336th Engineer Combat Battalion, attention is invited to the foregoing
holding by the Board of Review that the record of trial is legally suffi-
clent to support the findings of guilty and the sentence, which holding
is hereby approved. Under the provisions of Article of War 50%, you
now have authority to order the execution of the sentence,

2o Whem coples of the published order are forwarded to this office
they should be accompanied by the foregoing holding and this indorsement,
The file mumber of the record in this office is ETO 2023, For convenience
of reference please place that number in brackets at the end of the order:
(ET0_2023).

Bri
Assistant Judge Advocate General,



CONFIDENTIAL

(129)
Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General
with the
European Theater of Operations
: APO 871
BOARD CF REVIEW
ETO 2039 18 MAY 1944
UNITED STATES: WESTERN BASE SECTION, SERVICES CF
SUPPLY, EURCPEAN THEATER OF OFER~
Vo ) ATIONS.
Private B, T. WRIGHT 2 Trial by G.C.M., convened at Whittington
(34064556), 3916 Quarter- Barracks, Lichfield, Staffordshire, Eng-
master Gasoline Supply land, & April 1944. Sentence: Dishonorable
Company ] ) discharge, total forfeitures and confine-

ment at hard labor for five years, Eastern
Branch, United States Disciplinary Bar-
racks, Greenhaven, New York,

HOLDING by the BOARD COF REVIEW
RITER, VAN BENSCHOTEN and SARGENT, Judge Advocates

1. The record of trial in the case of the soldier named above has been
examined by the Board of Revilew,

2, Accused was trled upon the following Charge and Specification:

CHARGE: Violation of the 64th Article of War

Specification:s In that Private B. T. Wright,
3916 Quartermaster Gasoline Supply Company,
having received a lawful command from
First Lieutenant ROSS V. FREER, his super-
dor officer, to give him a knife in the
possession of said Private B, T. Wright,
did, at Uttoxeter, Staffordshire, England

on or about 9 March 1944, willfully dis-
obey the same,

He pleaded not guilty to and was found gullty of the Charge and Specification,
No evidence of previous convictions was introduced, He was sentenced to be
dishonorably discharged the service, to forfeit all pay and allowances due or
to become due and to be confined at hard labor for five years at such place as
the reviewing authority may direct, The reviewing authority approved the
sentence, designated the Eastern Branch, United States Disciplinary Barracks,
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Greenhaven, New York as the place of confinement and forwarded the record of
trial for action pursuant to the provisions of Article of War 503,

3. The charge sheet shows accused is 205 years of age., He was inducted
into the United States Army 16 Ootober 1941 for the duration of the war plus
six months, He had no prior service,

4e 'The court was legally constituted and had jurisdiction of the
person and offense, No errors injuriously affecting the substantial rights -
of accused were committed during the trial, The Board of Review is of the
opinion that the record of trial is legally sufficient to support the find-
ings of guilty and the sentence, The punishment for willfully disobeying
the lawful command of a superior officer is death or such other punishment
as a court-martial may direct (AW 64), The designated place of confinement

13 authorized,:
m /é' Judge Advocate
@WV s
Judge Advocate
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WD, Branch Office TJAG., with ETQUSA, i8 9%4 TO: Commanding -
Officer, Western Base Section, SOS, ETOUSA, APO 515, Army.

1, 1In the cz<d of Private B, T. WRIGHT (34064556), 3916 Quartermaster
Gasoline Supply Company, attention is invited to the foregoing holding by
the Board of Review that -the record of trial is legally sufficient to support
the findings of guilty and the sentence, whlch holding is hereby approved,
Under the provisions of Article of War 502, you now have authority to order
execution of the sentence..

2, .When coples of the published or&er are forwarded to this office,
they should be accompanied by the foregoing holding and this indorsement,
The file number of the record in this office is ETO 2039. For ccnvenience
of reference please place that number in brackets at the end of the order:
(ETO 2039),

’/ « Co MCNEIL
Brigadier General, United States Army,
Assistant Judege Advocate General.
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Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General
with the

European Theater of Operations

' APO 871
BOARD OF REVIEW

1 0 MAY 1944
ETO 2042
UNITED STATES STH INFANTRY DIVISION.
e Trial by G.C.M,, convened at Tolly~
: more Park, County Down, Northern

Private JOHN T. SMITH Ireland, 7 April 1944. Sentences
(34162426), Company "K", Dishonorable discharge, total fore
1lth Infantry. feitures and confinement at hard

labor for eight years. The Federal
Reformatory, Chillicothe, Chio,

HOLDING by the BOARD OF REVIENW
RITER, VAN BERSCHOTEN and SARGENT, Judge Advocates

1, The recard of trial in the case of ths soldier named above has
been examined by the Board of Review.

2¢ Accused was tried upon tho following Charge end specificationss

CHARGE: Violation of the 934 Article of War,
Specification 13- In that Private (then Private First

Class) John T, Smith, Company K, 11th Infantry,
did, at Downpatrick, County Down, Korthern Ire-
land, on or about 11 March 1944, unlawfully
enter Rea's Commercial Hotel, with intent to
commit a criminal offense, to wit, steal and
carry away whiskey and wine therein,

Specification 25 In that ® # #, did, at Downpatrick,

County Down, Northern Ireland, on or about 11
March 1944, feloniocusly take, steal, and carry
awzy. about twenty-eight (28) bottles of alcoholie
beverages, value about $75,00, the property of
Frank Rea, Commercial Hotel, Market Street,
Dowmpatrick, County Down, Korthern Ireland,

He pleaded not guilty to the Charge and specifications. He was found

guilty of

Specification 1, of Specification 2, guilty, except the words

"about $75,00", substituting therefor  the words "in excess of $50,00,"
of the excepted words, not guilty, and of the substituted words, guilty,

o]l e
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and guilty of the Charge, No evidence of previous convictions was intro-
duced, He was sentenced to be dishonorably diescharged the service, to
forfeit all pay and allowances due or to become due, and to be confined at
hard labor,at such place as the reviewing authority may direct, for eight
years, the reviewing authority approved the sentence, designated the
Federal Reformatory, Chillicothe, Ohlo as the place of confinement, and
forwarded the record of trial for action pursuant to the proviaions of
Article of War 50%.,

3¢ The charge sheet shows that accused is 22 years of age, He was
inducted into the army 22 October 1941 without prior service,

4o The court was legally constituted and had jurisdiction of the per-
son and offenses, No errors injuricusly affecting the substantial rights
of accused were committed during the trisl. The Board of Review is of the
opinion that the record of trial is legally sufficient to support the find-
ings of guilty and the sentence, The daaignated place of confinement is
authorized (AW 42; 18 U -8.C. 4663 Cir. 291, WD, 10 Nov 1943, sec,V, pars.

23 and 3a).
7""&"% Judge Advocate

%n/k |
Judge Advocate
W@ﬁzfﬁﬁp Advocate

«2 =™
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1st Ind,

WD, Branch Office TJAG., witn Erovsa, 1 0 MAY 1944 TOs Commanding
General, 5th Infantry Division, APO 5, U.S. Army,

1, In the case of Private JOEN T, SMITH (34162426), Company "K", 11th
infantry, attention is invited to the foregoing holding by the Board of
Review that the record of trisl is legally sufficient to support the find-
1350 of guilty and the sentence. Under the provisions of Article of War
502, you now have aunthority to order execution of the sentence,

'2¢ The sentence adjudged and approved appears excesaive for the
offense under the circumstances shown by the record of trial, This case
will be re-examined in Washington and, I believe, will result in a very
considerabls reduction in the sentence, In order to comply with instruec-
tions from the Commanding General, European Theater of Operations, in
reference to uniformity of sentences, and which direct me to take action so
that this theater may not be subject to criticism for returning prisoners
to the United States with sentences which require immediate clemency action
by the War Department, I recommend that you reconsider ithe sentence with a
view to reducing the term of confinement. If this is done, the signed
action should be returned to this office for file with the record of trial.

3« When coples of the published order are forwarded to this office
" they should be accompanied by the foregoing holding and this indorsement,
The file mumber of the record in this office is ETO 2042. For convenience
<(:f Seferez)we please place that number in brackets at the end of the order:
ETO 2042).

E, C, McEEIL
. Brigadier General, United States Army,
Agsistant Judge Advocate General,

fya
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Branch Office of The Judge ddvocate General (137)
with the
European Theater of Qperations
APO 871
BAARD QF FEVIEA 23 MAY 1944
TTO 2044
UNITED STATES g VIII AIR FORCE SERVICE COMJAND
Ve ) Trial by G.C.M., convened at AAF
) Station 595, APO 636, England
Private DUFFY R. LANDLROS ) 4 April 1944. Sentence: Dishonorable
(39252122), 39th Station Com- discharge, total forfeitures and con-
plement Squadron, 2nd Strategic finement at hard labor for one year,
Air Depot. ) Eastern Branch, United States
) Disciplinary Berracks, Greenhaven,
) New York,

HOIDING by the BCARD OF REVIEW
RITER, VAN BENSCHOTEN end SARGENT, Judge Advocates

1. The record of trial in the case of the soldier named above has
been examined by the Board of Review,

2. Accused was tried upon the following Charge and Specification :

CHARGE I: Violation of the 6lst Article of War,

Specification: 1In that Private Duffy R. Landeros,
39th Station Complement Squadron, 2nd Strate-
gic Air Depot, did, without proper leave,
absent himself from his Station at AAF Station
547 from about 0615 hours, 13 March 1944, to
about 0615 hours, 20 March 1944.

He pleaded not guilty to and was found gullty of the Charge and Specification.
Evidence was introduced of five previous convictions: four by summary court
for absence without leave for seven, one and four days respectively in viola-
tion of the 6lst Article of War and for breaking restriction in violation of
the 96th Article of War, and one by special court-martial for absence without
leave for 13 days in violation of the 6lst Article of War., e was sentenced
to be dishonorably discharged the service, to forfeit all pay and allowances
due or to become due and to be confined at hard labor for one year at such
place as the reviewing authority may direct. The reviewing authority
approved the sentence, designated the Eastern Branch, United States Dis-
ciplinary Barracks, Greenhaven, New York, as the place of confinement and
forwarded the record of trial for action pursuant to Article of War 50%.

~l-
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3. The charge sheet shows that accused is 35 yeurs four months of age
and was inducted into the service at Los Angeles, California, 14 August 1942
to serve for the duration of the war plus gix months, He had no prior ser-
vice,

Le The court was legally constituted and had jurisdiction of the person
and offense, No errors injuriously affecting the substantial rights of
accused were committed during the trial, The Board of Review is of the
opinion that the record of trial is legally sufficient to support the find-
ings of guilty and the sentence.

5. Confinement of accused in Eastern Branch, United States Disciplinary
Barracks, Greenhaven, New York is authorized (AW 42, Cir, 210, WD, 1 Sep 1943,
'sec.VI, par.2a, as amended by Cir,331, WD, 21 Dec 1943, sec,IlI,par.2).

léfg;zf:lﬂzggl/cdﬂééé;-‘ Judge Advocate

/
%m Judge Advocate

Judge Advocate
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1st Ind.
WD, Branch QOffice TJAG., with ELQUSA. 23 MAY 1944 TO; Commanding
General, VIII Air Force Service Command, APO 636, U.S, Army.

1, In the case of Private DUFFY R. LANDEROS (39252122), 39th Stationm
Complement Squadron, 2nd Strategic Air Depot, attention is invited to the
foregoing holding by the Board of Review that the record of trial is legally:
sufficient to support the findings of gullty and the sentence, Under the
provisions of Article of War 50%, you now have authority to order exscutiom
of the sentence, .

2 In addition to the five previous convictions of accused properly
introduced in evidence, papers accompanying the record of trial reveal that
accused was absent without leave on four other separate occasions for which
offenses no charges were preferred. In 19 months service he was absent with=-
out leave for 82 days and suffered 112 days confinement prior to commission
of present offense, In civil life he suffered one conviction for automocbile
theft, His G.C.T, grade is 61, These circumstances justify the imposition
of the present punishment, and his ultimate elimination from the service,

3 When copies of the published order are forwarded to this office,
they should be accompanied by the foregoing helding and this indorsement,
The file number of the record in this office i3 ETO 204/. For convenlence
of reference please place that number in brackets at the end of the order:
(ETO 2044). .

/£, c. MeNEIL,
Brigadier General, United Stgdes irmy,
Asslstant Judge Advocate General,
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Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General
with the
European Theater of Operations
APO 871

BOARD OF REVIEW
23 MAY 1944
ETO 2063
UNITED STATES WESTERN BASE SECTION, SERVICES
COF SUPPLY, EUROFEAN THEATER OF
Ve OPERAT IONS.,
Private CLARENCE JOHNSON
(36795985), Company F, 95th
Engineer General Service
Regiment,

Trial by G.C.M,, convened at Chester,
Cheshire, England, 6 April 1944.
Sentence: Dishonorable discharge,
total forfeitures and confinement at
hard labor for ten years. Federal
Reformatory, Chillicothe, Ohio,

Vs Vs S St Caars? S St s Noaras N’

HOLDING by the BOARD OF REVIEW
RITER, VAN BENSCHOTEN and SARGENT, Judge Advocates

1. The record of trial in the case of the soldier named above has
been examined by the Board of Review,

2, Accused was tried upon the following Charge and Specification:

CHARGE: Violation of the 92nd Article of War,

Specification: In that Private Clarence Johnscn,
Company F, 95th Engineer General Service
Regiment did, at Bridgenorth, Shropshire,
England, on or about 1l February 1944, forcibly
and feloniously, against her will, have carnal
knowledge of Mrs, William Hollines Svayne.

He pleaded not guilty to the Charge and Specification, He was found
guilty of the Specification except the words "forcibly and feloniously,
against her will, have carnal knowledge of Mrs, William Hollines Swayne®,
substituting therefor the words "with intent to commit a felony, viz,
rape, commit an assault upon Mrs, William Hollines Swayne, by wilfully
and feloniously holding and choking the said Mrs, William Hollines Swayme,
and striking her on the face and body with his fists"; of the excepted
worda, not gullty; of the substituted words, guilty., Of the Charge, not
guilty, but guilty of violation of the 93rd Article of War, Evidence was
introduced of one prior conviction by summarytourt for absence without
leave from his station for 11 hours in violation of the 6lat Article of War,

-l =
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' He was sentenced to be dishonorably discharged the service, to forfeit all
pay and.allowances dus or to become due and to be confined at hard labor
for 20 years at such place as the reviewing authority may direct, The
reviewing authority approved the sentence but reduced the period of confine- .
ment to ten years, designated the Federal Reformatary, Chillicothe, Ohio,
as ‘the place of confinement and forwarded the record of trial for action
_pursuant to the provisions of Article of War 504

3. The charge sheet shows that accused 13 22 years of age and that
" he was inducted into military service on 18 February 1943 for the duration
of the war plus gix months, He had no prior service,

4e The court was legally constituted and had jurisdiction of the
person snd offense, No errors injuriously affecting the substantial rights
of the accused were committed during the trial, The Board of Review is of
the opinion that the record of trial is legally sufficient to support the
findings of guilty and the sentence (CM ETO 1743, Pe , and euthorities
therein cited),

. 5« Confinement in a United States penitentiary is authorized for the
crime of assault with intent to commit rape by AW 42 and sec,276 Federal
Criminal Code (18 U.S.C, 455). The designation of the Federal Reformatory,

Chillicothe, Ohio as the place of confinement is authorized{Cir. 291, WD,
10 Nov 1943, sec,V, pare3a).

i? |
/gfi—‘ﬂ“ Judge Advocate
W Judge Advocate

-

% <“7Sudge Advocate
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1st Ind,

WD, Branch Office TJAG., with ETOUSA, <O MAY 1944 T0s Commanding
Officer, Western Base Section, SOS, ETOUSA, APO 515, U.S. Army,

1, In the case of Private CLARENCE JOHNSON (36795985),. Company F,
95th Englneer General Service Regiment, attention is invited to the fore-
aJoing holding by the Board of Review that the record of trial is legally
suffigient to support the findings of guilty and the sentence, which -
holding 1s hereby approved, Under the provisions of Article of War 50%,
you now have authority to order execution of the sentence,

_ 2. FWhen copies of the published order are forwarded to this office
they should be accompanied by the foregoing holding and this indorsement,
The file number of the record in this office is ETO 2063, For convenience
of reference please place that number in brackets at the end of the order:

(ETO 2063),

Brigadier General, United States Army,
Asgistant Judge Advocate Generals
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Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General
with the
European Theater of Operations
AP0 871

BOARD CF REVIEW

1 0 MAY 1944
ETO 2072
UNITED STATES 1ST INFANTRY DIVISIORN,
Ve " Trial by G.C.M,, convened at Swanage,

Private BENJAMIN A. DOUGLASS
(32043884), Company "I®, 26th

Infantry-

1.

Dorsetshire, England, 7 April 19/4.
Sentences Dishonorable discharge,
total forfeltures and confinement at

hard labor for nine years.

Branch, United States Disciplinary
Barracks, Greenhaven, New York,

HOLDING by the BOARD (¥ REVIEW
RITER, VAN BERSCHOTEN and SARGENT, Judge Advocates

The record of triasl in the case of the soldier named above has

been examined by the Board of Review,

2

Accused was tried upon the following charges and specificationss

CHARGE Is Violation of the 61lst Article of War,

Specification 1t In that Private BRNJAMIN A. DOUGLASS,
Company "I", 26th Infantry, did, without proper
leave, absent himself from his organization at
Valmy, Algeria from about 0630 hours, 24 May 1943,
to about 1630 hours, 3 June 1943. ‘

Specification 28 In that # # &, did, without proper
leave, absent himself from his organization at
Ain Bl Turk, Algeria from about 0800 hours, 6
June 1943, to about 0300 hours, 9 June 1943,

CHARGE Ils Violation of the 69th aArticle of War,
Specifications In that # # #, having been duly placed
in arrest at Ain El Turk, Algeria on or about
1630 hours, 3 June 1943, did, at Ain E1 Turk,
Algeria on or about 0860 hours, 6 June 1943,

. break his said arrest before he was set at liberty

by proper authority.

=]l e
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CHARGE IIIs Violation of -the-58th Article of War,

Specification 1t 1In that % # %, did, at Liverpool,
England, on or about 9 February 1944, desert
the service of the United States and did re-
main gbsent in desertion until he was appre-
hended, at Widnes, Lancashire, England, on or
about 13 February 1944.

Specification 28 In that # # #, did, near Wincanton,
Somerset, England, on or about 1300 hours, 17
February 1944, desert the service of the United
States, and did remain absent in desertion-un-
til he was apprehended at Trowbridge, Wilts,
England, on or about 1915 hours, 17 February
1944,

He pleaded not gullty to the charges and specifications, He was found
guilty of Charges I and II and their respective specifications, and of
Charge III not guilty of violation of the 58th Article of War but guilty
of violation of the 61st Article of War, guilty of the Specifications
thereof except the words, "desert the service of the United States® subm
stituting therefor the words "absent himself without proper leave from his
command® and excepting the words "in desertion®, contained in each of said
specifications, of the excepted words, not guilty and of the substituted
words, gullty, Evidence of two previous convictions by summary court was:
introduceds one for appearing off limits without a proper pass in violation
of standing orders and one for appearing off limits in improper uniform,
both in violation of the 96th Article of War, He was sentenced to be dis-
honorably discharged the service, to forfeit all pay and allowances due or
to become due and to be confined at hard labor, at such place as the
reviewing authority may direct, for nins years, The reviewing authority
approved the sentence, designated the Eastern Branch, United States Dis-
ciplinary Barracks, Greenhaven, New York, as the place of confinement,
directed that pending further orders accused be held at the 2912th
Disciplinary Training Center, Shepton Mallet, Somerset, England and fore
warded the record of trial for action pursuant to the provisiocns of Article
of War 50%,

3¢ The charge sheet shows that accused is 26 years of age. He was
inducted 6 March 1941 at Albany, New York for the duration of the war and
six months thereafter. He had no prior service,

4o The court was legally constituted and had -jurisdiction of the
person and the offenses, No errors injuriously affecting the substantial
rights of accused were committed during the trial, The Board of Review is
of the opinion that the record of trial is legally sufficient to support the
findings of guilty of Charges I and II and their respectlve specifications
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and the findings of guilty of Charge III and its specifications by excep-
tions and substitutions, and the sentence,

5. The designation of Eastern Branch, United States Disciplinary
Barracks as the place of confinement is authorized (AW 42; Cir.210, WD, 1,
Sep 1943, Sec VI, par.2g as amended by Cir.331, WD 21 Dec 1943, Sec II, '

par 2).
W/é: Judge Advocate

; iLL A L‘°i ; i ~ Judge Advocate

é%m%/é? %udge Advocate
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1st Inde

WD, Branch Office TJAG,, with ETOUSA,. 1 0 MAY 1944 TO: Commanding
General, lst Infantry Division, APO 1, U,S. Army,.

1, In the case of Private BENJAMIN A, DOUGLASS (32043884), Company
nin, 26th Infantry, attention is invited to the foregoing holding by the
Board of Review that the record of trial is legally sufficient to support
the findings of guilty of Charges I and II and their respective specifica-
tions and the findings of guilty of Charge III and its specifications by
exceptions and substitutions and the sentence, which holding is hereby
approved, Under the provisions of Article of War 50%, you now have authority
to order execution of the sentence.

2¢ Then copies of the published order are forwarded to this office
they should be accompanied by the foregoing holding and this indorsement.
The file nunber of the record in this office is ETO 2072, For convenlence
of reference please place that number in brackets at the end of the ordert

(ETO 2072),
, 72

Brigadier General, United States Army,
Assistant Judge Advocate General,

AONFIDENTIA!
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Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General (149)
with the
European Theater of Operations
APO 871
BOARD OF REVIEW
ETO 2082 10 MAY 1944
UNITED STATEC ; THIRD UNITED STATES ARMY
Ve )  Trial by G.C.M., convened at Stoke-
) on-Trent, England, 11 April 1944.
Private EUGENE H., HALL ) Sentencet Dishonorable diecharge,
(33721806), 443rd Quarter- ) total forfeitures and confinement at
master Troop Transport ) hard labor for five years. Eastern
Company . )  Branch, United States Disciplinary
) Barracks, Greenhaven, New York,

HOLDING by the BOARD (OF REVIEW
RITER, VAN BENSCHOTEN and SARGENT, Judge Advocates

le Ths record of trial in the case of the soldier named above has
been examined by the Board of Review,

2+ The accused was tried upon the following Charge and Specification:

CHARGEs Violation of the 93rd Article of War,

Specification: In that Private Eugene H. Hall,
443rd Quartermaster Troop Transport Company
did, at Stoke-On-Trent, England, on or
about 19 March 1944, commit the crime ef
sodomy, by feloniocusly and against the
order of nature having carnal comnsction
per annum with Raymond Bibby, a human beinge

He pleaded not guilty to the Charge and Specification and was found guilty

of the Specification except the words "commit the crime of sodomy, by feloni-
ously and against the order of nature having carnal connectiorf and substituting
therefor the words M™attempt to commit the crime of sodomy, by feloniously and
against the order of nature attempting to have carnal connection", of the
excepted words, not guilty, of the substituted words guilty, and not guilty of
the Charge but guilty of a violation of Article of War 96, No evidence of
previous convictions was introduced, He was sentenced to be dishonorably dis-
charged the service, to forfeit all pay and allowances due or to become due and
‘to be confined at hard labor, at such place as the reviewing authority may
direct, for five years,

o
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The reviewing authority approved the sentence, designated Eastern
Branch, United States Disciplinary Barracks, Greenhaven, New York as the
place of confinement and forwarded the record of trial for action pursuant -
to the provisions of Article of War 50%, .

3¢ The charge sheet shows accused is 18 years of age, He was inducted
20 April 1943 at Fort George Meade, Maryland for the du:ra.tion of the war and
six months thereafter, BHes had no prior service,

" 4e The court was legally constituted and had jurisdiction of the
person and the offense, KNo errors injuriously affecting the substantial rights
of the accused were committed during the trial, The Board of Review is of the
opinion that the record 1s legally sufficient to support the findings of
guilty and the sentence,

54 Confinement 'in the Eastern Branch, United States Disciplinary Bare -
racks, Greenhaven, New York is authorized (AW 42; Cire,210, WD, 14 Seg 1943,
nec.VI, par.2s, as amended by Cir,331, WD, 21 Dec 1943 aec.II, pare?

/

Mé | Judge Advocate
@m Judge Advocate
W %/éf? . Judge Advocate
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WD, Branch Office TJAG,, with Erouss, 1 0 MAY 1944 TO: Commanding
General, Third United States Army, APO 403,

'l In the case of Private EUGENE H, HALL (33721806), 443rd Quartex
master Troop Transport Company, attention is invited to the foregoing
holding of the Board of Review, that the record of trial is legally suffi
clent to support the findings and the sentence, which holding is hereby
approved, Under the provisions of Article of War 50%, you now have
authority to order execution of the sentence,

24 When copies of the published order are forwarded to this office,
they should be accompanied by the foregoing holding and this indorsement,
The file number of the record in thls office is ETO 2082, For convenienci
of reference please place that number in brackets at the end of the order

{ET0 2082).
/B/cffnfm V4 ch

Brigadier General, United States Arwy,
Asgistant Judge Advocate Generale
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Exench Office of The Judge Advocats Gameral

with the

Buropean Theater c¢f Operatioms

4¥0 871
BOARD (F REVIEX

BTO 2098

UNITED STATES

Yo

Private JOHN B, TAYLOR, (34262317),"
alias Private JOHH R. ERVIN TAYLCR,
(34262317), alias Private first olass
FRED TAYICR, alias Private ROBERT E.
TAYL(R, (35125145), 1st bobile Repair
and Reclamation Squadron, attached to

9.6 MAY 1944

VIII AIR FORCE SERVICE COMMAKD.,

Trial by G.C.M., convenad at AAP
Station 506, APO 636, 6 April
1944, Sentence: Dishougrable
discharge, total forfeitures and
confinemsnt at hard labor for six
years, Eastern Branch, United
States Disciplinary Barracks,
Greenhaven, New York.

1915th Quartermaster Truck Company
(Aviation),

HOLDING by the BOARD (F REVIEW
RITER, VAN BENSCHOTEN and SARGENT, Judge Advocates

le Ths record of trial in the case of the soldier named above has
been sxanmined by the Board of Review,

2¢ Accused was tried upon the following charges and specifications;

CHARGE Is Violation of the 61st Article of War,

8pecification: In that Private Jom E, Taylor, 1lst
Mobdle R & R Squadron attached to 1915th Quarter-
magter Truck Company (Avn), 2nd Strategic Air
Depot, AAF-127, APO-635, dj.d, without proper
leave, absent himself from his station at AAF-
127, AP0-635 from about 0615 boura 2 February
1944, to about 2100 hours 16 February 1944.

CHARGE II: Violation of the 69th Article of War,

Specification: In that * # # having been duly placed
in confinement in Guard House, AAP-127, on or
about 25 February 1944, did, escape from said
confinement before he was set at liberty by proper
authority, .

=l=
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CHARGE III: Violation cf tho 93rd Article of War,

Specification 1: In that » # #, did, at 15 Cardiff
Street, luton, Bedfordshire, Eangland, on or about
16 February 1944, felenlously taks, steal and carry
away a sum of Eonay, namsly sbout tuwenty pounds
(£20), British cwrrency, ($80,70), the property of
Pvt. Wallace Snsddon, 425 Bomb Squadron, 306 Bomb
Gr(mp, APO 634, U.S.lm.

Specification 23 In that * # #, did, at ths Rabbit Bar,
Intén, Bedfordashire, England, on or about 16 Febru~
ary, 1944, feloniously take, stsal and carry away
a oontribution box containing nine shillings
(98.0d), British carrency, ($1.€0), the property
of the Rabbit Bar, Luton, Badfordahire, England,

Ho pleaded not guilty to and was found guilty of all charges and specifi-
oations, Evidence of two previous convictions was introduced; one by
sumnary court for absence without leave for eight days and one by special
court for absence without leave for 12 days, both in violation of the &lst
Article of War, He was sentenced to bs dishonorably discharged the ser-
vice, to forfeit all pay and allowances dus or to become due and to be
confimed at hard labor for six years at such place as the reviewing
authority may direct, The reviewing authority approved the sentenoce,
designated the Bastern Branch, United Statss Disciplinary Barracks,
Greenbaven, New York as the place of confinement and forwarded the record
of trial for action pursuant to the provisions of Article of War 50%,

3¢ () Epoape from confipsment (Chargs II)s Accused had been confined
in the guard house at AAF Station 127, In company with three other prisoners
he was placed in the custody of two armed guards and was taken to a sewer
disposal unit located at the station, The prisoner detail was then required
to clean the disposal wnit., They remainsd undar the immediate direction
and oontrol of guards, During ths procsss of this work accused epoaped,
While physically removed from the confinss of ths guard house he remained
under the physical restraint imposed by tha guards, He succeeded in freeing
himself from this restraint which was actual and obvious, He was neither
an "honor® prisoner nor was he on parole, Ris offense was clearly an es-
caps from confinement denounced by the 69th Article of War (CM 188150,

Thowpson; CM 197553, Bosss KON 1928, par.13%s, and b, pp.153,154),

(v) har cification 2)s Accused confessed the
theft of funds (9 shillings; §l. which were oontained in a “contribution
box* in the physical possession of the Rabbit Bar in Luton, This box was
used for the purpose of receiving voluntary contributions from persons
frequenting the public house for the bLenefit of some unnamed charitable
institution, It will be assumed that the gensral ownership of the funds
deposited in the box was vestsd in this clharitable institution, There is
evidence in the record that the Rabbit Bar was the custodian of the money
deposited in the box until it was collected by the general owner., It held
a special interest therein which as against accused, a trespasser, was of
sufficient quality to support that allegation of the specificatiom that
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it was the owner of the money (32 Am, Jur. Sec, 113, p.1025; State v, Hubbard,
126 Kan, 129, 226 Pace,939, 58 A.L.R.327 with annotation at pe330 et seq.;
Hall v, United States 277 Fed,19,2i). v )

Proof of the corpus delicti of the theft of the funds in the
"eontribution box? rests primarily upon hearsay evidence given by Special
Agent Moyer of the Criminal Investigation Department of the United Statea
Arxy (R.9,12). The evidence was glven not only without objection by the
defense, but also its subsequent motion to strike the evidence was voluntari-
1y withdramn (R.12), Under such circumstances the hearsay evidence may be
#considered and given its natural probative effect as if it were in law
adnissible ®, (Diaz v, United States 223 U.8.442, 450; 56 L. Ed. 500,503),
Moyerts testimony is sufficient to shuw that the ®contribution box" and its
contents had been taken from the public house without authority, This is
sufficient proof of the corpus delicti to permit the admission in evidence
of that part of accused's confession pertaining to this theft (Spscification
2’ Charge III).

(o) A1l of the elements of larceny (Specification 1 and 2 Charge
III) were proved by substantial evidence and accused is satisfactorily
i1dentified as the thief (CM ETO 885, Yan Horn; OM ETO 952, Mosser; CM 1191,
Acosta; CM ETO 1415, Cochran).

(d) Proof of absence without leave (Charge I) is substantial (CM
ETO 364, Hows; CM ETO 1991, Plergon).

4e The charge sheet shows accused to be 20 years two months of age,
that he was induoted into the military service at Fort McPherson, Georgla,
28 February 1942, for the duration of the war plus six months and that he had
no prior servioce,

5 The court was legally constituted and had jurisdioction of the person
and offenses, Ro errors injurlously affecting the substantial rights of the
acoused were committed during the trial, The Board of Review is of the opinion
that the record of trial is legally sufficient to support the findings of
guilty and the sentence,

6. Confinement in Eastern Branch, United States Disciplinary Barracks,
Greenhaven, New York is authorized (AW 42; Cir,210, WD, 1, Sep 1943, sec, VI,
par.2a, as amended by Cir, 331, WD, 21 Dec 1943,

sec,II, par.2).
Arside i
@VV’&Q«@/M Judge Advocate
WZA@ Advocate

-3~
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1lst Ind,

WD, Branch Office TJAG., with ETOUSA. 26 MAY 1944 TCs Commanding
. Gemeral, VIII Air Foroe Servios Command, APO 636,

1, In the case of Private JOHN E. TAYL(R (34262317), alias Private
JOBN R. ERVIN TAYLOR (34262317), alias Private first class FRED TAYI(R,
alias Private RORERT E. TAYIOR (35125145), lst Mobdle Repair and Reclamation
Squadron, attached to 1915th Quartermaster Truck Company (Aviation), atten-
tion 1s invited to the foregoing holding by the Board of Review that the
record of trial is legally sufficient to support the findings of guilty and-
the sentence, which holding is hereby approved, Under the provisions of

Article of War 503, you now bave authority to order the exscution of the
sentence,

2¢ When coples of the publaished order are forwarded to this office
they should be accompanied by the foregoing holding and this indorsement,
The file number of the record in this office is ETO 2098, Fcr convenience
of reference please place that number in brackets at the end of the order:

(ETO 2098), |
v £.¢. ‘:‘

McNEIL,
Brigadier General, United States Army,

Assistant Judge Advocate General,
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" Branch Office of The Judge Adovcate General
with the

European Theater of Operations
AFO 871

BOARD OF REVIEW
ETO 2103 12 JUN 1944

UNITED STATES ) BASE AIR DEFPOT AREA, AIR SERVICE
) COMMAND, UNITED STATES STRATEGIC
Ve ). AIR FURCFS IN EUROE.
)
Private First Clhss SCOIT J. ) Trisl by G.C.M., convened at
KERN (15323730), 17th RCD ) Altrincham, Cheshire, England, 21
(Avn), Squadron A, VIII Alr ) March 1944. Sentence: Dishonor-
Force Service Commend. ) able discharge, total forfeitures
) and confinement at hard labor for
) ten yeatrs,” Féederal Reformatory,
)

Chillicothe, Ohio.

IOLDING' by the BOARD OF PEVIEW
RITER, VAN BENGCHOTEN anfl SARGENT', Judge Advocates

1. The record of trial in the case of the soldier nemed abdbve has been
examined by the Board of Review.

2, AccuBed was tried upon the following Charge and specifications:

CHARGE: Violation of the 93rd Article of WVar.

Specificatior 1t In that Private First Class
Scott' J. Kern, 17th BCD (Avn), Squadron A,
VIII AFSC, AAF 533, APO 635 4id, at Altrin-
cham, Cheshire County, England, on or about
16 February 1914, willfully, feloniously,
and unlawfully kill Sergeant Richard A,
Garcia, e human bteing, by stabbing him in
the abdomen with a knife,

Specification 23 In that * * #, did, at Altrincham,
Cheshire County, England, on or about 16 Feb-
ruary 1944, willfully, feloniously, and unlaw-
fully kill Technicel Sergeant louis S, Cygan,
a human being, by stabbting him in the abdomen
with e’'knife,

He pleaded not guilty to eand was found guilty of the Charge and specifications.
No evidence of previous convictions was introduced, He was sentenced to Ve

- ] o
GONFIDENTIAL


http:Engla.td

CONFIDENTIAL
(158)

dishonorably discharged ths service, to forfeit all pay and allowances due
or to become 4due and to be confined et hard labor, at such place as the
reviewving authority may direct, for ten years. The reviewing authority
approved the sentence, designated the Federal Reformatory, Chillicothe, Ohio,
a3 the place of confinement dnd forwarded the record of trial for action
pursuant to the provisions of Article of VWar 503,

3+ Acocused as & witness 'for himse€lf testified substantially as
follows: He had been in the armed servide since October 1942, arrived over=-
seas 1 November 1943 and was immediately assigned to Military Folice duty at
Altrincham under Captdin Huston (now'dead) and later Second Lieutenant Walter
J. Doolen, Quartermaster Corps, Squadron F, 17th RCD.* He was an acting-
gergeant heading a twelve-man pdtrol, on 24-hour dJuty, working a six-hour
shift and the other 18 hours at caup ‘reedy for duty if needed (R53)s On the
Seturday night previous to the incdidents givind rise to the charges herein,
on making his rounds, ke fournd a soldier-cooX named Russ<dll, who had "passed
out” with drink, sitting at a table in a pubtlic house. On being awakened
and asked to go cut snd get some air, Russell wanted to create a disturbance
80 accused arrested him and took him to the guardhouse on a drunk &nd dis-
orderly charge. There had been for some time a slight feud between the
military police and the ocooks becsuse of the necessity of feeding the military
police at irregular hours., Often the military police found there was no food
for them and at times they found foreign material in their "chow"e Accused
fournd a prophylactic in his food and notified Lieutenant Doolen., Hs had
trouble with both Garcia end Cygan around "pubs® and dance halls, and reported
to Sergeant Mitchell that he had been informed that Garcia was carrying a
knife and was "laying for him® (RSL)e Gercia was dark skinned, about five
feet ten inches in height, weighed about 170 pounds and was "pretty powerful®,
He was called "Chief", Cygan was heavy set,wsighed about 230 pounds, was
about five feet six inches tell and also"a powerful fellow®, Both were cooks
at accused's camp (R55)e Accused was five feet ten inchés tall (R61l), The
knife in question, admitted in evidence as Pros.Bx,"C", was bought by accused
from a British soldier in the imerican Red Cross Club in Manchester the latter
part of December 1943, Accused went to Manchester a great deal while off
duty. He bought ‘the knife because®they were Laving trouble” over there with
*the blacks®., Several boys got cut up. Es was not on duty the night of
16 February 194Jj, went to thne Woolpack and had a eouple of drinks, then stopped
at two or three other "pubs® where he was known, got some "chips® and returned
to the Woolpack and had a besr, He was stopped by Cygan as hé was coming out
of the smoke-room of the "pub® to the bar and told "That was a pretty rotten
trick you pulled the other night when you took Russell in.' ' Accused replied
that 1f Cygsn did not like the way cases were handled by the "M,P.8” hs could
ses Lisutenant Doolen (R55)e Cygan took his coat off and handed it to Carcia,
saying he would sooner settle it with accused, To avoid a brawl in the hotel,
accused suggested that "If thats the way you feel, lets go out", He did not
expect Garcia to follow them, ' Cygan went ahead end as accussd stepped through
the doorway and down the ons step to the sidewalk, he was hit in the eye by
Cygan. Before he could recover, Cygan hit him again in the mouth and Garcia
Jumped on his back from behind on Cygan's instructions to "Hold him Chief",

e 2 -
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"The knowledge fleshed through my mind (159)
that he carried a knife, and it was known

that he was out to get me, The first

thing I thought then was to get him

before he got me,"

‘Accused could not run as Gercia was holding him from the back and Cygan was
in front of him hitting him in the face. e twisted and tried to get loose
but could not, and then felt for his knife in a sheath in his back pocket.

lle got in one sweep tackwards at the man behind and-one jab forward. They
*let loose® and he put the knife in his pocket. Just then he saw an acquain-
tance, Margeret Caloun, and at her request went down the street with her,

He gave her the Xnife., He informed her that he had to get rid of it and
instructed her to burn it, He then went to.casp in order to inform Lieutcn-
ant Doolen to whom he told substantially the foregoing story. Irom camp he
went with Doolen to the home of Margaret Calnun several hours later where

the knife wes retrieved (R56-57)s Accused knew he was rot supposed to cerry
a knife with so long a blade and did not carry it regularly. He happened to
have it this night which:was dark (R58). He knew whanhe was striking at

with his knife end it was done without thinking whether it was the right thing
to do (R59)s The only thing he could do was to fight. He could not possibly
get away as Garcia had both arms around his neek (R61). Accused was afreid
*he wes going to get badly knifed® (R62), His story was not controverted but
was corroborated in certain particulars by other witnesses, .

4. Both Cygan-and ‘Careia were discovered on the footpath in front of
the hotel and removed by ambulance to a hospital:(R5)s There were no
witnesses of the fights The identity of the two victims was learned from
their identity tags (R8). Both had teen drinking (Rll)e The knife in
question was about 12 inches long; the blade was 6 3/4 inches and very sharp
(R19)e It was red-hot when taken from the fire at the Calnun home some five
hours after being placed there (R21l). Accused received a "pretty bad" black
eye (R26). He was rated by his Provost Sergeant as "the best man we had on
the patrol; he was always on the job, and did his work excellently® (R28).

Garcie died in the hospital about one o'clock and Cygan about five
o'clock the morning after the encounter (R32), Each died as the result of
stad wounds in the abdomen., Garcia had one stab wound and Cygan two, both
deep (R38).

Accused made two sworn statements the day after the fight, both
substantially the same as his testioony before the court, which were admitted
in evidence as Pros.Exs. A" and. "B" (R42,414).

S5e¢ Accused was a-military pclicemen in charge of a l2-ran detail,
He was doing good work but as often heprens in that kind of a job he had in-
curred the apparently undeserved animosity of the two cooks, both strong,
powerful men physically. Accused had heard of their threats to "get him®,
He hed bought a knife from a Dritish soldier at a ti{me when there had been
soms trouble with colored soldiers in his vicinity, which knife he sometimes
carried, It was of illegal 18ngth and accused kmew he should not carry it,

- 3 -
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On the might in Question the two cooks who had been drinking, committed an
unprovoked assault upon him in the blackout darkness. One unexpectedly
ssized him from behind while the other as unexpectedly struck him in the
eye and mouth from in front. He could not free himself, thought of their
threats and of his knife at the same time, drew his knife, struck with i4
apd broke free, There is no evidence of actusl malise or premsditation on
the part of the accused. He was interested only in defending himself from
their assault and freeing himself from their clutches, He had the legal
right to use all force necessary,but no more,.to attain that end. There is
no evidence that accused intended to cause any serious injury to either of.
his assailants except es such intention may be inferred from his use of a
knife., Examination of the body of Cygan, however, disclosed, not one but
two separase and distinct wounds, one in the chest pisrcing the heart and
one appreciably lower downs There is no evidences in the reocord of trial
other than the unexpectedly sudden and violent assault made upon him, to
indicate that accused used his knife in "the heat of sudden passion caused
by provocation' (MQM, 1928, par.l49a, pel65).

"Manslaughter is defined to be the unlawful
and felonious killiag of another, without
malice aforethought, either express or
implied and is either voluntary or involune
tery homicide, depending upon the fact

' whether there was an intention to kill or
pot,* (1 Wharton's Criminal Law, 12tk Bd,,
86c 422, pp«637-640)e

*Manslaughter is distinguished from murder
by the absence of deliberation and malice
- aforethought.*(Ibid., sec.423, p.640)s

*Voluntary mansleughter is an intentional
killing, without malice, in hot blood
produced by adequate cause, and differs -
from murder-in this, that though the act
which occasions the death be unlawful, or
likxely to be attended with bodily miechief,
yet the malice aforethought, which is the
essence of- murder, is presumed to be want-
ing; and the act being imputed to the
infirmity of buman nature, the punishment
is proportionately lenient.® (Ibid., sec.425,
1243 643-645).

%"Asgault upon accused * * * by the person
killed, an attempt to commit serious per-
sonal injury, or-equivalent circumstances,
is necessary to reduce a homicide to volun-
tary menslaughter. 4 slight asssult does
not justify killing wath a deedly weapon.®
(Ibido. 5360426. p.651).

-l -
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"Deadly weapon used by the accused, the

provocation must have been very great in

ordar to reduce the crime in & homicide

to that of voluntary manslaughter., llere

use of deadly weapon does rot of itself

raise a presumption of melice on the part

of the accused; hut where such a weapon

‘ is uesad in a manner lirely to, end does,

N cause death, the law presunes malice from
the act, Fear * * % ig en eloment
reducing a honlcide to véluntary mansw
laughter, but, in order to accomplish this,
the fear rust be cuch as & reasonadle man
would entertain under circumstances of- the
homicide, MNere fear, apprehonsion, or
telief, though homestly entertained, when
not justifiable, will rnot excuse or miti-
gute a Killing where the danger was not
urgent." (Ibid., sece.l26, ppe652-655).

Accused was chiarged with and found guilty of voluntary manelaughter.
There is substantial evidente to support that firding (QM ETO 422, Green;
CM ETO 835, Davig).

- 6, There is another aspect of the circumstances herein which though
not directly raised should be considereds  Was accused in ths situation
described, justified in his ections as e matter of self-defense? One is
not punisheble criminally for talkdng the life of another person whea he has
been put under the necessity, or apparent necessity, of doing so without eny
fault on his own part, in order to protect himself from the peril of death
or serious bodily harm at the hands of the persons whose lives he took.

Oze canrot, however, go further than 1s reasonebly necessary in defense of
his persons He cennot cerry his right of self-defense to the extent of
using a deadly weapon updn his assailants; except where, to his apprehension
as a reasonable man, such extreme measures are necessary to save himself
from death or great bodily harm,

"To justify or excuse a homicide upon the
ground of self-defense it is necessary to
establish that the slayer was without fault
in bringing on the difficulty, thes is,
that he was not the aggressor and did not
provoke the conflict; that the accused
believed at the time that he was in such
immediate danger of losing his own life,
or of receiving serious bodily- harm, as
rendered it necessary to take the life of
his essailant to seve himself thercfrom;
that the circumstances were such es to
afford or warrant reasonable grounds for

-5
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such belief in the rind of 2 man of ordi.ary
reason and firmness; eand thet there was no
other convenient or reasonable rode of es-
.caping or retreating or declinirg the combet,®
(26 Am. Jure, secel26, p.2L2).

*The right to kill in self-defense 1s founded
in necessity, reel or cpparerts The right
exists only in extremity, whers no other
practical means to avoid the-threatened harm
are apparent to the person resortiuz to the
righte If there wes under the facts of the
particular case at bar no real or apparent
necessity for the killirg, the defense com-
pletely fails-erd the slayer will be deemed
gtilty of some grades of culpable homicide.*
(Ibido * 880.137' p.21.9)l

Fete Garcia‘hald both arms around the neck of accused erd zccused
rust have known he had no weapon. Certainly none that he could immediately
use, ' Cygan wes strikint him with bis fist, not a deedly weapon., Surcly
there was nothing to cause accused to te in fear of his life, If he had not
been in possession of the lethal weapcn, it would appear that nothing more
egerious then ean assault and tattetry would have occurred. . Assuming the atory
of accused to be correct and true, t..z killing cannot be justified as done in
self-defense, )

7. The charge' sheet shows accused to te 21} yeurs of age, le
enlisted at Fort Hayes, Ohio, 28 October 19,2 for the duration plus six months.
Yo prior service is shown. .

8. Tke court was legally comnstituted and had juricdiction of the
person and offerses. No errors injuriously affectirg the substantial rights
of accused were comrdtted during the trial, The Loard of Review is of the
opirion that the record of trial is legally sufficient to support tne findirgs
of guilty and the sentence, Coafirememt in a penitentiary is authorized
upon a conviction for voluntary manslaughter (AW 42; sec.275, Federal Criminal
Code (18 U.S.C..454), however, prisoners under 31 yzers of zge and with
sentences of not more than ‘ten yzers, wi1ll be confined in a Federal corrsce
tional irstitution or reformatory (Cir.291, WD, 10 Nov 1943, sec.V, par.3a,
b ani g). The place of confinement herein designeted is therefore authorized.

/ . -
- .
/Wﬁ Judge Advocate
o)

—

Judge Advocate

\

P
udge Advocate
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WD, Brench Office TJAG., with ET-USA. 12 JUN(944 TO: Commending
General, Base Air Depot Area, Air Service Commapnd, United States
Strategic Alr Foroes in Europe, APO. 635, U.S. Army.

l, 1In the case of Private First Class SCOTT J. KERN (15323730),
17th RCD (Avn), Squadron A, VIII Air Force Service Commend,. attention is
invited to the foregoing holding by the Board of Review that the record
of triel is legally sufficient to support the findings of guilty and the
sentence, which holding is hereby approveds Under the provisions of
Article of War 50%, you now have authority to order exscution of the
sentence,

2. 'The fact that accused carried a sharp, dangerous knife in
violation of standing orders cannot be excused, Neither can his use of
seme in the fight with Garcia and Cygan be justified. = He was entitlead
to deferd himself but not, under the circumstances shown, with a deadly
weapon, He wes clearly guilty of manslaughter, However it does not
appear that he was a bellicose, belligerent individual and his record as
a soldier was excellent, He appears to be a fairly intelligent person
of value to the military services The two deceased called accused to
account for his conduct in the performance of official duties imposed on
him by higher authority. They were large, powerful men, The circum-
stances of their joint attack on accused, although invited by him, were

uch as to detract from the homicide a large degree of moral turpitude.
Accused 's testimony -at the trial was forthright and honest, I believe
discipline’ will be susteained and justice vindicated if the dishonorsable
‘discharge is suspended and accused is confined in Disciplinary Training

enter 'No.2912, Shepton Mellet, Somsrsetshire, England. I so recommend.
If such recommendation be followed the additional action should be for-
warded to this office for attachment to the record of trial.

B. hen copies of the published order are forwarded to this
pffice, they should be accompanied by the foregoing holding and this
lindorsement. The file number of the record in this office is ETO 2103,
For convenience of reference plsase place that number in brackets at thne
end of the order: (ETO 2103). '

4

7 ¥ . enerL,
Brigadier Generel, United States Army,
Assistant Judge Advocate General.

nla
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' 165
Branch Office of The Juige Advocate Genersl (165)

with the
Europsan Theatsr of Opsrations
ARO 871

BOARD OF REVIEW
11 MAY 1944
ETO 2114 ‘

UNITED STATES 25TH INFARTRY DIVISION.

3
Y. ) Trial by G.C.M., convened at AFO 29,
) U. S. Army, 13 April 1944. Sentence:
Privete ROY E. COUCH (6969580)) Dishonorsble discharge, toter for-
Battery *B*, 227th Field ) feitures and confinement at hard
Artillery Battalion ) labor for 20 years. United States

) Penitentiery, Lewisburg, Pennsylvania.

HOLDING by the BOARD OF REVIEW
RITER, VAN BENSCHOTEN and SARGENT, Judge Advocates

1l The record of triel in the case of ihe soldier named above has deen
examined by the Board of Review, ‘

2. The accused was tried upon the following Charge and Specification:

CHARGE: Violation of the 58th Article of War.

Specification: In that Private Roy E. Coucn,
Battery "B®, 227th Field Artillery Bm,. 4i4,
at Tidworth Barrac:s, Wiltshire, England,
on or about 4 May 1943 desart the service
of the United States and 4id remain sbsent
in desertion until Le was apprehendsd at
london, England on or about 30 March 1944

He pleaded not guilty to and was found guilty of the Charge and Specification.
Evidence was introduced of two previous convictions by special court-martial,
one for desertion involving absenoce for 197 days in violation of Article of

War 58, the otner for absence without leave for L2 days in violation of

Article of War 61, He was ssntenced to be dishonorably di scharged the service,
to forfeit all pay and allowances dus or to beccmes dus, and to ba confined at
aard labor, at such place as the reviewing authority may direct, for 29 years.
The reviewing authority approved the sentence but reduced the pericd of con-
finement to 20 yeers, designated the United States Penitentisry, Lewisburg,

-1.
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Pennsylvania, as ths place of confinsmant and forwarded the record of trial
for action pursusnt to the provisions of Article of War 50f.

3. The charge shest ahowa that accused is 26 years of sge and enlisted
at Charlotte, N. C. 12 May 1939. Assignsd Battery *D® 36th F.A. Fort Bregg,
N.C. 12 May 1939; assignsd Battery "A® 36th F.A. Fort Bregg, N.C., 7 October
-1941; as=igned Disciplinery Training Center #2, AFO 511, New York, N.Y. 14
December 1942; assigned 29th Infantry Division AR 29, New York, N.Y. 31 March
1943; assigned Battery “B* 227th FA.Bn, AFO 29, New York, N.Y. 4 April 1943.

4e The court was legally constituted and had jurisdiction of the

person and offenss. No errors injuriously affectirg the substantial rights
of accused were committed during the triel, The Board of Review is of the
opinion that the record of trial is legally sufficient to support the finde
ings of guilty and the sentence, The punishmsnt for desertion committed in
time of war is death or such other punislment e&s ths court may direct (AW 58).
The designation of the United States Penitentisry, Lewisburg, Pennsylvania,

as the place of confipnemsnt is autborized (AW 42; Cir. 291, WD, 10 Nov 1943,

sec. V).
Wé Judge Advocate

@M‘Jme Advocate

c e @
‘zﬁgo Advocate
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WD, Branch Office TJAG., with ETOUSA. 11 MAY 1944 TO: Commanding
General, 29th Infantry Division, AFO 29, U, S. Army.

1. In the case of Private ROY E, COUCH (6969580), Battery *B", 227th
Fleld Artillery Battalion, attention is invited to the. foregoing holding of
the Board of Review that the record of trial is legally sufficient to sup-
port. the findings of guilty eard the sentence, which holding is hereby
spproved, Under the provisions of Article of Wer 504, you now have authors
ity to order execution of the aentence,

2, Then coples of the published order are forwarded to this office,
they should . be accompanied by ths foregoing holding amd this indorsement.
The file number of the record in this office is BTO 2114, For convenience
of reference please place that number in brackeis at the end of the order:
(ETO 2114).

Brigadier General United States Army,
Assistant Judge Advocate General.,
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Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General -
with the
European Theater of Operations
‘ APO 871

BOARD OF REVIEW

ET0 2131 27 MAY 1944

UNITED STATES ) WESTERN BASE SECTION, SERVICES
) OF SUPPLY, EUROPEAN THEATER OF
Ve ; OPERAT IONS.
Private THOMAS E. MAGUIRE ) Trial by G.C.M.,, convened at Bristol,
(34051575), Headquarters ) Gloucestershire, England, 4 April 1944,
Corpany, Field Force Replace- ) Sentence: Dishonorable discharge, total
ment Depot Number Two, ) forfeitures and confinement at hard

) labor for five years. Eastern Branch,

) United States Disciplinary Barracks,

) Greenhaven, New York.

HOLDING by the BOARD OF REVIEW
RITER, VAN BENSCHOTEN and SARGENT, Judge Advocates

1, The record of trial in the case of the soldier named above has
been examined by the Board of Review,

2, Accused was tried upon the following Charge and Specifications

CHARGE: Violation of the 86th Article of War,

Specification: In that Private Thomas E, Maguire,
Headquarters Comparny, Field Force Replacement
Depot No., 2, United States Army, Muller's
Orphanage, Bristol, Gloucester, England, a
member of the guard detail, being on guard
and posted as a sentinel at Muller's Orphan-
age, United States Army, Bristol, Gloucester,
England on or about 1800 hours 14 March, 1944,
did leave his post before he was regularly
relieved,

He pleaded not guilty to and was found gullty of the Charge and Specifica-
tion, Evidence was introduced of two previous convictions by summary
court, each for being drunk and disorderly in uniform in a public place in
violation of Article of War 96, He was sentenced to be dishonorably dis-
charged the service, to forfeit all pay and allowances due or to become
due and to be confined at hard labor for 15 years at such place as the
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reviewing authority may direct, The reviewing authority approved the
sentence tut reduced the period of confinement to five years, designated
the Eastern Branch, United States Disciplinary Barracks, Greenhaven, New
York, as the place of confinement and forwarded the record of trial for
action pursuant to the provisions of Article of War 50%,

3. The evidence for the prosecution shows that accused, who had been
in the army for two years, was a member of the permanent guard detail,
Field Force Replacement Depot No. 2, on 21 February 1944 and contimuously
thereafter until 14 March 1944, the date of his alleged offense (R6,12,14,
15=16). According to the established practice and custom of this pa.rtic-
ular permanent guard detail, members reported daily to the ouse.
They ascertained from the’ duty roster (which was kept there) to which of
the six posts serviced by the permanent guard detall and to which relief
each was assigned (R12,15), The testimony of one member of the detail,
who was a witness for the prosecution, shows the method by which sentries
were posted on 14 March 19.4.

"Q. When you go on guard, do you just go from
the guardhouse down to the post, or does
the Sergeant of the Guard take you down
there?

A, Wo just go down from the guardhouss,

Q. Does that hold true in most all cases? A1l
the posts?

A. Yes 311'.

Q. A man just goes dowm by himself?

A, Yes sir.,® (RL).

Asked:
"To your knowledge, do you think anyone of the
guard knows wvhat the post is by its pa.rticular
number?

the same witness replied:

"Hell, maybe not when they first come on guard;
I don't imagine they do, sir, But it doesn't
take long to learn the posts.* (R15).

On 1 March 1944, the accused was regularly assigned as sentry on
Post No, 4, a night-time post unguarded until 6:00 p,m, at which hour the
accused was scheduled to take and remain in charge of it until 9:00 p.m.
which was the hour for the posting of the next relief (R6=7). At ten
minutes to six the accused reported to the sergeant of the guard, "checked
his flashlight out and sald he was going on post, * * #, After that," the
sergeant of the guard testified, "I saw him go out and atart towards his
post. That was about as far as I saw him," % The sergeant did not
know if he was "ever actually on post or not" (RS)

«2 =
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Post No, 2 at .the rear gate of the installation serviced by the
permanent guard detall of which the accused was a member, was less than
200 feet from the north-westerly limits of Post No. 4 (R7; Ex,1). The
sentry who went on duty on Post No, 2 at 63100 p,m. 14 March 194/, testi-
fieds

"About a quarter after seven, Maguire /accused/
approached me at my gate and spoke a few words
to me and then passed on out, * * #, I took
it for granted he had a pass, * * ¥, Approx-
imately nine o'clock, Sergeant Raxter came
down from the guardhouse and asked me where
Maguire was, I told him he was on pass, and I
left him out, He told me that Maguire was to
be on post, and to pick him up when he came,
which I did about five after ten," (R13).

The officer of the day checked Post No, 4 at approximately 7:30
pPels He found no sentry but thought he "might have missed him,* He
made another check 15 mimutes later and egain found no sentry on Post No,
4, which he described as a "horseshoe post around the FX." He reported
the sentry's absence to the guardhouse and instructed the sergeant of the
guard to put another man on the post (R3-9),

The provost marshal inspected the Post No, 4 at 8:00 p,m, He
found no sentry on duty at that post, He then ascertained that the
accused was scheduled for sentry duty on Post No, 4 from 6:00 to 9:00 p.m.
He forthwith "left orders with the guard that should this man return to
the post, or should the man come back on the post, if he was off it, that
he should be put in confinement pending an investigation in the morning."
(R11), When the sentry detailed to relieve the accused arrived at Post
No, 4 at about 9:15 p.m., the accused was not there (R15), He was seen
at a public house about three blocks from his station shortly after 9:00
pem. (R17),

4L No evidence was adduced on behalf of the defense and after the
accused's rights as a witness were duly explained to him, he elected to
remain silent (R18), :

5¢ The elements of proof for the offense with which the accused was
charged ares .

(1) That the accused was posted as a sentinel as alleged; and
(2) That he left such post without being regularly relieved.
(MCM, 1928, par.li6g, p.l6l),

The fact that the sentinel was not posted in the regular way is not a
defense (MCM, 1928, par.l46a, p.160). The direct evidence without con-
tradiction shows that the accused left his station about 7:15 p.m, through
the rear gate less than 200 feet from Post No, 4, where, according to the
guard roster he was detailed for sentry duty from 6:00 to 9:00 p,m., and
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whither, at ten minutes of 6:00 pem., he had reported to thé sergeant of
the guard that he was going, The testimony of the sergeant of the guard
does not directly prove that the accused actually arrived at his post on
the occasion in question, but it does prove conduct on the part of accused
and a declaration made by him from which, in connection with the testimony
of the sentry on Post No, 2, and the established proximity of Post No, 2
to Post No, 4, the court might reasonably infer, that the accused actually
did arrive at his post pursuant to his expressed intention, indicated when
he left the guardhouse at 5150 p,m, These facts constitute "one or more®
circumstances which, according to the Mamual for Courts-Martial "may be
more convincing than a plausible witneas" (MCM, 1928, par,112, p,111), and
together constituted ‘a sufficicvnt matrix of probative facts fron which the
court wag authorized to infer the ultimate fact that accused was actually
"posted® within the purview of the 86th Article of War (CM ETO 132, Kelly

and Hyde; CM ETO 527, Astrella).

Moreover, the evidence adduced by the prosecution was clearly
sufficient to shift the Burden of explanation to the accused (CM ETO 2273,

Sherman; CM ETO 1629, O'Dopnell; CM ETO 1317, Bentley; CM ETO 527, Agtrella).
He made no attempt to discharge it,

The Board of Review is therefore of the opinion that the record is
legally sufficient to support the findings of guilty and the sentence.

6. The charge sheet shows that the accused is 28 years four months of
age, that he enlisted at Camp Blanding, Florida, 12 April 1941, to serve
one year, and that his term of service was contirmed by the "National Act
of 1941." = He had no prior service,

7. The court was legally constituted and had jurisdiction of the per-
son end offense, No errors injuriously affecting the substantial rights
of the accused were committed during the trial,

8. The designation of the Eastern Branch, United States Disciplinary
Barracks, Greenhaven, New York, as the place of confinement is authorized
(Cir. 210, WD, 14 Sep 1943, dec,VI, par,2a, as amended by Cir, 331, WD, 21
Dec 1943, sec.II, par,2).

/%fu—#- /4« Fudge Aévogm
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lst Ind; o L

. o7 MAY 1944 i
WD, Branch Office TJAG,,- with ETOUSA, : : TO: Commanding
Officer, Western Base Sectlon, S0S, ETOUSA, APO 515, U.S. Army,

1, In the case of Private THOMAS E, MAGUIKE (34051575), Headquarteras
Company, Field Force Replacement Depot Number Two, attention is invited to
the foregoing holding by the Board of Review that the record of trial is
legally sufficient to support the findings of guilty and the ‘sentence,
which holding is hereby approveds Under the provisions of Article of War
50%, you now have authority to order execution of the sentence,

: 2. When coples of the published order are forwarded to this office.

they should be accompanied by the foregoing holding and this indorsement,

The file mumber of the record in this office is EIO 2131, For convenience
of reference please place that mumber in brackets at the end of the orders
(ETO 2131).

Brigadier General, United States Arny)
Assistant Judge Advocate Genersl,

-1‘
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Branch Office of The Judge Advocate Gemeral
with the
European Theater of Operations

BOARD OF REVIEW

13 MAY 1944
ETO 2134

UNITED STATES ) 4TH INFANTRY DIVISICN
Ve Trial by G.C.M, convened at APO 4,
England, 11 April 1944. Sentence:
Dishonorable discharge, total for-

Private LOUIS A. SMIIEY, JR.
feitures, and confinement at hard

(7020718), and Private CECIL J.

HAMILTON (14041154), both.of labor, Smiley for 12 years at the

Headquarters Battery, 42nd Fleld United States Penitentiery,lewisburg,

Artillery Battalion, Pennsylvania, and Hamllton for 10 years
at the Federal Reformatory,Chilli-
cothe, Chio,

HOIDING by the BOARD CF REVIEW
RITER, VAN BENSCHOTEN and SARGENT, Judge Advocates,

l. The record of trial in the case of the soldiers named above has been
examined by the Board of Review,

2o Accused were tried upon the following charge and specifications:

SMIIEY

CHARGE: Violation of the 93rd Article of War,

Specification 1:. In that Private (them Private First Class)
ILouis A, Smiley, Jr., Headquarters Battery, 42nd Fleld
Artillery Battalion, did, at Iron Bridge, Gettishanm,
Devon, England, on or about 22 March 1944, commit the
crime of sodomy, by feloniously and against the order
of nature having carnal comnectlon per os with ome
Keith Powell, a male human being,

Specification 2: Im that Private (then Private First Class)
Louis A, Smiley, Jr,, Headquarters Battery, 42nd Field
Artillery Battalion, did, at Iron Bridge, Gettisgham,
Devon, England, on or about 22 March 1944, with intent
to complt a felony, viz sodomy, commit an assault upon

Keith Powell, by willfully and feloniously striking him
in the face with his fist,

-l-
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CHARGE: Violation of the 93rd Article of War,

Specification 1: Im that Private (then Techn!clan 5th Grade)
Cecil J, Hamilton, Headquarters Battery, 42nd Field
Artillery Battalion, did, at Iron Bridge, Gettisham,
Devon, England, on or about 22 March 1944, commit the
orime of sodomy, by felomiously and against the order
of nature havimg carnmal connection per os and per anum
with one Xeith Powell, a male human being,

Specification 2: In that Private (thea Technician 5th Grade)
Cecil J, Hamilton, Headquarters Battery, 42nd Field
Artillery Battalion, did, at Iron Bridge, Gettisham,
Devon, England, on or about 22 March 1944, with intent
to commit a felony, viz sodomy, commit an assault upon
Keith Powell, by willfully and feloniously and forcibly
holding his arms, legs and body and disarranging his
clothilg.

Bach pleaded mot gullty to and each was found guilty of the Charge and Speci-
ficatiqns, No evidence of previcus convictions was introduced against either
of accused, Each was sentenced to be dishonorably discharged the service, to
forfeit all pay &nd allowances due or to become due and to be confined at
hard labor for 12 years at such place as the reviewlng authority may direct,
The reviewing authority approved the sentence as to Smiley, and designated
the United States Penitentiary, Lewisburg, Pemnsylvania, as the place of
confinement, He approved only so much of the sentence as to Hamilton as
involved dishonorable discharge, forfeiture of all pay and allowances due

or to become due, and confinement at hard labor for tem years, and designated
the Federal Reformatory, Chillicothe, Chio, as the place of confinement.

The record of trial was forwarded for action pursuant to the provisions of
Article of War 50%,

3¢ Each accused consented in open court to & common trisal,

4o The charge sheet shows the following: Smiley is 25 years 3 months
of age, He enlisted 6 January 1940 to serve three years (duration plus six
months), Hamilton 18 22 years, 1 month of age, . He enlisted 19 October 1940
to serve three years (duration of the war plus six momths), Keither accused
had prior service,

5« The court was legally constituted and had jurisdiction of each
accused and of the offenses, No errors injuriously affecting the substantial
rights of the accused were committed during the trial, The Board of Review

is of the opinion that the record is legally sufficient to support the findings
of guilty and the sentence as to each accused,

6, Confinement in a penitentiary as punishment for the crimes of sodomy
and assault with imtent to commit sodomy is authorized (CM 187221, Sumrall;

-2-
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CM 171311,Stearns; District of Columbia Code secs. 24=401 (6-401), 22-107
(627) and 22:503 (6:28); 1 Wharton's Criminal Law Sec 761, p. 1042), The
respective places of confinement are authorized (Cir. 291, WD, 10 Nov.1943,

Sec, V, pars 3a and b).
m Judge Advocate
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lst Ind..

WD, Branch Office TJAG., with ETOUSA, APO 871. 13 MAY 1944 T0: Commanding
General, 4th Infantry Division, APO 4, U, S. ARMY,

1, In the case of Privates LOUIS A. SMIIEY, JR., (7020718) and CECIL
J. HAMILTQN (14041154), both of Headquarters Battery, 42nd Artillery Battalion,
attention is invited to the foregoing holding of the Board of Review, that
the record of trial is legally sufficient to support the findings and the sen-
tences, which holding is hereby approved., Uader the provisions of Article of
War 50z, you mow have authority to order executlon of the sentences,

24 When copies of the published order are forwarded to this office, they
should be accompanied by the foregoing holding and this indorsement, The
file number of the record in this office is ETO 2134, For convenience of
reference please place that number in brackets at the end of the order:

(ETO 2134). |
/' “E. c. MMM

Brigadier Genera.l, United States Army
Assistant Judge Advocate General,
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os of The Judge Advocate General
with the

pean Theater of .Operations
APO 871

2 6 MAY 1944

ETO 2157
UNITED STATES BASE AIR DEPOT AREA, AIR SERVICE

COMMAND, UNITED STATES STRATEGIC

Y. AIR FORCES IN EURCFE,

Private DAVID CHEEK (33194194), Trial by G.C.M., convened at City
1962nd Ordnance Depot Coapany Hall, Leicester, Leicestershire,
(Aviation), Combat Support Wing, England, 29 March 1944. Sentence:

Dishonorable discharge, total for-
feitures and confinement at hard
labor for three years, United
States Penitentlary, Lewisburg,
Pennsylvania,

HOLDING by the BOARD CF REVIEW '
RITER, VAN BENSCHOTEN and SARGENT, Judge Advocates

1, 7The reoord of trial in ths case of the soldier named above has
been examined by the Board of Review,

2, Acoused was tried upon the following charges and specificationss

CHARGE I: Viola
Specification:

tion of the 93rd Article of War,
In that Private David (NMI) Cheek,

1962nd Ordnanoe Depot Co (Avm), Combat Support

Wing did at

England on
tent to do

or near Leicester, Lsicestershire
or about 1 February 1944 with in-
him bodily barm commit an assault

upon James Henry Harrison by willfully and
feloniously attempting to run him down with
a motor vehicle, to wit a 3/4 ton Weapons

Carrier,

CHARGE II: Violation of the 96th Article of War,

8pecification 1:

In that # # #, did at AAF 520,

APO 635 on or about 1 February 1944, wrong-
fully and without proper authority, take and
use a certain vehicle, to wit a 3/4 ton Weapons
Carrier, the property of the United States of a
value of more than $50,00,

-l-
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Specification 2: In that # # », did on or about
1 Pebruary 1944, «t or near Lsiocester,
Leicestershire, England, wrongfully and unlaw-
fully drive a motor vehicle or a road in a
mamner which was dangerous to the public, bav-
ing regard to all the circumstances of the case,
including the nature, ocondition and use of ihe
road and the amount of traffic which was actually
at the time, or which might reascnably be expect-
ed to be on the road, thereby causing injury to
certain people, to wit:
Miss Kathreen Duddle, 3 Brunswick Place, Leicester,
Gumner Alfred Thomas Turner, 430th Battery Light
Anti-Aircreft, R.A..
Agnes Cecilia Clague, 356 London Road, leicester.
Horeop Mould, 47 Brook Street, Islcester,
Rose Parker, 47 Brook Street, Leicester,
Specification 3: In that # # %, did on or about
1 February 1944, at or near Lesiocester, Leicester-
shire England, wrongfully and unlawfully drive a
motor vebicle on a public highway whils drumk,

He pleaded not guilty to and was found guilty of all cbarges and specifica~
tions, Evidence was introduced of two previous convictions by summary

" courtss one for absence without leave for four days in violaticn of the
6lat Article of War and one for disorderly comduct in quarters in violation
of the 96th Article of War, He was sentenced to be dishonorably discharged
the service, to forfeit all pey and allowances due or to become due and to
be confined at hard labor for three years at such place as ths reviewing
authority may direct, The reviewing authority approved the sentence,
designated the United States Penitentiary, lLewisburg, Pennsylvania, as the
place of confinement and forwarded the record of trial for action under
Article of War 50%,

3. (2) The deposition of Kathleen Duddle, a witness for:the
tion, was taken upon written stipulation of the .trial judge adwocate and
defense counsel and was read at the trial (R46), It oontains interroga~
tions propounded by the trial Judge advocate and cross-interrogatories
propounded by defemse counsel, Miss Duddie was confined in s nmursing
home at the time her deposition was taken, under-going treatment for severe
injuries sustained by ber as a result of being struck by the motor truck
then being driven by accused., She was physically incapacitated to the ex-
tent that her attendance at trial was impossible (R54,55). The deposition was
signed and sworn to by Miss Duddle before the trial judge advooate, The
stipulation recites that the deposition was "taken" by the trial judge
advooate and defense counsel, The defense objected to the reading of the
deposition solely on the ground that the witness's testimony was immaterial
because it did not comnect acoused with the incident therein reoited, nor
with the injuries sustained Ly the witness, The trial judge advocate was
authorized to administer the ocath to Miss Duddle (AW 114), In view of the
stipalation supporting the deposition there was no valid objection to the
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trial judge advocate administering the oath to the witness as it is apparent
that the defense consented thereto, The materlality of Miss Duddle's testi-
mony was adequately established, There was no error in admitting the deposi-
tion in evidence,

(b) The motion of defense counsel to strike Specification 2,
Charge II on the grounds that it was so indefinite that it did not apprise
accused of the nature of the offense charged (MCM, 1928, par,71g, p.56) was
properly denied, Such form of allegation adequately charges reckless
driving of a motor wehicle upon a public highway (5 Am,Jur,,86c¢,802,p,932;
42 C.J., 8ec,1278, p.1325; 86 A.L.R., annotation, sec,IIla,p,1273)., The
acoused was fully informed as to how, when and where he operated the truck,
The allegation identifying the persons injured was evidentiary and surplusage
in nature, but the same was harmless (5 Am,Jur., 8ec,802, p. 932; 42 C.J.,
sec,1278, p.l325; 86 A.L.R., annotation, sec.III, p.1273$.

(o) There was no error in permitting Lieutenant Rubenstsin to
refer to plans and operation sheets, official records made undsr his
supervision, in order to refresh his memory as to the mmber of the wehicle
driven by acoused (R7)., Likewise there was no error in permitting Dr,

Noble to refer for purpose of refreshing his memory, to the form of report
of suspected intoxicated persons prepared and signed by him (CM ETO 895,

et al and authorities therein cited). However, the form prepared
by Dr, Noble (Pros.Ex.A) was improperly admitted in evidence, It was
hearsay (CM ETO 438, Smith). The error was harmless inasmch as Dr, Noble's
testimony included all of the information shown on the report.

4e  (a) Aspault with intent to do bodily harm (Charge I). The evidence
is clear and convincing that Police Sergeant Harrison was hit by the motor

truck driven by acocused, not as a result of acocused's negligent operation
thereof but consequential upon accused's wilful and deliberate act in
steering the vehicle upon Harrison, The inference that he did so with in-
tent to injure the police-officer is obvious (6 C.J.S.,86c.63, p.919), The
evidence also clearly establishes the fact that he possessed the present
ability to infliot bodily harm (6 C.J.S., 86c.64, ps 920), The record
sustains the finding that accused assaulted Harrison by use of the truck
with intent to do him bodily harm (1 Wharton's Criminal law - 12th Ed., =
mom, p.10‘98; sec, 813’ p.1107).

(b) Mrongful use of Government vehicle (Specification 1, Charge II).
The evidence is uncontradicted that acoused took and used the weapons carrier
without proper authority, The record is legally sufficient to support the
finding of guilty of this specification (CM ETO 393, Caton and Fjikes;
CM ETO 492, lewis; CM ETO 656, Taylor; CM ETO 1953, Lewis).

(o) ess dri of motor ve 0 c
(Specification 2, Charge II). The evidence is substantial and complete that
accused drove the weapons carrier upon crowded public thoroughfares at and
near leiocester, England, in a manner which indicated a reckless disregard
for the safety of others, 4s a result thereof injuries were inflicted upon
five persons rightfully upon the highways, The offense was a serious one

-3
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and was fully proved beyond a reasonable doubt (See authorities cited in
3(b), supra). Reckless driving of a motor vehicle upon a public highway
1s an offense under the 96th Article of War (CM 151695 (1930), Dig.Op.JiG,
1912-1940, 86¢.428(5), Ps295; CH NATO 1151 (1944), Bull.JAG, Vol III, Ho.
3,Mar 1944, 800.454(76), pl.l0l).

(a) motor vehicle on ¢ while
(Specification 3, Charge 1I). The evidence shows, without contrediction
that accused was in a beastly condition of intoxication while he was driving
the weapons oarrier on the public streets of Lelcester, England, and vicinity.
Such offense is separate and distinct from the reckless driving charge,
The record is legally sufficient to support the finding of guilty (CM ETO
1107, Shuttleworth).

5¢ The punishment for assault with intent to do bodily harm is
dishonorable discharge, total forfeitures and confinement at hard labor for
one yoar, Although a motor vehicle may be¢oms a "dangerous weapon or

(Winkler v, State, 45 (kla.Crim Rep 322, 283 Fac.591; People v,

Goldsby, 284 Mich.375, 279 N W 867; People v. Benson, 321 111, 605, 152
N.E 514, 46 AIR 1056), the specification of Charge I alleges an assault
with intent to do bodily harm only (Form 99, p.250,MCM 1928). It does not
include an allegation that accused committed an assault upon Harrison with
intent to do him bodily harm by striking him with a "dangerous thing, to-wit
a motor vehicle®, Hsnce neither Section 276 of the Federal Criminal Code
(18 USCA 455) nor Sections 22-502 (6:27) and 22-503 (6:28) District of
Columbin Code are applicable in determining the place of confinement, The
offense of "wrongful taking and using®" Govermnment property is analogous to
larceny and the same punishment may be imposed upon ome comnvioted thereof
(CM 234468 (1943, Bull.JAG, Vol II, No.6,Jun 1943, 860.454(105), Pe239)e
The stipulated valus of the weapons carrier was $1465,00, The maximum
punishment therefore included confinement at hard labor for five years,
The punishment for reckless driving on a public thoroughfare includes
oonfinement for three months (CM NATO 1151 (1944), Bull.JAG, Vol III,
¥o.3, Mar 1944, 800.,454(76), pel0l), The punishment imposed is within
authorised limits,

6. The charge sheet shows that accused is 34 years five months of

age and that he was inducted on 4 August 1942 at Fort Myer, Virginia,
He had no prior service,

7« The oourt was legally constituted and had jurisdiotion of the
person and of the offenses, Ho errors injuriously affecting the substantlal
rights of accused were committed during the trial. The Board of Review is
of the opinion that the record of trial is legally sufficient to support
the findings of guilty and the sentence,

8. lone of the offenses of which accused was oonvioted were offenses
for which penitentiary oonfinement is authorized by either the Federal
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Criminal Code or the Code of the District of Columbia, Penitentiary (183)
confinement is therefore illegal (AW 42), The place of confinement should

be changed to Eastern Branch, United States Disciplinary Barracks, Greenhaven,
New York (Cir, 210, WD, 1, Sep 1943, sec,VI, par.2a as amended by Cir, 331,

WD, 21 Dec 1943, 89c.II, par.2).

/{m /é | Juﬁge Advocate
@49'&*0&2:: Sudge Advocate

dﬁ . ~Judge Advocate
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1st Ind,

‘ Y19
WD, Branch Office TJAG., with ETOUSA, 26 MAY 1044 T0: Commanding
Gensral, Base Air Depot Area, Air Service Coumand, Unitcd States Strategio
- Alr Forces in Europe, APQ 635, U.S. Arumye

-1, In the case of Private DAVID CHEEK (33194194), 1962nd Crdnance
Depot Company (Aviation), Combat Support Wing, attention is invited to the
foregoing holding by the Board of Review that the record of trial is legally
sufficient to support the findings of gullty and the semtence, which holding
is hereby approved. Under the provisions of Article of War 50%, you new
have authority to order exescution of the sentenoce, ' ‘

2, ©XNone of the offenses of which accused was convicted were offenses
for which penitentiary confinement is authorized by either the Federsl
Criminal Code or the Code of the District of Columbla, Penitentiary con~ -
finement would therefore be illegal (AW 42)., The place of confinement
should be changed to Eastsrn Branch, United States Disciplinary Barracks,
Greenhaven, New York, This may be done in the published court-martial ordeq

3¢ VWhen coples of the published order are forwardsd to this offioce,
they should be accompanied by the foregoing holding and this indorsement,
The file number of the record in this office is ETO 2157, For convenience
of reference please place that mumber in brackets at the end of the order:

(ETO 2157).:
B{c/mn%

Brigadler General, United States Army,
-Assistant Judge Advocate General..

-1»
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Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General (185)
with the
European Theater of Operatioms
APO 871
BOARD (F REVIEW
ETO 2158 27 MAY 1944
UNITED STATES BASE AIR DEPOT AREA, AIR SERVICE

Ve

Private FRANK E, HUCKABAY
(18042825), Headquarters,
MAS., BAD No. 1, A.AF 590.

COLZAND, UNITED STATES STRATEGIC
AIR FORCES IN EURCPE,

Trial by G.C.M., convened at Albert
Hall, Manchester, Lancashire, England,
4 April 1944, Sentence: Dishonorable

discharge, total forfeitures and con-

finement at hard labor for five years,
The Federal Reformatory, Chillicothe,

Ohio,

HOLDING by the BOARD OF REVIEW
RITER, VAN BENSCHOTEN and SARGENT, Judge Advocates

The record of trial in the case of the soldier named above has

been examned by the Board of Review.

2. Accused was tried upon the following charges and specificatibns:

CHARGE I: Violation of the 6lst Article of Var,

Specification: 1 1In that Pvt. Frank Earl Ruckabay,
Headquarters, M4S,, BAD No, 1, did, without
proper leave, abeent himself from his quarters,
at AAF 590, APO 635 from about 26 December,
1943 to about 29 December, 1943.

Specification: 2 In that % # %, did, without proper
leave, absent himself from his quarters, at AAF
590, APO 635 from about 17 Jamua~y, 1944 to
about 24 February, 1944.

CHARGE II: Violetion of the 93rd Article of War,

Specification 1: In that # * %, did, at 36 Grosvenor
Road, Vhalley Range, lanchester, Lancs,, England,
on or gbout 27 Jamuary, 1944 feloniously, take,
steal and carry away a ladies engagement ring,
value about $48.00, the property of Muriel May
H&milton.

-1
4 1HFIDENTIAL



(136)

Specification 2: 1In that * * %, did, at 31 Blackfriars,
St., Manchester, Lancs., England, on or about,
February 22, 1944-with intent to commit a felony,
viz: Robbery - Commit an assault upon Isidor
Apfelbaum, by willfully and feloniously striking
the said Isidor Apfelbauvm, on the. head and hands
with a piece of iron.

He pleaded guilty to Charge I and its specifications, not guilty to

Crarge II and the specifications thereunder, and was found guilty of both
charges and their specifications, Evidence was introduced of two previous
convictions by swmary court for absence without leave in violation of

article of ‘lar 61, He was sentenced to be dishonorably discharged the
service, to forfeit all pay and allowances due. or to become due and to be
confined at hard labor for five years at such place as the reviewing authority
may direct. The revliewing authority approved the sentence, designated the
Federal Heformatory, Chillicothe, Ohio as- the place of confinement and forwarded
th§ record of trial for action pursuant to the provisions of Article of War

5 O‘;‘ .

3. It is doubtful if a value of over $20 was satisfactorily established
by the evidence with reference to the ring alleged in Specification 1,
Charge II. However, in view of the findings of guillty of assault with the
intent to commit robbery, for which penitentiary confinement is authorized,
the findings of guilty of two periods of absence without leave, and the
sentence imposed, a consideration of the question of value of the article
alleged becomes unimportant (CM ETO 1453, Fowler),

4+ The charge sheet shows that accused 18 22 years of age and that he
enlisted for three years on 24 lay 1941 at Houston, Texas.

5. The court was legally constituted and had Jurisdiction of the person
and offensesa, No errors injuriously affecting the substantial rights of
accused were committed during the trial., The Board of Review is of the
opinion that the record of trial is legally sufficient to support the
findings of gullty and the sentence. Confinement in a penitentiary is
authorized for the offense of assault with the intent to cormit a felony
(robbery) (18 U.S.C. 455). A4s accused is under 31 years of age and his
sentence is not more than ten years, the designation.of the Federal Reforma-
to§y, Chillicothe, Ohio is authorized. (Cir. 29}, "D, 10 Nov,1943, sec.V, par.
3&0

/A Judge Advocate
%M
- Judge Advocate

5‘ Judge Advocate
. -~
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(187)
1lst Ind,

WD, Branch Office TJAG., with ETOUSA, <7 MAY[944  T0: Commanding
General, Base Air Depot Area, Air Service Command, United States Strategic
Air Forces in Burope, APO 635, U.S. Army,

1. In the case of Private FRANK E, HUCKABAY (18042825), Headquarters,
MAS., BAD No, 1, AAF 590, attention is invited to the foregoing holding
by the Board of Review that the record of trial is legslly sufficient to
support the findings of guilty and the sentence, which holding is hereby
approved, Under the provisions of Article of War 50%, you now have
authority to order execution of the sentence.

2, TWhen coples of the published order are forwarded to this office
they should be accompanied by the foregoing holding aend this indorsement,
The file number of the record in this office is ETO 2158, For convenience
of reference please place that number in brackets |a.t the end of the order:

(ETO 2158).
7
24

7 £ ¢, wIEL,
Brigadier General, United States Army,
Assistant Judge Advocate General,
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Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General (189)
with the
European Theater of Operations
APO 871
BOARD CF REVIEW
ETO 2160 27 MAY 1944
UNITED STATES BASE AJR DEPOT AREA, SERVICE

)
) COICAND, UNITED STAYES STRATEGIC
Ve g AIR FORCES IN EUROFE,

Private WARREN H, HEMRY ) Trial by G.C.M., convened at AAF
(37262909), Squadron &, 12th ) Station 591, APO 635, U.S. Army,
Replacement Gontrol Depot, ) 8 April 1944. Sentence: Dishonorsble
AAF-591, VIII Air Force Service ) discharge, total forfeitures and cone
Comnand, ) finement at hard labor for nine and
3 one~half years, Eastern Branch,
United States Disciplinary Barracks
) Greenhaven, New York,

HOLDING by the BCARD CF REVIEW
RITER, VAN BENSCHOTEN and SARGENT, Judge Advocate

l. The record of trial in the case of the goldier named above h. s
been examined by the Board of Review,

2. Accused was tried upon the following Charge and Specifications

CHARGEs Violation of the 6lgt Article of Var,

Spécification: In that Pvt, ‘Tarren H, Henry, Sq A,
12th Repl Contl Depot, AAF-591, APO 635, VIII
AF.S5.C., did, without proper leave, absent
himself from his station at AAF Station 591
from about 0001 hours, 12 Decermber, 1943 to
about 1400 hours 2 March, 194/.

He pleaded guilty to and was found guilty of the Charge and Specification.
Evidence was iniroduced of three previous convictions by special court:

two for sbsence without leave for 16 and 24-days respectively in violation
of Article of Tiar 61, and one for absence without leave for one day in
violation of Article of Var 61 and for erbezzlement of $8l.44, the property
of another soldier. He was sentenced to be dishonorably discharged the
service, to forfeit all pay and allowances due or to become due and to be
confined at hard labor for nine and one-half years at such place as the
reviewing suthority may direct. The reviewing authority approved. the

-1
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sentence, designated the Eastern Branch, United States Dieciplinary Barracks,
Greenhaven, Kew York, as the place of confinement and forwarded the record of
trial for action pursuant to the provisions of Article of War 50%.

3. The pleas of guilty are fully supported by the evidence,

4o The charge sheet shows that accused was 22 years, ten months of age,
and that he was inducted 11 September 1942 at Fort Crook, Nebraska, to serve
for the duration of the war plus six months, He had no prior service,

5. The court was legaelly constituted and had jurisdiction of the person
and offense, No errors injuriously affecting the substantial rights of ac-
cused were committed during the trial, The Board of Feview is of the opinion
that the record of trial is legally sufficient to support the findings of
guilty and the sentence. Confinement in the Eastern Branch, United States
Disciplinary Batracks, Greenhaven, New York, is authorized (AH 42; Cir,210,
WD, 14 Sep 1943, sec.VI, par.2a, as amended by Cir, 331, WD, 21 Dec 1943,

sec.II, par.2).
%szé—ﬁ Judge Advocate

Judge Advocate

<:ff.:‘ Judge Advocate
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1st Ind,

WD, Branch Office TJAG., with ETOUSA, 27 MAY 1944  TO: Commanding
General, Base Alr Depot Area, Air Service Command, United States Strategic
Air Forces in Europe, APO 635, U.S. Army, ’

l. In the case of Private WARREN H., HENRY (37262909), Squadron A,
12th Replacement Control Depot, AAF-591, VIII Air Force Service Command,
attention 1s invited to the foregoing holding by the Board of Review that
the record of trial 1s legally sufficient to support the findings of
guilty and the sentence, which holding is hereby approved, Under the
provisions of Article of Tar 50}, you now have authority to order execution
of the sentence, ' -

2, TWhen copies of the published order are forwarded to this office,
they should be accompanied by the foregoing holding and this indorsement,

The file m—%“ur of the record in this office is ETO 2160, For convenience
of referer . please place that number in brackets at the end of the orders

(ETO 2160),
7% .. MeNETL,

Brigadier General, United States Ammy,
Assistant Judge Advocate General.

-1
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Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General
with the
European Theater of Operations
AFPO 871

BOARD OF REVIEW

ETO 2185 6 JUN 1944

UNITED STATES 3D BOMBARIAENT DIVISION

Trial by G.C.M., convened at AAF
Station 136. APO 559. UsS. m'
16 April 1946:s Sentence: Dis-
honorable discharge, toteal for-
feitures and confinement at hard
labor for two yeears, 2912th Dis-
ciplinary Training Center, APO 508,
U, Se Army.

Ve

Corporal JAMES R, NELSON
(34588501), Detachment "A®,
1249th Military Police
Company (Avn).

Nt N Nl N o N St o N N

HOLDING by the BOARD OF REVIEW
RITER, VAN BENSCHOTEN and SARGENT, Judge Advocates

l., The record of trial in the case of the soldier named above has been
examined by the Board of Review,

2. Accused was tried upon the following charges and specifications:

CHARGE I:1 Violation of the 94th Article of War.
Specifications In that Corporal Jemes R, Nelson,
Detachment *"A®, 1249th Military Police Company
(Aviation), AAF Statiom 126, APO 634, U. S.
Army, did, at AAF Station 126, APO 634, U. S.
Army, on or about the 20th of February 1944,
feloniously take, steal, and carry away approxie
mately four thousand (4,000) francs French money,
of the value of about $80,.00 property of the
United States, furnished and intended for the
military service thereof.
e
CHARCE IIs; Violation of the 96th Article of War.
(Disapproved by reviewing authority)
Specifications (Disapproved by reviewing authority)

-;-
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He pleaded not guilty to end was found guilty of the charges end specifica-
tions., o evidence of previous convictions was introducede He was
sentenced to be dishonorably discharged the service, to forfeit all pay and
allowances due or to become due and to be confined at hard labor at such '
place as the reviewing authority may direct, for two years. The reviewing
authority di sapproved the findings of guilty of Charge II and its Specifica-
tion, approved the sentence, designated the 2912th Disciplinary Training
Center, AFO 508, U.S. Army as the place of confinement and forwarded the
record of trial for action pursuant to the provisions of Article of Wer 50%.

3« The orly question requiring consideration is whether proof of the
corpus delicti was legally sufficient to warrant the admission in evidence
of accused's written confession of guilt (Pros.Exs.3)s Proof of the corpus
delicti was substantially as follows:. '

On 20 February 1944 at AAF Station 126, a B=17 airplene landed on
return from a mission about 5 pem. on thet date (R5; Pros.Ex.2), Accused
guarded the airplene during the early morning hours of the following day
(R6; Pros.Ex.3). Early one morning in February accused, with the consent
of Private Jack C. Lyons, Detachment A, 1249th Military Police Company
(Aviation), placed in the latter's locker a bundle wrarred in a towel, saying
it was "sore stuff teken from the plane®, Accused removed tne bundle from
the locker tetween 4 and 8 pem., the same evening. The following morning
Lyons overheard accused telling a tcoldier named Long thet he (accused) wanted
to turn in "the money" (R7-11),

Private R.J.long, 1202nd Military Folice Company, testified that
about 21 February he had a conversation with accused about some French money,
but that the witness did not receive any French money from accused at that
time (R29).

Ceptain Ray He Moneymaker, Air Corps, 92nd Bombardment Group, AAF
Station 1C9 (home base of the ship), Prisoner of War officer of that orgamiza-
tion, testified that he had supervision of the issuirg of escape kits and
purses, Each purse conteired 2000 franca, The records with regard to these
items were maintained in his offices The witness idertified e "check out
1ist® which was admitted in evidence and wnhich showed that ten escepe kits and
ten purses were issued on 20 February to "M.Ford" and that four purses and one
escape kit were "stolen". TFord wac a flight officer dnd co-pilot of the air-
plane. Six purses and nine kit3 were returned (I12-13,15,17; Pros.Ex.l).
Captain Moneymaker asred Lieutenart Beech, commanding officer of the ship,
aebout the missing property, which had to te disposed of etce by a report of
survey or a certificate of destruction, if it was to te "written off", As
the result of their conversation, Lieutenant Beach wes directed by Captein
Mopeymaker to write a letter to the Security Officer, 1lst Bombardment
Division, concerning the missing property. Eeach did so, and at the trial
Moneymaker testified that he was familiar with Beacn's signature and identi-
fied the lettcr (R12-14,24-25), Captain lioneymaker further testified that
the letter was part of the official records of his file with respect to the
missing items (R2j)e It constituted a preliminary step to end formed the
basis of any ultimate report of survey, and was the only document on record to

~
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show that the purses were lost (R25-26)., As the pilot was usually at the
*briefing® when the kits and purses were issued, the property was generally
issued to the co-pilote. If the property was later lost, a written statement
would be obtained "from the man involved, usually the pilot or coe-pilot® or,
if they were absent, from "any man that is available®, = In the event the
escape kits and purses were lost or misplaced, Captain Moneymaker's duties
required that he initiate the subsequent report of esurvey. In this instance
he was the "responsible® officer and Ford was the "accountable® officer (R25).
The escape kits and purses were items issued by the Government for military

purposes (R23),

It was stipulated that Lieutenant Beach and his entire crew were
asince reported missing in action (Rl4), The letter signed by Lieutenant
Beach, which was admitted in evidence over the objection of the defense (R27;
Pros.Ex.2), stated in substance that the airplans concerned landed at the
plare alleged 20 February 194l;, and thai arrengements were immediately made
to have the ship guarded, About 2 p.m., 21 February, certein property was
found missing from the airplene including inter alia "1 escepe kit; 1 money
poucn, complete; the money and maps of 1 pouch; the money of 2 pouches®,
Beach made a report to the provost mershal of the station end "took off* on
tne morning of 22 February (Pros.Ex.2),

Pursuant to an inveéstigation made by First Lieutenant Febian L.
Checkis, 1202nd Military Police Company (Aviation), lLong turned over to
Checkie 7,950 francs. Iong refused to say how he obtained tne money, "said
it was another man® and refused to neme him (R35-36).

*An offjcia) statement in writing (whether
in a reguler series of records, or a

report, or a certificate) is admissible
when the officer or other person making

it bad the duty to know the matter so
stated and to regord it; that is, where an
official duty exists to know and to make

one or more records of certain fasevs and
events, each such record ®* * * is competent
(i.e., prima facie) evidence of such facts
and events, without calling to the stend the
offiger or other person who made it® (LM,
1928, per.ll7a, p.121) (Underscoring supplied).

*In any court of the United States and in

any courv established by Act of Congress,any
writing or record, whether in the form of en
entry in a book or otherwise, made as a
memorandum or record of any act, transcation,
occurrence, or event, shall be admissible as
evidence of sai1d act, transaction, occurrence,
or event if it shall eppear that it was made
in the regular course of any business, and
that it was the regular course of such busie
ness to make such memorandum or record at

CONFIDPH T
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the time of such act, transaction, occurrence,
or event or within a reassonsble time there-
after. All other circumstances of the making
of such writing or record, including lack of
personal knowledge by the entrant or maker,
may be shown to affect its weight, but they
shall not affect its admissibility. The term
%business® shall include business, profession,
occupation, and calling of every kind? (Act June
20,)1936, c.640, sec.l, 49 Stat.1561; 28 USCA
95)e

It is apparent from the evidence that the report made by Lieuten-
ant Beach was an official statement or report made by an officer whose
officinl duty it was to know the matter staied therein and to recnrd it,

He wes comzanding officer of the airplane in which the property was placed.
The letter was an officlais documont which formed a part of the official
records with respect to the missing property. In fact it was the only
document to show that the property was missing, and would constitute the
tasis for a report of survey should such a proceeding be initiated., Further,
such a letter was always obtained when a loss of this character occurred,
The letter and the signature of Lieutenant Beach thereon were properly
identified by Captain Monsymaker, The fact that Beach signed the letter
instead of Ford, the officer to whom the property was origirally issued,
does not affect the admissibility of the document, which could be signed by
the pilot, co-pilot, or, in their absence, by "any man that-is available®,
In view of the evidence and the foregoing euthority, the Board of Review is
of the opinion that Pros.Ex,2 was properly edmitted in evidence, In view
of the testimony of Ceptain Moneymaker and the foregoing Federal statute,
Pros.Ex.l was also properly admitted in evidence., The Board is of the
further opinion that the contents of the letter, together with evidence
that four of the ten pouches were not returned, that accused was guarding
the airplens in which the pouches were stored und later possessed a bundle
which he said was taken from the ship, end that he told Long he wanted to
turn in ®"the money", was legally sufficieat proof of the corpus delicti to
warrasnt the edmission in evidence of accused's written confession of guiit,

L« The charge sheet shows that accused was 20 years of age and that
he was inducted 7 Jenuesry 1943 at Fort McClellen, Alabama, for the duration
of the war plus six months, He had no prior service,

5¢ The court was legally constituted and had jurisdiction of ths
person and offensesse No errors injuriously affecting the substantial
rights of accused were committed during the trial. The Board of Review is
of the opinion that the record of trial is legally sufficient to support
the firdings of guilty and the sentence., Confinement in a Disciplinary
Barracks is authorized (AW 42), 7

mﬂ Judge Advocate
%@"“% Judge Advocate

’%M%/@é 2 Z7Judgs Mdvocate
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1st Ind,
WD, Branch Office TJAG., with ETOUSA. T0: Commanding
General, Headquarters 3d Bombardment Division, APO §g9, U.S, Ammy.’

1, In the case of Gorporal JAMES R. NELSON (34588501), Detachment

o 1249th Military Police Company (Avn), attention is invited to the
foregoing holding by the Board of Review that the record of trial is
legally sufficient to support the findings of guilty and the sentence,
which holding is hereby approveds Under the provisions of Article of
Wer 50%, you now have authority to order exscution of the sentence.

- 2¢ Unless that portion of the sentence adjudgirg dishonorable dis-
charge is suspended, the place of confinement should be changed to Eastern
Branch, United States Disciplinary Barrecks, Greenhaven, New York. Bow-
ever, I recommend that the dishonoreble discharge be suspended and that tne
2912th Disciplinary Training Center, A.P.0.508, U.S. Army, be designated
as the place of confinement, This can be done in the published general
court-martial order. _

3+ VWhen copies of the published. order are forwarded to this office,
they should be accompanied by the foregoing holaing and this indorsement.
.The file number of the record in this office is ETO 2185, For convenience
. of reference please place that number in bracketas at the end of the orders

(ETO 2185). /g
. | 4 Ce Me;l\m:n..%7

Brigadier Generel, United States Army,
Assistant Judge Advocave General.
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Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General (199)

with the
European Theater of Operations
AP0 871 '

BOARD OF REVIEW

ETv 2188

UNITED

)
)
)
)
Private First Class OCIE D. )
FRINCE (34169339), 4ist ) Dishonorable discharge, toter fore
Sub Depot (Class 1), lss )
Bombardment Division AAF, )
then 364tn Service Squadron, )
39th Service Group AAF. )

l.

31 MAY 1944

STATES EIGHTH AIR FORCE,

Trial by G.C.M., convened at AAF
Station 121 (Royston, England)
174 25 March 1944e Sentence:

feitures and coafinement at hard
labor for ten years., United States
Penitentiary, Lewisburg, Pennsyl-
vania.

IOIDING by the BOARD OF REVIEW

RITER, VAN BENSCHOTEN and SARGENT, Judge Advocates

The record of trial in the case of the soldier named above has

been examined by tne Board of Review,

2.

Accused was tried upon the following charges and specifications:

CHARGE I: Violation of the 93rd Article of War.
Specification 13 (As amended to conform to proof)

In that Private Firat Class Ocie D, Prince,
Lhlet Sub Depot (Class 1), AAF Station 121,
AFO 634, then of 364th Service Squadron,
39th Service Group 414 st Foyston, Hertford-
shire, England on or about 23 July 1943,
comnit the crime of sodomy, by feloniously
and sgainst the order of nature having car-
nal connection per anpum with Raymond Robert
Colliver,

Specification 23 (As amended to conform to proof)

In that * ¢ & 314 at Royston, Hertfordshire,
England on or about 26 -July 1943, commit the
orime of sodomy, by feloniously and sgainst
tne order of nature having carnal connection
per anmum with Raymond Robert Colliver,

o]l e
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Specification 3¢ In that ¢ * * 3id at Royston,
Hertfordshire, England on or about 2 August
1943, commit the crime of sodomy, by felo-
niously and against the order of nature
having carnal connection per anrum with
Raymond Robert Colliver,

CHARGE II: Violation of the 96tn Article of War,

Specification 13 In that ¢ * ® 3id at Royston,
Hertfordshirs, England, on or about 9 August
1943, wrongfully handle and manipulate the
privates of Derek Malcolm Reed with his hands,

Specification 2: In that * ® ® 3id at Royston,
Hertfordshire, England, on or about 9 August
1943, wrongfully handle and manipulate the
privates of Grebam Elvin with his hands,

He pleaded not guilty to and was found guilty of all charges and specifica-
tions, No evidence of previous convictions was introduced, He was sen-
tenced to be dishonorably discharged from the service of the United States,
to forfeit all pay and allowances due or to become due and to be confined .
at hard labor, at such place as the reviewing authority may direct, for ten
yearse The reviewing authority approved the sentence, designated the

United States Penitentiary, Lewisburg, Pennsylvania, as the place of confine-
ment and forwarded the record of trial for action under Article of War S0fe

3¢ The offenses in Specifications 1 and 2 of Cherge I were alleged to
have been committed on 27 June and 1 July 1943 The proof showed the inci-
dents occurred on the 23 July and 26 July 1943 and over the cobjections of
the defense, the specifications were amended to correspond with the evidence,
This procedure was legally permissible (MM, 1928, pare73, pe57)e The
defense stated that a continuance was not desired (R60).

*Within the limitations, first, that the
offense must be proved to have been come
mitted prior to the finding of the indict-
ment, and second, that the offense must
be proved to have been committed within
the time specified by the Statute of Limd-
- tations, and except where a special day
is essential or where tims is the essence
of the offense, ths times of the commission
of ths offense as averred in the indictment
is not material, and the proof is not con-
fined to the tims charged® (Wharton's Crimi-
nal Evidence Vol.2, sec. 1039, pr.l1824-1826;
MCM, 1921. uc.?lsg. pp.52.53; MO, 1928. 880Ce
73+ Pe57)e

2
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4e The charge sheet shows that accused is 32 years of age and was
inducted 7 May 1942 st Fort McClellan, Alabama, to serve for the duration
of the war and six monthss, He had no prior service and lost no time under
the 107th Article of War.

5 The court was legally constituted and had jurisdiction of the
person and offenses, No errors injuriously affecting the substantial
rights of accused were comnitted during the trial, The Board of Review is
of the opinion that the record of trial is legally sufficient to support
the findings of guilty and the sentence, Confinement in a penitentiary is
eunthorized (AW 42; Distriet of Columbia Code, title 221073 Cir. 291, WD,
10 Nov 1943, sec.V, par.3b). ’

/X._/ﬂh/fé Judge Advocate
S ORI/ L

&

J Advocate

dge Advocate
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1st Ind,

WD, Branch Office TJAG., with ETousa., 31 MAY 1924 TO: Commanding
General, Hesdquarters, Eighth Air Force, APO 634, U.S. Army.

1l In the case of Private First Class OCIE D. PRINCE (34169339),
kh1lst Sub Depot (Class 1), lst Bombardment Division AAF, then 364th Service
Squadron,39th Service Group AAF, attention is invited to the foregoing
holding by the Board of Review that the record of trial is legally suffici-
ent to support the findings of guilty and the sentence, which holding is
hereby spproveds Under the provisions of Article of War 50}, you now have
authority to order exscution of the sentence.

2+ Yhen copies of the published order are forwarded to this office,
they should be accompanied by the foregoing holding and this indorsement.
The file number of the record in this office is ETO 2188, For convenience
of reference please place that number in drackets et the end of ‘the orders

7 £.7C

o 3« Ce McNEIL,
frigadier General, United States Army,
Apsistant Judge Advocate General.
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Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General
with the
Europeaa Theater of Operations
APO 871

BOARD OF REVIEW
31 MAY 1944
ETO 2194
UNITED STATES ) SOUTHERN BASE SECTION, SERVICES
g OF SUPPLY, EUROPEAN THEATER OF
Ve ] OPERAT IONS,
General Prisoner WILLIAM E, ) Trial by G.C.M., convened at Taunton,
HENDERSON (35130919), 2912th ) Somersetshire, England, 29 lMarch
Disciplinary Training Center. ) 1944, Sentence: Dishonorable dis-
g charge, total farfeitures and con-
finement at hard labor for three
) years, The Federal Reformatory,
) Chillicothe, Ohio,

HOLDING by the BOARD OF REVIEN
RITER, VAN BENSCHOTEN and SARGENT, Judge Advocates

1. The record of trial in the case of the soldier named above has
been examined by the Board of Review,

7/

2. Accused was tried upon the following charges and specifications:

CHARGE I: Violation of the €9th Article of War,

Specification: In that General Prisoner William E,
Henderson, 2912th Disciplinary Training Center,

- Shepton Mallet, Somerset, England, having been

duly placed in confinement on or about 3 Feb-
ruary 1944, did, at or near Marston Magna,
Somerset, England, on or about 22 February 1944
escape from said confinement before he was set
at liberty by proper authority,

CHARGE II: Violation of the 58th Article of War,
Specification: In that # * %, did, at or near MNarston
Magna, Somerset, England, on 22 February 1944
desert the service of the United States and did
rerain absent in desertion until he was appre-
hended at or near Bruton, Somerset, England on

23 February 1944,
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CHARGE III: Violation of the 93rd Article of War,

Specification: In that # # %, did, at or near Bruton,
Somerset, England, on or about 23 February 1944,
feloniously take, steal, and carry away one coat,
mackintosh type, value about $2,00 the property
of Arthur White,

He pleaded not guilty to Charge II and its cification but guilty to
Charges I and III and their respective specifications, He was found, of
the specification, Charge II, guilty except the words, "desert" and "in
desertion", substituting therefor, respectively, the words "absent himself
without leave from" and "without leave", of the excepted words not guilty,
of the substituted words guilty; of Charge II, not guilty, but guilty of
violation of the 6lst Article of War, and guilty of Charges I and III and
their respective specifications, No evidence of previous convictions was
introduced, He was sentenced to be dishonorably discharged the service,
to forfeit all pay and allowances due or to become due and to be confined
at hard labor, at such place as the reviewing authority may direct, for
three years. The reviewing authority approved the sentence, designated the
Federal Reformatory, Chillicqthe, Ohio, as the place of confinement and
forwarded the record of trial for action pursuant to the provisions of
Article of War 50%.

3. The evidence shows that on 22 February 1944, the accused was in
the military service of the United States and that he was a prisoner at a
camp near larston Magna, wearing "blue fatigues with a white 'P! on the
back and front.” (R9-10). There was no direct evidence of his status as
a general prisoner, as alleged in the charges and specifications, although
both the trial judge advocate and the defense counsel referred to him as
"General Prisoner Henderson" while interrogating the prison sergeant who
testified for the prosecution (R10). However, by reference to CM ETO 1330,
Hepdergon it appears that at the time accused committed the offenses alleg-
ed in the charges and specifications of the instant case he was under
sentence of dishonorable discharge, total forfeitures and confinement at
hard labor for ten years, The dishonorable discharge was suspended during
period of confinement, The sentence was promulgated in GCMO No,2, Head-
quarters Central Base Section, 20 Jamuary 1944, The Board of Review may
take judicial notice of the foregoing data upon appellate review in the
present case (CM ETO 1981, Fraley,and authorities therein cited), The re-
cords in the Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General with the European
Theater of Operations furnish no indication that the suspension of the dis-
honorable discharge adjudged in CM ETO 1330 has ever been vacated.

"A condition having been shown to have existed
at one time, the general presumption arises,
in the absence of any indication to the con-
trary, that such condition contimes" (MCH,
1928, par.112a, p.110),
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"A soldier was aentenced to 15 years confine-
ment and dishonorable discharge by general
court-martial, The reviewing authority
approved the sentence but suspended the dis-
honorable discharge until the prisoner be
released from confinement, The prisoner
escaped on the day of the trial, He was a
'general prisoner' and has the status of a
soldler and may be tried for desertion,
253,6, Feb 13, 1919* (Dig.Op.JAG, 1912-1940,
”00359(15)) p0167)o

The evidence amply supports the court's finding that the accused was guilty
of absence without leave (Charge II) (CM ETO 1981, Fraley).

4e Accused at the time of his escape was under the physical restraint
of a guard detail, This offense was clearly one denounced by the 69th
Article of War, The record is legally sufficient to sustain the findings
of guilty of Charge I and its Specification (CM ETO 2098, Tgylor).

5. The testimony adduced by the prosecution to prove the larceny of
the coat (Charge III), of itself, is of questionable substance to establish
ownership or value, However, there is no requirement of law that evidence
must be taken upon a plea of guilty., The purpose of such evidence is to
assist the court in fixing the punishment, and the reviewing authority in
his consideration of the case, The finding of guilty may be based solely
on the plea of guilty, which is no less than a judicial confession that the
accused committed the offense charged (CM ETO 1588, Mogeff; CM ETO 1266,
Shipman; CM ETO 839, Nelson)., The Board of Review is therefore of the
opinion that the record of trial legally sustains the court's findings of
guilty of Charge III and its Specification,

6. The charge sheet shows that the accused is 21 years of age and in
& "non pay status®, but no further data as to service, However, the charge
sheet in CM ETO 1330, gupra, shows that he was inducted 21 October 1941 at
Fort Thomas, Kentucky, for "service governed by Service Extension Act",

7. The court was legally constituted and had jurisdiction of the per~
son and offenses, No errors injurioualy affecting the substantial rights
of the accused were committed during the trial, The Board of Review is of
the opinion that the record of trial is legally sufficient to support the
findings of guilty and the sentence,

8. None of the offenses of which.accused was convicted were offenses
for which penitentiary confinement is authorized by either the Federal
Criminal Code or the Code of the District of Columbia, Penitentiary con-
finement is therefore 1llegal (AW 42), The place of confinement should
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be changed to Eastern Branch, United States Disciplinary Barracks, Green-
haven, New York (Cir, 210, ID 14 Sep 1943, sec.VI, par.2a, as amended by
Cir. 331, WD, 21 Dec 1943, sec. 11, par.2).

Y
WM‘H e Advcnte

Judge Advocate
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1St Indo

wn, Branch Office TJAG., with ETOUSA, - 31 MAY 1944 TO: Commanding
General, Southern Base Section, APO 519, U.S. Army.

1, In the case of Private WILLIAM E, HENDERSON (35130919), 2912th
Disciplinary Training Center, attention is invited to the foregoing hold-
ing by the Board of Review that the record of trial is legally sufficient
to support the findings of: g'uilty and the sentence, which holding is here-
by approved, ' Under the provisions of Article of War 50%, you now have
authority to order execution of the sentence,

2, None of the offenses of which accused was convicted were offenses
for which penitentiary confinement is authorized by either the Federal’
Criminal Code or the Code of the District of Columbia, Penitentiary con-
finement would therefore be illegal (AW 42), . The place of confinement -
should be changed to Eastern Branch, United States Disciplinary Barracks,

Greenhaven, New York, This may be done in the published general court-
martial order, :

3. When copies of the published order are forwarded to this office,
they should be accompanied by the foregoing holding and this indorsement,"
The file number of the record in this office is ETO0 2194. For convenience
of reference please place that mumber in brackets at the end of the order:

(ETO 2194).
%%%&q,

E. C. McNEIL,
Brigadier General, Unit,ed States Army,
Assistant Judge Advocate General.
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Branch Office of The Judge idvocate General
with the
European Theatsr of Operations
AP0 871
BOARD OF REVIEW .
ETO 2195 , 24 JUN 1944
UNITED STATES SOUTHERN BASE SECTICN, SERVICES
CFf SUPPLY, EUROPEAN THEATER (F
A v. OPERATIONS,
vate CHARLIE R. SHORTER Trial by G.C.M., convened at U.S.
14061233), 4634 Engineer General Depot GwR5, Ashchurch,
Base Depot Company. ' Gloucestershire, England 14 April

1944. Sentences Dishonorable
dischargs, total forfeitures and
eonfinement at hard labor for

/ - five years. Federal Reformatory,
Chillicothe, Ohio.

HOLDING by the BOARD CF REVIEW
RITER, VAN BENSCHOTEN and SARGENT, Judge Advocates

l. The record of trial in the case of the soldier named above has
besn examined by the Board of Review.

2. Accused was tried upon the following Charge and -pecifiéationss

CHARGE: Violation of the 96th Article of War.

Specification 1t In that Private Charlie R. Shorter,
463rd Engineer Base Depot Company, did, at
Stratford-on-Avon, Warwickshire, England, on or
about 17 March 1944, wrongfully and wmlawfully
take indecent liberties with Jean Thelma Coldicott,
a female child, under six years of age, by placing
his hand inside her clothing and against the legs
and private parts of sald Jean Thelma Coldicott.

Specification 238 In that # # %, did, at Stratford-
on-Avon, Warwickshire, England, on or about 17
Merch 1944, wrongfully and unlawfully takes in-
decent liberties with Celia Mary Jeffrey, a
fenale chlld, under seven years of age, by placing
his hand insids her clothing and against the legs
and private parts of said Celia Mary Jeffrey.

-l
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He pleaded not gullty to and was found guilty of the Charge and specifica-
tions., Evidence cf three previous convictions was introduced: one by
summary court for absence without leave for ons day and two by special
courts-martial for absences without leave for one day and two days respec-
tively, all in vioclation of the 61lst Article of War. He was sentenced to
be dishonorably discharged the service, to forfeit all pay and allowances
dus or to become due and to be confined at hard labor, at such place as
the reviewing authority may direct, for five years. The reviewing
authority spproved the sentence, designated the Federal Reformatory,
Chillicothe, Ohio as the place of confinement and forwarded the record

of trial for action pursuant to the provisions of Article of War 50%.

3. Evidence for the proeecution was as follows:

(a) Specification L of the Charge: Mrs, Frances Coldicott,
19 Scholars Lane, Stratford-on-Avon testiflied that about 4130 p.m. on
17 March 1944 she permitted her daughter, Jean Thelma Coldicott, who be-
. came six years of age on 7 April 1944, to go to the children's playground
adjoining the recreation area along the Avon River in Stratford-on-Avon,
She went to the playground about 5145 p.m. to bring her daughter home.
Upon entering she could not see her daughter, but did see another littls
. girl playing Yover towards the shelter." She asked the latter, ®"'Where
- 48 Jean?'" and was told she was "in the shelter.” Mrs. Coldicott went
to the shelter and looked in. She saw accused standing at the end of
the shelter with his back towards her and in front of Jean, who atood
facing accused upon & form about two feet above the level of the und
(R11). She could see only the top of her daughter's head (R7, 8,9?0
She could not say that accused was touching any part of Jean's person
or clothing (Rll and could not see what he was doing, but his hands
were in front of hill.‘ Witness was about 20 feet from accused when she
saw hin (R8). KNot knowing what to think, witness "ran, and the man
must have heard me; because he immediately stepped on one side, with
his back still towards me, and I noticed my 1little girl's dress drop down.".
She saw that the front of accused's trousers was open, but could not see
his person (R8).

. Jean's clothing could not have fallen down from climbing upon
the form. The clothing (dress) was fastened at the shoulders by means
of shoulder straps., Her kniclers were fastensd by elastic at the top
(R11). The clothing looked as if it had been disturbed, but was not
torn or dirty (R10). Witness then asked, "'What are you doing Jean?'",
to which she replied "'Nothing, Mummy' and jumped off the seat and then
began to cry." Witness asked accused what he was doing to her little
girl, to which he replied *'I haven't done anything to her. 1 Just gave
her some gum and was asking her where the other little girl was.'"
(R8,10). Witness said "'You are a filthy llar, you are a f£ilthy beast,
yonshouldbe down there,'® and asked him what his mame was (R3)., He
replied "'I have no name'® (R10). She told him he was a "beaatly liar®
a.nd that she would report the matter to the police (R8). Accused there-
upon turned around and gradually walked awey, "and a# he got near the
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back /of the playground/ he began to hurry® (R10). He left by way of
the steps leading to the tram track (E8).

Accused's condition was "probably like he had been drunk and
then slept it off. His eyes looked blurred.® (K10). The day was bright
and she was able to see accused very clearly and was absolutely positive
in her identification of him. She saw no other soldiers or other people
ir the recreational grounds or playground at the time of the occurrence,
éxcept the other girl (R8-9).

Jean did not subsequently state that accused had harmed her
(R10). When witness asked Jean what accused was doing, she replied "'he
put his hand down there.'" When asked if he did anything else Jean replied
"!Yes, he put his thing there.'®™ "She would call it that because she had
seen her little brother.®

Witness and her daughter left the playground and proceeded to
the police station at Stratford where they reported the affair to the
police. At the police station Mrs. Coldieott examined her daughter and
from the examination she did not think accused had Injured the child.

Her lknickers had been partly pulled down. Thereafter at the American

Red Cross Club-about 9:50 p.m. on 17 March 1944, ¥rs. Coldicott posi-
tively identified accused to the receptionist, who obtained his"passport®
and notified the American militery police. She was also able to identify
hin twice at an identification parade the day before the trial (R9).

Jean Thelma Coldicott, without voir dire as to her qualifica-
tion as a witness and without objection by the defense, was sworn and
testified that she was six years old and that her birthday was Good
Friday (7 April 1944). She remembered when she and "Celia" were playing
at the playground and saw a soldier in the shelter there. FHe came from
the rear of the playground along the tramway. "Celia® entered ths
shelter to ask the soldier for chewing gum, which he gave to her.
Thereupon witness entered the shelter at the playground where a soldier
gave her some chewing gum (R12). Then he raised Jean's dress and put
his hand fdown in my knickers" "down here", between her legs. Her mother
called out and the soldier stepped back a bit and took his hand out of
her knickers. Witness "just stood on the seat" "and the soldier 'didn't
do anything'®" when he saw her mother. The latter asked him what his name
wa;, to which he replied "'I have no name.'" He then did "nothing" (R13-
14).

Detective Sergeant George F. Balley, Warwickshire Constabulary,
Stratford-on-Avon testified that he knew accused and that om 17 March 1944
he received a camplaint from Mrs. Coldicott concerning an indecent assaunlt
on her daughter by an American soldier. Witness saw accused at 11:00 a.m.
the following morning 18 March (R16) at the "CID" office, Stratford police
station. Be was in a "more sober frame of mind", appearing ®as if he had
been drunk, and had just gotten over it" (R17). With him witness examined
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the scene of the cffense at about 11:30 a.m. He questioned accused in
the "CID® office, warning him of his rights, to the effect that he could
moke a Bworn verbal or written statement which could be used a.gaiut hin
or bs could remain silent (ms) Accused at that time stateds

"1If they aay I was there, I must have been ;
there, but I do not remember. I reneinr '

,8itting on a bench or scmething around a -

tree, but I do not remember talking to any

%11:83 girls. I mst havo been Very drnnk "'
R16). :

There were circular seats of this kind beside the ri'nr about 300 ya.rda ;
from the children's playground. Witness searched Jean Coldicott and-
found a green paper wrapper for Beechnut chewing gum in her pocket. 4
search of accused revealed similar green wrappers. The wrapper taken -
from Jean's dress was introduced in evidence without objection by the
defense and subsequently withdrawn (R17;Ex.E), Witness examined Jean's
clothes, but there were no seminal stains upon them and they were not
torn or dirty. Jean was in a very frightened state of mind (R17-18).

First Lieutenant Harvey G. Boughton testified tha.t he was com-
manding officer of accused's company and on or about 17 March issued &
. pass to accused for Stratford-on-Avon effective rron 0700 hours 17 March
to 0700 hours 19 March (R18).

_(b) Specification 2 of the Charges Mrs. Frences Coldicott
testified that when she returmed to the playground she saw a "little girl®

playing "over towards the shelter,® who directod her to her daughter Jean
in the shelter (R7,8,9). v
er examination, when °
Jean Thelna Euldicott,/asked whether the soldior did :
to Celia, testified "Yes®™, but she testified further thst lho did not m :
him touch Celia (BJ.2-13). , _ , AR

Celia Mary Jeffrey, as part of her examination, testified that
she was six years of age, and that she went into the shelter (R1Z) to get
chewing gum, which a soldier gave to her., He lifted wp her dress and put -
his hand not under her knickers but in the middle between her legs, where-
upon ghe "went away from him," Thereafter she ate her chewing gum while
: . She saw Jean's mother coming and heard her call. Jean's mother
said nothing when she first came and only "got ahold of Jean's hand." She
did not call to witness, who was on the other side of the playground (R15).

Detective Sergeant George F. Balley testified that upon examin-
ing the playground area he found an American yellow paper wrapper which
had contained chewing gum, about one foot from the entrance of the shelter.
A search of accused's pockets revealed packets of chewing gum with
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wrappers from Beechnut chewing gum similar to that which he found ocutside
the shelter. The latter wrapper was introduced in evidence, without ob-
Jection by the defense, and subsequently withdrawn (R17; Ex.D). Witness
examined Celia's clothes, but there were no seminal stains upon them and
they were not torn or dirty. He saw "her /Celig/ the Sunday morning
[Easter Day, 9 April/, and she was very loath to tell me anything about
the whole matter® (R17-18).

4. Pvidence for the defense was as follows:

Jean Thelra Coldicott, recalled, testified that the soldier was
- with her at the playground "ot very long" - only a minute. She was w-
able to identify him out of a group of about six soldiers at the police
station the day before the trial, but her mother identified him (R19).

Celia Mary Jeffrey, recalled, testified she was with the soldier
at the playground for ®about a mimute,® that he had stripes on his sleeve
which, however, were unlike those worn by her father and that she saw
many soldlers "all over® with stripes on their arms, including many
American soldiers (R20-21).

After his rights were explained to him, accused testified on his
own behalf that he arrived at Stratford in the morming of 17 March (R21),
and went to a "pub". He did not remember anything except seeing two
girls in blue uniform. He denied being "around any bench,” but testified
"we weren't far from the river.®? ™"We just drank and drank. That is all
I remember." The next morning a civilian policeman awskened him in the
Jail house (R22,23).

S5« Recalled as a witness for the court, Mrs, Frances Coldicott
testified that the uniform of accused was that of en American private,
and that she did not notice any marking or insignia on the sleeve of his
coat. She was positive hs had no stripes. She relterated her identifi-
cation of accused at the American Red Cross Club and testified she was
positive accused was the man she saw at the playground (P24-25).

6. The specifications allege the commission of offenses, namely,
‘wrongfully and unlawfully taking indecent liberties with two female minor
children, which were clearly such as to bring discredit upon the military
service and constituted violations of Article of War 96 (CM ETO 571,
Leach). At common law it was generally held that a man who took improper
liberties with the person of a female without her consent was guilty of
an assault, When the assault was committed upon a child, it was im-
material whether there was submission or resistance thereto (Beausoliel
v, United States (CA, DG, 1939) 107 Fed. (2d) 292,296; CM ETO 571,
Ieach and authorities there cited).

7. (a) The first question for determination in this case is the
admissibility of the testimony of the two children with whom accused is
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alleged to have taken indecent liberties. Jean Thelma Coldicott and
Celia Mary Jeffrey, both aged six years, weresworn and testified without

preliminary questioning by the court touching their competency as wit-
nesses. Article of War 19 provides in pert:

%A1l persons who give evidence before a
court-martial shall be exarined on cath
or affirmetion?

The reason for this requirement is besed upon the fundamental rule of
competency that the witness mwt appreciate the difference between truth
and falsehood, as well as his duty to tell the former (Wheoeler v. United
States, 159 U.8.523,524, 40 L.Bd.244,247). Although no precisa age
deferxines the question of competency to testify (ibid.),

"Under the common law, competency of a child

under the age of 14 years to testify wmust

be showmn to ihe satisfaction of the court.

He i1s presumptively imcompetent, but if he
he

mY be when he testifies. BHe
competent if he possesses mentsl capacity
memory sufficient to enable him to give
ascnable and intelligible account of the
transaction he has seen, if be understands
and has a just appreciation of the difference
between right and wrong, and comprehends the
character, mesaning and obligation of an cath.
# # #, In the wise discretion of the court,

a child five, six, and for such ages as seven,
eight, nine, ten, sleven, twelve, thirteen

or fifteen years of age may be shown competent
to testify. It may not be said that there is
any particular age at which as a matter of
law all children are competent or incompetent.
#«w, It ls the duty of the gourt to exaxipe
ihe child witpeep In order io ascertaln if he
or ghe 1s copetent. This is usually dome by
putting leading questions to the child # # &,

an oath in simple words # # #, Intelligence
and not age is the test of a child witness.

# %%, It is not only necessary to show that
the child understands the nature and applica-
tion of an cath, but it muat also appear that
the child is sufficiently intelligent to
testify with an understanding mind of what he

or she has seen or hesrd. Children who do

not understend the mature or meaning of an
. If the child does not,

sath are
in the opinion of the court, appear to under-
stand the nature and obligation of an ocath,

’\n‘{ i
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the court may in its discretion, if the child
seens to have the age and mental capacity to
receive and profit by the imstruction, allow him
to be instructed by a proper person as to the
signification and obligation of a judicial
oath # % #, The determination of a child's
competency as a witness is peculiarly within
the trial court's discretion, being error
only in case of gross sbuse" (Underhill's
Crimingl Evidence (4th Ed.), sec.377, pp.722-
727) (Underscoring supplied).

In the leading case of Wheeler v. United States, swpre, a murder
conviction was upheld wherein the child of the deceased, a boy five and
one half years of age, was permitted to testify. The boy was examined
upon his voir dire and determined to be competent., The cowrt stated:

"That the boy was not by reason of his youth,
as a mtter of law, absolutely disqualified
as a witness, is clear. While no one would
think of calling as a witness an infant only
two or three years old, there is no precise
age which determines the question of com-
petency. This depends on the capacity and
intelligence of the child, his sppreciation
of the difference between truth and falsehood,
a8 well as of his duty to tell the former.
The decision of this question rests primarily
-with the trial judge, who sees the proposed
witness, notices his manner, his apparent
possession or lack of intelligence, and

pay resort to any exgmingtion which will
tend o disclose his capacity gnd intelli-
gence a8 well g8 his understanding of the
obligations of an ocath. As many of these
metters cannot be photographed into the
record, the declsion of the trial judge
will not be disturbed on review unless from
that which is preserved it is clear that it
was erroneous., Theas rules have been settled
by many decisions, and there seems to be no
dissent among the recent authorities. In Rex
v. Brasier, 1 Leach, €.C. 199, it is stated
that the question was submltted to the twelve
Judges, and that they were unanimously of the
opinion 'that an infant, though under the age
of seven years, may be sworn in a criminel
prosecution, provided such infent appears, on -
strict examination by the gourt, to possess a
sufficient kmowledge of the nature and conse-

guences of an oath, for there is no precise or
fixed rule as to the time within which infants

are excluded from giving evidence; but their
- 7. CONFIDENTIAL
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admissibility depends upon the sense and resson
Lthey entertain of the danger and lmplety of
falsehood, which is to be collected from thelr

fnewors .tg questions propounded to.them by the
c (159 U.8. at 524-525, 40 L.Ed. at 247)

Underscoring supplied).

In Beausoliel v. United States, supra, the voir dire examination
of a six-year-old witness was not included in the record on appeal, but

there was evidence of the child's testimonial qualifications in her state-
ments on cross-examination, that she believed liars would be punished in
some manner. (See also authorities cited in Beausoliel v. United States,
107 Fed. (2d) 292,293-294; Oliver v. United States, 267 Fed.544; Military
Justice Circular #1, BOPJAG with ETO, 1 Jan 1944, par.2).

In all the foregoing authorities the requirement of some form of
examination addressed to the competency of the infant witness was either
expressed or implied..

. In the instant case, the testimony elicited from the ehildren
fails to reveal the slighteat evidence of their appreciation of the dif-
ference between truth and falsehood or of their duty to tell the truth.
Nor does the testimony of Celia Mary Jeffrey reveal that she possessed
mental capacity or memory sufficlent to enable her to give an intelligent
account of the events as to which she testified.

"(b) As to Specification 1 of the Charge, although it is unneces-
sary to decide specifically whether or not Jean Thelma Coldicott was com-
petent to testify, it will be assumed for the purpose of this holding that
she was incompetent and that her testimony was improperly admitted in
evidence., The question for determination then, as in CM ETO 1693, Allen,
is whether the improper admission of this teatimony "injuriously affected
the substantial rights" of accused within ths purview of Article of War
37. The elements of the indecent assault upon the child and accused's
identity as her assailant are clearly established by the positive and wn~
contradicted testimony of Jean's mother, Mrs. Coldicott, that at the time
and place alleged she discovered accused in the shelter, his hands in
front of him, face to face with her daughter, who was standing on a form
or seat; that upon hearing Mrs. Coldicott approach he immediately stepped
aside, whereupon Jean's dress dropped down; that his fly was wunbuttoned;
that he denied having any name; that he fled after Mrs. Coldicott
threatened to report the matter to the police; and that Jean told her of
the assault substantially contemporaneously therewith. In the opinion
of the Board of Review such testimony substantially compels the convietion
~ of accused of the offense slleged and meets the test laid dowm in CM ETO

1201, Pheil and CM ETO 1693, Allen. Even assuming that Jean did not re-
slst accused's indecent conduct, the offense is clearly established if
she did not comprehend the nature of the act (CM ETO 571, Leach; Begusoliel
v. United States, 107 Fed. (2d) 292,296).

-8 -
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"tMere submission to an indecent
act, without any positive exer-
cise of a dissenting will, where,
owing to circumstances, the per-
son submitting is in ignorance of
the nature of the act, is not such
a consent as the law contemplates,
8o as to prevent the act from be-
ing an assault, and the age and
the mentality of the gublect of
an indecent gssault should always
be considered in determining the

sence or sbsence of consent.!
25 CJ, sec.228, p.743) (Under-
scoring supplied).

"The question as to whether the victim consented
to the act committed was a fact for determina-
tion by the couwrt. The appearance of the vietim,
her age, her capacity to understand what had
occurred and her truthfulness were matters for
ocbservation by the court. The court evidently
found as a fact that she did not comprehend the
nature of the act and the evidence was legally
sufficient to justify its conclusion" (CM ETO

571, Leach).

Jean's tender age alone was sufficlent to justify the court's finding in
the instant case. It should be noted that the fact that the court was
“Justified in inferring from Jean's testimony and its observation of her
- that she did pot comprehend the nature of gegused's act does not legally
excuse the court for its faillure to examine Jean specifically upon a
. voir dire to determine her competency to testify. The Board of Review
is of the opinion that the record is legally sufficlent to support the
findings of gullty of Specification 1, notwithstanding the erronecus
adnission of the testimony of the alleged victim of the assault and that
of her playmate which was clearly inadmissible as shown hereinafter, in
view of the compelling nature of the other evidence in the record.

(c) As to Specification 2 of the Charge, Celia Mary Jeffrey,
teatifying for the prosecution without preliminary interrogation, failed
to identify accused as the scldier Involved. She stated that a soldier
gave her chewing gum in the shelter, lifted up her dress and put his hand
between her legs. Her statement that she merely %went away from him" after
the alleged assault, apparently without complaining to anyone concerning
his conduct, and proceeded to eat her chewing gum while swinging; that
Jean's mother did not call to her because she was on the other side of
the playground, contrary to Mrs. Coldicott's clear testimony; and (as a
defense witness) that the soldier had stripes on his sleeve, lead to the
conclusion, in the absence of compelling independent evidence, that

CONFIBERTIAL


http:Vf.cti.ll

CONFIDENTIAL
(218)

accused's substantial rights were highly prejudiced by the failure of the
court to comply with its duty of interrogating Celia as to her capacity,
intelligence, memory, and appreciation of the difference betwsen truth
and falsehood and of her duty to tell the truth. In view of her tender
age and apparent wunreliability as a witness, the failure of the court
affirpatively to establish her competency to testify constituted an abuse
of discretion which the Board of Review may not condone, and which re-
quires the Board to hold the witnesa' testimony inadmissible. Aside

her own testimony, the only evidence bearing upon the alleged assault
upon-hsr by accused consists in Mrs., Coldicott's testimony that she saw
"g 1ittle girl® at the playground (whom she did not identify as Celia)
and that accused stated to Mrs. Coldicott that he had inguired of Jean
as to the whereabouts of "the other little girl," and Jean's conclusion
that the soldier did something to Celia, although she did not see him
touch her. Any inference to be deduced from ths presence of a chewing
gun wrapper near the shelter entrance is too nebulous for seriocus con-
sideration. ‘

It is clear that evidence of accused's physical presence and
opportunity to commit the alleged crime is not in itself substantial evi-
dence of his actual commission thereof (CM ETO 804, Ogletree et al; CM
ETO 895, Davis et al). It certainly is not compelling evidence, nor is
there any other compelling evidence that accused took indecent libertles
with Celia. The Board of Raview is of the opinion that the test laid
down in CN ETO 1201, Phei}) and CM ETO 1693, Allen is not met with respect
to Specification 2,

There 18 also for application here, by analogy, the general
rule that a conviction for rape or assault with intent to commit rape may
not be sustained where it is bassed upon uncorroborated testimony of the
complaining witness which is inherently incredible and unreliable. Her
testimony must be clear and convincing. Again, If the complainant is too
young to comprehend the nature and responsibility of an oath, her testi-
mony is inadmissible (2 Wharton's Criminal Evidence, 1lth Ed. sec.916,
PP.1587-1594; Underhill's Criminal Evidence, 4th Bd, sec.672, pp.1265-
1268; and see Weston v. State (Okla.) 138 Pac. (2d) 553).. As indicated,
Celia's testimony is, at least in certain respects, incredible and wm-
reliable. :

(d) The failure of defense counsel to object to the testimony
of the children on the ground of lack of evidence of their competency did
not operate as a waiver or render them competent witnesses or their testi-
mony admissible (CM ETO 1042, Collette and authorities there cited). The .
same may be said of the fact that the defense cross-examined both of the
children and called them as its own witnesses. The Board of Review is
therefore of the opinion that the record is legally insufficient to sup-
port the finding of guilty of Specification 2 of the Charge.

8. Mrs. Coldicott testified that she asked Jean "what this man was
doing® to which she replied that "he put his thing there.® It 1s-

- 10 -
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reascnable to assume that this conversation took place within a relatively
short space of time after the assault, as in Begusoliel v. United States,
107 Fed. (2d) 292,294-295. Although statements of this character which
are not substantially contemporaneous with the offense to which they re-
late are inadmissible except in cases of rape (CM ETO 571, Leach and
suthorities there cited), the following language in the Beausoliel case,
supra, leads to the conclusion that the statements testified to by Mrs.
Coldicott were properly admitted:

¥Error 1s assigned, also, to the admission of
the teatimony of the child's mother. She
testified, in substance, that she was not
present when her daughter arrived at the
department store but that she met her a few
minutes later; that after walking with her a
short distance she noticed a peculiar expres-
sion on her face and that, upon questioning,
the child told her what had happened in the
taxicab. Over objection of appellant, the
court permitted the witness to testify to
this conversation. Declarations, exclama-
tions and remarks made by the victim of a
crime after the time of its occurrence are
sometimes admissible upon the theory that
‘ander certain external circumstances of
physical shock, a stress of nervous ex~
citement may be produced which stills the
reflective faculties and removes their
control, so that the utterance which then
occurs 1s a spontaneous and sincere respomse
to the actual sensations and perceptions al-
ready produced by the external shock. Since
this utterance is made under the immediate
and uncontrolled domination of the senses,
and during the brief period when considera-
tions of self-interest could not have been
brought fully to bear by reasoned reflec-
tion, the utterance may be taken as par-
ticularly trustworthy # % #,' What con-
stitutes a spontanecus utterance such as will
bring it within this exception to the hearsay
rule must depend, necessarily, upon the facts
peculiar to each case, and be determined by
the exercise of sound judicial discretion,
which should not be disturbed on appeal un-
less clearly erronsous. That the statements
in the present case were made in response to
inquiry is not decisive of the question of
spontaneity, as appellant contends, although

-11 -
CONFINENTIAL



'GUNFIDENTIAL

(220)

that fact 1s entitled to consideration.
Likewise, while the time element is important,
it 1s not in itself conirolling. ‘'Indeed, as
has been well asserted, no inflexible rule as
to the length of interval between the act
charged against the accused and the declara-
tion of the complaining party, cen be laid
domn as established.' It has been held, more-
over, that where, as in the present case, the
victim is of such an age as to render it im-
probgble that her utterance was deliberate and
its effect premeditated, the utterance need
not be so nearly contemporanecus with the
principal transaction 'as in the case of an
older person, whose reflective powers are not
presumed to be so easily affected or kept in
abeyance.' The declarations of the child-

a party to the actual occurrence- were made
under such circumstances and so recently
efter the occcurrence of the transaction as

to preclude the idea of reflectlion or delib- -
eration. Therefore, the ruling of the lower
com;t was correct.” (107 Fed. (24) at 294~
295).

In any event, assuming the statements were improperly admitted, the other
- evidence 18 of a substantial enough character to warrant convieciion of
Specificetion 1 of the Charge, as hereinbefore indicated.

9. (a) As stated sbove, taking of improper liberties with the per-
son of a female child is an assault at common law (Begusoliel v. United
States, supra). As there is no Federal statute of general application
‘within the continental United States and no law of the District of
Columbia denouncing the offense, penitentiary confinement is not auth-
orized for its commission (AW 42; CM ETO 571, Leach; CM 146247 (1921),
Dig.Op.JAG, 1912-1940, sec.402(14), pp.252-253; CM 212272 (1939), Dig.
Op.JAG, 1912-1940, sec.399(2), pp.246-247; CM 23469 (sic) (1942), Bull.
JAG, Vol.l, No.4, Sep 1942, sec.399(2), p.213). As the designaticn of
a Federal reformatory is authoriged only when penitentiary confinement is
authorized by law (CM 220093; CM 222093; CM 23469 (sic) (1942), supra;
AR 600-375, 17 May 1943, sec.II, par.5d), the designation of the Federal
Reformatory, Chillicothe, Ohio as the place of confinement is wmauthor-
ired and should be changed to a place other than & penitentiary, Federal
correctional institution or reformatory.

(b) The offense herein described is not listed in the Table of
maximum punishments (MCM, 1928, par.104c, p.100). The District of
Columbia Code, after preacribing punishments for assaults with intent to
K1l, to comit rape, to commlt robbery and for other types of assaults,
further provides: i .
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"Sec, 22-503 (6128). # # #, Whoever
assaults another with intent to commit
any other offense which may be punished
by imprisonment in the penitentiary shall
be imprisoned not more than five years.
(Mar. 3, 1901, 31 Stat. 1322, ch.854,
’“0805 N

The assault alleged in the instant case is of a less serlous charscter
than the type denounced in the above quoted section because penitentiary
confinement is not authorized punishment for its commission, as above
indicated, but is authorized pumishment for the assaults to which refer-
ence 18 made in the statute. Ths period of confinement may equal, but may
not exceed, the maximum period of confinement authorized for commission of
the latter assaults (CM ETO 571, Leach). The period of confinement of
five years provided in the sentence herein is therefore legal. -

10. The charge sheet shows that accused is 2, years of age and en-
listed in the Regular Army 12 November 1941 to serve for three years.
No prior service is showm,

11. The court was legally constituted and had jurisdiction of the
perscn and offenses. No errors injuriously affecting the substantial
rights of accused, other than as hereinabove specifically indicated, were
committed during the trial. The Board of Review 1s of the opinicn that
the record of trial is legally sufficlent to support the findings of gullty
of Specification 1 of the Charge and the Charge, legally insufficlent to
support the findings of gullty of Specification 2 of the Charge and
legally sufficient to support so much of the sentence as involves dis-
honorable discharge, forfeiture of all pay and allowances due or to be-
come due and confinement at hard labor for five years in a place other
than a penitentiary, Federal correctional institution or reformatory.

méf‘ Judge Advocate
B d S o
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WD, Branch Office TJAG., with EYoma. 24 JUN1944 T0: C
General, Southern Base Section, Commmications Zone, ETOUSA, AFO 519,

U. S. ‘mo

1. In the case of Private CHARLIE R. SHORTER (14061233), 463d Engi-
neer Base Depot Company, attention is invited to the faregoing holding by
the Board of Review that the record of trial is legally sufficient te
support the findings of guilty of Specification 1 of the Charge and the
Charge, legally insufficient to support the findings of guilty of Speei~
fieation 2 of the Charge and legally sufficient to support so much of the
sentence as involves dishomoreble discharge, forfeiture of all pay and
allowances due or to become due and confinement at hard labor for five
years in a place other than a penitentiary, Federal correcticnal insti.
tution or reformatory. I approve such holding. Under the provisions ef
Article of War 50}, you now have authority to order exscution of the
sentence.

2. As penitentiary confinement is not asuthorized punishment for the
offense of which accused has been convicted, the designation of a Federal
reformtory as the place of confinement is unauthorized and should be
changed to the Eastern Branch, United States Disciplinary Barracks,
Greenhaven, New York (AW 42; Cir.210, WD, 14 Sep 1943, sec.VI, par.2a,
a8 amended by Cir.331, WD, 21 Dec 1943, sec.lI, pu-.zs. This may be done
in the published general courte-martial order.

3. When copies of the published order are forwarded to this office,
they should be accompanied by the foregoing holding and this indorsement.
The f£ile number of the record in this office is ETO 2195. For convenience
of reference please place that mumber in brackets at the end of the order:

(xro 2195).
Y aas

Brigadier General, United States Army,
Assistant Judge Advocate General.
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Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General
with the
Buropean Theater of Operations
ARO 871
BOARD OF REVIEW
ETO 2203 -9 JUN 1944
“UNITED STATRES ) SOUTHERN BASE SECTION, SERVICES
) OF SUPFLY, EUROPEAN THEATER OF
Ve ) OFERATIONS,
' )
Private .JOHNNIE BOLDS ) Trial by G.C.M., convened at lorton
(34780629), Company "C*, ) Fitzwarren, Somersetshire, England
560th Quartermaster ) 4 March 1944h. Sentence: Dishonor-
Service Battalion. ) able discharge, total forfeitures
) and confinement at hard labor for
) ten years, The Federai Reformetory,
) Chillicothe, Ohio.

HOLDING by the BOARD OF REVIEW
RITER, VAN BENSCHOIEN and SARGENT, Judge Advocaies

1. The record of triel in the case of the soldier named above has
been examined by the Boerd of Review,

2. Accused was tried upon the following Charge and Specification:

CHARGE: Violetion of the 92nd Article of War.

Speci fication:s In that Private Johnnie Bolds,
Company C, 560th Quartermaster Service
Battalion, 4id, at or nesr Taunton, Somerset,
Englend, on or sbout 11 February 1944,
foreibly and feloniously, against her will,
have carnal knowledge of Mias Joyce Victoria
Rendall.

He pleaded not gullty to end was found guilty of the Charge and Specification,
No evidence of previous convictions was introduced, He was sentenced to te
dishonorably, discharged the service, to forfeit all pay and allowances due or
to become due and to be confined at hard labor, at such place as the reviewing
euthority may direct, for thp term of his natural life, The reviewing euthor-
ity approved the sgentence, reduced tne period of confinement to ten years,
designated the Federdl Reformatory, Chillicothe, Ohio, as the place of con-
finement and forwarded the record of trial for action pursuant to the provisions
of Article of War 503,

-1-

CONFIDENTIAL


http:Engle.na

CONFIDENTIAL

(224)

.3¢ On the pight of 11 February 194) at about half-past nine o'clock,
Private Joyce V. Rerdall, Auxiliery Territoriel Service, Eritish Army, wes
accosted by accused as she was leaving the town of Taunton to walk to her
base several miles gwey (R9,58). Despite her remonstrunces, he walked
teside her until they arrived at a point on the Shoreditch Koad in the open
country (R9,10). He suddenly scized her throat with one hand, stifled her
screems with the other, end dragred her into 2 nearby copse (R10,17). He
threw her to the ground, and threatened to cut her throat with something
that "glittered® which he took from his poc..et(P10,11,18)e Then, while she
wes 3till struezgling, attempting to =zcream dnd resisting accused's
approaches he mansged to teer a hole in her knickers through which he forced
his renis into her vegina. At the soynd of approaching footsteos he dis=-
engaged, whereupon sne started to flee (R12,19,21). He followed and
caught hold of her, interrupting her flight for a moment, kjssed her and
di sappeared (R13). Blgod-steined, mud-stained end hysterical, she imme-
diately reported the attack to three fellow members of the Auxiliary Terri-
torial Service whom she fould walking along the nearby roed (R13,23,26).
Prompted by shame and reluctance to have them know, she falsely stated that
accused had not achieved penetration (R60), The medicel exsmination to
which she submitted on the following dey disclosed recent bruises at the
tase of the spine and inside each xpee but was inconclusive as to veginal
penetraticn, However, the young woman was not a virgin, and the size of
her vagine "lerger than the normal vagina of a girl ® ® @ who has hed no
children® - was such, according to the examining officer, that it was *more
likely that penetration should occur without injury under the circumstences®
(R46,51,52).

L. ilaving been duly warned, accused made two statements and sigred
them after they were reduced to writing. Both were introduced in svidence
(Pr>s.Ex3.B and C)e The first admits that intercourse was foreidly
achieved despite the prosecutrix's minifest reluctance to submit; the second
admits her resistance and stifled attempts to scream, as well as accused's
threat to use a knife. He Qenied, however, that he had a knife when he
made the admitted threat,

Se There i3 substential evidence to support the court's findings
that the accused committed the c¢rime of rape upon the prosecutrix (M ETO
611, Porter; Ci ETO 397, Shaffer; C4 ETO 90, Edmords).

6. Tha charge sheet shows that asccused is 20 years of age ard that
he was inducted at Camp Blanding, Florida, 3 April 1943 for the duration of
tle war plus six months., He had no prior service,

7. The court was legally constituted and had jurisdiction of the
person and offense, No errors injuriously affecting the substantias rights
of the accused were comritted during the trial, The Board of Review is of
ths opinion that the record of trial is legally sufficient to support tne
findings of guilty and the sentence,

-2-

CONFIDENTIAL


http:sub!ni.t1
http:dr9.&_-.ed
http:Servi.ce
http:half-pa.at

CONFIDENTIAL

(225)

8. Confinement in a penitentiary is authorized for the ecrims of
reape by AW 42 and secs.278 and 330 Federal Criminal Code (18 U.S.C. secs.
157 and 567)¢ As accused is under 31 yeers of age and the sentence is
not more than ten years, the designation of the Federal Reformatory,
Chillicothe, Ohio, is authorized (Cir. 291, WD, 10 Nov 1943, sec.V, par.

38)e
/ /
ﬁZ’ﬂ' % Judge Advocate
W
v Judge Advocate

Judge Advocate
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WD, Branch Office TJAG., with ETOUZA. 9 JUN 1944 TO: Commending
General, Southern Base Section, SOS, ILTOUSA, APO 519, U.S. Army.

1. In the case of Privete JOHNNIE BOLDS (34780629), Company *“C",
560th Quartermaster Service Battalion, attention is invited to the fore=-
going holding by the Board of Review that the record of triel is legally
sufficient to support the findings of guilty and the sentence, Under
the provisions of Article of War 50}, you now have authority to order
execution of the sentence.

2. At the commencement of the trial, the trial judge advocate pro-
pounded the following question to the membems of the court:

"Is there any one here who believes that
a forcible rape is impossible unless it
is aided by an accomplice? Is there any
member of the court who holds such an

opinion?"(R4,5).

Upon being questioned as to the purpose of such interrogation, the trial
judge edvocate responded:

"Then the prosecution would challenge him
for cause. * * * The cause would be that
he is biassed (sic), unfite In his

opinion the e¢rime cannot be consummated,

so that the accused is therefore of .
necessity not guilty and cennot be proven
guilty"(R5).

This collogquy was harmless to accused, but I do not epprove of suchn Type

of voir dire of court members. It essumes that there may be members of
the court who are unwilling to follow the mandates of the law and is a
gratuitous assumption cerrying aspersions which are unfair and unauthorized.

3¢ On the voir dire of the court the itrial judge advocate feailed
to comply with par.ld (2), Military Justice Circular No I, 1 Januery 1944
BOTJAG, ETOUSA, with respect to preliminaery notice to court members
concerning conscientious scruples against imposition of death sentence, The
right of challenge for cause thereby implemented is valuable and legitimate
and should not be destroyed through faulty presentations

4. The reduction of the sentence from life imprisonment to ten yeears
appears unwarranted on the evidence, and creates inequality in the punish-
ment for the crime of rape, In my judgment this was an-aggravated case
with no encouragement from the victim, who was a uniformed member of the
British forces,
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S5e¢ Then copies of the published order are forwerded to this office,
they should be accompenied by the forégoing holding and this indorsement.
The file number of the recdrd in this office is ETO 2203. For convenience

of reference please place that numbér in brackets at the end of the orders
(ETO 2203).

\ Brigadier Generel, United States Army,
Assistant Judge Advocate General.
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Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General (229)
with the
European Theater of Operations
APO 871

BOARD OF REVIEW | |
ETO0 2205 : 10 MAY 1944

UNITED STATES 1ST IKFANTHEY DIVISION.

)

Ve 3 Trial by G.C.M,, convened at Beamin-

) ster, Dorsetshire, England, 22 April
Private First Class JOHN R, ) 1944, Sentence: Dishonorable dis-
La FOUNTAIN (12005429), charge, total forfeitures and con-
Company 4, 16th Infantry. finement at hard labor for 30 years.
Eastern Breanch, United States Dis-

) ciplinary Barracks, Greenhaven, New

) ’ Iork.

HOLDING by the BOARD OF REVIEW
RITER, VAN EENSCHOTEN and SARGENT, Judge Advocates

le The record of trial in the case of the soldier named above has
been examined by the Beard of Review,

2, Accused was tried upon the following Charge and Specification:

CHARGE: Violation of the 75th Article of War,

Specification: In that Private First Class John
R, laFountain, Company 4, 16th Infantry,
being present with his company while it was
engaged with the enemy, did at Beja, Tunisia,
on or about 25 April 1943, shame abandon

the said company and seck safety in the rear,

and did fail to return to military control
until 13 Fetcusi 1944.

He pleaded not guilty to and was found guilty of the Charge and Specifica-
tion, No evidence of previous convictions was introduced., He was
sentenced to be dishonorably discharged the service, to forfeit all pay and
allowances due or to become due, and to be confined at hard labor, at suech
place as the reviewing authority may direct, for the term of his natural
life, The reviewing authority approved only so much of the sentence as
provided for dishonorable discharge, forfeiture of all pay and allowances
due or to become due, and confinement at hard labor for 30 years, designated
the Eastern Branch, United States Disciplinary Barracks, Greenhaven, New

]l e ‘
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York as the place of confinement, directed that accused be held at the
2912th Disciplinary Training Center, Shepton Mallet, Somsrset, England
pending further orders, and forwarded the record of trial for action pur-
suant to the provisions of Article of War 50%,

"3, The uncontroverted evidence was as follows:

On 25 April 1943, accused was a member of the first squad, second
platoon, Company 4, 16th Infantry (R9). The company, having taken a cer-
tain terraln feature on the preceding day, was in a front position in a
valley in the BejJa-Mateur sector, preparatory to an attack upon another
terrain feature about 1000 yards forward (R5,7,8)s The company was under
enexy observation and artillery fire (R7,8). Accused absented himself
from his company without leave on 25 April 1943 prior to the attack (R6=7;
Pros,Bx."A") and remained absent until he was apprehended at Oran, Algeria
on 13 February 1944 (Stipulation, R13),

On 23 March 1944, after dus warning as to his rights in the prem-
ises and in the presence of the adjutant of his regiment, accused made
voluntery confeassion which was reduced to writing, It stated in part:

"I was assigned to 'A' Company, 16th Infantry,
and in the latter part of April, 1943, we
were somewhere east of Beja preparing for an
attack, At that time I was a chief scout,
and had been pulling contimuous patrols, It
seemed that I got every patrol detail and it
reached a point where I couldn't take it any
longer. As we were preparing to move forward
in the attack, I left the company and went to
the rear,* \ .

(R12-13 ; Proa.Ex,"B* ) °

4e No evidence was introduced by the defense, After his rights were
explained to him, accused elected to remain silent,

5. Accused!s confession was adequately corroborated by independent
evidence which showed that his company was engaged with the enemy, (aynonym-
ous with "before the enemy"), thus establishing the first element of the
offense (CM ETO 1693, Allen, and authorities there cited), and that he
abandoned his company and sought safety in the rear, thus establishing the
second element of the offense (ibid,). The evidence that he failed to re-
turn to military control until his apprehension on 13 February 1944, while
unnecessary (CM ETO 1663, Ison, and suthorities there cited), "makes the
evidence of accused's guilt of the offense charged the more complete and

compelling® (CM ETO 1693, Allen).
6. At the end of the record appears the following statement:

w2e
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®I have examined a copy of the record of trial
::toroitmmtbonuutodandhntnocc-ont

It was signed by the law member in liesu of Defense Counsel, "on detached
service.” One of the duties of defense counsel for accused is thus
prescribed:

®He will exanine the record of the proceedings

of the court before it is authenticated* (XCN,

lowhere 1s provision mads for the discharge of this duty by amyone other
than accused's counsel or his assistant (see XCN, 1928, par.44, pe34). ZThe
Board of Roview 1s of the opinion that the quoted provision, liks provisions
presoribing othsr duties of defense counsel and similar provisions, is
directory rather than mandatory, procedural rather than jurisdictional, and
that unless "after an examination of the entire proceedings, it shall appesar
that the error # # # has injuriously affected the substantial rights of*
accused, the proce shall "not begheld invalid, nor the findings or
sentence disapproved® 37; see XCN, 1928, par.87h, p.74)e The record
shows that a carbon copy thereof was received by accused om 26 April 1944,
that the reporter, members of the court, and prosscution were sworn, and
that the record was signed by the president and trial judge advocate, as
w1l as by the law member, with specific indicatiocns by the last two that
they had exanined it, In view of these circumstances the Board of Review
is of the -opinion that the irregularity did not injuriously affect accused's
substantial rights and msy therefore be disregarded,

7. The charge sheet shows that accused is 22 years of age and enlisted
at Albany, Eew York om 24 Jamuary 1941 in the grade of FPrivate to serve for
a pariod of three years, He had no prior service,

8. The court was legally constituted and had juriediction of the per-
son and offense, No errors injuriously affecting the substantlial rights
of acoused wers committed during the trial, The Board of Review is of the
opinfion that the record of trial is legally sufficient to support the find-
ings of guilty and the sentence, The penalty for misbshavior before the
enexmy 1s death or such other punishment as a court-martial may direct (AW
75)e Confinement in the Eastsrn Branch, United §tates Disciplinary
Barracks, Gresnhaven, New York, is suthorized (AW 42; Cir, 210, WD, 14 Sep
1943, #00,VI, par.2s, as amended by Cir, 331, WD, 21 Dec 1943, sec,II, par.2).

%t«/a—-/é Judge Advocate
W— Judge Advocate
%z@fﬁf Judge Advocate
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1st Ind,

WD, Branch Office TJAG., with ETousa, 10 MAY 1944 TO: Commanding
General, lst Infantry Division, AFO 1, U.S. Army,

1, In the case uf Private First Class JOHN R, 1a FOUNTAIN (12005429),
Company 4, 16th Infantry, attention i1s invited to the foregoing holding by
the Board of Review that the record of trial is legally sufficient to
support the findings of gullty and the sentence, which hulding is hereby

approved, Under the provisions of Article of War 50%, you now have author-
ity to order exscution of the sentence.

2, When copies of the published order are forwarded to this office
they should be accompanied by the foregoing holding and this indorsement,
The file mumber of the record in this office is ETO 2205, For convenience
c(ar refmx):oe please place that rnumber in brackets at the end of the order:

ET0 2205).

Brigadier General, United States Army,
Asaistant Judge Advocate General,
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with the (233)

Buropean Theater of Operations

BOARD OF REVIET
- ETO 2210

UNITED STATES

Ve

Privates BERNARD .J. LAVELLE
(33678234), 310th Replacement
Company, 4lst Replacement
Battalion; CLINTON A. GRIER
(39325396), 203rd Replacement
Company, 52nd Replacement
Battalion; and WILLIAI A.
SALVATORIELLO (32607728),
469th Replacement Company, 824
Replacement Battalion.

Nt St S Nt Sosaas? S st st v s Smsl “cast?® Sani? st N ot s’ “un’

APO 871

16 JUN 1944

SOUTHERN BASE SECTION, SERVICES QOF
SUPPLY, EUROPLAN THEATER OF CPERA-
- TIONS.

Trial by G.C.ll., convened at Camp
Lufton, Yeovil, Somersetshire,
England 7 April 1944. Sentencet
Yavelle - Dishonorable discharge,
total forfeltures and confinement

at hard labor for three years;

Grier - Dishonorable discharge,

total forfeitures and confinement

at hard labor for four years;
Salvgtoriello - Dishonorable dis-
charge, total forfeitures and con-
finement at hard labor for six years.
The Federal Reformatory, Chillicothe,
Ohio,

HOLDING by the BCARD OF REVIEW
RITER, VAN BENSCHOTEN and SARGENT, Judge Advocate:

1. The record of trial in the case of the soldiers named agbove has
been examined by the Board of Review.

2. The accused were tried upon the following charges and specifications:

LAVELLE

CHARGE I: Violation of the 6lst Article of Var.,

Specification: In that Private Bernard J. Lavelle,
310th Replacement Company, 41st Replacement
Battalion, did without proper leave, gbsent
himself from his command at Lufton Camp,
Yeovil, Somerset, England, from about 25 Feb-
ruary 1944 to about 26 February 1944.

CHARGE II: Violation of the 96th Article of War.
o (Finding of Not Guilty)
Specifications (Finding of Not Guilty)

-l
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CHARGE III: Violation of the 93rd Article of War.

Specification: In that * % %, did in conjunction
wlth Private Clinton A. Grier, 203rd Replace-
ment Company, 52nd Replacement Battalion, and
Private William A. Salvatoriello, 469th Replace-
ment Company, 82nd Replacement Battalion, at
Yeovil, Somerset, England, on or about 26 Feb-
Tuary 1944, feloniously take, steal and carry
away four (4) pounds and ten (10) shillings,
having an exchange value of about eighteen
dollars (£18.00), the property of Louie A.
Bunce. .

GRIER

CHARGE I: Violation of the 6lst Article of War.

Specification: In that Private Clinton A. Grier,
203rd Replacement Company, 52nd Replacement
Battalion, did, without proper leave, absent
himself from his command at Camp Stabley,
Somerset, England, from about 13 February
1944, to about 27 February 1944.

CHARGE II: Violation of the 96th Article of War.
(Finding of Not Guilty)
Specification: (Finding of Not Guilty)

CHARGE IIIs Violation of the 93rd Article of Var.,

Specifications In that * ¥ %, did, in conjunction
with Private Bernard J. Lavelle, 310th Replace-
ment Company, 41st Replacement Battalion, and
Private Willlam A. Salvatoriello, 469th
Replacement Company, 82nd Replacement Battalion,
at Yeovil, Somerset, England, on or about 26
February 1944, feloniously take, steal
carry away four (4) pounds and ten (105 shill-
ings having an exchange value of about eighteen
dollars (£18.00), the property of Louie A.
Bunce.

SALVATORIELLO

CHARGE I: Violation of the 6lst Article of Var.

. Specification ¢ In that Private William A.
Salvatoriello, 469th Replacement Company, 82nd
Replacement Battalion, did, without proper
leave, absent himself from‘his post and duties
at Camp Lufton, Somerset, England, from about
23 February 1944 to 26 February 1944.

—2-
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CHARGE II: Violation of the 96th Article of Var.

Specification 1: In that * * %, did, at Yeovil,
Somerset, England, on or about 26 February
1944, without authority, appear with chevrons

; of a Technical Sergeant.

Specification 2: In that * % ¥, did at Yeovil,
Somerset, England, on or about 26 February
1944, with intent to defraud, wilfully, un-
lawfully and feloniously pass as true and
genuine a certain Enlisted Man's Pass, in words
and figures as follows:

ENLISTED MAN'S PASS

Bill Davis Sgt 32607728
(YName) (Grade) (Army Serial No,)
is authorized to be absent from his post --

From___ 2/2L/44 0900
To______ 2/26/44 2400
To Visit
Signed__ Bill Smith Capt
Company Commander
Inf

a writing of a public nature, which might operate
to the prejudice of another, which said Enlisted
Man's Pass was, as he, the said Private William A,
Salvatoriello then well knew, falsely made and
forged.

CHARGE III: Violation of the 93rd Article of War.

Specification: 1In that * * ¥, did, in conjunction with
Private Clinton A. Grier, 203rd Replacement Company,
52nd Replacement Battalion, and Private Bernard J.
Lavelle, 310th Replacement Company, 4lst Replacement
Battalion, at Yeovil, Somerset, England, on or about
26 February 1944, feloniously take, steal and carry
away four (4) pounds and ten (10) shillings, having
an exchange value of about eighteen dollars (£18.00),
the property of Loule A. Bunce.

Lavelle pleaded not guilty to Charge I and its Specification and guilty to
Charges II and III and their Specifications. During the trial he changed

his plea of guilty to Charge II and its Specification to not guilty. He

was found not guilty of Charge II and its Specification and guilty of Charges
I and III and their Specifications. Evidence was introduced of one previous
conviction by special court-martial of absence without leave for 37 days in

-3 -
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violation of Article of iar 61, He was sentenced to be dishonorably dis-
charged the service, to forfeit all pay and allowances due or to become due .
and to be confined at hard labor, at such place as the reviewing authority may
direct, for three years.

Grier pleaded not guilty to Charge II and its Specification and guilty
to Charges I and III and their Specifications. He was found not guilty of
Charge II and its Specification and guilty of Charges I and III and their.
Specifications. Evidence was introduced of two previous convictions both
by special courts-martial; one for absence without leave for 22 days and
five days respectively in violation of the 6lst Article of Vfar and for
breach of arrest in violation of the 69th Article of War, and one for absence
without leave for seven days in violation of the 6lst Article of Var. He
was sentenced to be dishonorably discharged the service, to forfeit all pay
and allowances due or to become due and to be confined at hard labor, at
such place as the reviewing authority may direct, for four years.

Salvatoriello pleaded not guilty to Charge II and its Specifications
and guilty to Charges I and III and their Specifications. He was found
guilty of all Charges and Sonecifications. Evidence was introduced of three
.previous convictions; one by summary court for absence without leave for
seven days and two by special courts-martial for absence without leave for
/9 days and AO days respectively, all in violation of the 6lst Article of
ilar. He was sentenced to be dishonorably discharged the service, to forfeit
all pay and allowances due or to become due and to be confined at hard labor,
at euch place as the reviewing authority may direct, for six years.

The reviewing authority approved the sentence of each of *the accused,
designated The Federal Reformatory, Chillicothe, Ohio, as the place of con-
; £finement for each accused and forwarded the record of trial for action
pursuant to Article of War 50%,

3. Salvatoriello is charged with uttering a forged enlisted man's pass
which he knew was falsely made and forged (Specification 2,Charge II), The
"~ evidence establishes without contradiction that he not only uttered and
used the pass but actually forged it (R 16,17,19,33-36, Pros Zx N; R31).

His offense is denounced by a specific act of Congresst

Mihoever shall falsely make, forge, counterfeit, alter,
or tamper with any naval, military, or official pass
or permit, issued by or under the authority of the
United States, or with wrongful or fraudulent intent

" shall use or have in his possession any such pagss or

ermit, or shall personate or falsely represent him-

self to be or not to be a person to whonm such pass or
permit has been duly issued, or shall wilfully allow
any other person to have or use any such pass or ner-
mit, issued for his use alone, shall be fined not

more than $2000 or irprisoned not more that five years,
or both." (Act June 15, 1917, c. 20, Title X, sec. 3;
4O Stat. 228; 18 U.S.C.A.xxx 132). (Underscoring

SUpplied).

-/ -
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The violation of said statute constitutes a crime or offense not cepital
under the 96th Article of War (MCM 1928, sec. 1522, pp. 188, 189), and
penitentiary confinement is authorized by AW 42; UCH 1928 par. 90g, p. 81;
sec 335 Federal Criminal Code (18 U.S.CA.541) and Act June 14, 1941, c. 204;
55 Stat. 252 (18 U.S.CA.753f); Cf. U.S. v Sloan 31 Fed. Supp. 327.

4. The charge sheets show that:

Accused Lavelle is 20 years six months of age and was inducted at .
Pittsburg, Pennsylvania, 13 April 1943, to serve for the duration of the
war plus six months. He had no nrior service;

Accused Grier is 20 years of age and was inducted at Portland,
Oregon, 18 January 1943 to serve for the duration of the war and six months.
He had no prior service;

Accused Salvatoriello is 22 years of age and was inducted at
Newark, New Jersey, 16 January 1943 for the duration of the war plus six
months. He had no prior service.

5. The court was legally constituted and had jurisdiction of the
percsons and offenses. No errors injuriously affecting the substantial
rights of the accused were committed during the trial. The Board of Review
1s of the opinion that the record of trial is legally sufficient to support
the findings of guilty and the sentences as to each accused.

6., DNeither of the offenses of which the accused Lavelle and -Grier were
convicted were offenses for which penitentiary confinement is authorized by
either the Federal Criminal Code or the Code of the District of Columbia.
Penitentiary confinement is therefor illegal (AW 42). The place of confine-
ment should be changed as to the said two accused to Eastern Branch, United
States Disciplinary Barracks, Greenhaven, New York (Cir.210, "D, 14 Sep 1943,
sec. VI, par. 2a, as amended by Cir.331, WD, 21 Dec 1943, sec. II, par. 2).
Confinement of accused Salvatoriello in a penitentiary is authorized (see
par. 3, supra, and Cir.291, WD, 10 lov 1943, sec. V, par. 3a)

m % Judge Advocate

A AL e s,
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UN 1944
1D, Branch Office TJAG., with ETOUSA. 16 JUNT9 TO
General, Southern Base Section, SOS, ETOUSA, APC 519, U.S.Army.

Commanding

1. In the case of Privates BERILRD J. LAVELLE (33678234), 310th
Replacement Company, 4lst Replacement Battalion, CLINTOIl A. GRIIR (39325396),
203rd Replacement Company, 52nd Replacement Battalion, and WILLIALZ A.
SALVATORIELLO (32607728), 469th Replacement Company, £2d Replacement Battalion
attention is invited to the foregoing holding by the Board of Review that the
record of trial is legally sufficient to support the findings of guilty and
the sentences as to each accused, which holding is hereby approved. Under
the provisions of Article of War 503, you now have authority to order execu-
tion of the sentence.

2. Nelther of the offenses of which the accused Lavelle and Grier were
convicted were offenses for which penitentiary confinement is authorized by
either the Federal Criminal Code or the Code of the District of Columbia.
Penitentiary confinement is therefore illegal (A7 42). The place of confine-
nent should be changed to Eastern Branch, United States Disciplinary Barracks
Greenhaven, New York. This may be done in the published court-martial order.

3. I believe that the ends of justice will be fully achieved and dis-
cipline will be maintained by confinement of all accused in Disciplinary
Training Center Ho. 2912, Shepton llallet, Somersetshire, England with
suspension of their dishonorable discharges, and I so recounend. ‘hile
their offenses are not to be condoned; they are of the type that do not
require the return of accused to the United States, unless and until accused
demonstrate, while in confinement, their further incorrigibility and lack
of value to the service. In the event you agree with this recommendation
your action thereon should be returned to this office for attachment to
the record.

4o Yhen copies of the published order are forwarded to this office
they should be accompanied By the foregoing holding and this indorsement.
The file number of the record in this office is ETO 2210, For convenience
of reference please place that number im brackets at/{@Qgﬁﬁéfgg the order:
(ETO 2210). LN S

’ﬁa.tak leMEIL, /3
Brigadier Generaly inited States/Army,
Assistant Judge AdRe

AR ISR

bon Ganeral .
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‘Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General
with the
European Theater of Operations
AP0 871 _

BOARD OF REVIEW

21 JUN 1944

ET0 2212 _
UNITED ‘8TAT!8§ - 2D BOMBARDMENT DIVISION,

Yo Trial by G.C.M.,, convened at AAF ‘

: ) Station 115, 23 March - 25 April 1944,

Private EDWARD E. COLDIRON _ Sentences Dishonorable discharge,
(35452621), 506th Bombard- total forfeitures and confinement at
ment Squadron, 44th Bombard- hard lebor for 25 years, Eastern Branch,

nwnt Group (H). United States Disciplinary Barracks,
_ : Greenhaven, New York,

HOIDING by the BOARD OF KEVIEW
RITER, VAN BENSCHOTEN and SARGENT, Judge Advocates

l, The record of trial in the case of the goldier named above has
been examined by the Board of Review,

2. Accused was tried upon the following Charge and specifications:

CHARGE: Violation of the 75th Article of War,

Specification 1t In that Private Edward E, Coldironm,
506th Bomba.rdmsnt Squadron, 44th Bombardment
Group (H), did at AAF Station 115, APO 634, on
or about 1 Decembsr 1943, misbehave himself
before the enemy by wilfully failing to accom=
pany and fly with his crew which had been
ordered by Lieutenant Colonel Dexter L. Hodge,
AC, Group Operations Officer of said 44th
Bombardment Group, to execute a combat opera-

- tional mission by flying over territory
occupied by the enemy in Europe.

Specification 2% In that # * #, did at AAF- Station
115, APO 634, on or about 5 December 1943,
misbehave himself before the enemy by wilfully
failing to accompany and fly with his crew
which had been ordered by Lieutenant Colonel
Dexter L, Hodge, AC, Group Opsrations Officer
of saild 44th Bombardment Group, to execute a

~ combat operational mission by flying over’
territory occupled by the enemy in Europe..

CORFIDENTIAL
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He pleaded not gullty to and was found guilty originally of the Charge and
both specifications, No evidence of previous convictions was introduced.
He was sentenced originally to be shot to death with musketry, all members
of the court concurring, The reviewling authority found the evidence
legally sufficlent to sustain only so much of the findings as involves a
£inding of guilty of the lesser included offense of misbehavior by wilfully
failing to fly on an ordered mission, in violation of the 96th Article of
War, returned the record of trial to the court with orders to reconvene
and: reconsider its findings of guilty of both specifications of the Charge
‘and of the Charge, to reconsider its sentence and to impose a sentence
appropriate to its findings under both specifications and the Chargs, The
court reconvened, revoked its former findings and found accused guilty of’
both specifications, except the words "before the enemy® and of the except-
ed words not guilty, and not guilty of the Charge but gullty of a violation
of the 96th Article of War, The court thereupon revoked its sentence, re-
considered the same for both specifications and the Charge of which accused
was convicted and, three-fourths of the members present at the time the
vote was taken concurring, sentenced accused to be dishonorably discharged
the service, to forfeit all pay and allowances dus or to become dus and to
be confined at hard labor, at such place as the reviewing authority may
direct, for the term of his natural 1ife, - The reviewing authority approv-
ed the (revised) sentence, reduced the period of confinement to 25 years,
designated the Eastern Branch, United States Disciplinary Barracks, Green-
haven, New York as the place of confinement, and forwarded the record of
trial for action pursuant to the provisions of Article of War 50%.

3. Uncontroverted evidence for the prosecution shows the following:

Accused on 1 and 5 December 1943 was a waist gunner in a heavy
bomber crew of the 506th Bombardment Squadron, 44th Bombardment Group (H),
AAF Station 115 (R16,26,28-29; Pros.Ex.F). The procedure preparatory to-
the execution of a bombing mission, which had been in operation at that
station for spproximately one year, was as followss  The group operations
" saction relsyed to squadron headquarters the notice of alert and the field .
order received from higher headquarters (R6). The squadron operations
officer thereupon prepared a schedule of ships and crews of the squadron to
fly on the forthcoming mission (R10-12; Pros.Exs.A,B), and submitted the
same for confirmation to the group operations section (R6~7,16). The
latter, upon receipt of orders from higher authority, determined the :
approximate "take-off® time and then ordered squadron headquarters to awak-
en crew members to report for the briefing and mission (R6,17). The group
unit might decide the identity of the officers, and occasionally of the ‘
enlisted men, of the crews which were to fly (R30). The schedule, in the
form of a squadron operations order, was posted on the bulletin board at
the squadron living site during the evening before the scheduled mission.
Crew members thereby had frequent opportunity to observe it., It served as
an order and was the only source of a crew member's knowledge that he was
to fly on a stated mission (R14,25,31-32; Pros.Ex,E). When crew members
returned from a "Liberty Run", they reported and "signed in" at the
. "picket post®, Usually at that time they examined the schedule to deter-
mine if they were scheduled for the ensuing mlssion (R36). It also con-
tained the names of "spareg" (indicated by an asterisk), not members o,
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but scheduled to fly with, individual crews in specified shipas, The ships
were identified by the last three digits of thelr numbers., The schedule
further contained the names of "spare®" crew members, for whom no ship was
listed or available and who were thus not scheduled to fly initially (R15-
16,29; Pros.Exs.A,B), Pursuant to instructions, and in discharge of his
duty when a mission was scheduled, the squadron charge of quarters awakened
the crew members two hours before briefing and informed them of the time of
day and of briefing (R28,31). The foregoing procedure was followed with
respect to the missions scheduled for 1 and 5 December 1943 (R6,10-12), On
those dates Lieutenant Colonel Dexter L, Hodge was operations officer of
the 44th Bombardment Group (R6~7), )

Squadron Order Number 26, 1 November 1943, paragraph 2, detailed
certain named enlisted men of the 506th Bombardment Squadron "to duty re-
quiring them to participate in regular and frequent aerial flights commenc-
ing this date until relieved by competent authority", All combat men of
the aquadron were listed in the order. Accused's name and serial number
were on the list and his duty assignment was specified as "Tail Gunner®
(R28-29; Pros.Ex.F).

Accused's name was listed and marked with an asterisk under the
nameg of members of Crew No.3, Ship No.427-642, on the posted schedule for
the mission of Wednesdey, 1 December 1943 (R11,29; Pros.Exs.A,C). A8 a
% gpare®, accused, although not assigned regularly to Crew No,3, was requir-
ed to be individually awskened by charge of quarters and informed of the
ship on which and the time when it was intended he was to fly (R28), On
the occasion of this mission charge of quarters awakened accused, who was
living with the combat crew personnel, and informed him of the ship om which
he would fly, "who was flying it® and the time of briefing, Accused in-
formed him that "he was sick and was going on sick call® (R30,31)., Charge
of quarters reported the matter to the squadron operations officer (R11,32).
Accused did not report for flight or fly on the scheduled mission, which
was executed (R11,21,23; Pros,Ex.C). ’

The custom in the squadron when a man reported that he was sick,
was for him to report to the hospital for a check and verification of his
claim of i1llness or physical disebility by the squadron flight surgeon. His
1llness wes not a valid excuse for not arising (R18), Accused did not re-
port on sick call on 1 December, nor was the squadron flight surgeon inform-
ed on that day that accused was sick (R40=41), Charge of quarters himself
had no authority to allow a man to remove himself from an anthorized crew
by means of a statement to him that he was sick or indisposed, Authority
to remove the man was the personal responsibility of the squadron operations
. officer, Such authority was exercised if the hospital (flight surgeon)
stated that the man should be "grounded® or if the operations officer him-
self decided that the man was unfit to fly or otherwise to fulfil his duties
(R18-19). That officer did not remove accused from the authorized crew on
1 December. When accused was reported slck, the operations officer re-
placed him with a substitute "as a precautionary measure against time",
Nevertheless this did not alter the rule that no substitution would actually
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be made except on confirmation by the flight surgeon that the man originally
scheduled was sick (R19-20).

The squadron operations officer issued a bulletin, dated 3 December,
reading in part as follows:

RATTENTION ALL COMBAT PERSONNEL:

If you are scheduled to fly on the list of
Crews or Spares on the daily schedule, and
you are awakened for a mission, YOU WILL
TELL CPL.REPETSKY AT THAT TIME IF FOR SOME
REASON YOU ARE NOT INTENDING TO FIY. The
reason for this is quite obvious., If Oper-
ations can't locate you or must replace
you shortly before take-off it 18 very un-
fair to the man replacing you. He gets
neither breakfast nor time to check his
guns and equipment.® (Def Ex,I),

The purpose of issuing the bulletin was to require crew members to report to
charge of quarters immediately if they were not going to fly, so that some
indication would be given as to where they would be at "take-off" time (R13-
14,18; Defokol).

Accused's name was listed, without an asterisk, under the names of
members of Crew No,4, Ship No,427=-509, on the schedule for the mission of
Sunday, 5 December 1943 which schedule was posted as usual (R12,30; Pros.Exs,
B,D). Accused, with other crews members "from down at the local pub", was
present at the picket post about midnight on 4-5 December when they reported
from a "Liberty Run" from Norwich and "signed in"., At this time two crew
members asked charge of quarters in accused's presence ®aYdfit, to which
charge of quarters replied in the affirmative, A discusbion ensued, in
which accused participated, concerning the time of arising and of briefing
and the expected temperature, Accused appesred to be sober (R33-36), On
the morning of the mission, charge of quarters awakened accused individually,
The former testified: : _

*I knew that he had been individually assigned
to this crew and so I got him up early to
make sure he got up",

Adccused when awakened stated "!'I am drunk and going on sick call.'®™ He did
not appear to be drunk and was not "too hard" to awaken - ®just like anybody
else would wake up that early in the morning.® (R30-31), Thereafter ancther
crew member at least partially awakened accused, who "said he was sick and
wasn't going to fly" (R34). Charge of quarters reported the matter to the
commanding officer and gperations officer of the squadron (R32), Accused
was absent from briefing/0400 on 5 December 1943 and did not report for
flight or fly in the scheduled mission, which was executed (R12,21,24; Pros,
Ex, D)., He did not report on sick call on 5 December, nor was the squadron
f£light surgeon informed on that day that accused was sick, Drunken men had
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never been seen on sick call (R40={1). The squadron operations officer
did not remove accused from the authorigzed crew on 5 December {18=19),

Major Robert E., Kalliner, commanding officer of accused's squadron
from 3 Jamuary to 20 March 1944, testified that after hs assumed command he
digcovered the charge herein sgainst accused, He discussed the case with
him and requested him to consider his situation carefully so.that he could
be made a positive force in the unit and to state whether he wished to cone
tinue to fly or preferred to be assigned to another type of duty, Accused
replied that at one time he felt he would rather be court-martialed than .
fly but had since changed his mind and would like to contimue to fly, Wit-
ness therefore placed him on a combat status as a member of a combat crew,
Accused was scheduled for a number of missions following that time, flew:
some of them but refused to fly on three separate occasions, Defense ob-
Jected to the testimony as to "what happened subsequently" to 5 December
1943, The law member sustained the objection and the prosecution stated
that it would "withdraw the question” (R26-27).

Captain O,W. Allison, squadron flight surgeon, testified that he
knew accused well, as one of the "old boys of the outfit" and that he would
not consider him neurotic, but rather a good combat crewman and aerial
gunner and one of the stronger men (R37,40).

4e A%t the close of the prosecution's case the defense moved for find-
ings of not guilty of the Charge and specifications. The court denied the
motion, No evidence was introduced for the defense, = After his rights
were explained to him, accused elected to remain silent (R41-42).

5, After the arraignment the defense entered a special plea of "con-
structive condonation®, stating:

#Since the dates of the lat of December and the
5th of December Private Coldiron has been on
three missions, and has been awarded the air
nmedal., The defense is prepared to introduce
evidence to that effect."

Without permitting the introduction of evidence or argument, the court
denied the plea and accused pleaded to the general issue (R5),

The award of the Air Medal to accused was a recognition that he had
distinguished himself by meritorious achievement while participating in en
aerial flight; the required achievement to warrant the award must have been
accomplished with distinction above and beyond that normally expected,
either in single actions of merit or sustained operational activities against
the enemy (AR 600-45, 22 Sep 1943, par.l7).

"Except as otherwise indicated in the discussion
of special pleas, the burden of supporting a
special plea by a preponderance of proof rests
on the accused, % %* %,

L 5 -
CONFIDENTIAL



(244) CONFIDENTIAL

Before passing en a.contested special plea
the court will give each side an opportunity to
introduce evidence and make an argument" (MCM,
1928, par.64s, p.51; CM ETO 108, Abrsms; CM ETO
110, Bgt;eggs.

"Constructive Condonation of Degertion.- An
unconditional restoration to duty without trial

by an authority competent to order trial may be:
pleaded in bar of trial for the desertion to
which such restoration relates" (MCM, 1928, par,
69&, Pe 54).

It 13 well eatablished that restoration to duty without trial of
one charged with desertion, as authorized by Army Regulations (AR 615-300,
25 Mar 1944, par.l9q and predecessor provisions), is a complete bar to trial
for sush degertion (Winthrop's Military Law & Precedents - Reprint - pp.270-
271; Dig.Op.JAG, 1912, p.415; JAG 251.29, Sept., 11, 1919, Dig.Op.JAG, 1912-
1940, AR 615-300, par.18h, p.996). Winthrop comments as followa:

#But the mere restoring to command or duty, or
ordering on duty, of an officer or soldier,
when in arrest under charges, by his command-
ing officer, while regarded in the English
law as practically a pardon and pleadabls as
such in bar of trial, is not authorized in our
law to be so treated, (except in the single
case above mentioned as provided for in the
Army Regulations (desertion))and is not so
treated in practice., Nor can the mere fact
that charges once preferred have been dropped
by a commander be pleaded in bar as a construct-
ive pardon of the same, upon being subsequently
revived and brought to trial® (Winthrop's Mil-
itary Lew & Precedents - Reprint - p,271).

That a specific directive by high authoriby would be required to make the
defense avallable against a charge other than desertion is further indicat-
ed in a footnote reference in Winthrop's discussion:

"And see G.0.4, Dept., of the West, 1861, where
the plea was sustained in cases of soldiers,
not deserters, restored to duty while under
charges, in the same manner as deserters, by
the Department Commander, in a General Order"
(1bid., p.270, fm.41).

In his discussion of defenses to the charge of misbehavior before the enemy,
the author statess
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*Brave or efficient conduct in action or before
the enemy, subsequently to the offence, (where
the accused, after the commencement of the
prosecution- by arrest or service of charges-
has been permitted to do duty,) while it may
be put in evidence in mitigation of the punish-
ment, and should in general mitigate it very
consliderably, will not, strictly, constitute a
defence” (ibid., p.6245.

The Board of Review (sitting in Washington) recently held that an assign-
ment to military duties while court-martial charges were pending does not
constitute a constructive pardon or condonation of the offenses of absence
without leave and being drunk in quarters, citing Winthrop as authority.
(CM 231357 (1943), Bull,JAG, Apr 1943, Vol,II, No,4, Const. Art.II, sec,2,
cl.l, p.133 )o

As a general proposition, condeonation or ratification of an offense
of such character as to affect the public intersest and welfare is not a
valid defense to a prosecution for the offense, in the absence of specific
statutory authority (1 Wharton's Criminal Law, sec,385, pp.517-518; 22 C.J.S.,
secs.41,42, ppo97"98)0 i

There 1s no specific proof in the record that accused was actually-
removed from duty subsequent to 5 December 1943. Assuming, however, that
such was the case, his restoration to duty and the award of the Air Medal
to him subsequent to the derelictions herein charged did not effect a con-
structive condonation of his offenses under the authorities above cited.
Only a direct mandate from Congress or a direction from higher authority
could produce such result,

The provision in the Manual for Courts-Martial, 1928 (par.64s, p.51),
for an opportunity by an accused to introduce evidence before a special plea
is considered by the court, was not available to accused because the plea in
bar was bad on its face, As a matter of law it did not state facts suffi-
cient to constitute a defense to the charge. Under such circumstances the
rule of the Abrams and Bartlett cases, supra, is not applicable, If a
demurrer by the prosecution to the plea were recognized by military justice
practice it would have been the duty of the court to sustain such demurrer,
The action of the court was free from error.

6, The review of the Staff Judge Advocate, 24 Bombardment Diviasion,
dated 11 April 1944, contains the following explanation as to the reference
of the charges for itrial and subsequent events:

"These charges were referred for trial on March
4y 1944, on the theory that under the facts
presented in the investigation the accused
misbehaved himself by refusing to participate
in the missions, and that at said time he was
before the enemy within the meaning of Article
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of War 75, After this case was referred for
trial the Board of Review in the Branch Office
of the Judge Advocate General with the Euro-
pean Theater of Operations in the case of
United States vs, Private Johnnie (NMI) Muir,
ETO 1226, rendered an opinion construing
Article of War 75 in cases of this nature,
Notification of the holding in the Mulr case
was not received by this office until after
the trial of the instant case, In the Muir
case the rule 1s stated as follows: 'That a
bomber crew, based on an airfield in the United
Kingdom, although alerted and under orders to
perform a designated mission is not "before the
enemy" when it has not departed from its base,
and 18 not the immediate object of attack by
the enemy,' Inasmuch as it appears that the
accused's misbehavior occurred while he was
still at his base in the United Kingdom and
that his base was not then the immediate ob-
Ject of enemy attack, the accused was not
'before the enemy! under Article of War 75 as
it has now been construed.

IR EERE R
For the reasons stated # * %, the evidence is
legally insufficient to support the findings
and the sentence in toto, but it does support
all of the allegations of each specification
except the allegation that accused was 'before
the enemy', It is believed that a lesser in-
cluded offense of misbehavior under Article of
War 96 has been established under each speci-
ficatlion,

* ¥ K ¥ X N X *
It is recommended that the record of trial be
returned by indorsement to the Presldent of
the Court under the provisions of 87b, MCM,
1928, with instructions to convene the Court
for proceedings in revision to reconsider its
finding of guilty of the specifications of the
charge and of the charge and to reconsider its
sentence and impose a sentence appropriate with
its findings under all of the specifications
of the charge."

Pursuant to the foregoing advice, the reviewlng authority returned
the record of trial, stating in his indorsements

-8-
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"1, Pursusnt to paragraph 87b, MCM (1928), the
.record of trial in this case is returned here-
with for revision, '
2. The evidence 1s legally insufficient to
sustain the findings, under the specificationas,
of gullty of misbehavior before the enemy in
violation of Article of War 75 but is legally
sufficient to sustain only so much of the find-
ings a8 involves a finding of gullty of the
lesser included offense of misbehavior by wil-
fully failing to fly on an ordered mission, in
violation of Article of War 96.
3¢ The court will reconvens in accordance with
paragraph 83, MCM (1928), for the following
purposes:
a8, To reconsider its findings of guilty of
both specifications of the charge and of the
charge.
b, To reconaider its sentence and to impose
a sentence appropriate with its findings under
both specifications and the charge."

The above practice was approved by the Board of Review in CM ETO 1743,
Penson. The advice of the Staff Judge Advocate, the action of the re-
viewing authority pursuant thereto and the action of the court in revising
its findings wers properly premised on the principlesannounced in the
holding of the Board of Review in CM ETO 1226, Muir., Consequently -the
action of the court on revision in finding accused not gullty of the words
"before the enemy" and not gullty of the Charge and in reducing its sentence
was proper.

7. There remains for consideration the question whether the action of
the court in finding accused gullty of the specifications except the words
"before the enemy" and guilty of violation of the 96th Article of War can
be sustained. This involves the questions (a) whether the specifications
are broad enough after excepting the words "before the enemy" to allege an
offense under the 96th Article of War as a lesser included offense and (b)
if the answer to the first question be in the affirmative, whether the evi-
dence in the record is legally sufficlent to sustain the findings of guilty
of such a violation,

(a) "One or more words or figures may be excepted
and, where necessary, others substituted,
provided the facts as so found constitute an
offense by an accused which is punishable by
the court, and provided that such action does
not change the nature or identity of any
offense charged in the specification or in-
crease the amount of punishment that might be
imposed for any such offense, The substitu-
tion of a new date or place may, bul does not
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necessarily, change the nature or identity
of an offense,

Legger Included Offense.- If the evidence
fails to prove the offense charged but does
prove the commission of a lesser offense
necessarily included in that charged, the
court may by its findings except appropriate
words, etc,, of the specification, and, if
neceasary, substitute others instead, find-
ing the accused not guilty of the excepted
matter but guilty of the substituted matter,
A femilier instance is a finding of guilty
of absence without leave under a charge of
desertion," (MCM, 1928, par.78¢, pp.64=65).

The fact that the charge is designated a violation of a specifie
Article of War does not render improper either a finding of guilty of a
violation of the 96th Article of War, the general article, or an approval
of such portion of findings as involves such a finding, provided the latter
offense is lesser than and included in the offense charged in the specifica-
tion (CM ETO 1057, Redmond, and suthorities therein cited), There are mum-
erous instances of such findings and approvals, One of the most familiar
examples of such practice involves findings of ty of assaults of lesser
included degree (Dig.Op.JAG, 1912-1940, sec.451(3) et seq., p.311; CM ETO
1177, Combesg; CM ETO 1690, Armijo). In a case arising out of the Civil
War it was stated:

®But the suthority to find guilty of a minor
included offense, or otherwise to make ex-

- ceptions or substitutions in the finding,
can not justify the conviction of the accused
of an offense entirely separate and distinct
in its nature from that charged, Tius held
that it was not a finding of a lesser in-
cluded offense to find the accused guilty
merely of absence without leave under a
charge of a violation of the forty-second
article of war in abandoning his post before
the enemy. R. 11,274, Dec., 1864." (Dig.Op.
JAG, 1912, p.574)

In CM 133585, Huff (France) 20 Jan 1919, the accused was tried upon the
following charge and specification (among others):

"CHARGE I,- Violation of the 75th Article of War,
Specification.= In that lst Lieut., Frederick

H, Huff, D.C., 113th Infantry, being present on
duty with his regiment when it was about to en-
gage the enemy, did, at Ravine des Roches,
France, on or about the 10th day of October,
1918, abandon the regiment and seek safety in
the rear and did fail to rejoin it until the
22nd day of October, 1918,"
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He was found guilty by exceptions and substitutions of the following
specification under the 96th Article of War:

"In that lst Lieut., Frederick H, Huff, D.C,,
113th Infantry, being present on duty with
his regiment when it was about to engage
the enemy, did at Ravine des Roches, France,
on or about the 10th day of October, 1918,
when his regiment had moved awsy to engage
the enemy, and after he had been directed
by his commanding officer to rejoin his
organization, neglect and fail to rejoin it
until the 22nd of October, 1918.%

The following language appears in the opinions

"Was the court authorized by its power to
make exceptions and substitutions to shift
the charge from the 75th to the 96th Article
of War? This depends upon whether the
offense found under the 96th Article is in-
cluded within the offense laid under the 75th
Article (M.C.M,, Sec,300), It is clear that
it is not., Failure to obey the order of a
superior officer is no necessary part of mis-
behavior before the enemy as described by the
75th Article of War, It is a wholly separate
and distinct offense = t

gtinct abgence withou aye. iDig.,
Ops.J.A.G., 1912, p.574)." (Underscoring

It 1s clear that in the Huff case the court subastituted a specification
alleging facts entirely different and distinct from those alleged in the
original specification. Such 18 not the situation in the instant case,
where the original specification remained intact except for the elimina-
tion of the phrase "before the enemy®.

When some other offense is necessarily included in the phraseology
of a specification under the 75th Article of War, a conviction under the
96th Article of War (or some other cognate article) is proper (CM 130412
(1919); CM 126647 (1919), Dig.Op.JAG, 1912-1940, sec.433(3), p.304; CM
NATO (M.J.Review) 1021, Boudreaux). The last cited authorities represent
the modern rule, and insofar as they conflict with Dig.Op.JAG, 1912, p.574,
cited in CM 133585, Huff, they should be followed. However, the under-
scored phrase in the Huff case is in the nature of obiter dicta, and when.
disregarded there can be no quarrel with the results of that case. As
indicative of the true basis of the case reference is made to CM
125263, W , (France) 17 Dec 1918 (of which no mention was made in
the Huff case) in which accused was found guilty of the following charge
and specification:
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“CHARGE II: Violation of the 75th Article of War,
Specification: In that Pvt, 1lst Cl. (Surgical
Assistant Dentist) Samuel Wachsman, did, at or
near St, Juvin, France, American E.F,, on or
about the 23rd day of October, 1918, in disre-
gard of his duty, shamefully abandon his post,
to which he had been ordered by lst Lt. Martin
J. Seid, M.C,, Med, Det., 307th Enginser Regiment,
his proper superior officer, to care for the
'Oundedo.

The reviewing authority approved only so much of the finding of guilty of
the charge as involved a violation of the 96th Article of War, In the
opinion 1t was stated:

"The specification under Charge II does not
charge an offense under the 75th Article of
War, for the reason that the misconduct is not
alleged to have been 'before the enemy'; but
it clearly charges an offense under the 96th
Article of War,®

The true test is whether ®"the specification is so drawn as suffi-
ciently to allege an unauthorized absence for a stated period" (CM 130412,
supra) As stated in CM 126647, supra,

"Abandoning or running away from his company
.on the part of a soldler necessarily comports
and includes separation from the company with-
out authority®,

The alleged willful ra.ilure of the instant ascused, on two occa-
sions, to accompany and fly with his crew, even though it was not "before
the enemy", constituted "disorders and neglects to the prejudice of good
order and military discipline," both as failure to obey lawful orders of a
superior officer and as malingering (Winthrop's Military Law & Precedents
Reprint - p.730; MCM, 1928, par.134h, p.149; par.1528, p.187; CM ETO 1057,
Redmond; CM ETO 1366, Epglish). The specifications are clearly hroad
enough, after excepting the words "before the. enemy", to allege violations
‘of the 96th Article of War,

(b) The evidence is clear and uncontradicted that accused at the
place and times slleged did in fact willfully fail to accompany and fly
with his crew as scheduled, and that the crew, at the times of accused's
derelictions had been ordered by Lieutenant Colonel Dexter L, Hodge, AC,
44th Bombardment Group Operations Officer, in accordance with well estab-
lished and familiar practice, to execute combat operational missions by
flying. That such missions were to be executed by flying "over territory
occupied by the enemy in Europe™ was a proper subject of judicial notice
(MCM, 1928, par.125, p.135). The willful cheracter of accused's refusal
to fly 1s demonstrated by his notice of the fact that he was scheduled to
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fly on each mission, his pretension of illness on one occasion and of
drunkenness on the other, and his declarations of intention to report on
sick call on each occasion., The falsity of all of said statements was
demonstrated by his failure to report for medical examination and atten-
tion following each refusal, Accused's malingering conduct was not only
reprehensible but of such a character as seriocusly to jJeopardize the
success of the missions involved as well as the morale of his squadron.

He should not be accorded the immunizing advantage of a legal technicality.
All of the elements of misgbehavior within the meaning of the 75th Article
of War were present in both of accused's derelictions except the fact that
such misbehavior was not before the enemy. Such fact precludes the applic-
ability of that article but '

"does not relieve accused from culpability.
* % #, His conduct in ignoring his command-
er's control and authority displayed such a
spirit of insubordination and defiance as
to constitute a disorder prejudicial to good
order and military discipline under the 96th
Article of War® (CM ETO 1366, English quoted
in CM ETO 1057, Redmond).

Like the conduct of the accused in the last cited case, Coldiron's actions

were deliberate and contumaceous and were aggravated by the baselessness of
his purported reasons for refusing to comply with the orders involved, His

conduct in offering patently falacious excuses for his refusal on two sep-

arate occasions may be regarded as

"a rank and deliberate undertaking- no matter
how predestinedly futile and 111 advised =
to flout and subvert duly constituted author-
ity and to substitute his own, as the deter-
mining factor as to whether or not" (CM ETO

1920, Horton)
he should fly.

The Board of Review is of the opinion that the record is legally
sufficient to sustain the finding of guilty of an offense under the 96th
Article of War,

8. The specific offenses of which accused was found guilty are not
included in the table of maximum punishments set forth in the Mamual for
Courts-Martial (per.104ig, pp.97-101). They are of a more serious quality
than failure to obey a lawful order in violation of the 96th Article of War,
Rather accused!s conduct resembles willful disobedience of the command of a
superior officer in wartime in violation of the 64th Article of War, for
which no maximum punishment is prescribed (MCM, 1928, par,10ig, p.98), ex-
cept that the maximum penalty of death cannot be imposed.in the instant
cagse inasmuch as it involves a conviction under the 96th Article of War,
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Present are the elements of such offenses (1) accused received & lawful
command to fly (although not direct in form) (2) from his superior officer
(3) which he willfully disobeyed (MCM, 1928, par.134b, p.149). The Board
of Review i3 therefore of the opinion that the record of trisl is legally
sufficient to support the sentence (CM ETO 1920, Horton).

9. In view of the foregoing, the denial by the court of the defense
motion for findings of not guilty of the Charge and specificationswas prop-
er, There was

*substantial evidence which, together with all
-reasonable inferences therefrom and all
applicable presumptions, fairly tend(ed) to
establish every essential element of an offense
* % ¥ included®

in the specifications (MCM, 1928, sec,7ld, p.56).

10, The charge sheet shows that accused 1is 28 years six montha of age
and was inducted 20 April 1942 at Fort Thomas, Kentucky in the Army of the
United States for the duration of the war plus six months. He had no
prior service,

1l, The court was legally constituted and had Jjurisdiction of the per-
son and offensea, No errors injuriously affecting the substantial rights
of accused were committed during the trial, The Board of Review is of the
opinion that the record of trial is legally sufficient to support the find-
ings of gullty and the sentence,

12. Confinement in the Eastern Branch, United States Disciplinary
Barracks, Greenhaven, New York is authorized (AW 42; Cir.210, WD, 14 Sep
1943, sec.VI, par.2a, as amended by Cir,331, WD, 21 Dec 1943, sec.II, par,

m% Judge Advocate

M Judge Advocate

Judge Advocate
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lst Ind,

WD, Braxich Bffice TIAG., with ETousa, 21 JUN 1944 TO: Commanding
General, 24 Bombardment Division, APO 558, U.S. Army,

1. In the case of Private EDWARD E, COLDIRON (35452621), 506th
Bombardment Squadron, 44th Bombardment Group (H), attention is invited to
the foregoing holding by the Board of Review that the record of trial is
legally sufficient to support the findings of guilty and the sentence,
which holding is hereby approved., Under the provisions of Article of War
50%, you now have authority to order execution of the sentence,

2, Although the offenses were committed on 1 and 5 December 1943,
accused was not brought to trial until 23 March 1944, The squadron
commander, Major Wm, N. Anderson, on 9 December 1943, recommended trial
by special court-martial, Thereafter, the Commanding General, Eighth
Air Force, by 7th Indorsement dated 27 Jamuary 1944, to Commanding General,
2d Bombardment Division, directed that Charge II (Violation of 75th Article
of War) be not referred for trial and authorized reference of the revised
charges to a special court-martial, Upon a request for reconsideration
by the Commanding General, 2d Bombardment Division, by 8th indorsement,

10 February 1944, the Commanding General, Eighth Air Force, (9th indorse-
ment, 2 March 1944) expressed the opinion "that the expected testimony
warrent prosecution for failure to fly, in violation of AW 96 and not under
AW 64 or 75" and returned the file for Maction in the exercise of your
power,® (2d Bombardment Division acquired general court-martial gurisdic-
tion on 22 February 1944). The Charge (75th Article of War only) was
referred for trial on 4 March 1944, Between 5 December 1943 and date of
trial on 23 March 1944, accused engaged in combat flights and was awarded
the Air Medal, although refusing three other flights. The trial was had
for the first refusals rather than the later ones, The original sentence
of the court was death but same was reduced upon revision after decision
of the Board of Review in CM ETO 1226, Muir (approved by me), to life and
reduced by you to 25 years,

I am of the opinion that the period of confinement, viz: 25 years
is indefensible in view of the above history of the case revealed by the
accompanying papers, and I recommend a material reduction in same and
. suggest consideration of suspension of the dishonoreble discharge and con=-
finement of accused in Disciplinary Training Center No. 2912, Shepton
Mallet, Somersetshire, England.

3. TWhen copies of the published order are forwarded to this office,
they should be accompanied by the foregoing holding and this indorsement.
The file number of the record in this office is ET'0 2212, For convenience
of reference please piare ihat mumber in brack d of the order:
(ETO 2212), /

Brigadier General, United States Army,
Assistant Judge Advocate General,
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Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General
with the
European Theater of Operations
APO 871
BOARD OF REVIEW
27 MAY 1944
ETO 2215
UNITED STATES ) NORTHERN IRELAND BASE SECTION,
: ) SERVICES OF SUPPLY, EUROPEAN
Ve ) THEATER OF OPERATIONS.
First Lieutenant’ WILLIAM P. 3 Trial by G.C.M,, convened at Wilmont
BRODERICK (0-1533017), ) House, County Antrim, Northern
Medical Administration Corps, ) Ireland, 8 April 1944. Sentepce:
Company B, 48th Armored ) Dismissal,
Medical Battalion, )

HOLDING by the BOARD OF REVIEW
RITER, VAN BENSCHOTEN and SARGENT, Judge Advocates

1. The record of trial in the case of the officer named above has
been examined by the Board of Review and the Board submits this, its
holding, to the Assistant Judge Advocate Ceneral in charge of the Branch
Office of The Judge Advocate General with the European Theater of Opera-
tiona. .

24 Aécu_.aed was tried upon the following Charge and specifications:

CHARGE: Violation of the 96th Article of War,

Specification 1: In that 1lst Lieutenant William
P, Broderick, MAC, Compeny B, 48th Armored
Medical Battalion, did, at and near Goragh-
wood Station, Northern Ireland, on or about
21 March 1944 wrongfully appear in civilian
clothes, contrary to the provisions of Sec-
tion I, Circular 28, War Department, 1942,

Specification 23 In that * * ¥, did, at and near
Goraghwood Station, Northern Ireland, on or
about 21 March 1944, with intent to deceive
the civil authorities charged with the duty
of controlling travel by individuels from
Eire into Ulster, wrongfully represent to a
constable of The Royal Ulster Constabulary
that he was James B, Cafferkey of Belfast,
Northern Ireland,
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Specification 3: 1In that * * %, gtationed in the
European Theater of Operations, United States
Army, having been granted a leave of absence
for eight days effective on or sbout 13 March
1944, did, on or about 15 March 1944, enter
into Eire contrary to the provisions of para-
graph 2¢, Section I, Circular 80, Headquaprters
ETOUSA, 7 October 1943,

He pleaded guilty to and was found guilty of the Charge and specifications
thereunder, No evidence of previous convictions was introduced, He was
sentenced to be dismissed the service and to forfeit all pay and allowances
due or to become due. The reviewing authority, the Commanding General,
Northern Ireland Base Section, SOS, ETOUSA, approved only so much of the
sentence as provided for dismissal from the service and forwarded the re-
cord of trial for action pursuant to Article of War 48, The confirming
authority, the Commanding General, European Theater of Operations, confirm-
ed the sentence and withheld the order directing execution thereof pursuant
to thé provisiona of Article of War 50%,

3. The undisputed evidence was substantially as follows:

It was stipulated in writing by the prosecution and defense that
Section I, War Department Circular No. 28, 30 Jamuary 1942 provided:

"Wearing of the uniform.- Officers will wear
the uniform at all times when out of the house
or quarters except when dressed for exercise
in exercise clothes, The uniform will also be
worn when dining at home with more than two
guests present." (R,7; Pros.Ex,1).

It was further stipulated in writing that Sec.I, par.2¢, Circular No, 80,
Headquarters, ETOUSA, 7 Oct 1943 was as follows:

#2. RESTRICTIONS ON TRAVEL: Military personnel
on leave, furlough, or pass may not enter:
¢. Eire," (R7; Pros.Ex,1).

The stipulation was admitted in evidence, coples of the two circulars were
furnished the court and were also attached to Pros.Ex,1, The trial judge
advocate informed the court that it could teke judlicial note of the circu-
lars (R6=7). ‘

It was also stipulated in writing that on 6 March 194/ accused was
granted a leave of absence of eight days effective on or about 13 March
1944, by virtue of par.6, Special Orders No, 11, Headquarters 48th Armored
' Medical Battalion, The stipulation was admitted in evidence (R8; Pros.Ex,2),
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It wus further stipulated in writing that an attached verbatim
transeript of questions voluntarily answered by accused, and propounded
on 21-22 March 194/ by Lieutenant Colonel Sam G. Elliot, Inspector
General's Department, could be read to the court. The stipulation and
the attached document were admitted in evidence (R8-9; Pros.Ex.3). 4n
examination of the answers given by accused after he was warned as to his
rights, discloses that he arrived in Northern Ireland 13 March 1944 and
spent the night in the Kensington Hotel, which was the Red Cross Club at
Belfast, He asked the porter at the club how he could go to Southern
Ireland and was told that there was no way he could get there., He later
found a civilian identity card at the club in the name of "James B,
Cafferkey" of Belfast, He telephoned the police station and asked if the
card would enable him to get across the border, and when he was answered
in the affirmative he "set out to find civilian clothes", He rented the
clothes from a store in Belfast for 15 pounds, and used them for about a
week, He went to Southern Ireland and presented the civilian identity
card when crossing the border, He knew that Eire was a neutral country,
was familiar with the provisions of War Department €ircular No, 28 with
respect to wearing the uniform, and also knew that he violated regulations
when he left his uniform in Belfast and donned civilian clothing, During
his visit to Eire he stayed with relatives; He made no effort to obtain
official authorization to enter Eire and went there because he was Irish,
his mother and father were from Ireland, and the temptation to spend Seint
Patrick's Day there was "a little too hard to resist" (Pros.Ex,3).

Private Robert A, Laman, Company C, Detachment C, 713th-Military
Police Battalion, testified that on 21 March accused, dressed in civilian
clothes, arrived at Goraghwood station, Northern Ireland on the train from
Dubliny The station was about 10 miles north of the border between
Northern Ireland and Eire and there was no train stop between Dundalk, Eire
end Goraghwood station, When asked for-his identity card by a member of
the Royal Ulster constabulary, whose duty it was to check personnel on the
train, accused produced a card in the name of "Brandon Cafferkey", He was
asked by the constable-if it was his card, and aswered in the affirmative,
When asked how long he had lived in Ireland he replied "all his 1ife", He
zas ask;d to sign his name in a notebook and wrote "Brandon Cafferkey"
R10-13).

Private Everett E., Dennis of the same military police organization,
testified that after being removed from the train accused said that he
found the civilian identity card on the floor of the Kensington Hotel, and
gave his correct name, rank and branch of service, The civilian card in
his possession was in the name of "James Cafferkey’ (R13-16),

4. For the defense, it was' stipulated in writing that the Commanding
General, 2nd Armored Division, stated in a teletype received by the Staff
Judge Advocate of the Northern Ireland Base Section that accused had an
#texcellent prior record'", and that "This information was volunteered,
without request therefor", The stipulation was admitted in evidence (R16-
17; Def Ex.A),
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Accused, after being warned of his rights, testified that he went
to Eire because he was on leave and desired to see his relations, He was
of Irish heritage and it weas also St. Patrick's Day. He did not discuss
military information with anyone., He believed hls record with his organ-
ization in Africe and Sicily "were both ones which speak for themselves",
He realized both his mistake and the fact that he should be punished, and
testified that he was "certainly sorry" (R18).

5., The pleas of guilty are fvlly supported by the evidence,

6. The order appointing the court (SO #56, 25 Feb 1944), otherwise
in proper form, is captioned "HEADQUARTERS WORTHERI! IRELAND BASE SECTION
APO 813", The clericel omission of the words "SERVICES OF SUPPLY,
EUROPEAN THEATER OF OPERATIONS", was an irregularity which was not fatal
(CM ETO 1982, Tankard). The review of the Staff Judge Advocate, Northern
Ireland Base Section, SO0S, ETOUSA, contains a discussion of other minor
irregularities contained in the record of trial, none of which injuriously
affect the substantiel rights of accused,

7: 7The cherge sheet shows that accused is 30 years of age and that he
was inducted 27 June 1941 at Camp Grant, Illinois, His further service is
as follows: "OIC at Carlisle Barracks, Pa, Commissioned 2d Lieutenant, MAC,
19 May 1942, Promoted to 1lst Lieutenant, MCA, 4 September 1942', No prior
service is shown,

8+ The court was legally constituted and had jurisdiction of the per-
son and offenses, No errors injuriously affecting the substantial rights
of accused were committed during the trial; The Board of Review is of the
opinion that the record of trial is legally sufficient to support the find=
ings of guilty and the sentence, Dismissal of an officer is authorized
upon conviction of a violation of Article of War 96,

C A
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1st Ind.

WD, Branch Office TJAG., with ETousd, &7 MAY 1944 T0: Commanding
General, ETOUSA, APO 887, U.S. Army.

1. In the case of First Lieutenant WILLIAM P. BRODERICK (0-1533017),
Medical Administration Corps, Company B, 48th Armored ledicel Battalion,
attention is invited to the foregoing holding by the Board of Review that
the record of trial is legally sufficient to support the findings of
guilty and the sentence, which holding is hereby approved, Under the

provisions of Article of War 50%, you now have authority to order execu-
tion of the sentence.

2., When coples of the published order are forwarded to this office,
they should be accompanied by the foregoing holding and this indorsement.
The file number of the record in this office is ETO 2215, For convenience
of reference please place that number in brackets at the end of the order:
(ET0 2215),

/
Brigadier General, United States Army,
Assistant Judge Advocate General.

(Sentence ordered executed. GCMO 37, 2 Jun 1944)
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Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General
with the
European Theater of Operations
APO 871

BOARD OF REVIEW .
1110 1944
ETO 2216
UNITED STATES 5TH INFANTRY DIVISION,
Triel by G.C.M,, convened at Camp
Ballyedmond, County Down, Northern
Ireland, 10 April 1944. Sentence:
Dishonorable discharge, total
forfeitures and confinement at hard
labor for 25 years., United States
Penitentiary, Lewisburg, Pemnsyl-
venis,

Ve

Private LAWRENCE E, GALLAGHER
(16025712), Company M, 10th
Inf&ntryo

.

Vst Qs sl sV e s s i NV P

HOLDING by the BOARD OF REVIEW
RITER, VAN BENSCHOTEN and SARGENT, Judge Advocates

1, The record of trial in the case of the soldier named above has
been exsmined by the Board of Review,

2. Accused was tried upon the following charges and specifications:

CHARGE I: Violation of the 58th Article of War,
Specification: In that Private Lewrence E, Gallagher,
Company M, 10th Infantry, did, at Camp Bally-
edmond, County Down, Northern Irelend, on or
about 3 December 1943, desert the service of

-the United States and did remain absent in
desertion until hs was apprehended at Belfast,
County Antrim, Northern Ireland, on or about
27 February 1944,

CHARGE II: Violation of the 933 Article of War.

Specification 1: In that * ¥ ¥, did, on or about
30 November 1943, with intent to defraud,
falsely make and forge the indorsement of E. L,
EBritton, lst Lieutenant, Company M, 10th
Infantry, upon & certaln check dated 30 November
1943 in the amount of seventy-five dollars
($75.00) and drawn by said Lawrence E, Gallagher
upon the Newberry State Bank, Newberry, Michigan,
which said check was a writing of a private
nature, which might operate to the prejudice of
another,

=1 = CONFIDFNTIAI )b
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Specification 2: In that * ¥ #, did, on or about
7 December 1943, with intent to defraud, falsely
make and forge the indorsement of L. E. Britton,
1st ILieutenant, Company M, 10th Infantry, upen
a certain check dated 7 December 193 in the
amount of one hundred dollars ($100,00) and
drawn by said Lawrence E, Gallagher upon the
Newberry State Bank, Newberry, Michigan, which
8aid check was a writing of a private nature,
which might operate to the prejudice of another,

Specification 3¢ In that * * %, did, on or about
13 December 1943, with intent to defraud, falsely
make and forge the indorsement of E. L, Brittonm,
lst Lieutenant, Company M, 10th Infantry, upon
a certain check dated 13 December 1943 in the
amount of two bundred dollars ($200,00) and
drawn by sald Lawrence E, Gallagher upon the
Newberry State Bank, Newberry, Michigan, which
said check was a writing of a private nature,
which might operate to the prejudice of another,

CHARGE III: Violation of the 96th Article of War.
Specification 1: (Stricken on motion of trial judge
advocate),
Specification 2¢ In that * * %, did, at Belfast,
County Antrim, Northern Ireland, on or about
20 December 1943, without proper authority,
appear in civilian clothirng,

ADDITJONAL CHARGES

CHARGE: Violation of the 93d Article of War,
Specification 1: In that * * *, did, on or about
2/, December 1943, with intent to defraud, falsely
make and forge the indorsement of E, L. Brittonm,
1st ILieutenant, Company M, 10th Infantry, upon
a certain check dated 24 December 1943 in the
amount of two hundred dollars ($200,00) and
drawn by said Lawrence E, Gallagher upon The
Newberry State Bank, Newberry, Michigan, which
sald check was a writing of a private nature,
which might operate to the prejudice of another,
Specification 2¢ In that * * ¥, did, on or about
31 December 1943, with intent to defraud, felsely
make and forge the indorsement of E, L, Britton,
1lst Lieutenant, Company M, 10th Infantry, upon
a certain check dated 31 December 1943 in the
amount of one hundred dollars ($100,00) and
drawn by said Lewrence E, Gallagher upon Newberry
State Bank, Newberry, Michigen, which said check
was & writing of a private nature, which might
operate to the prejudice of another,

«2 .=
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Specification 3: (Disapproved)
Specification 4: (Disapproved)

He pleaded not guilty to and was found guilty of all charges and specifica-
tions., Evidence was introduced of one previous conviction by summary

court for absence without leave for six days in violation of the 6lst
Article of War, He was sentenced to be dishonorably discharged the service,
to forfeit all pay and allowances due or to become due, and to be confined
at hard labor, at such place as the reviewing authority may direct, for life,
The reviewing authority disapproved the findings of guilty of Specifications
3 and 4 of the Additional Charge; approved only so much of the findings of
guilty of the Specification of Charge I and of Charge I as involved a find-
ing of guilty of absence without leave from 3 December 1943 to 27 February
1944 in violetion of Article of War 61; approved only so much of the sen-
tence as provided for dishonorable discharge, forfeiture of all pey and
allowances due or to become due and confinement at hard labor for 25 years;
designated the United States Penitentiary, Lewisburg, Pennsylvania es the
place of confinement and forwarded the record of trial for action pursuant
to the provisions of Article of War 503,

3. Accused's guilt of forging Lieutenant Britton's indorsement to the
checks (Pros,Exs, C,D,E,F,G) was proved by substantial evidence:

®A person who is recently in possession of
and attempts to sell or obtaln money on a
forged instrument is presumed to have forged
it. Although, no witness actually sew
accused forge the checks, where it was shown
that he cashed them, and the court had the
checks before it, the evidence is sufficient
to support conviction, CM 120113 (1918)."
(D1g.0Op.JAG, 19121940, sec.451(27), p.319).

(See also: 2 Wharton's Criminal Law - 12th Ed., sec,933, p.1233, sec.875,
p.1181; 26 C.J., sec.140, p.972).

There 18 substantiel evidence which justified the court inferring
thet accused intended to defraud the Northern Bank upon delivering the
checks bearing Lieutenant Britton's forged indorsements (Underhills Crimine
al Evidence - 4th Ed,, sec,683, p,1286; 26 C.J,, sec.1l?, p.903, sec.lis,
Pe974)e The fact that Lieutenant Britton might not have been exposed to
a financial loss because of the forgery of his name as an indorser is not
material (United States v. Phyler, 222 U.S, 15, 56 L.Ed., 70). Tt is
sufficient that the presence of his purported signatures on the checks
might expose him to an action of assumpsit or to a suit for damages for
deceit (2 Wharton's Criminal Law - 12th Ed., sec.837, p.1190, sec.893, p.
1203; 26 C.J., sec.20, p.906),

4e Accused is 25 years five months of age, He enlisted 17 September
19,0 at Fort Brady, Michigan for three years, Service period governed by
Service Extension Act of 1941, He had no prior service,

-3 -
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5 The court was legally constituted and had jurisdiction of the
person and of the offenses, No errors injuriocusly affecting the substan-
tial rights of the accused were committed during:the trial, The Board of
Review 18 of the opinion that the record of trial is legally sufficient to
support the findings of guilty and the sentence.

6. Forgery i1s a penitentiary offense under secs.22-1401 (6:86) and
24=401- (6:401) District of Columbla Code, Confinement of accused in the
United States Penitentiary, Lewisturg, Pennsylvania is aunthorized (€ir.291,
WD, 10 Nov 1943, sec,V, pars, 3a and ).

Judge Advocate

- 4 -
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1st Ind,

WD, Brench Office TJAG., with Erovsa, 11 MAY 1944 T0: Commanding
General, 5th Infantry Division, APO 5, U.S. Army.

1. In the case of Private LAWRENCE E. GALLAGHER (16025712), Company
M, 10th Infantry, attention is invited to the foregoing holding by the
Board of Review that the record of trial is legally sufficient to suppert
the findings of gullty and the sentence, which holding is hereby approved.
Under the provisions of Article of War 50%, you now have authority to order
execution of the sentence,

2. It is noted that the conviction of desertion, Charge I and Speci-
fication, was reduced to absence without leave on the recommendation of
your Staff Judge Advocate who states "This is in accord with recent hold-
ings of the Board of Review, ETOUSA,"

The evidence shows that this accused was absent for 86 days, that
he was apprehended in Belfast where he was living in a private residence,
that during his absence he forged several checks and committed frauds in-
volving $675, and that while in Belfast he appeared in civilian clothes,
These circumstances in connection with the long absence sufficiently prove
desertion, and such findings would not be disturbed by this office, The

case 1s in no way similar to CM ETO 1567, Spicoechi and CH ETO 1395,
Saunderg. It is more similar to that of Private Robert Artwell, Company

®is, 10th Infantry, (CM ETO 1691) in which the Board of Review, because of
the attending circumstances, upheld two convictions of desertion involving
absence without leave for 26 and 50 days respectively.

3+ TWhen coples of the published order are forwarded to this office,
they should be accompanied by the foregoing holding and this indorsement,
The file number of the record in this office is ETO 2216, For convenience
of reference please place that mumber in brackets at the end of the orders:

(ETO 2216).
/f//%/%cf

4
[l l./ B
' " - E. C, McMEIL, /
Brigadier General, United States Army,
Assistant Judge Advocate General.
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Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General
with the
European Theater of Operations
: APO 871
BOARD OF REVIEW
SV
UNITED STATES& 820D ATRBORNE DIVISION.

)
)
Ve ) Trial by G.C.M., convened at Division
) Headquarters, 82nd Airborne Division,
Private GUY L. TALBOTT, Jr., ) APO 469, U. S. Army, 22, 29 April
(34671402), Company"E", ) 1944, Sentences Dishonorable discharge,
LOlst Glider Infantry. ) total forfeitures and confinement at
g hard labor for three years. The

Federal Reformatory, Chillicothe, Ohio.

HOLDING by the BOARD OF REVIEW
RITER, VAN BENSCHOTEN and SARGENT, Judge Advocates

e The record of trial in the case of the soldier nemed sbove has been
examined by the Board of Review.

2+ Accused was tried upon the following Charge and Specification:

CHARGB: Violation of the 93rd Article of War.

Specifications In that Private Guy L. Talbott,
Jr., Company "E*, Olst Glider Infaniry,
did, at Leicester, leicestershire, Englend,
on or about 29 March 194}, feloniously
take, steal, and carry away two one pound
notes, three ten shilling notes, ten
shillings in silver, all lawful money of
Englend, value sbout $16,00, one ring box,
value about 4O cents, one gold wedding ring,
value about $16,00, one gold solitaire ring,
value about $14.,00, end one gold solitaire:
ring with pletinum setting, velue about $33.60,
all of the aforesaid being of a total value
of about $80,00, the property of Mra. Annie
Rabbitt.

He pleaded not guilty to the Charge end its Specification end ‘was found guilty
of the Speci fication exeept the words "4O cents, $16.00, $14.00, $33+60, and

w]le
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$80,00" substituting therefor, respsctively, the words *35 cents, $12.00,
$35.00, $70.00, and $117.35," of the excepted words not guilty, of the sub-
stituted words guilty, end guilty of the Charge. No evidence of previous
convictions was introduceds He was sentenced to be dishonorably discharged
the service, to forfeit all pay’ and allowances due or to become due, and to
be confined at hard labor at such place as the reviewing authority may
direct for five years, The reviewing esuthority returned the record of
trial to the court to reconsider its findings and sentence, as its findings
of the value of the property alleged to have been stolen exceeded the value
alleged in the Specification. The court reconvened end found accused
guilty of the Specification except the words "40 cents, one gold wedding
ring, value about $16,00* and "$80,00", substituting therefor, respectively
the words "35 cents, one . gold wedding ring, value about $12,00" end *$75.95",
of the excepted words not guilty, of the substituted words guilty, and
guilty of tne Charge, The court in closed session adhered to its former
sentence, The reviewing authority approved the sentence but reduced the
periocd of confinement to tnree years, designated the Federai Reformatory,
Chillicothe, Ohio, as the place of confinement, directed that peniing ace
cused's transfer to the deasignated place of confinement he be confined in
the 2912th Disciplinary Training Center, Shepton Mallet, Somerset, England,
end forwarded the record of trial for action pursuant to the provisions of
Article of War 50%.

3+ The charge sheet shows that accused is 19 years of ege, that he
was inducted 6 April 1943 and assigned to Company E, 40lst Glider Infantry,
16 November 1943

4e The court was legally constituted and had jurisdiction of the
person eand offense, No errors injuriously affecting the substantial rights
of accused wers committed during the triales The Board of Review is of the
opinion that the record of triel is legally sufficient to support the find-
ings of guilty and the sentence as approved.

5. Confinement in a penitentiary is euthorized for the offense of
larceny of $50.00 or more (AW 42; 18 U.S.C. 466)s As accused is under 31
yeara of ege and the sentence 1s under ten yecars, the designation of the
Federal Reformatory, Chillicothe, Ohio, ip apthorized:[Cir 291, WD, 10 Nov

1943, Sec. V, par.3a).
| s Pl Judge Advocate

”_udge Advocaie
A /

»1//“’7"” /// A /’//’J’udge Advocate
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lst Ind,

‘WD, Branch Office TJAG., with EToUsA, 11 MAY1944  TO: Commanding
General, 82nd Airborne Division, AFQ 469, U. S. Army.

1., In the case of Private GUY L. TALBOTT, Jr., (34671402), Company
*E*, 40lst Glider Infantry, attention.is invited to the foregoing holding
by.the Board of Review that the record of irial is legelly sufficient to
. support the findings of guilty and the sentencs as sprroved, whiciu holding
is hereby approved., Under the provisicns of Article of War 504, you now
have authority to order execution of the sentence,

2. In accordance with existing policies, the dishonorable discherge
might well be suspended and TCiseiplinary Training Center #2912, Shepton
Mellet, Somerset, England, designated as the place of confinement soc that
the soldier may not escepe combat service. I so recommend.

3+ TVWhen coplies of the published order ere forwarded to this office,
they should be accompanied by the foregoing holding and this indorsement.
The file number of the record in this office is ETO 2260, For convenience
of reference please place that number in brackets at the end of the order:
(E.PU 2260)0 )

. L 3

Brigadfer General, United States Army,
Assistant Judge Advocate General.

CONFIDENTIAL
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Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General

with the
European Theater of Operations
APO 871
BOARD QF REVIEW
1 o 1 Y 4
ET0 2273 15 HAY 1044
UNITED STATES) S5TH INFANTRY DIVISION
) .
R ) Trial by G.C.M., convened at Kilkeel,
) County Down, Northern Ireland,
Private ROY A, SHERMAN ) 13 April 1944. Sentences Dishonore
(15056710), Company M, ) able discharge, total forfeitures and
1otk Infantry. ) confinement at hard labor for eight
) years. The Federal Reformatory,
) Chillicothe, Ohio,

HOIDING by the BOARD OF REVIEW

RITER, VAN BENSCHOTEN and SARGENT, Judge Advocates

le The record of trial in the case of the soldier named above has been

examined by the

Board of Review.

2, He was tried upon the following cherges and specifications:

CHARGE I: Violation of the 934 Article of War,

Speci

fication 1: In thet Private Roy A, Sherman,
Company M, 10th Infantry, did, at Kilkeel,
County Down, Northern Ireland, on or about
13 November 1943, with intent to defraud,
falsely indorse with the signature Capt,
Charley Pennington a certain check in the
amount of twenty-five dollars ($25.,00) pay-
able to cash, signed Roy A. Shermen, and
drawn upon the Firgt National Bank, New
Carlisle, Ohio, which said check and indorse-
ment was a writing of a private nature which
might operate to the pre judice of another,

CONFIDENTIAL
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Specification 23 In that ¢ * #*, 3id, at Kilkeel,
County Down, Northern Ireland, on or about
14 December 1943, with intent to defraud,
falsely indorse with the signature Porter
Depew, Capt., a certain check dated 12-14-43
in the amount of fifty dollars ($50.00) pay-
able to cash, signed Roy A, Sherman, and
drawn upon First National Bank, New Carlisle,
Obio, which said check and indorsement was a
witing of a private nature which might oper-
ate to the prejudice of eanother,

Specification 33 In that ®* * %, 3id, at Kilkeel,
County Down, Northern Ireland, on or about
31 Decsmber 1943, with intent to defreaud
felsely indorse with the signature Capt.
-Harry Davis a certain check dated 31 Decenm-
ber 1943 in the amount of fifty dollars
($50.,00) payable to cash, signed Roy A.
Sherman, and drawn upon The First National
Bank, New Carlisle, Ohio, which said check
and indorsement was a writing of a private
nature which might operate to ths prejudice
of another,

CHARGE IX; Violation of the 96th Article of War.
Specification 13 In that * » »  4id, at Kilkeel,
County Down, Northern Ireland, on or about
13 November 1943, with intent to defraud,
willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously pass
as beering a true and genuine indorsement a
certain check in the amount of twenty-five
dollars ($25.00) payable to cash, signed Roy
A, Sherman, and drewn upon The First National
Bank,, New Carlisle, Ohio, and having tne in-
dorsement *“Capt. Charley Pennington®, said
check being a writing of a private nature
which might operate to the prejudice of another
end which said indorsement was, as he, tne said
Private Roy Ae Sherman, then well knew, falsely
made and forged.
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Specification 23 In that * * *, aid, at Kilkeel,
County Down, Northern Irelend, on or about 14
December 1943, with intent to defraud,.will-
fully, unlewfully, end feloniously pass as
béaring a true and genuine indorsement a certain
check dated 12-14-43 in the amount of fifty
dollars ($50.00) payeble to cash, signed Roy
A, Sherman, and drawn upon First National Bank,
New Carlisle, Ohio, and having the indorsement
"Forter Depew, Capt.", said check being a writ-
ing of a private nature which might operate to
the prejudice of another, and which said in-
dorsement was, as he, the said Private Roy A.
Sherman, then well knew, falsely made and
forged.

Specificatior 3: In that * * * 43id, at Kilkeel,
County Down, Northern Ireland, on or ebout 31
December 1943, with intent to defraud, will-
fully, unlewfully, and feloniously pass as
beering a trus snd genuine indorsement e cer-
teain check dated 31 December 1643 in the
amount of fifty dollars ($50.00) payable to
cash, signed Roy A. Shermen, and drawn upon
The First National Bank, New Carlisle, Ohio,
and having the indorsemert "Capt.Herry Devis",
said check being a writing of a private nature
which might operate to the prejudice of
another, and which said indorsement was, as he,
the said Private Roy A, Sherman, then well knew,
falsely made and forged.

Specification 4: In that = * » 4did, at Banbridge,
County Down, Northern Ireland, on or about 16
November 1943, wrongfully and in violation of
Circular Number 88, Headquarters European
Theater of Operations, United States Army, dated
3 November 19443, marry without proper authority.

Specification 5: In that * * * did, at Banbridge,
County Down, Northern Ireland, on or about 16
November 1943, procure R. C. Cupples, Registrar
of Marriages for the District of Banbridge,
County Down, Northern Ireland, to perform a
marriage ceremony uniting in marriage the said
Privete Roy A. Sherman end one Annie Gillilend,
by falsely representing to the said R. C.
Cupples that permission to marry had been granted
the said Private Roy A. Sherman by the commanding
officer of said Private Roy A. Sherman, which
representation was false and was then and there
known by the said Private Roy A, Sherman to be
false.

- 13-

cD
ol
—

C.

gy |
ot
rr

NTIAL

-l



CONFILENTIAL

(274) Specification 6: In that * * * did, at Banbridge,

County Down, Northern Ireland, on or about

18 January 1944, wrongfully and in violation
of standing security and censorship regulations
mail a letter without passing through United
States Army censorship.

Ho pleaded not guilty to and was found guilty of all charges and specifica-
tions., ©Evidence was introduced of one previous conviction by summery court
for absence without leave for 9 days in violation of Article of War 6l. He
was sentenced to be dishonorebly discharged the service, to forfeit ell pay
and allowances due or to become due, and to be confined at hard labor for
eight years at such place as the reviewing authority may direct. The
reviewing authority approved the sentence, designated the Federal Reformatory,
Chillicothe, Ohio as the place of confinement and forwarded the record of
trial for action pursuant to the provisions of Article of War 50%.

3. Concerning the specifications, Charge I and Specifications 1, 2
and 3, Charge II, the evidence for the prosecution shows that on 13 November
1943, the accused requested Mr., Arthur Hill lloyd, Cashier, Provincial Bank,
Kilkeel, County Down, Ireland, to cash a check for $25.00, dated ----, 1943,
,drawn on The First National Bank, New Carlisle, Ohio, payable to "Cash®,
signed and indorsed by the accused, and bearing, as a second indorsement,
immediately below the accused's, the purported signature of *Capt. Charley
Pennington, A.P.0.#5." The accused showed Mr. Lloyd "his dog tags" and
identification card. The cashier testified,

*I saw it was indorsed by an officer --
purporting to be an officer as fer as 1
knew -- and I just paid him the money."
(R6,7; Ex.A),

On 15 December 1943, Mr. Lloyd cashed for the accused a check for $50,00
drgwn on First Nationsl Bank, New Carlisle, Ohio, dated "12-14-}43," payable
to cash, signed and indorsed by the accused, and bearing, as a second in-
dorsement, immediately below the accused's, the purported signature of
*Porter Depew Capt" (R7;Ex.B)e On 31 December 1943 Mr. Lloyd cashed for
the the accused a check for $50.00 drawn on The First National Bank, New
Carlisle, Ohio, date 31 December 1943, payable to cash, signed and indorsed
by the accused and bearing, as a second indorsement, immediately below the
accused's, the purported signature of "Capt. Harry Davis' (R7-8; Ex.C). All
three checks were cashed at the office of the Provincial Bank, Kilkeel (R8).

Recalled as a witness by the court, after the prosecution and the
defense had both rested, Mr. Lloyd testified that the checks "were returned
from America within the lest month." VWhen cashed at banks other than those
on which they were drawn, chetks were sometimes returned from drawees to
such other banks,
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*There is one way of returning them if
there is not sufficient funds in the
bank, or if the indorsement is not
correct, or 1f the date is not correct.
But that answer is specified on the
checke TWrong date or insufficient
funds or indorsement irregular.* (R19).

The reason for the return is specified on the check

Yor pinned to the check with a slip.
In our couniry the answer is written
on the check, Apparently in your
country~-~there is a slip comes with
the answer on the slip.* (R18).

First Lieutenant Frank L. Bradley, 10th Infantry, testified that
he bad been stationed at Cemp Ballyedmond, Northern Ireland, since 21 Januery
19l on which date he took command of the company to which accused belonged.
He had known accused since that time, With reference to the existence or
identity of the officers. whose nemes gppeared as indorsements on the three
checks described above, the only evidence produced at the time was elicited
from this witness. In its entirety, it followss

*Q. Did you have occasion to inquire into
the whereabouts of certain officers whose
nemes appeer on indorsed checks?

Ay I have

Qe I call your attention to the neme Captein
Cherley Pennington and ask you whether or
not you have been able to determine whether
there is such a person?

A, There is no such officer as Capiain Charley
Pennington in the 5tn Division. There is
a private in my organization, Private
Charley Penningtone.

Qs Private Charley Pennington?

A. Yes, sir. _

Qe Now, concerning the name of Porter Depew,
Captain, what is the stetus as to thai officer?

A. There is no Captain Forter Depew in ths 5th
Division.

Q. And Ceptain Harry Davis?

A. There is no such person as Captein Harry Davis,.®
(R13-14).

4« Concerning Specifications 4,5 and 6, Cherge II, the evidence for
tone prosecution shows that on 8 November 1943 accused gave notice to
Mr. Robert Caueron Cupples, Registrar of Marriages, Banbridge, County Down,
Northern Ireland, of his intended marriasge to Annie Gilliland, Ballymoney,

“5e
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Banbridge., “Regerding American soldiers,® the resgistrar testified, "they
have to have permission in writing before they can' be married” (R9)e He
could not remember, however, froxg w%om thay were required to obtain that
permission, except that it must & 8n officer, of what rank he had no
recollection, and that such permission was required to accompeny the sole
dier's application to tne registrar of marrisges, Mr. Cupples testified:

*I- don't remember whether I took the notice !
first or not, but I told him that before I
could go any furthei' I would have to have
the permission in writing before he could
be married, * * ® I think I said he would
have to go to some of his officers first;
that they would know the procedure in tunis
cese, * * % T can't recollect whether he
brought the permission on the day he was to
be married or not, but he had the note be-
fore he was married at any rate.® (R10).

The note referred to by the registrar was identified by him as the following
written document, which was received in evidence as Pros.Ex.D:

#10th Infantry
Bellyewdards Camp
U«S. Army.

15,1143

This is to certify that Pte lat claess R,
Sherman. No 15056710 is unmarried and has
my permission to marry on any definite
period

Signed
Ge Prophets Captein®

On the date of the trial there was no such officer as Ceptain G. Prophets
in the 5th Division (Rl4). On 16 November 1943 the registrar performed
the marriege ceremony for accused and Annie Gilliland (R9=-12; Exs,D,E).

On 18 November 1943 there was posted in a civilian mail box at
Brnbridge, County Down, Northern Ireland, an air meil letter, written by the
accused on that date and addressed to Mrs. L. A. Cook, New Carlisle, Ohio.

In tre letter, which begen, "Dear Sister & all," the accused wrote, *The
army would not let me.get married so I got married anyway * * *,9(R15; Ex,F).
The court took judicial notice of Circular 88, Hg ETO 3 Nov 1943, partice
ularly that portion of paregraph 2 thereof providing:

"No militery personnel on duty in any foreign
country or possession may marry without the
« b6 =
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approval of the commanding ofiicer of the
United States Army forces stationedin such
foreign country or possession.® (R1l6).

The court also took judiciel notice

*of the fact that posting mail in other than
militery receptacles is prohibited by the
regulations existing in ETO." (R17).

5+ DNo evidence was presented for the defense and the accused elected
to remain silent after his rights as a witness were explained to him,

6. The three specifications of Charge I, and Specifications 1,2 and
3, Charge II, allege reapectively the meking and uttering of thrse checks,
each signed by the accused as maker, drawn on the Firast National Bank, New
Carlisle, Ohio, payable to cash and bearing the forged indorsement of a
different name in each instance, each designating the purported indorser as
a captain. The proof shows that accused cashed the three cnecks, indorsed
as alleged, av the Provincial Bank, Kilkeel; that all three were subsequently
.returned to the Provincial Bank by the drawee bank; and that on the dats of
the trial « 13 April 19/, - there was no officer in the 5th Division of the
same name &3 any of the three indorsed respectively on the three checks,

*An indorsement on a check may be forged
notwithstanding the check itself is not,
and the writing of a fictitious neme as

an indorsement on a check mey constitute
forgery altbhough the check, having been
indorsed in blank, could have been nego-
tiated by defendant without further indorse-
ment.® (37 CJS sec.3l, pe55 (citing Milton
v. U.S., 110 Fede2d 556, 71 AppeD.Ce, 394))e

*Failure to allege that the signature on
the instrument was that ot a fictitious
person and proof that there was no such
person constitutes no verience." (ibid.,
sec.68, p.83).

"It has been held that slight evidence
tbtat a neme is fictitious is sufficlent
to shift the burden of golng forward to
accused. VWaere a signature is alleged-
ly that of a fictitious person it is not
necessary to show that there was no such
person in existence anywhere at the time
the writing was signed." (ibid., sec.80a,
po90)o
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"Any circumstentisl evidence tending to
prove that the name is that of a ficti-
tious person is likewise admissible,

Thus persons so situated that they would
probably know the signer if he existed
may testify that they do not know of any
such person., Similarly, evidence as to
the result of incuiries made for persons
whose names appesr on an instrument is
edmissible to show their nonexistence,
although the person making the inguiries
may have. been unacquainted with the place,
or the search may not have been extensive,"
(ibido » 385082. p.‘)h).

*It has been held that the fictitious
cheracter of a partyto an instrument need
not be proved beyond a reasonable doubt,
but only to a common certainty. * * *
testimony by a person largely acqueinted
in the locality where accused represents
the maker of tue instrument to live that
he knows of no such person sustains a
conviction, accusea offering no proof of
the existence of such person.® (ibid.,.
8ece95, Ds10l),

Lieutenant Bradlsy, having been with the accused's division for almost three
months prior to the trial, occupied a status analagous to “a person largely
acquainted in the locality" where the accused may reasonably be regarded as
having represented, at least by implicetion, thei the officer-indorsers lived.
Moreover, Lieutenant Bradley's testimony as to the result of inquiries made

by him for the persons whose names appear as officer-indorsers on the checks
wes admissible. to show their non-existence, although the witness was not
assigned to the Stn Infantry Division at the time the offenses were committed
end his testimony does not disclose the extent of his search, Notwithstanding
the evidence that the names were fictitious was slight, it was sufficient to
shift tne burden of going forward to accused (37 CJS sece80,p.90 (supra);

CM ETO 1629, O'Donnell; CM ETO 1317, Bentley; CM ETO 527, Astrella).. As to

the other elements involved in the offenses of forging and uttering, as alleged,
pleading and proof fall squarely within the principles”énnounced in CM ETO
2216, Gallagher. The record supports the court's. findings of guilty of Charge
I and its specifications, end Specifications 1,2 and 3 of Chearge II.

Te Specification 4, Charge II, alleges wrongful and unauthorized
marriage in violation of Circular Number 88, Hq, ETOUSA, 3 Nov 1943, The
gspecification states an offense in violetion of Article of War 96 and the evi-
dence supports the court's findings of guilty (CM ETO 567, Redloff; Bull, JAG,
Vol.II, No.ll, Nov 1943, secel54 (67D), Deli29).

-8
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8. Specification 5, Charge III, alleges procurement of the perform-
ance of the accused's marrisge by false representation that permission had
been granted by his company commander, Although the evidence does not
show that the accused represented to the registrar thai he hed the permission
of his company commander, it shows very definitely that he falsely
represented that he had the permission of an officer and that he delivered to
the reglstrar, for the purpose of inducing him to perform the marriage cere-
mony, a writing purporting to be a certificate of permission to marry, signed
by e fictitious "G. Prophets, Captain.® The accused was charged with and _
had actuel knowledge of the provisions of Circular 88, in an effort to comply
with which the registrar made "permission® a condition precedent to his
performance of tne marriege. There was clearly an implied representation by
the accused that the person whose name was signed to the certificate was his
commanding officer, authorized to grant the requisite permission. The
record supports the findings of guilty in violation of Article of War 96,

9, Specification 6, Charge II, alleges mailing an uncensored letter
in violation of standing security and censorship regulationse The court
took "Judiciel notice of the fact that posting mail in other than military
receptacles is prohibited by the regulations existing in ETO.* The offense
alleged and proved falls within regulations appropriately implementing the
express power of censorship conferred by the First War Power Act of 1941
(55 Stat«840; 50 USC. app.Sup.618; Cir.65, Hg, ETOUSA, 26 Aug 1943, par.2;
/War Department/ Pamph,2l«l; "When you are overseas®(U.S. Govt. Printing
Office:s 1943); M ETO 1872, Sadlon). The record supports the findings of
guilty in violation of Article of War 96,

10. The charge sheet shows that accused is 25 years of age and that
he enlisted at Fort Thomas, Kentucky, 24 September 1940, for three years and
that his period of service was extended by the Service Extension Act of 1941,
No prior service is shown,

1l The courtv was legally constituted. No errors injuriously affect-
ing tne substantial rights of the accused were committed during the trial.
The Board of Review 13 of the opinion that the record of {riai is legally
sufficient to supportv the findings of guilty and the sentence,

12, The designation of the Federal Reformatory, Chillicothe, Ohio, as
the place of confinement is authorized (AW 42; District of Columbia Code,
221401 (6:86) and 244=401 (63401); Cire. 291, WD, 10 Nov 1943, sec.V, per.3z)e

% é Judge Advocate

63144;;?144L4341;23V¢ Judge Advocate
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l1ast Ind,

WD, Branch Office TJAG., with ETOUSA, 15 MAY 1544 T0: Commanding
General, 5th Infadtry Division, AFO 5, U.S. Army.

.

1. In the case of Private ROY A. SHERMAN (15056710), Company M,
10oth Infantry, attention is invited to the foregoing holding by the Board
of Review that the record of trial is legally sufficient to support the
findings of guilty and tne sentence, which holding is hereby approved.
Under the provisions of Article of War 50%, you now have authority to order
execution of the sentence,

2. VWhen copies of the published order are forwarded to this office
they should be accompanied by the foregoing holding and this indorsement,
The file number of the record in this office is ETO 2273, For convenience
of reference please place that number in brackets at the end of the orders

(ETO 2273). écfgzgéf’
e Co McNéif?éﬁ;gﬁji;7'

Brigadier General United States Army,
Asgistant Judge Advocate General.
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Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General
with the
European Theater of Operations
APO 871

BOARD OF REVIEW
F10 2289 12 MAY 1944

UNITED STATES 29TH INFANTRY DIVISION.

)
Vo g Trial by G.C.M., conwvenad at APO 29,
) U.S. Army, 19 April 1944. Sentence:
Private JAMES W, GRIMES ; Dishonorable discharge, total for-
(20704781), Company B, 175th feitures and confinement at hard
Infantry, ; labor for 20 years., United States
Panitentia.x?, Lewisburg, Pennsyl-
) vania.

HOLDING by the BOARD OF REVIEW
RITER, VAN BENSCHOTEN and SARGENT, Judge Advocates

1. The record of trial in the case of the soldier named above has
been examined by the Board of Review,

2, Accused was tried upon the following charges and specificationss

CHARGE Is Violation of the 96th Article of War,

Specification 13+ In that, Private James W, Grimes,
Company B, 175th Infantry, having been restricted
to the limits of his company, did, at Marazion,
England, on or about 16 November 1943, break said
restriction by going to Birmingham, England,

Specification 23 In that, * * #, having been restrict-
ed to the 1limits of Bay Hotel, did, at 8, Ives,
England, on or about 3 February 1944, bresk said
restriction by going to Birminghem, England,

CHARGE II: Violation of the 58th Article of War,

Specification 1t In that, * * ¥, did at St, Ives,
England, on or about 16 November 1943, desert the
service of the United States and did remain ab-
sent in desertion until he was apprehended at

Birminghanm, England, on or about 27 January 1944

-l
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Specification 2¢ In that, *# * #, did at St. Ives,
England, on or about 3 February 1944, desert the
service of the United States and did remain sb-
sent in desertion until he was apprehended at
Birmingham, England, on or about 3 April 1944.

CHARGE III: Violation of the 94th Article of War,

Specification: In that, * * *, did, at St, Ives,
England, on or about 3 February 1944, felonious-
ly take, steal and carry away one of Para-
chute Boots of the valus of about $5,44, and one
0.D, Flannel Shirt of the value of about $4,22,
property of the United States, furnished and in-
tended for the military service thereof,

CHARGE IV: Violation of the 93rd Article of War,
(Finding of Not Guilty).
Specification: *(Finding of Not Guilty).

He pleaded not guilty and was found guilty of Charges I, II and III and
their specifications and not guilty of Charge IV and its Specification.
Evidence was introduced of one previous conviction by special court-
martial for absence without leave for ten days in violation of the 6lst
Article of War, He was sentenced to be dishonorably discharged the ser~
vice, to forfeit all pay and allowances due or to become due and to be
confined at hard labor, at such place as the reviewing authority may direct,
for 20 years, The reviewing authority approved the sentence, designated
the United States Penitentiary, Lewisburg, Pennsylvania as the place of
confinement and forwarded the record of trial for action pursuant to the
provisions of Article of War 503,

3. The charge sheet shows that dccused is 26 years of age, that hs
enlisted on 6 February 1941 at Des Moines, Iowa to serve for three years,
He had prior service: 2 May 1938 to 10 Nov 1938, Company 4, 168th Infantry,
National Guard,

4s The court was legally constituted and had jurisdiction of the per-
son and offenses, No errors injuriously affecting the substantial rights
of accused were committed during the trial, The Board of Review is of the
opinion that the record of trial is legally sufficient to support the find-
ings of guilty and the sentence,

5. The punishment for desertion in time of war is death or such other
punishment as a court-martial may direct (AW 58) and confinement may be in
a penitentiary (AW 42), Confinement in the United States Penitentiary,
Lewisburg, Pennsylvania, is author (Cir. 29) ¥D, 10 Nov 1943, sec.V,
pars.3a and ). y

Judge Advocate

y_Judge Advovate
<z
=l Judge ddvocate
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1lst Ind,

WD, Branch Office TJAG., with ETOUss, 12 MAY 1944 TO: Commanding
General, 29th Infantry Division, APO 29, U.S. Army.

1., In the cass of Private JAMES W, GRIMES (20704781), Company B, 175th °
Infantry, attention is invited to the foregoing holding by the Board of
Review that the record of trial is legally sufficient to support the find-
ings of guilty and the sentence, which holding is hereby approved., Under

the provisions of Article of War 50%, you now have authority to order exe-
cution of the sentence.

2. When copiles of the published order are forwarded to this office
they should be accompanied by the foregoing holding and this indorsement,
The file mmber of the record in this office is ETO 2289, For convenience
of reference please place that mumber in brackets at the end of the order:

(ET0 2289).
/2 %@

E. C, McNEIL,
Brigadier General, United States Army,
Assistant Judge Advocate General,
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Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General
with the
European Theater of Operations
APO 871
BOARD OF REVIEW
ETO 2293 16 WMAY 1944

UNITED STATES 5TH INFANTRY DIVISION,

)
)
Ve Trial by G.C.M., convened at Tolly-
: 3 more Park, County Down, Northern

Private ARTHUR A. MILLS ) Ireland, 19 April 1944, Sentence:
(15014375), Company M, 10th ) Dishonorable discharge, total for-
Infantry. ) feitures and confinemert at hard

) lgbor for 30 years, The United States

) Penitentiary, Lewisburg, Pennsylvania,

HOLDING by the BOARD OF REVIEW
RITER, VAN BENSCHOTEN and SARGENT, Judge Advocates

l, The record of trial in the case of the soldier nemed above.has
been examined by the Board of Review,

2¢ Accusad was tried upon the following charges and specifications:

CHARGE I: Violation of the 58th Article of War,

Specifications In that Private Arthur A, Mills,
Company M, 10th Infantry did, at Camp Bally-
edmond, County Down, Northern Ireland omn or
about 23 January 1944 desert the service of
the United States and 4id remain absent in
desertion until he was apprehended et Goraghe
wood Station, County Armagh, Northern Ireland
on or asbout 18 March 194).

CHARGE II: Violation of the 96th Article of War,

Specificationt In that * * #* did, at Dungannon,
County Antrim, Northern Ireland, on or about
11 February 1944, without proper authority,
appeer in the uniform of an officer of the
Army of the .United States,

GONFIDENTIAL
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ADDITIONAL CHARGES

CHARGE I: Violation of the 933 Article of War.

Specification 1t In that * * #, 3id, at Dungannon,
County Armagh, Northern Ireland, on or about
11 February 194l, with intent to defraud,
falsely indorse with the signature "lst Lt John
L. Knoblock® a certain check in the amount of
two hundred dollers ($200.00),. dated 10 February
1944, payable to cash, signed Clyde D, Foulsham
and drawn upon the Second National Bank of
Springfield, Ohio, which said check and indorse~
mont was a writing of a private nature which
might operates to the prejudice of another.

Specification 2: In that * * ®, did, at Dungannon,
County Armagh, Northern Ireland, on or about 1l
February 1944, with intent to defraud, faleely
indorse with the signature "lst Lt John L.
Knoblock® a certain check in the amount of two
hundred end twenty-five dollars ($225.00), dated
10 February 194}, payable to cash, signed Tabor
H. Benton end drawn upon the Brooklyn Trust
Company, Erooklyn, New York, which said check
and indorsement was a writing of a private nature
which might operate to the prejudice of another,

Specification 35 In that * * *, 3id, at Dungennon,
County Armsgh, Northern Irelsnd, on or about 1l
Fabruary 194), with intent to defreud, falsely
indorse with the signature “lst Lt John L,
Knoblock® a certein check in the amount of two
hundred dollars ($200,00), dated 10 February
194, peyable to cesh, signed Henry W, Castle and
drawn upon the First National Banke New York, .New
York, which said check and indorsement was a write
ing of a private nature which might operate to
the prejudice of anothrer.

Specification 43 In that * * & did, at Dungannon,
County Armegh, Northern Ireland, on or about .11
February 194J, with intent to defraud, falsely

\ indorse with the signature *"lst Lt John L,
Knoblock A.P.,0« 2" & certain check in the amount
of two hundred dollars ($200,00), dated 11 Feb-
ruary 1944, payeble to cash, signed James E, Webb
and drawn upon the First National Bank, Cleveland,
Ohio, which said check and indorsement was a write
ing of a private nature which might operate io the
prgudice of another.

CONFIDENTIAL
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Specification 51 In that * * *, 3id, at Dungannon, )

County Armagh, Northern Ireland, on or about 1l
February 1944, wi'th intent to defraud, falsely
indorse with the signature *John L. Knoblock lst

" Lt AePsOs 2" a certain check in the amount of
two hundred dollars ($200.00), dated 11 February
194k, payable to cash, signed John L. Knoblock
and drawn upon the Second National Bank, Battle
Creek, Michigsn, which said check and indorsement
was & writing of a private nature whicéh might
operate to the prejudics of another,

CHARGE II: Violation of the 96th Article of War.

Specification 1:+ In that * * * 3id, at Dungannon,
Céunty Armsgh, Northern Ireland, on or about
11 February 194}, with intent to defraud, will-
fully, unlawfully, and feloniously pess as heare
ing a true and genuine indorsement a certain
check dated Feb 10 « ljJj in the amount of two
bundred dollats ($200,00) payable to ¢ash, signed
Clyde Do Fouldhem, and drawn upon the Second
National Bank, Springfield, Ohio, and having the
indorsement “lst Lt John L. Xnoblock", said check
being a writing of a private nature which might
operate to the prejudice of another, and which
said indorsement was, as he, the said Private
Arthur A. Mills, then well knew, falsely made and
forgéd.

Specification 2¢ In that * * *, did, at Duhgennon,
County Armagh, Northern Irelaend, on or ebout 1l
February 1944, with intent to defrand, willfully,
unlawfully, and feloniously pass as bearing a
true and genuine indorsement a certain check dated
Febs 10, 1944 in the amount of two hundred and
twenty-five dollars ($225.,00) peyable to cash,
signed Tabor H, Benton, and drawn upon the Brooklyn
Trust Company, Brocklyn, New York, end having the
indorsement *lst Lt John L, Knoblock", said check
being a writing of a private nature which might
operate to the prejudice of another, and which
said indorsement was, a&s he, the said Private Arthur
Ae Mills, then well knew, falsely made and forged.

GONFIDENTIAL
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Specification 3: In that ** &, 4id, at Dungannon,
County Armagh, Northern Ireland, on or about 1ll
February 194);, with intent to defraud, willfully,
unlawfully, and feloniously pass as bearing a
true and genuine indorsement a certain check dated
Feb 10, 1944 in the amount of two hundred dollara
($200,00) payable to cash, signed Henry W. Castle,
and drawn upon the First National Bank, New York,
Neww York, and having the indorsement "lst Lt John
L. Knoblock®, sa1d chéck beihg a writing of a
private nature which might operate tb the prejudice
of another, end which said indorsement was, as he,
the said Private Arthur A, Mills, then well knew,
falsely made end forged.

Specification 4: In that * * ¢, 3did, at Dungannon,
County Armegh, Northern Ireland, on or about 11
February 1944, with intent to defremd, willfully,
unlawfully, and feloniously pass as bearing a true
end genuine indorsement a certain check dated 1l
Feb 19L4 in the amount of two hundred dollars
-($20000) payddble to cash, signed James E, Webb,
and drawn upon the First Nationdl Bank, Cleveland,
Ohio, &nd having the indorsement "lst Lt John L.
Knoblock A.P.0.2", 8ald check being a writing of
& private nature which might operate to the preju-
dice of another, and which said indorsement was, as
he, the said Private Arthur A. Mills, then well knew,
falsely made and forged,

Specification 53 In that * * »,°did, at Dungannon,
County Armagh, Northern Ireland, on or about ll
February 194);, with intent to defraud, willfully,
unlawfully, and feloniously pass as bearing a
true and genuine indorsement a certain check
deted 11 Feb 1944 in the emount of two hundred
dollers ($200.,00) payable to cash, signed John
L. Kneblock, d4nd drawn upon the Second National
Bank, Battle Creek, Michigan, and having the
indoisement *John L. Knoblock lst Lt AP, 2%
said check being a writing of a private nature
which might operate to the prejudice of enother,
end which said indorsement wes, as he, the sald
Private Arthur A, Mills, then well knew, falsely
made and forged.

He pleaded not guilty to and was found guilty of all charges and specifica-
tionse, No evidence 4f previous convictions was introduceds He was
sentenced to be dishonorably discharged the service, to forfeit all pay and
allowances dus or to become 8ue, and to be confined &t hard lebor for 30
years, at such place as the reviewing authority may directs The reviewing
euthority approved only sb much of the finding of guilty of the Specifica-

- tion of Charge I end of Charge I as involves a finding of guilty of absence

- l‘ -
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without leave from 23 January 1944 to 18 March 194), in violation of
Article of War 61, approved the sentence, designated the United Stetes
Penitentiery, Lewisburg, Pennsylvania as the place of confinement and fore
warded the record of trial for action purauant to the provisions of
Article of War 50%e

3¢ The charge sheet shows that accused is 2 years of age, that he
enlisted 24 October 1940 at Fort Hayes, Columbus, Ohio for a service period
of three years, now governed by the Service Extension Act of 1941 No
prior service is shown.

e The court was legally constituted and had jurisdiction of the
person and offenseses No errors injuriously affecting the substantial
rights of the accused were committed dquring the trial, The Board of
Review ig of the opinion that the record of trial is legally sufficient to
support the findings of guilty and the sentence (Qf ETO 2273, Sherman; CM

ETO 2216, Gallagher).

5¢ Counfipement in a peritentiary is authorized for the offenses of .
forgery and uttering a forged instrument (Secs.22-1401 (6:856) and 24-401
(6-401) Listriet of Columbia Code))e The designation of the United States
Penitentiary, Lewisburg, Pennsylvania is correct (Cir.291, WD, 10 Nov 1943
seceV, par€.3a and b)e

-‘?“712;~/4£é; Judge Advocate

Judge Advocate

MM Advocate
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lat Ind,

. WD, Brench Office TJAG,., with ETOUSA, 16 MAY 1944 10; Commending
General, 5th Infantry Division, AP0 5, U.S. Army. -

1, In the caese of Private ARTHUR A, MILLS (15014375), Company M,
10th Infentry, attention is invited to the foregoing holding by the Board
of Review that the record of triel is legally sufficient tc support the
findings of guilty and the sentences Under the provisions of Article of
War 503, you now have authority to order execution of the asentence,

2« The accused was absent for 55 days. The evidence is substantial
that the forgery and uttering of the checks and the resultant procurement
of over one thousand dollers from the bank was part and parcel of accused's
scheme to finance his trip to the Irish Free State where he spent nearly
five weeks, He secured civilien clothes and was dressed in seme when
epprehended upon his return crossing of the Free State boundary line,

These facts would sustain a finding of desertion and would have been upheld
by the Board of Review and myself, The comment of the Staff Judge Advocates
‘"Under the recent hoidings of the Board of Review, ETO, the evidence is not
sufficient to sustain the finding of desertion under Charge I * * %" ig not
justifieds QM ETO 1567, Spicocchi and CM ETO 1395, Saunders ir no manner

or degree resemble this case, The holdings of the Board of Review have
consistently upheld the charge of desertion upon facts resembling those
revealed by this record. (See M ETO 1691, Ariwell.)

3¢ When copies of the published order are forwarded to this office,
they should be accompanied by the foregoing holding and this indorsement.
The file number of the record in this office is ETO 2293, For convenience
of reference please place that number in brackets at the end of the ordar:

(=10 2293). | //Z/%%wy

E. C. UcEIL.
Brigadier General, United States Army,
Assistant Judge Advocate General.
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Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General

with the

European Theater of Operations

BOARD OF REVIEW

ET0 2297

UNITED STATES
Ve

)
)
g
Privates MANUEL JOHNSON JRes )
(34230424), 762nd Chemical )
Depot Company (Aviation) and )
IRVIN R. LOPER (33551918), )
L4087th Quartermaster Service )
Companye ;

)

)

APO 871

1 JUL 1944

WESTERN BASE SECTION, SERVICES CF
SUPPLY, redesignated WESTERN BASE
SECTIQN, COMMUNICATICONS ZONE,
EURCPEAN THEATER OF OPERATICNS.

Trial by GeCeM,, convened at Sudbury,
Staffordshire, England, 3 April 194)4.
Sentence: Each accused, dishonorable
discharge, total forfeitures and cm-
finement at hard labor for 20 years,
United States Penitentiary, Lewisburg,
Pennsylvaniae

HOLDING by the BOARD OF REVIEW
RITER, VAV BENSCHOTEN end SARGENT, Judge Advocates

le The record of trial in the case of the soldiers namsd above has

been examined by the Board of Review,

2+ Accused were tried upon the following charges and specificationss

JOHNSON

CHARGE: Violation of the 93rd Article of Ware

Specification: 1 In that Private Manuel Johnson Jrs,
762nd Chemicel Depot Company (Aviation), did, on
a passenger train on the London, Midland, and
Scottish Railway, between Derby and Egginton,
Derbysnire, England, on or about l March 1944,
with intent to commit a felony, viz, murder,
comnit an assault upon Staff Sergeant Clayton R.
Geib, Junior by willfully and feloniously strik-
ing him about the head end face with his hands
and fists, and by pushing the said Staff Sergeant
Clayton Re Geib, Junior off of a moving traine

Specification 2: In that * * », did, on a passenger
train on the London, Midland, and Scottish Raile-
way, between Derby and Egginton, Derbyshire,
England, on or ebout 4 March 194, with intent
,to commit a felony, viz, murder, commit an

CONFIDENTIAL
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assault upon Private Edward V. Donovan by will-
fully and feloniously striking him about the
head and face with his hands and fists, and by
pushing the said Private Edward V. Donovan off
of a moving train,

{ LOPER

CHARGE: Violation of the 93rd Article of Wars

Specification 1: In that Private Irwin Re Loper,
4087th Quartermaster Service Company, did, on
a passenger train on the London, Midland, and
Scottish Railway, between Derby and Egginton,
Derbyshire, England, on or about 4 March 194,
with intent to commit a felony, viz, murder,
commit an assault upon Steff Sergeant Clayton Re.
Geib, Junior by wilfully and feloniously strik-
ing him about the head and face with his hands
and fists, and by pushing the said Staff
Sergeant Clayton Re Geib, Junior off of a moving
traine

Specification 2: In that * * *, 3id, on a passenger
train on the London, Midland, and Scottish Rail-
way, between Derby and Egginton, Derbyshire,
England, on or about L March 194, with intent
to commit a felony, viz, murder, commit an
assault upon Private Edward V. Donovan by wile
fully and feloniously striking him about the
head and face with his hands and fists, and by
pushing the said Private Edward V. Donovan off
of a moving traine

The accused, in open court, consented to be tried together, Each pleaded
not guilty to and each was found gullty of the Charge and specifications
preferred against him, ©Evidence was introduced against accused Johnsom
of three previous conviections; two by summary court for absence without
leave for part of one day and one day, respectively, and one by special
court-martial for absence without leave for two days, all in violation o
the 61st Article of Ware ZEvidence was introduced against accused Loper
of one previous conviction by special court-martial for disobedience of

a lawful order of a non-ccammissioned officer in violation of the 65th Article
of Ware Each was sentenced to be dishonarably discharged the service,

to forfeit all pay and allowances due or to become dus and to be confined
at hard labor, at such place as the reviewing authority may direct, for
20 yearss The reviewing authority approved the sentence, designated the
United States Penitentiary, Lewisburg, Pennsylvania, as the place of con=-
finement and forwarded the record of trial for action pursuant to the
provisions of Article of War 50%.

3e The evidence in this case establishes the following facts:
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On the night of 4 March 194);, two white American soldiers,

Staff Sergeant C. Re Geidb Jr. and Private E. V. Donovan entered a com~
partment -of an English train at the station in-Derby, England, to proceed
to their respective destinations (R9,10)¢ An American negro soldier was
seated in the same compartment. After Geib and Donovan entered the com-
partment the negro scldier left but soon returned with other negro soldierse.
The number of ccdlored soldiers wno entered the compartment was variously
estimated at from eight to twenty. JAmong them were the accused Johnson
and Loper. The compartment extended across the width of the car and was
constructed to seat 12 persans (R9,10,13)s It was completely dark (Rll)e
Johnson hed been seated elsewhsre on the trein but left this seat for
one in the compartment occupied by Geib and Donovan when told there were
two "patties® (white soldiers) in there. After the train departed from
Derby Station the negro soldiers began to question the white soldiers re-
garding their furlough status and the section of the United States from
whence they camee Feigning dissatisfaction with the answers, the negroes
set upon the wnite soldiers by striking them with their fistse Certain
of the negroes applied profane epithets to the white men and termed them
*white bastards®. Others said, "Lets fainish them off and slit their
throats®, The train stopped at a switch and the white scldiers endeavour-
ed to leave the compartment, which had a door at each sides The negroes
prevented them from leaving (R9,12,16,17,35,36)e When the train was
again in motion the colored soldiers resumed the beating and slapping o
Geib and Donovan (Rl4)e After it had attained a speed, estimated by one
witness at sixty miles per hour, the two white soldiers were physically
ejected from the moving train by the negroes (R9,12,14416,35,36).

Johnson as witness in his own behalf adxmitted partid pating in
the assault on the two white scldiers and assisting in their ejection from
the train (R43)e In an extra-judicial statement, admitted in evidence
as Pros.Ex,5 (R33) Johnson declared that he was a member of the group of
colored soldiers in the railroad car, that he jolned in the assault and
hit one of the white soldiers. Loper also as a witness for himself ad-
mitted he struck the white soldiers four or five times without provoca-
tion (R1-42) end in a statement made during the course of the investiga-
tion of the affair (Pros.Ex.3; R3l), edmitted he joined in the fight in
the compartment and struck one of the white socldiers on the chine There
were blood stains on Loper's overcoat and trousers (R28-29,30)e On
5 March 194}, an examination of Loper's right hand disclosed a bruised
joint on his fourth finger which appeared to have been caused by striking
a sharp edge of a tooth (R39)e The white soldiers were found by the
crew of a passing train shortly thereafter (R23,24). Donoven was lying
on the ground between two sets of tracks, suffering from concussion,
shock, lacerations to the head, face and hand and a fractured nose (R25,
26). Geib was lying between the rails of a track with both ankles and
his nose fractured (R25,26)s They were discovered and rescued by the
train crew shortly before an express train was due on the track on which
Geib was lying (R23,24). Both would have been killed by the on-coming
train had they not been removed to safety by the train crew (R23,24)e
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e (a) = The evidence is clear and substantiel that Johnson not
only struck and beat Donovan and Geib, but also actively assisted in
the ejection of one of them from the train (R16,17,19)e Loper was
identified with certainty as one of the active assailants of the two
white soldiers and the proof is positive that he struck one of them
four or five times. There is no evidence that he, acting alone or
in conjunction with others of the colored soldiers physically e jected
either of the white men from the traine The over-all evidence, how-
ever, proves beyond peradventure that both accused were active, violent
participants in the unprovoked, inexcusable assault upon Donovan and
Geibe They were not passive observers or mere bystanderses The legal
principls governing this situation is well established:

*But where two or more persons acting with a
; common intent jointly engsge in the same under-
taking and jointly commit an unlawful act, each
is chargeable with liability and responsibility
for the acts of all the others, and each is
guilty of the offense committed, to which he has
contributed to the same extent as if he were the
sole offender, And the common purpose need not
be to commit the particular crime which is com-
mitted; if two persons join in a purpose to com~
mit a erime, each of them, if actually or con-
structively present, is not only guilty as a
principal, if the other commits that particular
crime, but he is also guilty of any other crime
committed by the other in pursuance of the com-
mon purpose, or as & natural or probable con-
sequence thereof, In order to show a community
of unlawful purpose it is not necessary to show
en express agreement or an understanding between
the parties. Nor is it necessary that the cone
spiracy or common purpose shall be shown by
positive evidence; its existence may be inferred
from all the circumstances accompanying the do-
ing of the act, and from conduct of defendant
gubsequent to the criminal act; in other words,
preconcert or a community of purpose may be
shown by circumstances as well as by direct
evidencee” (16 CoJe, 52Cell5, Del28; 22 CuJToeSes
sece872,Del55) e

Under this doctrine it was not necessary for the prosecution to
prove that each accused physically pushed Geib (Specification 1l) and
Donoven (Specification 2) from the moving traine All that was required
was proof that the two white saldiers were forcibly e jected from the
train by scme of the members of the group of colored soldiers which |
attacked them and that the two accused at that time and place were en- ‘
gaged with the group in the attacke The accused were responsible not
only for their own illegal acts but also for all illegal acts committed
by other assailants in pursuance of the common purpose of molesting .

and inflicting bodily harm upon the two white mene Further it was not 2297
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necessary for the prosecution to prove that accused contemplated or in-
tended that Geib and Donovan snould be pushed from the train, as such
acts were natural and probable concequences of the vicious and wholly
indefensible assault in which the two accused actively participated.

The Board of Review has heretofore approved the principle in CM ETO 80},
Ogletree et al and Cil ETO 895, Fred A, Davis et al, and reference is
made to said holdlnbs for an extended discussion of sams,

(b) = Each accused is charged with assaulting Donovan end Geib
with the intent to commit a felony, viz murder. Such charge required
the prosecution to prove that each accused at the time of the assault
entertained the specific intent to kill the victims (30 C.J., Secelbl,
pP.20).  However,

"While a specific intent to kill is an essential
ingredient of the offense of assault with in-
tent to commit murder, this requiremsnt does
not exact an intent, other than an intent which
is inferrable fram the circumstances, So
while the intent cennot be implied as a matter
of law, it may be inferred as a fact from the
surrounding circumstances, such as * % * an act
of vidlence from which, in the usual and
ordinary course of things, death or great bodlly
harm may result,” (30 CeJe, S€Cel65,DPe21,22),

"Where a particuler intent is an element of a
felony, it is essential that one aiding and
abetting the commission of such offense should
have been aware of the existence of such intent
in the mind of the actual perpetrator of the
felony; but if accused had knowledge of the
particular intent on the part of the actual
perpetrator of the felony this is sufficient.”
(22 C4TeSes8ece8784Pel57) 0

There is direct and positive proof, that Johnson pushed ¢ne of the white
soldiers from the train (R16,17)s There is also evidence that both
Johnson and Loper were active aggressive participaents in the attack im~-
mediately prior to the eviction (Rl6-19)e Each accused admitted such
participations In addition there is proof of a discussion amomg the
coloredassailents contemplating such violent action in which Johnson and
Loper each partici pated or were cognizant of the same (Rl4,43; Pros.Exe5).
These surrounding facts end circumstances afford substantial legal basis
for imputing to each accused the specific intent of the particular calor-
ed soldiers who pushed Geib and Donovan from the train, The conduct of
each accused immediately prior to the overt acts coupled with knowledge
of the conversation on the subject is evidence of preconcert and joint
design which distinguishes this case from CM 200047 (1933) DigeOpeJAG,
1912-1940, sece 451(13), Ppe3l4=~315. This conclusion is supported by
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the principles announced in Ci ZT0 1052, Geddies et al,

(¢) ~ The deliberate, premeditated eviction of Geib and
Donovan fram a fast moving train were acts which possess inhereatly the
elements of criminality necessary to sustain the charge of assault with
intent to commit murder. Death or most serious bodily injuries were
most certain results.

*An intent to kill may be inferred from the fact
that the defendant threw the prosecutor from a
‘rapidly moving train in a manner reasonably
calculated to destroy life.® Anderson v. State,
1&; Inde 445, 46 HN.E. 901 (30 CJ, sec.lb65,p.22,fn.
52)s

All of the elements of the crime charged wers fully proved be-
yong reascnable doubt (ClM ETO 78, Jatts; CM ETO 1052, Geddies et al;
1 ETO 1535, Cooper; CM ETO 2321, loody).

5. During the course of the trial both accused were called as
witnesses for the prosecutione With respect to accused Loper, the
record of trial reveals the following preliminary proceedings:

"The prosecution then called Private Irvin Re.
Loper, [j087th Quartermaster Service Company
as & witness for the prosecution.

Law Member: Private Loner, you are being
called gs a witness for the prosecution, You
may decline to answer any question wnich might
incriminate you. You will not be reguired to
answer any guestion which you feel may hurt
¥Oue

Prosecution: Do .you heve eny objction to
testifying bvefore the court?

Private Loper: Mo, sire.

Prosecuticn: Do you heve any objection to
bein; sworn?

DPrivate Loper: Mo, sir,.

pPrivate Irvin R. Loper, 4087th juartermaster
Service Cowpeny, was thsn sworn and testified
as follows:" (R34)e.

In his testimoany which followed he admitted that in the train compartment
he struck Geib and Donoveane He also asserted that accused Johnson
struck one of the white soldiers and threw one of them from the train,.

He was not asked nor did he volunteer evidence &s to his participation
in the actual eviction (R35).
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Thereafter he appeared at his own rejuest as a sworn witness
“in his own behalf and repeated his fermer testimony but denied that he
threw either Geib or Donovan from the train (Ri1,43)e

ilhen accused Johason was called to the stand the following pre-
liminary examination occurred:

"The prosecution then called Private lianuel
Jomson, 762nd Chemical Depot Company (Avia-
tion) as a witness for the prosecutione

Law liember: Private Johnson, you are being
called as e witness for the prosecution,
You may decline to answer any gquestion which
might tend to incriminate yous  You will not
be required to answer any guestion which you
feel wmay degrede or hurt you.

Prosecution: Do you fully understand your
richts at this time?

Private Jolmsm: Yes, 3ire.

Prosecution: Do you voluntarily take the
stand as a witness?

Private Jchason: I do.

Prosescution: Do you have any objections to
being sworn?

Privete Johnson: No, sire.

Private Menuel Johnson, 762nd Chemical Depot
Company (Aviation), was then sworn and testi-
fied as follows:" (R35=36).

In his ensuin; testimony he admitted lesaving a seat in another car at the
invitation of another cclored scldier and entering, in company with about
16 colored soldiers, the compartment occupied by Geib and Donovan, He
also admitted striking the white men but denied that he assisted in throw-
ing them from the trein. He stated he d4id not see Loper strike either
Geib or Donovan but he (Loper) was in the group of four or five who threw
them off the train (R37,58).

A3 a sworn witness in his own behalf he repsated his former .
(supra) testimony but also admitted that he, with three or four other
colored men, pushed one of the white soldiers from the train (R43).

The Fifth Amendment to the Federal Constitution provides:

"No person shell be held to answer for a capital,
or otherwise infamous c¢crime, unless on a pre-
sentment or indictment of & Grand Jury, except
in cases arising in the land or naval forces,
or in the Militia, when in actual service in
time of War or public danger; nor shall any
person be subject for the seme offence to be
twice put in jeoperdy of life or limb; nor
shall be compelled in any criminal case to be
a witness against himself, nor be deprived of 2297
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life, liberty or property, without dus process
of law;" :

The questions presented by this situation are of vital importance in the
administration of military justice and are of such nature as to deserve
painstaking care and consideration by the Board of Reviews

(a) - Applicability of the privileges and immunities guaranteed
by the Fifth Amendment of the Federal Constitution to court-martial pro-

ceedingse

The doctrine has been asserted thaet the protective and immunity
clauses of the Fifth Amendment of the Federal Constitution do not operate
with respect to an accused on trial before a courts-martial, A full and
complete discussion of the doctrine with plenary citation of authorities
was presented by Major General Enoch HeCrowder in his testimony before a
Sub-committee of the Committee on Military Affairs of the United States
Senate on 24 October 1919, Reference is mede to General Crowder's dis-
cussion and brief of authorities found on pages 1163-1175 of "Hearings
before a Sub=-committee of the Committee on Military Affairs United States
Senate, 66th Congress, First Session on S.6l, a Bill to Establish
Military Justice®s It will be there noted & doubt was cast upon the in-
tesrity of the principle by certain language used by the United States
Supreme Court in Grafton v.United States, 206 U.S. 333, 51 L. Ed. 1084,
as follows:

*The express prohibition of double jeopardy
for the same offense means that wherever
such prohibition is applicable, either by
operation of the Constitution or by action
of Congress, no person shall be twice put in
jeoperdy of life or limb for the same offense,
Consequently, a civil court proceeding under
the authority of the Unhited States can not
withhold from an officer or soldier of the
Army the full benefit of that guaranty, efter
he has been once tried in a military court of
competent jurisdiction. Congress, by ex-
press constitutional provision, has the powsr
to prescribe rules for the government and
resulation of the Army, but those rules must
be interpreted in connection with the prohibi-
tion against a man's being put twice in
jeoperdy for the same offense, The former
provision must not be so interpreted as to
nullify the latter." (p.35l; p.1090).

In the Grafton cese, decided in 1907, the *"double jeopardy" clause of
the Fifth Amendirent was indirectly considered. However, it was the Act
of Congress of July 1, 1902 (32 Stat.691) providing temporarily for the
ad:nistration of affairs of the Phillipine Islands wnich was specially
and directly involved, This Act provided:

8-



Notwithstanding the above-guoted language the court in its opinion con-

cluded:
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*No person, for the same offense, shall be
twice put in jeopardy of punishment®,

"But passing by all other questions discuss-
ed by counsel, or which might arise on the
record, and restricting our decision to
the ebove question of double jeopardy, we
ad judge that, consistently with the above
act of 1902, and for the reasons stated,
the plaintiff in error, a soldier in the
Army, having been acquitted of the crime of
homicide, alleged to have been committed by
him in the Philippines, by-a military court
of competent jurisdiction, proceeding under
the euthority of the United 3tates, could
not be subseguently tried for the sauxe
offense in & civil court exercising euthority
in that territory." (p.355; 0e1092).

It is therefore obvious, to guote General Crowder:

The reported colloguy between Senator Lenroot and General Crowder which
followed General Crowder's conclusion above set forth, is interesting

"An analysis of Grafton v. United States
shows that that case by no means disposes
of the doctrine of the applicability to
courts-martial of the jecpardy clause of
the fifth amendment to the Constitution.”

(P&ll’ﬂl-)'

and illuminating:

"Senator Lenroot. Generally, your position is
that the Supreme Court has in no case decided
this guestion?

Genes Crowder., I do not find that it hase

* ok ok B
Senator Lenroots I said the Supreme Court
has never passed upon ite
Gen, Crowder. It has not passed upon the
exact question, so far as I can finde

* %k ok &
Senator Lenroot. I just asked eas to the ques-
tion, whether it was an open guestion with
the Supreme Court of the United States?
Gen. Crowderes It seems to bee * * * (pp.{}?h.

1175) :
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Twenty-five years have passed since the foregoing exposition of
this importent question and during that period cases have arisen in the
Federal courts which are relevant if not determinative of the question
involved.

Terry v. United States, 2 Fed.3upp.962 (March 1933), applied the
clause of the Fifth Amendment requiring grand jury indictment of an accus-~’
ed "except in cases arising in the land * * * forces® to the case where
the accused had been charged under the 9Lth Article of War after he had
been honarably discharged from the service and convicted by a general
court-martial for presenting fraudulent vouchers and for embezzlement,
and held that the case fell within the exception and there had been no
violation of the Fifth Amendmente.

Sendford v. Robbins, 115 Fed (2d) (5th Cir) L35, wherein it was
claimed that the double jecpardy clause of the Fifth Amendment had not
been violated by the President in ordering a new triel after disapproving
the sentence on the first trial, (The case arose prior to the enactment
of Article of War 50%). The court said:

*ife have no doubt that the provision of the
Fifth Auendment, 'nor shall any person be
subject for the same of fense to be twice put
in jeopardy of life or limb', is applicable
to courts martiale The immediately preceding
exception of 'cases arising in the lend or
naval forces! from the requirement of an in-
dictment, abundantly shows that such cases were
in contemplation but not excepted from other
provisions." (pe438).

United States ex rel Innes v, Hiatt, 141 Fed (2d) 66k, involving
a claim in a habeas corpus proceeding that the due process clause in the
Fifth Amendment had been violated when the court-martial heard the trial
judge edvocate in the absence of accuseds The court said:

"Je think that this basic guarantee of fair-
ness afforded by the due process clause of
the fifth amendment applies to a defendant
in eriminal proceedings in a federal military
court as well as in a federal civil court.
M individusl does not cease to be a person
within the protection of the fifth emendment
of the Constitution because he has joined
the nation's armed forces end has taken the
oath to support that Constitution with his
life, if need be. The guarantee of the
fifth amendment that no person shall * * #*
be deprived of life, liberty, or property,
without due process of law, mekes no excep-
tion in the case of persons who are in the
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armed forcese The fact that the framers of
the amendment did specifically except such
persons from the guasrantee of the right to a
presentment or indictment by a grand jury
which is contained in the earlier part of the
emendment makes it even clearer that persons
in the armed fa ces were intended to have the
benefit of the due process clause. This is
not to say that members of the military
farces are entitled to the procedure guaranteed
by the Constitution to defendants in the civil
courtsey As to them due process of law means
the application of the procedwre of the mili-
tary law, Many of the procedural safe-guards
which have always been observed for the bene-
fit of defendants in the civil courts are not
granted by the military lew, In this respect
the miiitary law provides its own distinctive
procedure to which the members of the armed
forces must submite But the due process
clause guarantees to them that this military
procedure will be applied to them in a funda-
mentally fair way. We concluds that it is
open for a c¢ivil court in a habeas corpus pro-
ceeding to consider whether the circumstances
of a court-martial proceeding and the manner
in which it was conducted ran afcul of the
basic standard of fairness which is inwolved
in the constitutional concept of due process
of iaw and, if it so finds, to declare that
the relator has been deprived of his liberty
in violation of the fifth amendment and to
discharge him from custody. Accordingly the
allegations of the relator must be examined
to ascertein whether even if they were proved
to be trus it would still have to be concluded
that he had failed to establish any fundamental
unfairness in his trial by the court-martial
which convicted him.® (141 Fed (24) Adv.Sheet
May 22 194}, Dpeb666) (Underscoring supplied)

Kahn v. Anderson, 255 U.S. 1, 65 L.Ed. 469, wherein the court
~held thet military prisoners undergoing punishment under previous sen-
tences impcsed by courts-martial were, for offenses committed during
their confinement, liable to triasl and punishment by courts-martial
under the Articles of #ar and that such trials did not infringe the
guaranties as to jury trial and presentment and indictment by grand
jury respectively secured by Art.l, secs8 of the Constitution and the
Fifth Amendment, and neither did such triels involve a violation of the
Fifth Amendment against the deprivation of life, liberty or property
without due process of laws
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Ex parte Quirin, 317 U.S. 1, 87 L.Ed. 3, holding that the Fifth
and Sixth Amendments do not restrict the authority conferred by the Con-
stitution to try offenses against the law of war by military commission
and that the accused charged with such offense were lawfully placed on
trial by a military commission without a jurye.

The opinions in the Terry, Kahn and Quirin cases confirm the
principle with respect to cases arising in the land and naval forces that
the accused is not entitled to a trial by jury under Article I, sec. 8 of
the Constitution nor the presentment or indictment by a grand jury
guaranteed by the Fifth Amendment, Such conclusion recognizes the ex-
ception of the Fifth Amendment covering cases arising in the land and
naval forcese However, tnis conclusion does not impinge upon the doc-
trine asserted in 3anford ve. Robbins and United States ex rel Innes ve
Hiatt, supra, that the due process and double jeopardy clauses of the
Amendment apply to a defendant in criminal proceedings in a Federal
military courte Considering the fact that the "non-self inerimination®
clause is intermediate to the *double jecopardy" and *due process" clauses
of the Amendment, it is logical to conclude that tne privilege of *non-
self incrimination® is also applicable to an accused on trial before a
Federal military courte It is manifest, however, that the Supreme Court
has not specifically decided the point and that it remains an "open gues-
tion®", but the tendency of judicial thought is to apply the three enumerat-
ed guaranties of the Fifth Amendment directly to en accused on triel in
Federal military courts.

(b) - Relationship of 2hth Article of War to non-self inerimina-
tion clause of Fifth Amendment.

The 2Lth Article of War in relevant part provides:

"No witness before a military court * * * shall
be compelled to incriminate himself or to
answer any question the answer to which may
tend to incriminate him, or to answer any
question not material to the issue when such
answer might tend to degrade him,"

' The non-self incrimination ce¢lause of the Pifth Arendment directs:

"No person * * * shall be compelled in any
criminal case to be a witness against him=-
self."

The term "witness" as used in the article includes without doubt an accus-
ed. (Counselman v. Hitchcock, 142 U.S. 547, 35 LeEde 1110; TUhited States
v. Kimball, 117 Fed. 156,160)s The phrase "to incriminate himself®
means the "siving of evidence or answering questions the tendency of which
would be to subject one to a criminal prosecution ." (Webster's New
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International Dictionary - 2nd Ed. - p.2271), or "to expose to en accusa-
tion or :uarge of crime; to involve oneself or another in a criminal
prosecution or the danger thereof." (Bl.,Law Dicte(3d Ed.) De9L6)e

In_Senford v. Robbins, supra, the court in considering the LOth
Article of ilar, which provides that

"No person shall, without his consent, be tried
a second time for the same offense;"

held that such statutory prohibition was an expression by Congress of the
double jeopardy immunity of the Fifth Amendment and applied the same
rules of interpretation to it as are given the double jeopardy provisions
of the Amendment.

In Grafton v.United States, supra, the Supreme Court considered
the prohibition against double jeopardy contained in the act for the tem-
porary administration of the Philippine Islands as the le gal eguivalent
of the double jeopardy clause of the Fifth Amendment and applied constitu-
tional interpretation to it.

Therefore, on the basis of the intrinsic meaning of the 24th
Article of War snd of precedents, it is both logical and consistent to
consider the Article as the statutory equivalent of the relevant provi-
sion in the Amendment and to apply to the Article the same principles es
have been applied to the non-self incriminetinz clause of the Amendment.
Tnder this method of reasoninyg the rights and irmunities under the 2i4th
Ariicle of War of an accused on trial before a Federal military court
ere identical with rights and immmities of a defendant on trial before a
Federal civil court.

(¢) - Violation of accuseds' rights under the 24th Article of
Ware .

Both accused in the presence of the assembled court were called
to the stand as witnesses for the proseccution and were subjected to the
voir dire examinetions above set forth. The record is entirely silent
as to whether or not the prosecution out of the presence of the court
had entered into an arrangement with each accused whereby each of them
agreed to appeer and testify as a prosecution's witness. Further,
there is no evidence that independent of the brief voir dire examinations
in open court that they were informed that they might refuse outright
and without visitation upon them of penalties of any kind for their re-
fusal of the demand of the prosecution that they take the stand as wit-

nessesSe

In considering the guestion presented the following prineciple
ie fundamental:

"The guaranty that a person shall not be com~
pelled to be a witness against himself pre-~
cludes a person from being subjected to an
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inguisition or called as a witness by the
state in eny judicial inguiry which has- for
its primery object the deteriiination of that
person's guilt or innocence of a given
offense," (70 C.J. 5cce888, p. 73L; 3oyd ve
United Stetes, 116 U,3. 616, 29 L.Zde 746;
Lees v. United 3tates, 130 U.3. 475, 37 Le.2d.
1150; Twining v. New Jersey, 211 U.S5. 78, 53
L.Ed.97).

In order to safeguard end make effective this constitutional
cuaranty against selfeincrimination it is the universal rule that the
- prosecution must not in open court, before the jury, call the accused to
the stand a3 a witnesse

"Since that procedure could only have, as its
chief effect, the emphasizing of his refusal,
should he refuse, and thus the indirect
suggestion of that inference gpairnst him from
which he is protected by enother aspect of the
principle (thzt is the prunciple against self-
incrimination)."” (4 Wigmore, Ividence - 2nd
Ede - sec.2268),

*¥henever the accused, because of some incident
in the triel and throuch no fault of his, is
forced to testify for fear that adverse infer-
ences mi_ht be drawn from his failure, then he
has not volunteered as a witness and has not
waived his rights. Such waiver only follows
where liberty of choice has been fully accord-
ed." (Pewsll v, Comnonwealth - Va. - 189 3E
433, 110 ALR 90,95).

Consistent with and in elaberation of the foregoing proposition,
it is the almost unanimous coaclusion of American courts that in the
triel of a criminal case it is impropsr for the prosecuting attorney, or
the court, in the precence of the jury, to call upoa the defendant or
his counsel to produce a document as being his poscsession (see annotation
in 110 ALR p.l0l for complete citation of authorities). The leading
case on this subject is McKni;ht v. Thited States, 115 Fed 972, wherein
the court held it to be a pre judicial infrection of the constitutional
right of eccused for the prosecution's attorney, upon su,gestion of the
court and as a besis for introduction in evidence of a copy of an agree-
ment, to demand of the sccused, in the presence of the jury, that he
produce the original of the a;reement. Upon & later appeal of the case
after a re-trial, the Circuit Court of Appesls said in explanation of
its ruling in the earlier appeal:

*To say to a defendant in the presence of a
jury 'If you do not produce such and such
document, we will prove its contents by the
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best evidence within reach', is a msthod of
compelling a defendant to become a witness
against himself, as most unjust inferences
may be drawn from a refusel to comply with
such a demand, and even more dangerous re-
sults from complience, It was upon this
ground that upon the former writ of error we
held the defendent to have been illegally
pre judiced by the demand masde upon him in
the presence of the jury.' (McKnight ve
United States, 122 Fed 926, 930).

The foregoing authorities therefore support the conclusion that
the trial judge edvocate cammitted serious error with respect to both
accused Loper and Johnson when he called them to testify as witnesses for
the prosecutions When he mede the demend he placed them in the position
of being compelled to testify for fear of adverse inferences if they re-
fused the demandse Their appearances on the witness stand were in no
sense voluntarye Voluntary ection presupposses freedom of choice,

The voir dire examinations of each accused could not neutralize
or remove the prejudiciasl effect of the infringement of their rightse
The exeminations came after the trial judge advocate hed violated their
rights by his demand that they appear as witnesses, It was the demand
wnich inflicted the injurys In fact the examinations served to increase
the compulsion visited upon them rather than to alleviate ite The trial
judge advocate, defense counsel and the court exhibited their ignorance
of this vitel principle of criminal jurisprudence but such ignorsnce can-
not excuse the violation of the rights of each accused not to "be compell-
ed to incriminate himself" (AF 24) or "to be a witness against himself,*

(Fifth Amendment).

(@) - Effect of error upon findings of guilty,

The 37th Article of War provides, in relevant part:

*The proceedings of a court-martial shall not
be held invalid, ncr the findings or sentence
disapproved in any caess on the ground of im-
proper admission or rejection of evidence or
for any error as to any matter of pleading
or procedure unless in the opinion of the re-
viewing or confirming authority, after an
examination of the entire proceedings, it
shell appear that the error complained of has
injuriously affected the substantial rights
of an accused."” (MCM, 1928, pp.210-211).

It is apperent that the error above noted is not an *"improper admission

or rejection of evidence®, HNeither is it an error of ®"pleading*. While
it may represent an error in "procedure” within the meaning of the magjority
opinion of the Supreme Court in Sibbach v, Wilson, 312 U.S. 1, 85 L.Ed. 479,
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cct that the error resrescats e violation of a personel richt having
cots deep in Anglo-Auerican lew (Twinin_ ve Hew Jersev, supra) which
ha ed and iplewented Ly both coustitutional prohibiticn
(Fifth Ansnc ) ené statutory restriction (A7 2) (see ditsexting
opinion in Sibbach v. .Jilson), the 3oard of Review prefers to coasider

the guestion as to the prejudicial effect of the error upon a basis broad-
er than that contzined in the 57th Article of ar,.

o]
3

Independent of any evidence furnished by each accused either on
the occasion he ehpeared as an involuntary witness for the prosecution or
thereafter as witness on lhiis own behalf, the evidence in the racord of
trial establishzs the zuilt of eech esccused beyond all dcubt. There is
therefore presented the gucstion as to whether the error - serious and
fundamental as it is - reguires that the findings be set aside,

The testimony of the two accused after they were sworn as wit-
nesses for the prosecution upon demand of the trial judge advocate wes of
a highly inculpatory neture. Loper edmwitted that he was one of the group
that attacked Geib and Donovan in the trein compartment and that he struck
the two white soldiers, Johnson likewiss testified as to his participa-
tion in the mass assault on the two white men; admitted striking both of
them but denied he threw either of them from the train. This extremely
damaging evidence, sescured in vioclation of the constitutionel and statutory
rights of each accused, cannot be considered in determining their guilt.
It is the type end kind of evidence egainst which the 24th Article of War
was aimed. Had the trial stopped at this point, the Boerd of Review
would have had no alternative except to set aside the findings of zuiltye.

After the prosecution had closed its case in chief, each accused
was proverly instructed by the court as to his rights and each elected to
appear as a defense witness, Loper repecated his testimony given as a
prosecution's witness, but denied he threw either Geib or Donovan from
the train,. Johnson, likewise, repeated his testimony given as a witness
for the prosecution but this time admitted that he assisted three or four
other cwlcared soldiers in pushing one of the wnite soldiers from the
train.

The facts thus revealed radically affects the error above notede.
It is not the situation which ordinarily requires the annulling of a judg-
ment of conviction because of violation of the rule which prohibits the
prosecution from calling an asccused to the stand as its witness, when the
court-martial is sitting in open session, That situation envisions an
accused immediately faced with the necessity of deciding wnether he will
assert his privilege and refuse the prosecution's demend to take the
stend or comply with it in order to protect himself from unfavoursble in-
ferences which might arise from his refusal. In the letter alternative
he is compelled to assume the role of witness in order to deny the infer-
ences of ruilt, which might arise through his silence. By force of the
prosecution's demand he is stripped of his right to remain silent and
his right to rest his defense on the presumption of his innocence is de-
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stroyed. Conversely, he is forced to becoune a protagonist of his inno-
cence (Cf: .jilsca v, United 3tates, 149 U.S. 60,65, 57 L.Zd. 550,651,652).
It is this unfair process which the rule sezsxs to prevent, Manifestly,
when this condition does not exist the reasoa for considering a violation
of the rule es prejudicial disappears. Hzd each accused in this case,
after he had testified &s witness for the prosecution, in response to the
de:isand of tae triel jud e advocate, assumed the stend as witness in his

own behalf znd either attempted to explain or mitigate his forced incul-
patory testimony as prosecution's witiess, the situation presented would
have required the Boerd of Review to consider the error as highly

pre judicial. Such condation ¢oes not prevail in tnis case,. Bach

accused as witness in his own behalf coafirmed his foruer testimony and
testified to facts which were highly inculpztory ~ facts when considered
individually as to each accused are eguivalent to a confession in open
courte In addition there was edmitted in evidence, previous to the
celling of Loper and Johnson to the stand as prosecution's witnesses, with-
out objection, extra-judiciel statemenis (Pros.Zxs.” and 6) of each accused
in which each of them edmitted their participation in the mmss assault upon
Geib and Donovan and thereby fixed on themselves responsibility for the
ultimate felonious assaults with wnich they are charieds Under such cir-
cumstances, an assertica thet the violetion of the right of eech accused
not to be a witness g ainst himself constitutes reversible error, obviously
becomes ebsurd,. The prejudiciel error resultant upoa the demand of the
trial judge advocate that each accused testify as a witness for the
prosecution is robbed of its damaging effect and becoues non-prejudicial
and innocuous. Such conclusion is well within the embit of the principle
of authoritative decisions which hold that error of the nature involved in
this case may be vitiated by subsejuent events occurrin; or subseguent con-
duct of the accused a* the trial (ikKaipht v. Unitzd States, 122 Fed 926;
Hennish ve United 3tates, 227 Fed 58l,58¢, Cert. denied 239 U.3. 645,

60 LoZde 484; Bain v, United 3tates, 20 Fed 65, Cert. denied 252 U.S.
586, bl Le.Zde 729; Gridley v. United 3tztes, 4k Fed (24) 716, Cert. denied
283 U.Se 827, 75 LeZds 1lJl)e The Beard of Review therefore concludes
thet althouch error was cormitted in coapelling each accused to be sworn
and testify as witness for tie prosecution, thet such erra, under the
facts and circuastances reveeled by the record of triel, was non-prejudicial.,

6. A further guestion erisss out of the action of the trial judce
advocete in callin_ each accuced to the stand as a witness for the prose-
cution. The separate charges e;ainst eech accused were, with their con-
sent, tried simultaneously bsfore the seme court, In practicel effect,
Loper becane a witness for the prosecuticn epainst Johnson in the trial
of his case, and Johnson becaue a witness for the prosecution & _einst
Loper ia the triel of his case, Jas this procedure autnorized? Rele-
vaat to this situation is the following Act of Con.ress:

"In the trial of all indictiments, informations,
somplaints, and other proceedings e ainst per-
sons chzrged with the commission of criies,
offenses, and misdemeeanors, in the Uaited
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States courts, Territoricl courts, and courts-
mertiel, and cowts of iaguiry, in any .State
cr Territory, inclucdin_ the District of
Columbia, the person so charged shall, at his
ovn reguest but not otherwise, be a coapetent
witness, And his failurs o make such re-
guest shell not create any presunption a;ainst
hime" (4ct Mar. 16,1878, c.37; 20 Stat.30;

28 U3CA sec.632).

The above statute has been construed as follows:

"This statute in terius mekes a defendant a
competent witnesse. The statute does not say
'a competent witness for himself', It does
not say 'a competent witness for the zovern-
nent', He is made simply 'at his own re-
guest, but not otherwise,' a competent witness,
It would clearly be improper for the government,
while he was on triel, in the absence of a re-
quest on his part, to call him as & witness.
The purpose of the law was to make defendants
conpetent witnesses, but at the same time pre-
serve to them the right to remain silent with-
ocut prejudice. Jdhen any defendant chooses to
testify, the statute perwits him to do so. It
does not matter whether his testimony is for
or ageinst himself, or for ¢r a;ainst his co-~
defendant, The only limitation in the statute
is that he shell not be meade a witness except
on his own reguest. Being sworn as a witness
at his om reguest, he is smenable, generally,
to the rules governing other witnesses. He
could testify against or for his co-defendant
on triel with him, because the only reason
why he could not do so at comaon law was that
he was a party to the record, and interested
in the case, In other words, the only commou-
law reason for his exclusion wag that he wes
e defendant also on triales The statute clear-
1y removes thzt objecticn. The fect that two
defendants were on triel does not prevent the
statute’applyinze There is nothing in it to
coafine its operation to cases where but a
single defendant is named in the indictment.”
(Wolfson v. United States, 101 Fad (5th Cir)
4,30,436; Cert, denied 180 U.3. 637, 45 L.Ed.
710)

"This act renders any of a plurality of de-
fendants on triael competent to testify either
in his own behalf, or on behalf of any co-
defendeant, or the povernmsnt, provided only
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thet he testifies at his own request.®
(Heitler v. United States, 24 Fed (7th Cir)
140,141),

"The provision of the statute * * * to ths
effect that e defendant in a criminal case
shell, at his own request but not otherwise,
be a campetent witness, does not make the
competency of one defendant as a witness
dependent upon the consent of a co defendant.®
(Rowan v. United States, 281 Fed (S5th Cir),
1373139; Cert. denied 260 U.S. 721, 67 LeEde
481

In each of the foregoing cases the quoted statute was applied to cases in
which the witness had been indicted and was being tried Jjointly with
other co~defendants, The quot ed statements of the court must be con-
sidered in view of such circumstances, In the instant case, each accus-
ed was charged separately with the offenses of assault with intent to
comnit murder but, with their respective consents, were tried together.
As has been hereinbefore demonstrated, neither Loper nor Johnson was a
witness "at his own reqguesi" but each was forced to the stand under cir-
cumstances which amounted to compulsion.

Two questions arise with respect to the admissibility of Loper's
testimony against Johnson and Johnson's testimony against Loper:

8s Does the above-quoted statute govern the admissibility of
the testimony of each accused &3 egainst his co-accused?

bs If not, was each accused a compelent witness for the prosecu-
tion against his co-accused although he was not a voluntary witness and
possessed the privilege of non-self incrimination?

(a) At common law persons jointly indicted and jointly tried for
the same offense were not canpetent witnesses for each other or for the
prosecution. The reason at first given for such rule was that such de-
fendant had an interest in the outcome of the case end was therefore
barred. Graduelly the rule was extended so as’'to bar as witness any
party to the record whether he had en interest or note. However, if a
joint accused pleaded guilty but was not sentenced, or if he were tried
separately, or the indictment against him was terminated by nolle
prosequi, he was rendered a competent witness either for the prosecution
or his co-defendant. (Annotation Wilson v, United States, 162 U.3, 613,
40 L,E4.1090; Annotation Benson v, United Stetes, 146 U.S. 325, 36 L.Ed.
991; Volfson v, United States, supra).

Hwever, the rules above stated were not applicable where
several accused were separately indicted or charged for the same offense,
In such event each separately indicted accused was a competent witness
for the prosecution ageinst other separately indicted accuseds (Benson v
United States, supra; 16 C.Js sec.l4ll, p.690; 22 C,JuS. 5ee803,0+1376)s
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A zinst the back round of these common law rules, Coniress ensct-
ed the Act of March 16, 1878, above guoted. It is obvious that primarily
it was intended to remove the bar which prevented & defendant from testify-
ing for or againet a co-defesndent in cases where they were jointly indieted
and jeintly irieds.  Jhere each accused was separately indicted or charged
for the same offense such disability did not exist and consequently the
statutory eliination of the bar was unnecessary (22 C.J.S., sec.803,
pel376, fn.58; sec.80Lb, fn.62, pPel377)e In the instant case each accus-
ed, bein, separately char.ed for the same crimes, was a competent witness
for the prosecution ageinst his co-accused. The statute did not endow
him with competency as he previously possessed it The conclusion is that
the steatute did not operate upon the stetus of Loper and Johnson as wite
nesses, each &against the other.

(b) Each accused was an involuntery witness but the 24th Article of
War extended to him the privilege of refusing to give self-incriminating
evidence. It was a personal privilege which he could claim or waive at
his option. (McAlister v, Henkel, 201 U,3, 90, 50 L.Zd. 671; Burrell v,
Montana, 194 U.S. 572, 48 L.2d41122; 70 C.J. sece906, DeT47)e It could
not be eclaimed by the accused against whom the witness was called to
testify (70 C.J. sec.s906, Da7L9) and

"A statute rendering a nerson competent as a

witness does not deprive him of his privi- /
lece acainst self incrimination.” (70 C.J.

52¢e870, Da720),

Neither was the competency of each accused impaired by the faet that he
was compelled to testify, inasmuch as attendeince et court and the giving
of testimony is a compulsory duty upon every person (Bleir v. United
States, 250 U.S. 272, 63 L.Zd. 979). The availability to the prosecution
of the testimony of the accused called to the stand depended upon the will
of the witnesse Ee could assert his privilege, and refuse to speek, or
he could waive his privilege and testify, but these were matters with .
which the other accused had no concern. Neither the Fifth Amendment nor
the 24th Article of War provide thet an accused called as a prosecution's
witness is an incompetent witnesse. Both the constitutional provision

and the statute simply prohibit the Government from compelling a witness
to testify against himself, It follows from the foregoin:; that a viola-
tion of the non-self incrimination provision of the Amendment and the
statute did not disqualify the accused whose rights were affected, as a
witness against the other accused, It was the rights of the witness
which were vioclated; not the rights of the accused ageinst whom the wit-
ness testifiede.

The Board of Review therefore concludes that notwithstanding
the fact that the prosecution viclated the rights of eech accused in
compelling him to testify as a witness for the prosecution, such viocla-
tion was not an error which the accused against whom the evidence was
offered could complein and hence no prejudice to Johnson's rights occurred
when Loper testified against him, and no prejudice to Loper's rights
occurred when Johnson appeered as a witness &gainst him,
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Te The charge sheets show that accused Johnson is 20 years three
months of age and was inducted into the service on 31° January 1942, and
that accused Loper is 20 years eig ht months of ege and was inducted in-
to the service on 21 Jenuary 194:. Neither hed any prior service.

8s The court was lepelly constituted and had jurisdiction of the
persoas and offenses, No errors injuriously affectin, the substantiel
rights of the accused, excent as hereinbefore noted, were comitted dur-
ing the triales The Bocrd of Review is of the opinion that the record
of trael is legally sufficient to support the findings of guilty and the
sentences as to both accused.

9. Confinement in a United States penitentiery is autuorized for
the crime of assault with intent to murder by AT.42 and sec.276 Federal
Criminal Code (18 USCA L55)e The designetion of the United States
Penitentiary, Lewisbury, Pennsylvania, s the plaece of confinement is
authorized (Cir.291, .D, 10 llov 1943 sec.V, var.Za).

. /;7 .
/Jf’/ff"ﬂ'/Zé Judse Advocate

y Judge Advocate
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WD, Branch Office TJAG., with TTOU3A. 1 JUL1944  10: Comuanding
Cfficer, .estern Base Section, Communications Zone, IT0USA, AP0 515, U, 3.
ALrmny e

l. In the case of Privates MANUZL JOHNS3ON JR. (3425042L), 752nd
Chemical Depot Company (.viation) and IRVIN R. LOPER (33551918), 4087th
werternaster Service Company, attention is invited to the foregoing
holding by the Board of Review that the record of trial is legelly suffi-
cient to support the findings of zuilty end the centences, wiich holding
is hereby approveds Under the provisions of Article of War 503, you
now have authority to order execution of the sentencese

2« The instigator and lesder of the mob of colored soldiers which
ssgulted CGeib and Donovan was a colored Corporel described by Geib as:

"five feet ten inches to five feet eleven
inches, 175 pounds, brown skinned, rough
complexion, cosrse pores. He was wear-
ing an over-coate" (R9).

This Corporal is further described by the accused Johnson in his statement
(Prox.5x.5) as:

"The lizht skinned corporal was from Coe D,
554th M Bn, Camp 3, G-18s He was about
5 feet 6 inches tall, slim build, fast
talker. He works in the Company Orderly
room,."

It is evident from the record of trial that this Corporal was
one of the principal offenders. Johnson states (Pros.Ex.5) that this
Corporal threw one of the white soldiers from the train, and prior there=-
to he actively participated in the bteating of Geit and Donovan(R16,18,
Pros.Ex.5).

On the witness stend, Herbert T. Cannon, C.I.D. Detachment,
Headguarters 7th District, Zastern Base Section, stated that he had never
mede any attempt to find this Corporal. The rzview of the Staff Judge
Advocate mekes no mention of the activities of this man.

This situation demands further diligent investigation to the
end thet this Corporal is identified, apprehended and prosecuted. The
duty imposed upon me by the Commanding General of this Theater requires
that I report to him irregularities cof this type in the administration
of militery justice. ©Discipline is imperiled and justice is not vin-
dicated if this man is permitted to escapee. The conviction and punishe
ment of Johnson and Loper only partially achieves the desired ende
There should be no delay in the execution of this additional investige-
tion. I request reports of progress,

300 . 2297
GONEIDENTIAL


http:M.AN1P.wL
http:3'TOU.31

CONFIDRNTIAL (13)

3. When copies of the published order are forwarded to this

office they should te accompanied by the foregoing holding and this
indorsement. The file number of the record in this office is ETO 2297.
For convenience of reference please place that number in brackets

at the end of the order: (ETO 2297).

/s/ E. C. McNEIL

E. C. McNEIL
Brigadier General, United States Army
Assistant Judge Advocate General
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Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General
with the
European Theater of Operations
APO 871
BOARD COF REVIEW
21 JUN 194
ETO 2302
UNITED STATES g WESTERN BASE SECTICN, SERVICES OF
SUPFLY, EUROPEAN THEATER (F
v. ; OPERATIORS.
Private JOHN M. HOPKINS g Trial by G.C.M., convened at
(35321260) 306th Replacement Bristol, Gloucestershire, England,
Company, Field Force Replace- ) 12 April 1944. Sentence: Dis-
ment Depot KFo. 2. ) honorable discharge, total for-
) feitures and confinement at hard
; lebor for eight years. Federal
Reformatory, Chillicothe, Ohio.

HOLDING by the BCARD (F REVIEW
RITER, VAN BERSCHOTEN and SARGENT, Judge Advocates

l. The record of trial in the cese of the socldier named above has
been examined py the Board of Review.

2. Accused was tried upon the following Charges and Specifications:

CHARGE I: Violation of the 6lst Article of War.
Specification: In that Private John M. Hopkins, 306
Replacerment Company, Field Force Replacement
Depot FNo. 2, did, without proper leave, absent
himself from his station at Miller's Orphanage,
Bristol, Somerset, England, from about 0001
. houre, 31 January, 1944, until about 1500 hours,
26 February, 1944.

CHARGE IIs Violation of the 69th Article of War.
Specification: In that # # % having been duly placed

in confinement in the postguard house, Fileld
Force Replacement Depot No. 2, at Miller's
Orphasnage, Bristol, Somerset, England, did, on
1 March, 1944, et the post guard house, Field
Force Replacement Depot No. 2, Muller's Or-
phanage, Bristol, Somerset, England, escape
from such confinement before he was set at
liberty by the proper authority.

2302
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CHARGE III: Violation of the 93rd Article of War.

Speeification 1t In that # # % did, at Bristol,
Somerset, England, on or about 1 February, 1944,
unlawfully enter the shop of Maurice Arthur
Webber, Fo. 44, Park Street, Clifton, Bristol,
Somerset, England, with intent to commit a
criminal offense, to wit: larceny, therein.

Specification 2: In that # * % did, at Bristol,
Somerset, England, on or about 5 February, 1944,
unlanfully enter the shop of Maurice Arthur
Webber, Ko, 44, Park Street, Clifton, Bristol, Somerset,
England, with intent to commit a crimiral
offense, to wit: larceny, therein.

Specification 3t In that * » % did, at Bristol,
Somerset, England, on or ebout 7 March, 1944,
unlawfully enter the shop of David Bollom,
trading as *Real Dyers and Cleeaners", at No. 35,
Queens Road, Clifton, Bristol, Somerset, England,
with intent to commit a criminal offense, to wit:
larceny, therein.

Specification 43 In that # # # did, at Bristol,
Somerset, England, on or about 5 February, 1944,
feloniously take, steal, and carry awey one
creanm jigger mohair coat, of the value of sbout
Twelve (gg.oo) Dollars, the property of Maurice
Arthur Webber.

Specification 5: In that # # # did, at Bristol,
Somerset, England, on or about 1 February, 1944,
felconiously take, steal, and carry away one red
mohair coat, of the value of about Twelve $12.00)
Dollars, the rty of Maurice Arthur Webber.

Specification 63 (Nolle Prosequi).

Re pleaded guilty to Charges I and II and their respective specifications,
not guilty to Charge III and the specifications thereunder, and was found
guilty of all charges and specifications. Evidence was introduced of one
previous conviction by summary court for absence without leave for six days
in violation of the 6lst Article of War. He was sentenced to be dishonorably
discharged the service, to forfeit all pay and allowances due or to become
due and to be confined at hard labor, at such place as the reviewing author-
ity may direct, for 20 years. The reviewing aunthority approved the sentence,
reduced the pericd of confinement to eight years, designated the Federal
Reformatory, Chillicothe, Ohio as the place of confinement and forwarded

the record of trial for action pursuant to the provisions of Article of

War 50k,

3. The charge sheet shows that the accused is 27 years four months of
age and was inducted at Cleveland, Ohio 4 Septerber 1942 to serve for the
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1st Ind.

WD, Branch Office TJAG., with ETOUSA. 21 JUN1944 TO: Commanding
Officer, Western Base Section, Communications Zone, European Theater of
Operations, APO 515, U. S. Anyy.

1. In the case of Private JOHN M. HOPKINS (35321260), 306th Replace-
ment Company, Field Force Replacement Depot No. 2, attention is invited to
the foregoing holding by the Board of Review that the record of trial is
legally sufficient to support the findings of guilty and the sentence,
which holding is hereby approved. Under the provisions of Article of War
50}, you now have authority to order execution of the sentence.

2. When copies of the published order are forwarded to this office
they should be accompeanied by the foregoing holding and this indorsement.
The file mmber of the record in this office is ET0 2302, For convenience
?f rererex)xce please place that mmber in brackets at the end of the order:

ETO 2302).

€7 ¥ ¢. demm)

Erigadier General, United States Army,
Assistant Judge Advocate General.
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Eranch Office of The Judge Advocate Generel

with the
European Theater of Operations
APO 871
BOARD COF REVIEW
21 JUlotnd
ETO 2321 e
UNITED STATES) SOUTHERN BASE SECTION, SERVICES (F
; SUPPLY, EUROPEAN THEATER OF
V. s OPERATICNS.
Private A. T. MOODY ) Trial by G.C.M., convened at Newton
(34523017), 214th Port ) Abbot, Devonshire, Englend, 27-28
Company, 386th Fort ) April 1944. Sentence: Dishonorable
Battalion, Transpcrta- ) discharge, total forfeitures and comn-
tion Corps. ) finement at hard labor for ten years.
) Federal Reformatory, Chillicothe, Ohio.

HOLDING by the BOARD CF REVIEW .
RITER, VAN BERSCHOTEN and SARGENT, Judge Advocates

l. The record of trisl in the case of the scldier named above has
been examinasd by the Board of Review.

2. The accused was tried upon the following Charge and Specification:

CHARGE: Violation of the 93rd Article of War.

Specification: In that Private A.T. (I0) Moody, 214th
Port Corpeny, 386th Port Battalion, TC, did, at
Stover Camp "B¥, Newton Abbot, Devonshire, Eng-
land, on or about 30 Merch 1944, with intent to
commit a felony, to wit murder, cormit an assault
upon Techmician Fifth Grade Charles H. Steele,
214th Port Compeny, 386th Port Battalion, TC, by
striking him on the head with a dangercus weaponm,
to wit a hatchet.

He pleaded not guilty to and was found guilty of the Charge and Specifica-
tion. Evidence was introduced of one previous conviction by summary court
for absence without leave for one day in violation of Article of War 61.
He was sentencad to be dishonorably discharged the service, to forfeit all
pay and allowances due or to become due and to be confined at hard labor,
at such place az the reviewlng authority may direct, for ten years.
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The reviewling authority approved the sentence, designated the Federal
Reformatory, Chillicothe, Ohio as the place of confinement and forwarded
the reoz_ord of trlal for action pursuvant to the provisioms of Article of
War 504,

3. The evidence for the prosecution shows that between 11:30 p.m.
and midnight of 30 March 1944 accused returned from town to his tent at
Camp Stover, Newton Abbot, Devonshire, England. Six occupants were present
in the tent - Bobo, Steele, Parker, Rivers, Dix ard accused. After read-
ing a letter which he found awaiting him, he engaged in playful wrestling
with Private Paul J. Dix. Bobo was shaving; Steele, Parker and Rivers were
in bed, the last two asleep. Accused stopped scuffling with Dix when Cor-
poral Charles H. Steele, who was in bed, addressed him and inquired about a
flesh-light which he (Steele) had loaned to accused for his trip into town.
Thereupon accused and Steele becarme involved in an apparent friendly
wrestling bout. Steele remained on his bed contimously during the scuffle.
The two were still "laughing and joking" when accused picked up a hatchet
from beside the stove in the center of the tent and, engaging Steele with
his left hand, brandished the hatchet with his right (R10,13,17-18). Dix
observed accused'’s actions and heard Steele express a desire to quit. Dix
then requested accused to give him (Dix) the hatchet. When he secured it
he placed it in the wood box. Simultaneously he observed that Steele had
covered his head with his blanket. Dix then turned his back on both
Steele and & ccused and walked over to where Private Samuel Bobo, another
occupant of the tent, was shaving. Almost immediately thereafter, Dix
and Bobo heard "pounding blows" from the direction of Steele's cot. Both
turned and saw accused standing over Steele holding the he tchet "in a
striking position as if he were golng to split something open."™ The blade
wes pointed dowmnward. Dix testified:

"I grabbed the hatchet meantime telling him
to stop. We tussled with the hatchet and
he told me to let him go as he wanted to
hit him and said he wanted to ki1l the son
of a bitch., Then we tussled with the
hatchet and I got it away and I flung it
amay." (R18).

When Dix first turned around, upon hearing the pounding, Steele still had
his heed under the cover (E21). He was severely and gravely injured about
the head by the hatchet blows. The external injuries consisted of several
abrasive contusions of the scalp. The most serious one was on the right
side of the head in the region of the temple, which was a crushed wound in
which the skin was brolken. Steele was taken to the hospltal for treatment
after first aid had been given (R25,26). After Dix relieved accused of the
hatchet for the second time, accused picked up, from behind the stove, a
stick of wood about two by four inches in breadth and thickness and approx-
imately thres feet long, which he flung at Bobo, who had rushed to the slde
of Steele's cot. Bobo dodged the stick and it "went in Corporal Steele's

-2 =
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direction, and Moody (the accused) lay on the bottom of the bed and cried."
Other soldiers came to assist the removal of Steele to the dispemsary.
Accused again secured the stick and "drew it back again" before it was taken
awmay from him, whereupon he "fell out and cries and kicks like a man when he
is lmocked out." (R11,14-15).

After being taken to the guardhouse, accused was brought back to
his tent, that same night, to get his clothes. He was laughing then and
said nothing about the fight (R11.12), However, he told the doctor who
dressed Steele's wounds "that he wanted to kill the man, or would have liked
to kill the man or words to that effect." The statement was made "in a fit
?f trem‘t)Jling and anger" about half an hour after the attack occurred

R23-27 .

According to his tent-mates who testified for the prosecution,
accussd was not drunk when he returned from town that evening, although,
eccording to one, he "was acting like it" (R12-13,21). The other testified
that he "was not acting in any drunken manner” (R21). He laughed when he
read his letter but no change in his expression was observed by either wit-
ness wntil after the attack. The accused did not seem angry when scuffling
with Dix or with Steele. No cursing was heard and no apparent provocation
of any sort preceded the attack (R11,14,20).

4+ The evidence for the defense showed that two other of accused's
tont-mntes, who were asleep in the tent when accused returned from town,
d1d not awake until after accused struck Steele with the hatchet (R31-33).

5. After his rights were explained to him, the accused elected to
rammin silent (R33).

6. The uncontradicted evidence establishes the fact that accused com-
nltted a murderous assault wupon Steele with a lethal weapon under circum-
stances which fully support the inference of the specific intent to Idll.
Tiis intent was manifested by his declarations on two subsequent occasions
of his desire to kill Steele. All the elements of the crime charged were
fully proved (CM ETO 78, Watts; CM ETO 531, Mclurkin; CM ETO 533, Brown;
Cd ETO 1535, Cooper).

7. The charge sheet shows that accused 1s 23 years six montha of age
end was inducted 6 November 1942 to serve for the duration of the war plus
aix months, He had no prior service. ;

8. The court was legally constituted and had jurisdictlon of the
person and offense. No errors injuriously affecting the substantial
rights of accused were committed during the trial. The Board of Review:
is of the opinion that the record of trial 1s legally sufficient to
support the f£indings of guilty and the sentence.

9. Confinement in a United States penitentiary is authorized for the
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crime of assault with intent to commit murder by Article of War 42 and
sec.276, Federal Criminal Code (18 U.S.C.A.455); sec.335, Federal Criminal
Code (18 U.S.C.A.541); Act June 14, 1941, c.204, 55 Stat.252 (18 U.S.C.A.
753£); Cf£. US. v. Sloan 31 Fed. Supp.327. The designation of the Federal
Reformatory, Chillicothe, Ohio as the place of confinement is authorized

(Cir.291, WD, 10 Nov 1943, sec.V, par.3a).

, /
bkt
//W Judge Advocate
l udge Advocate

Q%a"/%é?‘ Qudge Advocate
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| WD, Branch Office TJAG., with Evomsa. 21 Y1940 w6, commnaing
General, Southern Base Section, Commnications Zone, European Theater of
Operations, APO 519, U, S. Army.

1. In the case of Private A. T. WOODY (34523017), 214th Port Company,
386th Port Battalion, Transportation Corps, attention is invited to the
foregoing holding by the Board of Review that the record of trial is legally
sufficient to support the findings of gulilty and the sentence, which holding
is hereby approved. Under the provisions of Artiels of War 50%, you now
have authority to order exscution of the sentence.

2. There are certain aspects of accused's murderous asssult upon
Steele which give rise to a suspicion as to his mental competency. The
attack was without apparent cause or reason and accured's subsequent actions
bespesk abnormality which is not explained by the evidence. No quesilon of
his sanity was reised at the trial, and there is an implication in the
record of trial that neither the court, thne trial judge advocate nor defense
counsel were fully comnscious of the fact that the case involved such ques-
tion. Under such circumstances I recommend that before the sentence is
ordered exscuted a board be convened under the provisions of AR 600-500.

3. Y¥hen coples of the publishad order are forwmarded to this office
they should be accompanied by the foregoing holding and this indorsement.
The file number of the record in this office is ET0 2321. For convenience
of reference please place that mumber in breckets at the end of the order:

(Ex0 2320).

E. C. NoREIL,

Brigadier General, United States Army,
Assistant Judge Advocate General.

o]l »
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Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General

with the (325)
European Theater of Operations
AP0 871
BOARD OF REVIEW

UNITED STATES) SOUTHERN BASE SECTION, SERVICES OF
) SUPPLY, EUROPEAN THEATER OF CPERA-
Ve g TIONS.
Private JOHN F. WELBES, JR. ) Trial by G.C.M., convened at United
(37433433), Quartermaster ) States General Depot G-25, Ashchurch,
Depot Q-152. ) Gloucestershire, England, 24 April
) 1944. Sentence: Dishonorable dis-
) charge, total forfeitures and con-
) finement at hard labor for 2l years.
) The United States Penitentiary,
) Lewi sburg, Pennsylvania.

HOIDING by the BOARD OF REVIEW
RITER, VAN BENSCHOTEN and SARGENT, Judge Advocates

1. The record of trial in the case of the soldier named above has been
examined by the Board of Review.

2. Accused was tried upon the following Cherge and Specification:

CHARGE: Violation of the 58th Article of War.

Specification: 1In that Private John F. Welbes,
Quartermaster Depot Q=152 did at Cheltenham,
Gloucestershire, England, on or about 11 Oct-
ober 1943, desert the service of the United
States, and did remain absent in desertion
until he was apprehended at Cheltenham,
Gloucestershire, England, on or about 18 March

194k,

He pleaded guilty to the Specification except the words "“desert" and
*desertion", substituting therefor the words "absent himself without leave
from* and "without leave", of the excepted words,not guilty; to the Charge:
not guilty, but guilty of a violation of the 61lst Article of War. He was
found guilty as charged, all the members of the court present concurring(R26).
No evidence of previous convictions was introduced. He was sentenced to be

CONFIDENTIAL -
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dishonorably discharged the service, to forfeit all pay and allowances due
or to become due and to be confined at hard labor, at such place as the
reviewing authority may direct, for 24 years. The reviewing authority
approved the sentence, designated the United States Penitentiary, Lewisburg,
Pennsylvania, as the place of confinement and forwarded the record of trial
for action pursuant to the provisions of Article of War 50%.

3. Accused was absent from his organization for a period of 161
consecutive dayse During his absence he lived under assumed names with a
woman who masqueraded &s his wife; wore civilian clothing after discarding
his militery uniform; secured employment as a British civilian using a
fictitious name and a British identification card issued in the name of the
civilian whose name he assumed; traveled about the country but at all times
remained in the proximity of American militery installations and was finally
apprehended after his whereabouts had been discovered by a fellow soléier,
The evidence was more than sufficient to establish the fact that accused
absented himself from the military services with intent not to return thereto
(MCM, 1928, par.130a, p.l42; CM ETO 1737, Mosser and authorities cited therein).

L. (a) The admission in evidence of the written statement of Mrs.
Phyllis Wilkins to detective constable Slade of the British Constabulary (R22,
23) was error. The statement was hearsay of the most obvious character, In
spite of the fact that the defense counsel made no objection, the court on
its own motion, should have excluded ite However within the rule announced
in CM ETO 1201, Pheil and CiI ETO 1486, MacDonald and lacCrimmon, the admis-
sion in evidence of this hearsay evidence did not affect the ultimate result.
Accused's guilt of desertion was established by other competent evidence of
a most substantial nature. Consequently the error did not prejudice any
substantial rights of accused.

(v) The entries(admitted in evidence without objection) contained
in the "lost and found property book® of the Cheltenham police department
with respect to the finding of an Americaen military uniform and the deposite
ing of same on 15 January 194l with the department were clearly admissible
in evidence under authority of Act June 20, 1936, c.b40, sec.l; 49 Stat.1561;
28 U.S.C.A. Supp., sec.695; CM ETO 2185, Nelson; G ETO 2481, Newton.

(c) Although the record fails to show that before accused gave
his statement to the investigating officer (Pros.Ex.G; R2j) he received
either warning as to his right to remain silent and the penalty for self
inculpatory statements or that the 24th Article of War was read anmd
explained to him, the statement was nevertheless admissible in evidence.

*A confession not voluntarily made must be
re jected; but where the evidence neither
indicates the contrary nor suggests further
ipquiry as to the circumstances, a confes-
sion may be regarded as having bsen volun-
tarily made®(MCM, 1928, par.llla, p.l16).

-2 -
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5¢ The charge sheet shows that accused is 23 years of age and was
ipducted into military service on 15 September 1942 to serve for the dura-
tion of the war plus six months. He hed no prior service.

6. The court was legally constituted and had jurisdiction of the
person and offense, No errors injuriously affecting the substantial rights
of accused were committed during the triel. The Board of Review is of the
opinion that the record of trisl is legally sufficient to support the find-
ings of guilty and the sentence.

T« Confinement in a penitentiary is authorized for the offense of
desertion in time of war by Article of War 42. Inasmuch as the sentence
includes confinement at hard labor for 24 years, confinement in the United
States Pernitentiary, lewisburg, Pennsylvania is authorized (Cir.291 WD,
10 Nov 1943, sec.V, pars.3a and b).

Judge Advocate

‘@9&/‘/ ‘ —Judge Advocate

< nam—

-

udge Advocate

-3-

CONFIDLENTIAL o~ -
i 1A ":)‘ 3 L/i



CONFIDENTIAL

(328)
1st Ind.

WD, Branch Office TJAG., with ETOUSA, 22 JUN1944  7T0; Commanding
General, Southern Base Section, Communications Zone, European Theater of
Operations, APO 519, U.S. Army.

l. In the case of Private JOHN F. WELBES, JR. (37433433), Quarter-
master Depot Q-152, attention is invited to the foregoing holding by the
Board of Review that the record of trial is legally sufficient to support
the findings of guilty and the sentence, which holding is hereby approved.
Under the provisions of Article of War 50}, you now have authority to order
execution of the sentence.

2 This case shows the lack of proper instructions to the trial
judge advocate, The use of the statement of Mrs. Phyllis Wilkins is ine
excusable, There was no necessity for its introduction as the case
against accused was proved beyond a reasonable doubt by other legal evi=-
dence., Had the question of accused's intent been a narrow one, such error
would have been highly prejudicial and would probably have resulted in a
new trial for the accused, There was no preliminary exemination of the
investigating officer upon introduction of accused's statement (Pros.Ex.G)
as to warnings given accuseds While such evidence is not imperative it
hes been long recognized as the safest practice to establish at least prima
facie the voluntary nature of accused's statement when it amounts to a
confession of guilt, There are several instances of the edmission of evie
dence which was obviously hearsay., While in this case the irregularities
noted were non-prejudicial, attention is invited to same so that greater
care in the future will be exercised in the preparation and trial of other
cases,

3. TWhen copies of the published order are forwarded to this office
they should be accompanied by the foregoing holding and this indorsement.
The file number of the record in this office is ETO 2343. For convenience
of reference please place that number in brackets at the end of the order:

(ETO 2343). //%&&7

e Co MONEIL,
Brigadier General, United States Army,
Assistant Judge Advocate General.
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Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General
with the
European Theater of Operations
4PO 871
BOARD QF REVIEW
17 MAY 1944

ETO 2358

UNITED STATES
Ve

Private (formerly Corporal)

LIGNEL PHEIL (33052124)
Company "L", 115th Infantry

%
|

29TH INFANTRY DIVISION
(REHEARING) .

Trial by G.C.M., convened at APO 29,
UsSe Army, 24-27 April 1944, Sentence:
Dishonorable discharge, total for-
feitures and confinement at hard
labor, for three years. Federal,
Reformatory, Chillicothe, Chio.

HOIDING by the BOARD OF REVIEW
RITER, VAN BENSCHOTEN and SARGENT, Judge Advocates

1, The record of trial in the case of the soldier named above has
been examined by the Board of Review,

2. Accused was tried upon the following Charge,and Specification:

CHARGE I: Violation of the 93rd Article of War,

Specifications In that Corporal Lionel Pheil,
Company "L", 115th Infantry, did, at Bodmin,
England, on or about 1 December 1943, felo-
niously take, steal, and carry away a pocket-
book and & 37, British currency, value about
$150,00, the property of Corporal George W.

Waxrd,.

He pleaded not guilty to and was found guilty of the Charge and Specifica-
tion.. No evidence of previous convictions was Introduced, He was
sentenced to be dishonorably discharged the service, to forfeit all pay and
allowances due or to become due and to be confined at hard labor for three
years at such place as the reviewing authority may direct., The reviewing
authority approved the sentence, designated the Federal Reformatory,
Chillicothe, Chio, as the place of confinement and forwarded the record

of trial for action under Article of War 50%.

- l—

CONFIDENTIAL 2 35 gz



(330) CONFIDENTIAL

3, The instant trial of accused was a rehearing conducted after his
former conviction for the same offense had been set aside by the Board of
Review and the Assistant Judge Advocate General in charge of the Branch
Office of The Judge Advocate General with the European Theater of Opera-
tions, for the reason that the admission in evidence of certain alleged
confessions of accused was considdred prejudicial to his substantial rights
(CM ETO 1201, Pheil), Reference is made to the holding of the Board of
Review upon review of the first trial for a statement of the facts, The re-
hearing was conducted before a court composed of officers not members of the court
which first heard the case (AW 503%; MCM, 1928, par.89, p.80). The sentence
imposed at the first trial was dishonorable discharge, total forfeitures and
confinement at hard labor for five years. Inasmuch as the sentence at the
rehearing includes confinement for three years only, the limitations of
Article of War 504 (MCM, 1928, p.215; par.87b, p.73$ with respect to sen-
tences were observed,

L+ At the rehearing no attempt was made to introduce in evidence
accused!s confessions which had been condemned upon appellate review of
the first trial, The prosecution clearly established the fact that English
currency in the total amount of & 37 was stolen from Ward under circumstances
and conditions which implicated accused, There was presented other competent
substantial evidence which sustains the court's conclusion that accused was
the thief (CM ETO 885, Van Horn; CM ETO 1671, Matthews). Insofar as the
defensel!s evidence, including accused!s own testimony, conflicted with that
of the prosecution, an issue of fact argse which it was the duty of the court
to resolve and its finding will not be disturbed upon appellate review (CM
ETO 132, Kelly and Hyde; CM ETO 397, Shaffer; CM ETO 1191, Acosta; CM ETO
1786, Hambright). All of the elements of the crime of larceny were proved
(cM ETO 875, Fazio; CM ETO 885, Van Horn; CM ETO 952, Mosser; CM ETQ 1327,
Urie; CM ETO 1415, Cochran; CM ETO 1734, Jones and Mundy). The court was
authorized to take judiecial notice that the exchange value of an English
pound was $4.035 (CM ETO 952, Mosser).

5« The charge sheet shows that accused is 25 years of age. He was
inducted on 1 May 1941 at Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, His period of service
is governed by Service Extension Act of 1941. He had no prior service.

6. The court was legally constituted and had jurisdiction of the person
and offense. No errors injuriously affecting the substantial rights of the
accused were committed during the trial, The Board of Review is of the opin-
ion that the record is legally sufficient to support the findings of guilty
and the sentence,

7. Confinement In a penitentiary is authorized for larceny of $50,00
or more (AW 42; 18 USC 466). As accused is under 31 years of age and his
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sentence is under ten years, the designation of the Federal Reformatory,
Chillicothe, Ohio as the place of confinement is authorized (Cir. 291, WD,

10 Nov 1943, sec.V, par.3a).
%‘i ‘ 2: %_\ Judge Advocate
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(332) | 1st Ind.

WD, Branch Office TJAG., with ETOUSA. 17 MAY 1944 TO: Commanding
General, 29th Infantry Division, APO 29, U.,S.Army.

1, In the case of Private (formerly Corporal) LIONEL PHEIL (33052124),
Company "I, 115th Infantry, attention is lnvited to the foregoing holding
by the Board of Review that the record of trial is legally sufficient to
support the findings of gullty and the sentence. I concur in said holding,

2s Vlhen copies of the published order are forwarded to this office,
they should be accompanied by the foregoing holding and this indorsement.
The file number of the record in this office is ETO 2358;  For convenience
of reference please place that number in brackets at the end of the order:

(ETO 2358)..
///%”7
/ L/ C. McNEIL,

Brigadier General, United States Army,
Assistant Judge Advocate General,

.
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Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General
with the
European Theater of Operations
APO 871 '

BOARD OF REVIEW ~
ETO 2368 7 AUG 1944

UNITED STATES 9TH INFANTRY DIVISION

Ve
Stacey, Hampshire, England, 27
Private JACK LYBRAND (7004325),
Service and Ammnition Battery,
34th Field Artillery Battalion
(formerly of Company E, 47th

forfeitures and confinement at

Disciplinary Treining Center,

LWL N N W W N W A L g

HOIDING by the BOARD OF REVIEW
RITER, SARGENT and STEVENS, Judge Advocates

le The record of trial in the case of the soldier named above
has been examined in the Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General
with the European Theater of Operations and there found legelly ine
sufficient to support the findings in part. The record has now been
examined by the Board of Review which submits this, its holding, to
the Asgsistant Judge Advocate General in charge of said Branch Office.

2, Accused was tried upon ths following charges and specifica=
tions: :

CHARGE It Violation of the 6lst Article of War.

Specification: In that Private Jack (NMI) Lybrand,
Company E, 47th Infantry, did, without proper
leave, absent himself from his organization at
or near Termini Imerese, Sicily, fram about
0600, 31 October 1943, to about 0930, 3 Noveme
ber 1943.

(333)

Triael by GCM, convened at Barton

March 194)js Sentence: Dishonor=-
able discharge (suspended), total

hard labor for ten years. 2912th

Shepton Mallet. Somerset, England.

2368
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CHARGE II: Violation of the 69th Article of War.

Specification: In that * * * having been duly
placed in arrest of quarters et Company E,
47th Infantry on or about 3 November 1943,
did, at Termini Imerese, Sicily, on or about
3 November 1943, break his said arrest before
he was set at liberty by proper emthority.

CHARGE III: Violation of the 58th Article of War,

Specification: In that ®* ®* #* did, near Termini
Imerese, Sicily, on or about 3 November 1943,
desert the service of the United States, by &b-
senting himself without proper leave from his
orgenization, with intent to avoid hazardous
duty, to wit: "Movement overseas®, and did re-
main gbsent in desertion until he returned to
his organization near Palermo, Sicily, on or
about 7 November 1943.

ADDITIONAL CHARGE: Violation of the 65th Article of War,

Specification: In that Privete Jack (MMI) Lybrand, Ser-
vice and Armunition Battery, 34th Field Artillery
Battalion, APO #9 (formerly Company 'E*, 47th Ine
fantry) having received a lawful order from Sergeant
William M. Yelton, Service & Ammnition Battery,
34th Field Artillery Battalion, APO /9, a noncome
missioned officer who was then in the execution
of his office, to get out of bed and stand reveille,
did et Camp "A", Barton Stacey, England, on or about
February 4, 1944, willfully disobey the sams,

He pleaded not guilty and, twoethirds of the members of the court
present when the vote was taken concurring, was found guilty of all
" charges and specifications, Evidence was introduced of two previous -
convictions by specisl courtsemartieal: one for being found loiter-
ing on post while on guard, stated to be in violation of Article of
War 86, and one for breaking arrest in violation of Article of War
69. Two-thirds of the members of the court present when the vote
was taken concurring, he was sentenced to be dishonorably discharged
the service, to forfeit all pay and asllowancées due or to become due
and to be confined at hard labor, at such place as the reviewing
authority may direct, for ten years. The reviewing authority epe
proved the sentence and ordered it executed but suspended the ex-
ecution of that portion thereof adjudging dishonorable discharge
until the soldier's release from confinement, and designated the
2912th Disciplinary Tresining Center, Shepton Mallet, Somerset,
England, a8 the place of confinement. The result of trisl was
promlgated in General CourteMartial Orders No. 110, Hesdquarters

9th Infantry Division, APO 9, dated 26 April 1944,

- 2 -
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3. (a) The evidence for the prosecution with respect to Charges
I, II and III and thelir respective specifications was as follows:
Toward the end of October 1943, accused®s organization, then Company
E, 47th Infentry, was bivouacked near Termini Imerese, Sicily (R6=7).
The members of the company *had just come out of the Division field
exercises and were doing training and getting equipment prior to our
embarkation overseas® (R8)s On or ebout 27 or 28 October, pursuant
to instructions from the regimental commander, a formation of Come
pany E was held, at which its msnmbers were told that preparations
were being mede to move overseas and that any man absenting himself
without leave at that time would be classified as a deserter (R9).
At this time all passes commenced at noon, the formation was held
in the morning, the attendance of personnel of all platoons was ree
quired and checked and accused was not reported absent (RlO-1l),
That the compeny at that time was preparing to move to a staging
area near Palermo preparatory to movement to England was a matter
of common krowledge or generasl information, or at least general rumor,
among the members of the company (R13,16), although it was doubtful
whether they knew definitely where they were going (Rlh)e It was,
howsver, common knowledge throughout both the company and the regi-
ment that there would shortly be a movement oyerseas. "Sometime
prior to the time we had left our bivouac, we received notice that
we would move into our winter bivouec area® (R16-17). ’

On 31 October 1943, while the company was bivouacked near
Termini Imerese, as above stated, accused was reported absent withe
out leave from reveille formation (R7,9,13; Pros.Ex.l). He had no
permission to be absent from the company (R7)e About 9130 a.m.,
on 3 November his absence was terminated when military police of the
9th Division returned him to the company (R7,9; Pros.Ex.l).

His company commander thereupon placed accussed in arrest of
quarters, fixing as the limits of the arrest his tent, the latrine
and mess, and directed him to report to the charge of quarters
*every hour on the half hour® (R7,10; Pros.Ex.l)s Accused failed
to report as directed at 1930 hours on 3 November. A search by the
charge of quarters of the entire company area failed to reveal ace
cused's presence (R7), and he was again reported absent without
leave (R9,13; Pros.Ex.l). He had not been released from his arrest
prior to this absence (R9,13)e Sometime after midnight on the night
of 6«7 November accused was agaln returned to his organization by
military police, whereupon he was immediately placed under armed
guard (R7,8,12,14; Pros.Ex.1).

On 3 November it waes a matter of commeon knowledge among the
members of the company that they were preparing for movement over-
seas (R10). Between 3 and 7 November the company moved from its
semi-permanent bivouac area (near Termini Imerese) into Staging
Area Number 3 at Palermo, where accused was reéturned on 7 November,
and was there preparing for overseas movementes "The move / to the
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staging area/ was not hazardous duty", according to the testimony of
the executive officer of Compeny E (R11,13,16), On 7 November, just
prior to embarking for England, the company was alerted, amd line
companies (of which Company E was one) were almost completely combat
equipped, with such items as personal weapons and vehicles (Rl4~l5),
The executive officer testified that he personally did not think
that they were going directly into combat - "generally, the rumor
was that we were golng to Bngland" (R16).

On 7 November, after accused was returned to his organization,
his company commander, in the presence of the executive officer,

"asked him why he left and he claimed that he was fed
up and had no intention of coming back until after the
9th Division had left Sicily. He said that he wanted
to get into some artillery outfit in Italy* (R3).

Asked by the company commander why he came back, accused replieds

" %'T wouldn't have come back until after the 9th
Division left Sicily if the M‘Ps hedn't caught
met" (Rl6).

After accused made the statement the compa.ny commnder explained to
him his rights *under the Articles of War, that enything he might say
could be used against him", Accused's remarks. however, were volune
tary, according to the company commander's. testimony (R8)s The court
overruled .a motion by the defense that- accused's remark to his come
pany commander. ﬁrst above quoted. _be str:lcken frorm the record (R8),

On 9 November the company proceeﬁed by water from Palermo
to Liverpool, England, without being’ subjected to enemy attack, Ace
cused was present under guard with the company during the Journey
(R11,14)s Asked upon redirect examination 'whether such an overseas
movement would be considered as hazardoua. the company commander
testified: :

*I don't confess to-be an authority as to
whether or not it is hazardous, but it
does involve the chance of being torpedoed
or hit by a bomb* (Rll).

The following colloquy occurred between the prosecution and the ex-
ecutive officer upon the direct exgminatiqn of the latter:

Q. Would the trip from Palermo to England be
considered hazardous?

A, * * & Tdon' believe at the time that we
left that we knew where we were going.
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"Qes Would the ordinery overseas movement be
considered hazardous?

A, YeS..eif you didn't kmow where you were go=
ing.

Q. Then, at the time you were preparing for a
movement overseas, while still in Sieily,
would that prospective movement he con-
sidered dengerous?

A, I think it would be." (K14).

(b) The evidence for the prosecution material to the Ad-
ditional Charge and its Specification was as follows:

On the morning of 4 February 194l Sergeent William M. Yelton,
ammnition sergeant of accused's organization, then Service and Am-
munition Battery, 34th Field Artillery Battalion, Camp A, Barton
Stacey, Hampshire, England, whose duty it was to awaken certain men
in the organization, including accused, for reveille, having been ine
formed by the first sergeant "that it was time for reveille®, directed
accused "{o get up" and stated "that it was time to stand reveille®,
to which accused replied, "'All right'", but failed to arise. Yelton
egain directed him "to get up" and received the same reply, followed
by continued noncompliances A third time he ordered accused "to get
up", saying "it was time to stand reveille®, whereupon accused raised
up in bed end said, "'Get away from here and leave me alone'" (Rl7=
18). Accused wes not present at reveille formation but was up and
dressed when Yelton returned from reveille (R17 ,18,20)e Yelton
awoke accused every morning (R19).

e No evidence was introduced on behalf of the defense. Accused's
rights were explained to him and he elected to remain silent (R21).

5 (a) The findings of guilty of the Additional Charge and its
Specification are supported by substantial evidence that accused at
the time and place alleged willfully disobeyed a lawful order, ree
peated severel times, by Sergeant Yelton, a noncommissioned officer,
wito was then in the execution of his office, and known to be such by
accused, to "get up® and stand reveille, That the order to "“get up"
was given immediately prior to reveille indicates that time was of
its essence and immediate compliance was required. Any variance bew
tween the words of the order alleged: "to gel out of bed epnd stand
reveille" and those of the order proved: "to get up" *it was time to
stand reveille" was technical and not substantial. Under the circume
stences, the order would have been meaningless unless intended and
understood, as it must have been, as a direction not only "to get
up" but also "stand reveille". ‘
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Article of War 65

*has the same general objects with respect to
* * ®» noncommissioned officers as A.W, * & *
64 / has/ ®* » * with respect to commiasioned
officers, namely, to insure obedience to their
lawful orders * % *, ,
* % % the term 'order' is used in the
. same Sense as 'commend' in A.W. 64" (MCM 1928,

par.135a, pe149).

*The form of an order is immaterial, as is the
method by which it is transmitted to the ace
cused, but the commnication must amount to
an order" (MM, 1928, par.l34b, p.l149).

The reprehensible character of accused's conduct in reacting
to Yelton's lawful exercise of authority by repeated defiant refusals
to obey his order and by demending that Yelton "'Get away from here
end leave me alone'", distingulshes accused's offense from the sime
ple one of "nonperformance by a subordinate® of a "mere routine
duty, punishable under Article of War 96 (MM, 1928, par.l34b, pel49;
Winthrop's Military Law & Precedents « Reprint = p«573)e. The violae
tion of Article of War 65 was clearly established (CM ETO 1725,

Warner).

(b) Accused's absence without leave from his organization
at the place and for the period elleged in Charge I and its Specifica~
tion (31 October =~ 3 November 1943) is clearly established by the evi-
dence, Likewise, his guilt of breaking arrest of quarters on 3 Noveme

ber 1943, under the circumstances alleged in Charge II end its
Specification, is clearly established (MCM, 1928, par.l139a, pp.l53-
154; CM ETO 817, Yount ).

(c¢c) Accused is charged in Charge III and its Specification
with absenting himself without leave from his organization with ine
tent to avoid hazardous duty, to wit: "Movement overseas" (AW 28 and
58)s The competent evidence shows that on 3 November 1943 accused,
in breaking his arrest, as asbove stated, absented himself without
leave from his organization, then stationed at Termini Imerese, Sicily,
and remeined absent without leave until he was returned on 7 November
to his organization, which had at that time moved to a staging area
at or near Palermo, Sicily.

Under Article of War 28,

*Any person subject to military law who
quits his organization or place of duty
with the intent to avoid hazardous duty
or to shirk important service shall be
deemed a deserter,"
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Absence without leave having been established, the sole question
for determination is whether the record contains substantisl evie
dence of each of the three other elements of the offense charged,
namelys

(1) that accused's unit "was under orders or
enticipated orders involving * * * hazardous
duty" (MCM, 1921, par.409, pe3il);

(2) that notice of such orders and of the im-
minent hazardous duty was actually brought
home to accused; and

(3) that at the time he absented himself from
his command he entertained the specific
intent to avoid hazardous duty (CM ETO
2396, Pennington; QM. ETO 2432, Durie; CM
ETO 2473, Cantwell; CM ETO 2481, Newton).

‘(1) The evidence leaves no doubt that accused's unit on 3
November was under orders or anticipated orders involving a movement
overseas,

The Board of Review (sitting in Washington) has held that
*embarkation for duty beyond the continental limits of the United
States" is "important service® end that absenting oneself without
leave with intent to shirk the duty of such embarkation is therefore
desertion under Articles of War 28 and 58 (CM 223300, Manashian
(1942), 13 B.R. 363,365). (See also CM 227459, Hicklund (1943),

15 B.R. 299,301.)

The vital question here presented is whether such movement
was "hazardous duty"within the meaning of Article of War 28, The
only evidence in the record bearing upon the nature of the conteme
plated movement overseas was that it was common knowledge or there
were rumors that the movement would be io a winter bivouac area in
Englend; that line companies were almost completely combat equipped;
and the opinions of company officers that the trip would "involve the
chence of being torpedoed or hit by a bomb" and that any overseas
movement would be hazardous "if you didn't know where you were going®.
The heart of the case sgainst accused is the question whether the
court was justified in teking judicial notice that the journey by
water from Palermo, Sicily, to Liverpool, England, contempleted
toward the end of October and effected about 9 November 1943, was
"hazardous duty". Generally, the principle of judicial notice ep=-
plies to "matters which are so notorious in common knowledge of all
intelligent persons that a requirement of evidencEl$EQR be super-
fluous" (MCM, 1921, par.289,1, pe¢231). ”
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The word "hazardous® is defined as

*Exposed to or involving danger; perilous; risky"
(Black's Law Dictionary, 3rd Ed., p«879);

and
*involving hazard or special danger® (1 Bouvier's
Law Dictionary, 3rd Rev., p.1427). (See also 19
W, amd P, Perm., pp.l111=112; Ibid., Supp.PP.19=22).

"The ‘hazardous duty' #®* may include such service

as embarkation for foreign duty or duty beyond the
continental limits of the United States® (MCM,

1928, par.130a,pp.142-143). (Underscoring supplied).

*All navigation is perilous * ® &, Because we cannot
locate the 'peril', it does not follow there was _
none" (Moores ve Louisville Underwriters (CCWD,Tenn.),
14 Fed. 226,234).

The elements of hazard involved in a waretime journey on
open sea waters in an active theater of operations ere obvious.
Among them are danger of enemy submerine action (Cf: Queen Ins. Co.
of Americe v, Globe & Rutgers Fire Ins. Co. (DCSD, NY, 1922), 278
Fed,770,778, affirmed, 282 Fed. 976, affirmed, 263 U.S. 487, 68 L.Ed.
402), and dangers consequent upon "removal for belligerent purposes
of all or any aids to navigation"; "such act ®* * ® restores the
dangers of the seas to their normal® (Muller v. Globe & Rutgers Fire
Ins. Co. (CCA 23 Cir.1917), 246 Fed. 759,762). The danger of bome
bardment by enemy aircraft is ever present. Of such "perils of the
deep" and of the air the court was fully warrented.in taking judicial
notice; the Board of Review may likewise take judicial notice there-
of (CM ETO 1538, Rhodes, p.ll, end euthorities therein cited).

*Overseas movements being secret, the precise
nature and place of the duties performed * * »
aefter embarkation were not matters of common
knowledge of which the court could properly
take judicial motice. The court did, of course, -
judicially know that the United States is at war
and that embarkation might result in combat or
might involve other hazardous duties" (CM
228),00, McElroy (1942), 16 B.R. 161,164, Bull,
JAG, Feb,1943, Voll.II, No.2, sec.395 (30), pebl)
(Underscoring supplied).

In CM ETO 105, T, Fowler, the evidence showed that accused
absented himself without leave from his orgenization at Camp Kilmer,
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New Jersey, at a time when he knew that it was about to embark for
an overseas destination. The Board of Review there held:

*There was * * * sufficient evidence before the
court from which it could properly infer an in=
tention to shirk hazardous duty".

The conclusion that the contemplated journey from Sicily to
England was hazardous duty is not at variance with the opinion in CM
ETO 455, Nigg, wherein the Board of Review stated:

"the record wholly feils_to disclose whether it
Jaccused's organization/ embarked for service
without the United Kingdom or simply moved to
a new cemp or station within the British Isles,
The record is totally silent as to the nature
of the duty accused's organization was to per-
form; hence there is a failure of proof on a
vital element of the case',

In the instent case the evidence leaves no doubt "as to the nature of

the duty accused's organization was to perform": overseas movement on
open sea waters in an active theater of operations. It need not be
legally presumed that such duty was hazardous because 2%hbove demonstrated.
such fact was a proper subject of judicial notice.

(2) That accused had notice of the orders and of the irminent
hazardous duty involved therein at the time in question is established
by evidence of his presence at the company formation at which its meme
bers were informed of en impending movement overseas, by evidence of
common knowledge of such a movement throughout the company and by ac-
cused's statement to his commanding officer that he “had no intention
of coming back until after the 9th Division hed left Sicily" and that
he "wouldn't have come back until after the 9th Division left Sicily
if the MPs badn't caught® him., Although his commanding officer failed
to warn accused as to his rights under Article of Wer 24 until after
he made the statement, such officer testified that accused's remarks
were voluntary and the record discloses no reason to doubt the truth
of this testimonye. Accordingly, even assuming that the remarks
emounted to a confession of guilt, evidence thereof was properly ad-
mitted (MCM, 1928, par.llha, p.ll6; CM ETO 1057, Redmond; CM ETO 1663,
Ison; and authorities therein cited).

(3) Accused's remarks, above referred to, constituted strong
evidence of his specific intent to avoid hazardous duty, yiz: the
overseas movement of his unit. Such evidence is corroborated by the
evidence, above referred to, that he had absented himself without
leave on 31 October and that, after having been returned to his ore
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ganization by military police on 3 November and placed in arrest of
quarters, he broke his arrest on the same day and once more abe
sented himself without leave, remesining absent until again returned
by military police to his organization on 7 November, The evidence
that accused actually sailed with his organization lacks the sig=
nificance with respect to his intent that it would otherwise have
in his favor (CFs CM ETO 2396, Pennington; CM ETO 2432, Durie; CM
ETO 2481, Newton), because of evidence that the embarkation was un-
intended end involuntary on his part.

The evidence establishes all theelements of the offense
charged end is therefore held by the Board of Review to be legally
‘sufficient to support the findings of guilty of Charge III and its
Specification.

6. The charge sheets show that accused is 22 years of age end
enlisted at Atlanta, Georgia, 28 November 1939 to serve three years.
He had no prior service.

7« The court was legally constituted end had jurisdiction of the
person and offenses, No errors injuriously affecting the substantial
rights of accused were committed during the triele The Board of Re=-
view is of the opinion that the record of trial is legally sufficient
to support the findings of guilty and the sentence.

8« The penalty for desertion committed in time of war is death
or such other punishment as the court-martial may direct (AW 58).
The designation of the 2912th Disciplinary Training Center, Shepton
Mallet, Somerset, England, as the place of confinement is euthorized
(Ltr., Hq. ETOUSA, 11 May 1944, AG 252 OPGA, par.2a; Cir.73, Hge.
ETOUSA, 22 Jun 1944, par.is, b(1).

bk
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Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General

with the

European Theater of Operations
AP0 871

BQARD OF REVIEW

UNITED STATES FIRST UNITED STATES ARMY

Ve Trial by G.C.M., convened at Head-
quarters, First United States Army,
APO 230, 18 April 1944. Sentence:
Dishonorable discharge, total for-
feitures and confinement at hard
labor for five years, Federal
Reformatory, Chillicothe, Ohio.

Private PAUL F. RAPPOLD
(35097067), 3703rd Quarter-

master Truck Company.

et St S s v St N e N

HOLDING by the BCARD COF REVIEW
RITER, VAN BENSCHOTEN and SARGENT, Judge Advocates

1. The record of trial in the case of the soldier named above has been
examined by the Board of Review.

2., Accused was tried upon the following Charge and Specification:

CHARGE: Violation of the 93rd Article of War,

Specification: In that Private Paul F. Rappold,
3703rd Quartermaster Truck Company did, at
Reservoir Camp, Gloucester, Gloucestershire,
England, on or about 17 March 1944, commit
the crime of sodomy, by feloniously and
against the order of nature having carnal
connection per os with Ronald Groves, a
minor of tender years,

He pleaded guilty to and was found gullty of the Charge and Specification,

No evidence of previous convictions was introduced. He was sentenced to be
dishonorably discharged the service, to forfeit all pay and allowances due

or to become dus and to be confined at hard labor for five years at such

place as the reviewing authority may direct, The reviewing authority approved
the sentence, designated the Federal Reformatory, Chillicothe, Ohio, as the
place of confinement and forwarded the record of trial for action pursuant to
the provisions of Article of War 503,

-1-
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3. The pleac of guilty were fully supported by the evidence (CHI
192609, Hulme; Cl LTO 24, ihite; CM ETO 339, Gage; CM ETO 612, Suckows
CM ETO 1743, Penson)

L. The charge sheet shows that accused is 20 years of age, and that
he was induected 6 lfarch 1943 for the duration of the war plus six months,
He had no pricr service.

5« The court was legally constituted and had jurisdiction of the per-
son and offense, No errors injuriously affecting the substantial rights of
accused were cormitted during the trial., The Board of Review is of the
opinion that the record of trial is legally sufficient to support the find-
ings of guilty and the sentence,

6. Confinement in a penitentlary as punishment for the crime of sodomy
is authorized (CM 187221, Sumrall; CM 171311, Stearns; District of Columbia

Code, secs. 24~401 (6:.01), 22-10 22-107 (6:7)). The place of confinement is
authorized (Cir 291, WD, 10 Nov 1943, sec.V, par.3a).

¢4’%’ %‘ Judge Advocate
W*‘Cﬂ“; Judge Advocate

Judge Advocate
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WD, Branch Office TJAG., with ETOUSA. 20 MAY 1044 T0: Commanding
General, Headquarters First United States Army, APO 230, U.S.Army.

1. In the case of Private PAUL F. RAPPOLD (35097067), 3703rd
Quartermaster Truck Company, attention 1is invited to the foregoing holding
by the Board of Review that the record of trial is legally sufficient to
support the findings of guilty and the sentence, which holding is hereby ap-
proved, Under the provisions of Article of War 504, you now have authority
to order executlion of the sentence.

2. [Then copies of the published order are forwarded to this office,
they should be accompanied by the foregoing holding and this indorsement.
The file number of the record in this office 1s ETO 2380, For convenience
of reference please place that number In brackets at the end of the order:

(270 2380).
/%/@

E, C. McNEIL,
Brigadler General, United States Army,
Assistant Judge Advocate General,
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Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General (347)

with the
European Theater of Operations
APO 871

BOARD OF REVIEW 23 MAY 1944

ETO 2390

UNITED STATES 29TH INFANTIRY DIVISION.

)
V. ) Trial by G.C.M., convened at APO
) 29, U.S. Amy, 9 May 19440
Private RUSSEL R, MOCK ) ~ Sentence: Dishonorable discharge,
(33318187), Company L, ' total forfeitures and confinement
115th Infantry. at hard labor for five years, The
Federal Reformatory, Chillicothe,
OhiOQ

HOLDING by the BOARD OF REVIEW
RITER, VAN BENSCHOTEN and SARGENT, Judge Advocates

l. The record of trial in the case of the soldier named above has
been examined by the Board of Review,

2. Accused was tried upon the following Charge and Specification:

CHARGE: Violation of the 93rd Article of War.

Specificatlon: In that Private RUSSEL R. MOCK,
Company "L", 115th Infantry, did, at Fort -
Tregantle, Cornwall, England, on or about
23 April 1944, feloniously take, steal and
carry away Sixty-One Dollars ($61,00) in
American money and One (1) Pound in English
‘money (value of about Four Dollars ($4.00)
total value about Sixty-Five Dollars *($65,00),
the property of Private JOHN WILSON.

He pleaded not guilty to nnd was found guilty of the Charge and Specifica-
tion, Evidence was introduced of two previous convictlons by special court-
martial for larceny of Government property and for absence without leave
for seven days, in violation of Articles of War 93 and 61 respectively. He
was sentenced to be dishonorably discharged the service, to forfeit all
pay and allowances due or to become due and to be confined at hard lsbor
for five years at such place as the reviewing authority may direct, The
reviewing authority approved the sentence, designated the Federal Re-
formatory, Chillicothe, Ohio, as the place of confinement and forwarded
the regérd of trial for action pursuant to the provisions of Article of
War 503,
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3. The charge sheet shows that accused is 28 years of age and that
he was inducted at Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, 17 June 1942, He had no
prior service,

Le The court was legally constituted and had jurisdiction of” the
person and offense, No errors injuriously affecting the substantial rights
of accused were committed during the trial, The Board of Review is of the
opinion that the record of trial is legally sufficient to support the find-
ings of guilty and the sentence,

5« GConfinement in a penitentlary is authorized for the offense of
larceny of $50 or morec by AW 42 and Sec, 287 Federal Criminal Code (18 U.S.C.
466). As accused is under 31 years of age and the Sentence is not more than
ten years the designation of the Federal Reformatory, Chillicothe, Ohio, is
authorized (Cir,291, WD, 10 Nov 1943, sec.V, par.3a).

m % Judge. Advocate

/ )

! Judge Advocate
@ %? Judge Advocate
' X/
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lst Ind,

WD, Branch Office TJAG., with ETOUSA, o MAY 1844 TO: Commanding
General, 29th Infantry Division, APO 29, U.S. Army.

-1, In the case of Private RUSSEL R. MOCK (33318187), Company L,
115th Infantry, attention is invited to the foregoing holding of the Board
of Review that the record of trial is legally sufficient to support the
findings and the sentence, which holding is hereby approved,

2 When coples of the published order are forwsrded to this office,
they should be accompanied by the foregoing holding and this indorsement.
The file number of the record in this office is ETO 2390, For convenience
of reference please place that number in brackets at the end of the order::
(ETO 2390),

Brigadier General, United States Army,
Agsistant Judge Advocate Gensral,
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Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General

with the
European Theater of Operations
APO 871 (351)

BOARD OF REVIEW

27 JUN1944

ETO 2396

UKNITED STATES 2D INFANTRY DIVISION.

Ve Trial by G.C.M., convened at Island
Farm, Wales, 10,13-14 May 194k.
Sentencet Dishonorable discharge
(suspended), total forfeitures and
confinement at hard labor for 35
years, The 2912th Disciplinary
Training Center, Shepton llallet,
Somersetshire, Englande.

Private CLARENCE FENNINGION

(35264047), Company G, 9th
Infantry.

OPINICN by the BOARD OF REVIEW
RITER, VAN DERSCHOTEN and SARGZNT, Judge Advocates

1. The record of trial in the case of the soldier named above has
been examined in the Eranch Office of The Judge Advocate General with the
European Theater of Operations anmd there found legally insufficient to
support the findings in part. The record has now been examined by the
Board of Review, and the Board submits this, its opinion, to the Assistant
Judge Advocate General in charge of said Branch Office.

2. Accused was tried upon the following Charge and Specification:

CIIARGE I: Violation of the 58th Article of War.

Specification: In that Private Clarence Pennington,
Company G, ¢th Infantry, did, at Island Farm
Camp, County Glamorgan, liales, on or about 27
April 19)L, desert the service of the United
States by quitting and absenting himself with-
out proper lcave from his organization and
place of duty, with intent to avoid hazardous
duty and shirk important service, to Wit:
participation in the oversea invasion of the
enemy occupied Buropean continent, and did
remain absent in desertion until he was appre-
hended at Iiridgend, County Glamorgan, Wales,
on or about 29 April 19lLL.

He pleaded not guilty to and was found guilty of the Charge and Specification.

.Lx[rN]ience wacEl[rN}ITEA f one previows conviction by special court-martial
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for breach of restriction and absence without leave for seven days in
violation of the 96th and 6lst Articles of War. He was sentenced to be
shot to death with musketry. On 13 May 1944 the court at the direction
of the reviewing authority, reconvened to reconsider the sentence, It
adhered to the same., On 14 May 19lJ; the court again reconvened at the
*direction of the reviewing authority to give further consideration to the
sentence. It revoked its former sentence and sentenced the accused to
be dishonorably discherged the service, to forfeit all pey and allowances
due or to become due, and to be confined at hard labor at such place as
the reviewing authority may direct for the term of his natural life. The
reviewing authority approved the sentence, but reduced the period of con-
finement to 35 years, suspended the execution of that portion of the sen-
tence ad judging dishonorable discharge until the soldier's release from
confinement and designated the 2912th Disciplinery Training Center,
Shepton Mallet, Somersetshire, E¥ngland as the place of confinement.

The proceedings were published in General Court-Martial Orders
No,20, Headquarters 2@ Infantry Division, 15 May 194l.

3. The competent evidence for the prosecution showsd thats

Accused, a member of Company G, 9th Infantry, was present at a
formation of the company on 26 April 194l in camp in Wales when a letter
dated 21 April 1944, from Headquarters, V Corps, relating to desertion was
read and explained (R8), This letter was admitted in evidence (R8, Pros.
Ex.B)e. The pertinent part thereof is as follows:

*] » » » g, Desertion Facts,

(1) Any person who ?deserts® or'attempts.
to desert' the service of the United
States in time of war shall suffer
'‘death' or such other punishment as a
court-mertial may direct. (AW 58)

(2) Any person who ‘advises' or ‘'persuades’
or knowingly assists another to desert
the service of the United States in
time of war shall suffer death or such
other punishment as a court-martial may
directe. (AW 59 )

(3) Any person who quits his organization
or place of duty 'with intent to avoid
hazardous duty' or 'to shirk important
service' shall be deemed a deserter. (AW 28)

(4) For desertion committed in time of war
there is no limit to the time when the
deserter may be brought to trial. (AW 39)

- 2 -
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Confinement in a United Stetes Peniten-
tiary is authorized for desertion committed
in time of war. (A% ,42)

Anyone dishonorably discherged or dismissed
for deserting the militery service of the
United States in time of war forfeits his
United States citizenship. (Section 40lg,
Nationality Act of 1940, as amended by
Public Law 221, 20 January 1944)

Each and every one of you is hereby notified:

That your organization is now under orders
to participate in the oversea invasion of
the enemy occupied European continent.

That your organization is now alerted for
this operation and that the operation is
imminente.

That this operation will be both hazardous
duty end important service within the mean-
ing of the provisions of A¥ 28 as above
stated.

That a careful morning report record will be
kept showing the fact of the presence of each
of you at this time and of the fact that the
foregoing informstion was revealed to you.

Thaet any absence without leave by any of you
from now on will be deemed desertion to avoid
this duty and will subject you to being tried
by general court-martial as a deserter.

That proof of your unauthorized absence
together with morning report proof of the fore-
going information being given you, in connec-
tion with further proof of the fact that your
organization is now under orders and alerted
for participation in the imminent oversea invwasion
operation against the enemy, will authorize a
court-martial to infer that your unauthorized
absence was with intent to avoid such duty

and, therefore to find you guilty of such
desertion.

Court-martial sentences adjudging, in such
desertion cases, along with dishonorable dis-
charge end total forfeitures either the death
penalty or confinement at hard labor for the

"0 2396
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natural term of life or for some definite
period of time up to fifty (50) yeers will
not be deemed inappropriate., Where death
is not adjudged it is contemplated that
confinement will be served by imprisonment
in a designated United States penitentiary."

During the examination of Ceptain Alonzo E. Baird, 9th Infantry,
commanding officer of accused, the following colloguy occurreds

"Qe Captain Baird, was your organization
alerted at that time--the time the letter
was read to your organization?

A. Yes, sir; it was.

PROSECUTION: At this time, I will ask the
court to take judicial notice of the fact
that the Division was under alert orders.
The letter itself is not available inas-
much as it is classified as top secret.

LAY MEMBER: Subject to objection by any
member of the court, I rule that judicial
notice will be taken of that fact"(R8,9).

On the morning of 27 April 1944 the accused was present with a
detail searching a wooded area for a missing soldier. Accused disappeared
end a search for him was instituted bui after a hunt of two hours he was not
discovered (R10). A certified extract copy of the morning report showing
the accused to be absent without leave as of that date was introduced in
evidence without objection (R7,Pros.Ex.4).

About 1930 hours, 29 April 1944 accused was apprehended near
Bridgend (not more than six miles from the camp of his organization) by a
British police sergeant who was searching for a soldier of his description
in connection with a charge of housebreaking. When the sergeant first saw
accused he was running awaye. The sergeant shouted and ran after him and
accused stoppeds The sergeant walked up to him and explained that he was
searching for a man of his description in connection with a charge of house=-
breaking. Accused said "that's quite right" and shortly thereafter, having
been informed that he was not obliged to make any statement, signed a state-
ment written by the sergeant (R12,Ex.C) to the effect that he was absent
without leave, that he decided to "treak away" two days previously while on
a detail searching for another "absentee", and that during the next day he
tried to get into a house through a window in a search for food and was in
the act of pulling jars out of a pantry window, when somecone inside shouted
and he ran away. He declared further in his statement,

"I didn't stesl anything at all. I was
looking for food but didn't find any."

At the time he was apprehended he was dressed in "green overalls" and
*needed & shave badly". Subsequently the police sergeant delivered him

-l -
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into the custody of the military authorities (R13).

Le The accused elected to remain silent and introduced no evidence.

5« The gravamen of the offense with which accused is charged is that
he absented himself without leave to avoid hazardous duty and shirk important
service (Articles of War 28 and 58). The burden was on the prosecution to
prove heyond reasonable doubt the four elements of the offense:

(a) that accused was absent without leave;

(b) that accused's unit "was under orders or
anticipated orders involving either (a)
hazardous duty or (b) some important ser-
vice" (MGM, 1921, par.409, p.344);

(c) that notice of such order was actually
brought home to accused and that he
received due and timely notice of probable
results of unauthorized absence of mili-
tary personnel at that time; and

(a) that at the time he absented himself from
his command he entertained the specific
intent to avoid hazardous duty or to shirk
important service (CM ETO 2432, Durie;

CM ETO 2473, Cantwell; CM ETO 2481, Newton).

The record is silent as to whether accused's unit, during his
absence, in compliance with orders to participate in the overseas invasion,
left its station, Island Farm Camp but it may be inferred from the record
that on the date of the trial, 10 May 194}, its station was in the same
locality as that of 27 April 194}«  Accused, therefore, did not during his
two days absence actuaelly miss any hazardous duty or important service, such
as occurred in G ETO 2473, Cantwell, At the trial accused remained silent
and offered no explanation of his unauthorized absence. Neither does his
statement to the police (Pros.Ex.C) set forth any reason for his absence.

6. The prosecution in the instant case attempted to meet the burden
of proving accused's specific intent to avoid hazardous duty or to shirk
important service by requesting the court to take judiciel notice of the
fact that the division,of which accused's unit was a component, was under
alert orders for overseas duty. The reason given by the prosecution for
requesting the court to take judicial notice of the existence of the alleged
alert order was that it was top secret and therefore could not be produced.

Facts which need not be proved because the court may recognize
‘their existence without proof are summarized in MCM, 1928, par.l25, p.134.
The matters therein enumerated are well known facts or are contained in
published documents., The only military orders included are general orders,
If the order to which the prosecution referred was so sec¢ret that it could
not be shown to the court it must necessarily follow that the court d4id not
know of the term or details of the order and therefore conld not tell whether

-5«
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or not it required hazardous duty by or imposed important service upon
accused. It was a contradiction of terms to ask the court to take judicial
notice of a fact that was so secret that the members of the court did not
know what the fact was. The theory and basis of judiciel notice is that
the fact sought to be proved is so well known that it has become common
knowledge and it is therefore not necessary to prove it. The principle
which prevented the court in the instant case from taking judicial notice of
the secret orders has received approvel by the Board of Review (sitting in
vashington) and the Judge Advocate Generals

*In the course of the trial * * %, the trial
judge advocate asked the court to take
judicial notice that the landing team was at
the time of the trial engaged in combat in
Africa. Held: Overseas movements being
secret, the precise nature and place of the
duties performed by the landing team after
embarkation were not matters of common know-
ledge of which the court could properly take
judicial notice"(CM 228400, McElroy (1942),
Bull JAG, Vol.II, No.2, Februery 1943, sec.
395(30), p.6l) (See also Qi ETO 455, Nigg)e

It, therefore, follows that the court was not authorlzed to teke judicial
notice of the so-called "secret order®,

7« For the purpose of this opinion the Board of Review will assume
that the prosecution successfully met the burden of proving the first three
elements of the offense alleged, (a), (b) and (c¢), (par.5,supra). The
question then remains for determination as to whether the prosecution sus-
tained the burden of proving the fourth element of the offense, viz that
accused entertained the specific intent when he absented himself to avoid
hazardous duty or to shirk important service.

"Accused's intent wes a fact which must be
proved as any other fact and for such pur-
pose evidence of relevant end material
circumstances is cogent and proper. From
such circumstances and reasonable and legit-
imate inferences therefrom, the intent may
be discovered., There must however, be in
the record of trial proof of such circum-
stances and herein lies the defect in the
prosecution's case, Proof that accused
went absent without leave when his tattery
was on an alert status after he received
notice that at some indefinite future time
it was intended that it should participate
in a continental European invasion, without
more, does not furnish the required probvative

-6 -
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basis from which may be inferred the ultimate
fact of intent - an element of equal quality
and necessity to sustain the charge of deser-
tion with that of unauthorized absence, the
alert and notice thereof to accused™ (CM ETO
2432, Durie ppe6-7).

(357)

"There remains for consideration the question
as to whether the prosecution proved the
fourth element of its case, to wit: that
accused at the time he absented himself on
2 May entertained either of the specific
intents to (a) avoid hazardous duty or (b)
shirk important service. The prosecution's
proof in this respect is based solely upon
argumentative inference and may be stated
thuss: inasmuch as accused's unit was under
orders and was alerted for hazardous duty and
important service, to wit, invasion service
and accused had received actual notice of the
status of his unit, and had then absented him-
self withiout authority for six days commencing
on the day following the giving of said notice,
there may be inferred from the foregoing facts
the epecific intents on the part of accused to
avoid hczardous duty or shirk important service.
The same proposition was presented in Cii TTO
2432, Durig" (ClI ETO 2481, Rewton p«8)e

The Doard of Review has heretofore rejected in both the Durie and
liewton cases the proposition that accused's specific intent may be inferred
from the faects, without more, that he was absent without leave after his
unit had been alerted for overseas service and he had received the warning
notice contained in the letter of 21 April 19l from Headquarters, V Corps.
It becomesnecessary to seek elsewhere in the record of trial for evidence of
accused's specific intent to avoid hazardcus duty or shirk iwmportant services

The additional facts appearing in the record of trial are simple
and fewe Accused while on a detail in a wooded area near his camp took
advantage of the opportunity to absent himself from his organization. He
was dressed in overalls and had mzade no preparation for the absence. All
of his clothing remaired in his barracks. ©On the day following his depar-
ture he attempted to steal some food from a house in a nearby town, and on
the next day was captured by the local police end returned to his organizationa
This evidence offered in support of the prosecution's contention that the
accused intended to avoid hazardous duty or shirk important service when he
absented himself from his organization has no velue for such purpose.
Conversely, the inference therefrom is that accused entertained no such pur-
pose, Its probative worth is less than the evidence contained in the Durie
and llewton cases,

-7 -
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The record is therefore found by the Board of Review to be
legally insufficient to support a finding of guilty of desertion but
legally sufficient to support a finding of absence without leave during
the period indicated,in violation of Article of Var 6l.

[ The charge sheet shows that accused is 27 years six months of
age and was inducted at Fort Thomas, Xentucky, 30 January 1942 He had
no prior service. He went to school four years and has an I.Q. of 60,

Te The court was legally concstituted and had jurisdiction of the
person and of the offense., For the reasons stated, the Board of Review
is of the opinion that the record of trial is legally sufficient to
support only so much of the findings of guilty of the Charge and Specifica~-
tion as involves findings that the accused did, at the time and place
alleged, absent himself without leave until he was apprehended at the time
and place alleged in violation of Article of War 61, and legally sufficient
to support the sentence.
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1st Ind.

WD, Branch Office TJAG., with ETOUSAs 27 Jun 1944 TO: Comuanding
General, ETOUSA, APO 887, U.S<Armye

l. Herewith transmitted for your action under Article of War 0% as
amended by the Act of 20 August 1937 (50 State 724; 10 USCA 1522) and as
further amended by Public Law 693, 77th Congress, 1 August 1942 is the
record of triel and the opinion of the Board of Review in the case of Private
CLARENCE PENNINGTON (35264047), Compeny G, 9th Infantry.

2¢ I concur in the opinion of the Board of Review and for the reasons
stated therein, recommend that the findings of guilty of the Charge and
Specification, except so much thereof, as involve findings of guilty of &b~
sence without leave on 27 April 194 at Island Farm Camp, County Glamorgan,
Wales, terminated by apprehension on 29 April 194} at Bridgend, County
Glemorgan, Wales, in violation of Article of War 61, be vacated, and that
ell rights, privileges and property of which he has been deprived by virtue
of those portions of the findings and sentence s0 vacated be restorede

3¢ The theory of the prosecution and of the V Corps letter introduced
a8 ProxeExeB, is that after a unit has been alerted and a soldier has been
informed that the unit is going on hazardous duty "any absence without
leave by any of you from now on will be deemed desertion, to avoid this
duty and will subject you to being tried by general court-martial as a de-
serter. But by Article of War 28, Congress has provided that:

"Any person subject to military law who quits
his organization or place of duty with the
intent to avoid hazardous duty or to shirk
important service shall be deemed a deserter,®
(Underscoring supplied)

Proof of the required intent is an essential element of the crime
as defined by Congresss In this case accused was a member of a detail en-
gaged in the search for a missing soldier in a wooded area in the immediate
vicinity of accused's campe Teking advantage of the situation he left his
detail without authority. He was dressed in fatigue clothes and left all
of his belongings in his barracks, There is no evidence of premeditated
design or of preparation for departwes On the third day of his absence
he was apprehended by a civil policeman at a point in proximity of his
carpe He admitted that on the second day of his absence he attempted to
steal food from a private dwelling-house, His total period of absence was
about 57 hourse There is no evidence that he concealed himself during
his absence. He remained in the proximity of his statione. The foregoing
evidence falls short of the necessary proof ofspecific intent to avoid
" hazardous duty or to shirk important service and is proof only of absence
without leave in violation of the 6lst Article of War.

L4e The approved sentence includes confinement at Hard labor for 35
yearse The reduction in the grade of the offense should ordinarily call
for a reduction in the period of confinement. The average sentence impos-
ed for absence from actual combat on conviction under the 75th or 58-28
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Articles of War is 20 years, This offense is less serious and I suggest
ten years confine.sent. The approving authority suspended the execution
of the dishoncrable discharge until the accused's release from confinement,
and designated Disciplinary Training Center No., 2912, Shepton lkllet,
Somersetshire, Ingland, as the place of confinement, I also suggest that
your action include suspeinsion of the dishonorable discharge and the
designation of Disciplinary Training Center No. 2912 as the place & con-
finementes

Be Inclosed is a fona of action designed to carry into effect the
recommendations hereinbefore inade. Also draft of GCLO for use in pro=-
mulgating the proposed actioa. Flease return the record of trial with

required copies of GCii0.
/7 787 C. McNEIL,

Brigadier General, Uhited States Arny,
Assistant Judge Advocate Generals

3 Incls:
Inclel Record of Trial
Incle2 Form of Action
Incle3 Draft GCLD

(Findings vacated in part in accordance with recommendation of
the Assistant Judge Advocate General. Dishonoratle discharge
suspended until accused released from confinement.

30 52, ETO, 11 Jul 1944)
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Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General
with the
European Theater of Operations
APO 871

BOARD QOF REVIEW
[P g

mo m 21 (LR S

UNITED STATES ICELAND BASE COMMAND.

Trial by G.C.M., convened at Camp
Herskola, Iceland, 12 May 1944.
Sentence: Dishonorable discharge,
total forfeitures and confinement
at hard lasbor for five years. The
Foderal Reformatory, Chillicothe,
Ohio.

v.

Private FLOYD S. CUMMINGS
(15081951), Fourth Service
Squadron, Second Service
Group.

Vst s Nt st el stV st Nt stV

HOLDING by the BOARD OF REVIEW
RITER, VAN BENSCHOTEN and SARGENT, Judge Advocates

l. The record of trial in the case of the soldler named abovs has
been examined by the Board of Review.

2. Accused was tried upon the following Chargs and specifications:

CHARGE I: Violation of the 93rd Article of War.

Specification 1: In that Private Floyd S, Cummings,
4th Service Squadron, 2nd Service Group, did,
at Camp Tripoli, Iceland, on or about 5 April
1944, feloniously take, steal, and carry away
one wallet containing $47.00 in United States
currency and 170 Icelandic Kromur ($26.26), the
property of Private First Class Francis J.
Martin, 33rd Fighter Squadron.

Specification 23 In that # * * did, at Camp Massey,
Iceland, on or about 15 April 1944, feloniously
take, steal, and carry away one 2l-jewsel "Lord
Elgin" wrist watch, value about $75.00, the
property of Technician Fifth Grade Glen H.
Allen, 22/th Engineer Composite Company.

Specification 3¢ In that * % # did, at Camp Tripolil,
Iceland, on or about 10 February 1944, feloni-
ously take, steal, and carry away one wallet

S
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containing 400 Icelandic Kronur ($61.80), the
property of Private First Class Delfo J.
Patanay, 33rd Fighter Squadron.

Specification 43 In that # # % did, at Camp Massey,
Iceland, on or about 15 April 1944, feloniously
take, steal, and carry away one Evans cigarette
case and lighter, value about $10.00, the prop-
erty of Sergeant Allen C. Williams, 217th Engl-
neer Composite Company. :

He pleaded not guilty to and was found gullty of the Charge and specifica-
tions, Evidence was introduced of one previous conviction by summary court
for absence without leave for one day in violation of the 6lst Article of
War. He was sentenced to be dishonorably discharged the service, to for-
feit all pay and allowances dus or to become due and to be confined at
hard labor, at such place as the reviewing authority may direct, for

five years. The reviewing authority approved the sentence, designated

the Federal Reformatory, Chillicothe, Ohio as the place of confinement

and forwarded the record of trial for action under Article of War 50%.

3. The charge sheet shows that accused is 21 years nine months of
age and that hs enlisted at Fort Benjamin Harrison, Indiana on 1 October
1941 to serve for a period of three years. His service is governed by
Service Extension Act, 1941. Hs had no prior service.

4. The court was legally constituted and had jurisdiction of the
person and of the offenses. No errors injuriously affecting the substan-
tial rights of accused were committed during the trial. The Board of
Review is of the opinion that the record of trial is legally sufficient
to support the findings of guilty and the sentence. (CM ETO 1671, Mgtthews
and authorities therein cited). : .

5. Confinement in a penitentiary is authorised for the crime of
larceny of property of value in excess of $50.00 by Article of War 42,
sec.287, Federal Criminal Code (18 U.S.C.A.466), sec.335, Federal Crin-
inal Code (18 U.S.C.A.54)); Act June 14, 1941, ¢.204, 55 Stat.252 (18 U.S.
C.A.753f): Cf. United States v, Sloan, 31 Fed. Sup.327. The designation
of the Federal Reformatory, Chillicothe, Ohio as the place of confinement
is authorized (Cir.291, WD, 10 Nov 1943, sec.V, sec.3s).

PEUS i
%{:o > Judge Advocate

S

S
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1st Ind. (563)

WD, Branch Office TJAG, with ETOUSA, 21 1044 TO: Commanding
Gonera.l, Iceland Base conmand, AP0 860, U. S Army

1. In the case of Private FLOYD S. CUMMINGS (15081951), Fourth Ser-
vice Squadron, Second Service Group, attention is invited to the foregoing
holding by the Board of Review that the record of trial is legally suffi-
clent to support the findings of guillty and ths sentence, which holding
is hereby approved. Under the provisions of Article of War 504, you now
kave authority to order exscution of ths sentences.

2. When coples of the published order are forwarded to this office,
they should be accompanied by the foregoing holding and this indorsement.
Ths file mumber of the record in this office is ETO 24/09. For convenience
¢f reference please place that mmmber in brackets at the end of the order:

(ET0 2409).
Yy, 2/ ///%&o/

E. C. MeNEIL,
Brigadier General, United States Army,
Asgistant Judge Advocate General.
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Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General

with the
European Theater of Operations

APO b7l
BOARD OF REVIEW
ETO 2410 29 JUN1944
UNITED STATES NORTHERN IRELAND BASE SECTION

SERVICES OF SUPFLY, EUROFEAN
Ve THEATER OF OPERATIONS,

Private WILLIAM E, McLAREN
(3302632);), Maintenance

Company, 66th Armored Regie
ment, 2nd Armored Division.

Trial by G.C.M., convened at Wilmont
House, County Antrim, Northern Ire-
land, 24 April 1944, Sentences

Di shonorable dischargs, total for-
feitures and confinemsnt at hard
labor for 20 years. United States
Penitentisry, Lewisburg, Pennsylvania,

Nl S N e Nt st Nl o o Nt

HULDING by the BOARD OF REVIEW
R1TER, VAN BENSCHOTEN and SARGENI, Judge Advocates

1., The record of trial in tne case of the soldier nsmed above has been
exenined by the Board of Review,

2¢ Accused was tried upon the following charges and specifications:

CHARGE 1I: Violation of tne 58th Article of War.

Specification 1: In tnat Private Wiitliam E, Mclaren,
Maintenance Company, 66th Armored Regimeni, 24
Armored Divaision, d4id, at Tadworth, Hampsnire,
England, on or about 11 March 194}, desert the
service of the United States and did remain
abssnt in desertion until he was apprehended at
Narrow Water, Northern Ireland, on or about
22 March 194.

Specification 2: In that * * #, did, at Vicstoria
Barracks, Belfast, Northern Ireland, on or
about 28 March 194k, desert tue service of the
United States and 4id remain abseut in deser-
tion until he surrendered himself at Gorsghwood
Station, Northern Ireland, on or about 1 April
1944,

\ ele
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CHARGE II: Violation of the €9th Article of War.

Specification: In that * ® *, pnaving been duly placed
in confipement in tue Guardhouse, Victoria
Barracks, Belfast, Nortnern Ireland, on or about
22 Marecn 1944, 4id, at Belfast, Northern Ireiand,
on or about 28 March 194l escape from said con-
fipement before he was set at liberty by proper
autnority.

He pleaded to each of the specifications of Charge I, guilty, except for
the words "deeert® and *in desertion®, substituting therefor respectively
the words "absenting himseif without proper leave from" aud "witnout leave®;
to tne excepted words, not guilty, to the substituted words, guilty, and to
Charge I, not guilty but guilty of a violation of the bilst Arvacie of War.
He pleaded guilty to Charge II and its Specafication. Three-fourths of
the members of tue court preseut when tue voie was iaken concurring, he weas
found guilty of both charges and specifications, Evidence was introduced
of two previous convactions: one, by summary court for abseuce witnout
leave for one day in violation of Article of War 61, and one by special
courtemarvial for failing to obey a lawful order and for being absent withe
out leave on three different occasions for one day, 3¢ hours, and nine
bhours respectively in violation of Articles of War 96 and 61. ‘Ihree-
fourths of the members of tne court present wnen the vote was taken cone
curring, ne was senvenced to be dishonorably discharged the service, to
forfeis all pay aud allowances due or to become due and 10 be confined as
nard labor, awbuch place as tne reviewing au.hority may direct, for 30
years, The reviewing autuority approved only so mucn of tue findings of
guilty of Specif.cation 1, Charge I as involves a finding of guilty of
abseuce without leave for the period charged, in violation of Articlie of
War bi, epproved tne findings of guilty ot Specification 2, Charge I, and
Charge I, and of Charge IL and its Specification, reduced tne period of
confinement to 2¢ years, designated toe Federal Penitentiary, Lewisourg,
Pennsylvania as the place of confinement and withneld the order directing
execution of tne senvence pursuant to the provisions of Article of War 504.

3. Tne evidence snowed thnat tne accused absented nimseif witnous
leave from his orgaenization tnem locaved at lidworin, Hampshire, England
on i1 Marcu lyile He was apprehended on 22 Marca 1lylli near tue southesn
border of Ulster, Ireland, IHe had witn him a packege contaiming toiles
arsicles aud cavilian ciothes, Atthough placed in confinemeni, in Beifast
he escaped on 28 March lyll, obtained civilian clotnes aud made his way to
Dubline. Afver toree days he turned in tv tue American Legation because
he was witnous money and could notv secure a job wathout an identification
" ecarde Hoe was provided wath a ticket to Beifast and traves orders. On
tue evening of L April 1944, ue was arres.ed en route a: the Irisn Free
State - Northern Ireland border. He pleaded guilty to tue escape and to
both absences witbhout leave, and signed a statement admitting all the facts
above set forth (RUe24; Ex.l)e There is substautial evidence in tue record
of trial from which the intent to desert may properly and iegally be inferred
(CM ETO 1737, Mosser and autnorities cited therein).

- 2- 9410
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4. The charge sheet shows that -accused is 27 years and four months
of age, that he was inducted at FPhiladelphia, Pennsylvania, on 1l February
1941 to serve ons year, and that his period of service was extended by the
Service Extension Act of 1941, No prior service is shown.

5¢ The courv was legally constituted and had jurisdiction of the
person and offenses, No errors injuriously affecting the substantial rights
of accussed were comnitted during the traal, The Board of Review is of the
opinion that the record of trial is legally sufficient to support the findings
of guilty eud the sentence a&s approved by the reviewing authority.

6o Confinement in a United States penitentiary is authorized for the
offense of desertion in time of war (AW 42; MCM, 1928, par.90g, pe80)e The
designation of the United States Penitentiary, Lewisburg, Pennsylvania as
the place of confinement is authorized (Cir. 291, WD, 10 Nov 1943, sec.V,
par.B_). .

+
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WD, branch Office TJAG., with ETOUSA, 29 JUN9Z: T0: Commending
Officer, Western Base Section, Commnications Zone, E10USA, APO 515, U.S.Amy,
(Successor in Command to Northern Ireland Base Section, SUS, ETOUSAy

l. In the case of Private WILLIAM E. McLAREN (33u26324), Maintenance
Company, bbth Armored Regiment, 2nd.Armored Divismion, attention is invited
to ths foregoing holding by the Board of Review that the record of trial is
legally sufficient to suppors the findings of guilty and the senteunce as
approved by the reviewing authority, wbich holding is hereby approveds Under
the provisions of Article of War S5ui, you now have authority to order execu-
tion of the sentence,

2, The general court-martial order to be published =hould show that
the commanding officer of the Western Base Section, Commnications Zone,
EI0USA, succeeded to the command of the Northern Ireland Base Section, SuS,
ETOUSA by reason of the disbandment of tne latter.commend, This may appear
in the caption of the order or by memo thereon in ths following form:
"Headquarters Western Bese Sect.on, Communications Zone, EIOUSA, successor
in the command of Northern Irelend Base Section, SuS, ETOUSA,®* by authority
of GOO.# 23 dated 3U m l9l|-h mo mS. ETOUSA.,

3+ TWhen copies of tue published order are forwarded to this offics
they snould be accumpanied by the foregoing holding &rnd this indorsement.
The file number of the record in this office is ETv 24jlue For convenience
of reference please place tha. number in bracxete at the end of the order:

e e %4%7

3rigadier General, United States Army,
Assistant Judge Advocate General.
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Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General
with the
European Theater of Operations

APO 871

BOARD OF REVIEW
28 JUN1944

ETO 2414
UNITED STATES WESTERN BASE SECTION, SERVICES

)

)

)

Private RAYMOND MASON )
(34042986), Company D, ) Monmouthshire, South Wales, 18 April

366th Engineer General )

Service Regiment, )

)

)

)

1.

been examined by the Board of Review,

2e

OF SUPPLY, EUROPEAN THEATER OF
Ve OPERAT IONS,
Trisl by G.C.L , convened at Newport,

1944. Sentence: Dishonorable dis-
charge, total forfeitures and confine-
ment at hard labor for 25 years.
United States Penitentiary, Lewisburg,
Pennsylvania,

/

HOLDING by the BOARD OF REVIEW
RITER, VAN.BENSCHOTEN and SARGENI, Judge Advocates

The record of trial in the case of the soldier named above has

Accused was tried upon the following charges and specifications:

CHARGE 1l: Violation of the 6lst Article of War.

Specification 1¢ In that Private Raymond Mason,
Company D, 366th Engineer General Service
Regiment, Chepstow Monmouthshire, South Wales,
did, without proper leave, absent himself
from his organization at Chepstow Monmouth-
shire, South Wales from about 6 December, 1943
to about 7 December, 1943.

Specification 2¢ In that * % %, did, without proper
leave, absent himself from his organization at
Chepstow Monmouthshire, South Wales from about
3 January, 1944 to about 7 Jamuary, 1944.

Specification 3¢ In that * % %, did, without proper
leave, absent himself from his organization at
Chepstow Monmouthshire, South Wales from about
12 February, 1944 to about 13 February, 1944.
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‘Specification 4: In that * * %, did, without proper
leave, absent himself from his organization at
Chepstow Monmouthshire, South Wales from about

2300 hours, 1 March, 1944 to about 2300 hours,
8 March, 1944.

CHARGE II: Violation of the 93rd Article of War,

Specification 1¢ In that * * %, did, at Chepstow
Monmouthshire, South Wales, on or about 2300
hours, 19 February, 1944, with intent to do
bodily harm, commit an assault upon Private
Melvyn Witt, by cutting him in the left chest,
with a dangerous weapon to wit, a switch blade
knife.

CHARGE III: Violation of the 64th Article of War,

Specification 1: In that * * %, did, at Chepstow
Monmouthshire, South Wales, on or about 2300
hours, 19 February, 1944 1ift up a weapon, to
wit a knife against First Lieutenant Jefferson
R, Ross Jr. his superior officer, who was then
in the execution of his office.

Specification 2:¢ In that * * ¥, having received a
lawful command from First Lieutenant Jefferson
R. Ross Jr., his superior officer, to put the
knife down and to release the man whom he had
cut, did at Chepstow Monmouthshire, South Wales,
on or sbout 2300 hours, 19 February, 1944, will-
fully disobey the same.

Specification 3: In that % * %, having received a
lawful command from Second Lieutenant Austin S,
Gittens, his superior officer, to report to the
guard house, did at Chepstow Monmouthshire,
South Wales, on or about 2300 hours, 19 February,
1944, willfully disobey the same,

ADDITIONAL CHARGE: Violation of the 93rd Article of War,

Specification: In that Private Raymond (NMI) Mason,
Company "D", 366th Engineer General Service Regi-
ment, Monmouth, Monmouthshire, South Wales, did,
near Manson Cross, Monmouth, Monmouthshire, South
Wales, on or about 30 March 1944, with intent to
commit a felony, viz, rape, commit an assault upon
Doreen Margaret Lockwood by willfully and felonious=-
ly throwing the said Doreen Margaret Lockwood to
the ground, getting on top of her and 1lifting her

- clothing,

He pleaded guilty to Charge I and its four specifications, not guilty to
Charge II, Charge III, the Additional Charge and their respective speci-

fications, end, two-thirds of the members of the court present when the

-2 -
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vote was taken concurring, was found guilty of all charges and specifica-
tions. Evidence was introduced of four previous convictions by summary
courts: two for absence without leave for two days 'and one day respective-
1y, in violation of the 6lst Article of War; one for breaking restriction
and failing to assemble for reveille, in violation of the 96th and 6lst
Articles of War; and one for leaving post and station without proper author-
ity while working, in violation of the 96th Article of War, Three-fourths
of the members of the court present when the vote was taken concurring, he
was sentenced to be dishonorably discharged the service, to forfeit all pay
and allowances due or to become due and to be confined at hard labor, at
such place as the reviewing authority may direct, for the term of his natur-
al 1life, The reviewling authority approved the sentence but reduced the
period of confinement to 25 years, designated the United States Penitentiary,
Lewisburg, Pennsylvania, as the place of confinement and forwarded the record
of trial for action pursuant to the provisions of Article of War 50%,

3. (a) Accused's pleas of guilty to Charge I and its four specifica-
tions (R6) are fully supported by evidence showing his absence without
leave from his organization during the respective periods alleged (R7-8;
Pros.Exs.1-4, inclusive) (CM ETO 1606, Sayre, and authorities there cited).

(b) With respect to Charge II and its Specification, there is com-
petent, substantial evidence that accused at the time and place, in the
manner and with the intent alleged, assaulted Private Melvyn Witt without
provocation (R8~10; Pros,Ex.5) (CM ETO 1284, Davis et al; CM ETO 1982,
Tankard). Such variance as there may be between the allegation in the
Specification that he cut Witt in the left chest and the proof that he
stabbed him in the ghoulder (R9) was not fatal under Article of War 37, The
record supports the findings of guilty.,

(c¢) With respect to Charge III, Specification 1, the following
testimony of First Lieutenant Jefferson R. Ross Jr.: "I commanded again
for him /accused/ to relsase the man, This time he released the man and
came toward me and threatened me with a knife and he said, 'I'1l cut your

neck' (R11l), is sufficient to support the findings of guilty of lift-
ing up a weapon against his superior officer who was 1in the execution of
his)office, in violation of Article of War 6/ (MCM, 1928, par.l34a, pp.li7-
148).

(d) The evidence clearly establishes accused's guilt on two separate
occasions of willful disobedience of his superior officer, in violation of
Article of War 64, as alleged in Specification 2 of Charge III (R11l) (Win-
throp's Military Law & Precedents - Reprint, p.572) and Specification 3 of

Charge III (R12-13) (MCM, 1928, par.l3ib, p.148).

(e) The testimony of Miss Doreen Lockwood (R14-18), corroborated
by that of .a member of the British Women's Land Army (R18-20) and accused's
own testimony as to Miss Lockwood's appeal for help when "we were down on
the ground" (R27), supports the court's findings that accused was guilty,
under the circumstances alleged in the Additional Charge and its Specifica-
tion, of an assault upon her with intent to commit rape (CM ETO 2652,

-3 2414
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Jackson, and authorities there cited).

4e The court's determination against accused of the issue whether his
drunkenness on 19 February 1944 was such as to destroy his mental capacity
to entertain the respective specific intents necessarily embodied in the
offenses charged in Charges II and III and their respective specifications,
is supported by substantial evidence (R12,13), (CM ETO 2484, Morgan and
authorities there cited). The court was not required to believe accused's
testimony (R26) in this connection (Ibid.).

5« The charge sheets show that accused is 25 years nine months of age
and was inducted 23 April 1941 at Fort Bragg, North Carolina to serve for
the duration of the war plus six months. He had no rrior service.

6. The court was legally constituted and had jurisdiction of the per=
son and offenses. No errors injuriously affecting the substantial rights
of accused were committed during the trial, The Board of Review 1s of the
opinion that the record of trial is legally sufficient to support the find-
ings of guilty and the sentence,

7. Confinement in a United States penitentiary is authorized for the
crimes of assault with intent to do bodily harm and assault with intent to
commit rape (AW 42; sec.276, Federal Criminal Code (18 U.S.C.A. 455); sec.
335, Federal Criminal Code (18 U.S.C.A. 541); Act June 14, 1941, c.204, 55
Stat., 252 (18 U.S.C.A. 753£); Cf: U.S. v. Sloan, 31 Fed. Sup.327). The
designation of the United States Penitentiary, Lewisburg, Pennsylvania, as
the place of confinement is authorized (Cir. 291, WD, 10 Nov 1943, sec.V,

par.3b).
m % Judge Advocate

o Judge Advocate

. Judge Advocate
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WD, Branch Office TJAG., with ETOusA, O JUi1944 TO: Commanding
Officer, Western Base Section, Communications Zone, ETOUSA, APO 515, U.S.
Army.

1, In the case of Private RAYMOND MASON (34042986), Company D, 366th
Engineer General Service Regiment, attention is invited to the foregoing
holding by the Board of Revliew that the record of trial is legally suffi-
cient to support the findings of gullty and the sentence, which holding is
hereby approved. Under the provisions of Article of War 50}, you now have
authority to order execution of the sentence,

2. Particular attention is invited to the apparently unwarranted
accumulation of charges against accused for four absences without leave
during the period 6 December 1943 to 8 March 1944, The charges were not
prepared until 13 March., Attention is further invited to the apparently
unwarranted failure to impose any restraint whatever upon accused until 8
March 1944, in the face of evidence that on that date his fourth absence
without leave had just terminated and that on 19 February he had committed
a vicious, unprovoked assault with a knife, inflicting a dangerous wound
upon another soldier to the knowledge of at least two commissioned officers
of the regiment, had threatened one of such officers and had willfully dis-
obeyed direct commands by each of them, Despite the obviously serious
nature of these offenses, accused's restraint was not only delayed, but
when it finally was imposed it consisted merely in restriction to his com-
pany area, which he broke on 30 March and assaulted a British civilian with
intent to commit rape. In compliance with instructions of the Commanding
General, ETOUSA, s report is requested,

3. When copies of the published order are forwarded to this office,
they should be accompanied by the foregoing holding and this indorsement,
The file number of the record in this office is ETO 2414. For convenience
of reference please place that number in brackets at the end of the order:
(ETO 2414)

e

/& ¢ ue

NEIL.
irigadier General, United States Army,
Assistant Judge Advocate General.,
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Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General (375)
with the
European Theater of Operations
APQ 871
BOARD OF REVIEW
-7 JUN 1944
ETO 2422
UNITED STATES g XIX CORPS
Ve 3 Trial by G.C.M., convened at
Knook Camp, Wiltshire, England
Private WILLIAM MORIN, (20146513), 28 April 1944. Sentences Dis-
Medical Detachment, 963rd Field honorable discharge, total for-
Artillery Battalion feitures and confinsment at hard

labor for ten years, Federal Re-
formatory, Chillicothe, Ohio,

HOLDING by the BOARD OF REVIEW
RITER, VAN BENSCHOTEN and SARGENT, Judge Advocates

l, The record of trial in the case of the soldier named above has
been examined by the Board of Review,

2. Accused was tried upon the following charges and specifications:

CHARGE I3 Violation of the 96th Article of War,
Specification: In that Private William Morin, Medical

Detachment, 963rd Field Artillery Battalion, then
a staff sergeant, Medical Detachment, 963rd Field
Artillery Battalion, having been granted a pass to
visit Dorchester, Dorset, England, did, on or about
4 April 194, wrongfully exceed the 1limit of his
pass by going to Weymouth, Dorset, England,

CHARGE II: Violation of the 94th Article of War,
Specification: In that * * %, did, at Dorchester,

Dorset, England, on or about 5 Aprll 194, know-
ingly and willfully apply to his own use and benefit
a certain Government motor vehicle, to-wit, a one-
quarter ton truck, of a value of more than $50,00,
property of the United States, furnished and intended
for the military service thereof,

«l~
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CHARGE III: Violation of the 93rd Article of War,

Specification: In that * * %, did, at or 1n the vicinity
of Weymouth, Dorset, England, on or about 4 April
1944, with intent to commit a felony, viz., rape,
commit an assault upon Private Edna May Button,
British Army Territorial Service, by willfully and
feloniously striking, scratching and brulsing the
said Private Button on the face and body, with his
hands,

He pleaded not guilty to Charges I and III and their respective specifica-
tions and guilty to Charge II and its Specification and was found guilty

of Charges II and III and their respective specifications, tut not guilty
of Charge I and its specification, No evidence of previous convictions

was introduced., He was sentenced to be dishonorably discharged the service,
to forfeit all pay and allowances due or to become due and to be confined
at hard labor at such place as the reviewing authority may direct for 15
years., The reviewing authority epproved the sentence, reduced the period
of confinement to ten years, designated the Federal Reformatory, Chillicothe,
Ohio, as the place of confinement and forwarded the record of trial for
action pursuant to the provisions of Article of War 50%.

3+ Private Caesar Gatta (32637642) Medical Detachment 963rd
Field Artillery Battalion, was charged with aiding and abetting the
present accused (Morin) in the commission of a felony, viz assault with
intent to commit rape upon the perscn of Private Edna Mae Button in vio-
Jation of the 93rd Article of War, The convening authority consolidated
the charges against Morin and Gatta for trial and defenss counsel in open
court stated that there was no objection thereto., Gatta was found guilty
of the charge against him and was sentenced to be dishonorably discharged
the service, to forfeit all pay and allowances due or to become due and to
be confined at hard laebor at such place as the reviewing authority may
direct for a period of two years, The reviewing authority approved the
sentence, designated the 2912th Disciplinary Training Center, Shepton
Mallet, Somerset, England, as the place of confinement but suspended that
portion of the sentence adjudging dishonorable discharge until the soldierts
release from confinement, The result of the trial was promlgated in Gen-
eral Court Martial Order No, 13, Headquarters XIX Corps, dated 17 May 1944.

4e The.proof that accused committed a violent assauylt and battery
upon the person of Private Edna Mae Button, British Auxiliary Territorial
Service, is not only uncontradicted but is corroborated by accused's own
testimony. The only question deserving consideration is whether or not
accused entertained the specific intent to rape Private Button when he com-
mitted the assault and battery upon her, There was substantial competent
evidence which supports the finding of the court that accused did entertain
such specific intent and that he proceeded to execute his intention in a
violent mammer without the consent of his victim and against her will
(CM ETO 1673, Denny and authorities therein cited). The fact that he

D
CONFIDENTIAL



CONFIDENTIAL
(377)

ceased his attack before effecting his purpose is no defense, Repentance
came too late,

"Cnce an assault with intent to commit rape is
made, it is no defense that the man voluntarily
/ desisted." (MCM 1928, par.l49 1 p.l79).

The findings of the court under the circumstances revealed by the
record of trial will not be disturbed by the Board of Review upon eappellate
review (CM ETO 1954, Lovato and authorities therein cited).

5¢ The charge sheet shows accused to be 23 years four months of
age, that he was inducted into the military service 24 February 1941, for
the duration of the war plus six months and that he had prior service in the
Enlisted Medical Detachment, 152nd Field Artillery (National Guard) from
23 Jan 1941 to 23 Feb 1941,

6, The court was legally constituted and had jurisdiction of the
person and offenses, No errors injuriously affecting the substantial rights
of the accused were committed during the trial, The Board of Review is of
‘the opinion that the record of trial is legally sufficient to support the
findings of guilty and the sentence,

7. Confinement in a United States Penitentiary is authorized for the
crime of assault with intent to commit rape by AW 42 and Sec 276 of the
Federal Criminal Code (18 USCA 455). The Federal Reformatory, Chillicothe,
Ohio is the authorized place of confinement, (Cir. 291, WD, 10 Nov 1943,

Sec V, par.3a and b).
/%#—-é Judge Advocate
udge Advocate

—
(4 %/{udge Advocate

~ 9422
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" ey .
WD, Branch Office TJAG., with ETOUSA. ? JUNR44  70: Commanding
General, XIX Corps, APO 270, U,S. Army.

1, In the case of Private WILLIAM MORIN (201/46513) Medical Detach-
ment 963rd Field Artillery Battalion, attention is invited to the foregoing
holding by the Board of Review that the record of trial is legally suf-
ficlent to support the findings of guilty and the sentence, whlch holding
is hereby approved, Under the provisions of Article of War 503, you now
have authority to order the execution of the sentence,

2. The sentence adjudged and approved appears excessive for the
offenge under the circumstances shown by the record of trial. While the
assault on the young woman was deliberate and requires punishment, I do
not believe accused's conduct justifies penitentiary confinement, I
suggest that the pericd of confinement be reduced to five years, the
dishonorable discharge suspended and Disciplinary Training Center No.
2912, Shepton Mallet, Somerset, Englend, be designated as the place of
confinement,

3« Vhen copies of the published order are forwarded to this office
they should be accompanied by the foregoing holding and this indorsement,
The file number of the record in this office is ETOQ 2422, For convenience
of reference pleases place that number in brackets at the end of the order:

(ETO 2422).,

e Ce MCNEIL
Brigadier General United States Army,
Assigtant Judge Advocate General,

-l-
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with the
European Theater of Operations (379)

APO 871

BOARD OF REVIEW
29 MAY 1944
ETO 2432
UNITED STATES g V CORPS.
B )

) Trial by G.C.M,, convened at Norton
Private CHARLES N. DURIE ) Manor Camp, Somersetshire, England,
(33319577), Battery C, 430th ) 13 May 1944, Sentence: Dishonorable
Antiaircraft Artillery ) discharge, total forfeitures and
Automatic Weapons Battalion ) confinement at hard labor for 37
(Mobile). ) years. Federal Reformatory, Chilli-

) cothe, Ohio,

HOLDING by the BOARD OF REVIEW
RITER, VAN BENSCHOTEN and SARGENT, Judge Advocates

l. The record of triel in the case of the soldier named above has
been examined by the Board of Review,

2. Accused was tried upon the following Charge and Specification:

CHARGE: Violation of the 58th Article of War,
Specification: In that Frivate Charles N, Durie,
Battery C, 430th Antiaircraft Artillery
Automatic Vieapons Battalion, ilobile, did, at
Yeovil, Somerset, Englend, on or about 1 Nay,
194/, desert the service of the United States

by quitting and absenting himself without
proper leave from his organization and place
of duty, with intent to avoid hazardous duty
and shirk important service, to wit: partici-
pation in the oversea invasion of the enemy
occupied European continent, and did remain
absent in desertion until he surrendered him=
self at Yeovil, Somerset, England on or about
5 May, 1944. \

He pleaded gullty to the Specification except the words "desert the ser-
vice of the United States by quitting and absenting himself without proper
leave from his organization and place of duty, with intent to avoid

CONFIDENTIAL ...
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hazardous duty and shirk important service, to wit: participation in the
oversea invasion of the enemy occupied European continent, and did remain
absent in desertion," substituting therefor the words "absent himself
without proper leave from his organization and did remain absent without
proper leave," of the excepted words, not guilty, of the substituted words,
guilty, and to the Charge, not guilty but guilty of a violation of the

6lst Article of War, He was found guilty of the Charge and Specification.
Evidence was introduced of three previous convictions: two by special
courts-martial for absence without leave for 32 days and 34 days respective-
ly and one by summary court for absence without leave for 74 days, all in
violation of the 6lst Article of War. He was sentenced to be dishonorably
discharged the service, to forfeit all pay and allowances due or to become
due and to be confined at hard labor, at such place as the reviewing
authority may direct, for 37 years, The reviewing authority approved the
sentence, designated the Federal Reformatory, Chillicothe, Chio, as the
place of confinement and forwarded the record of trial for action pursuant
to the provisions of Article of War 503,

3. The evidence for the prosecution consisted of the following proof:

(a) That on the 20th of April 1944, the 430th Antiaircraft Artill-
ery Automatic Weapons Battalion, while stationed at Yeovil, Somersetshire,
England, received orders alerting it under the headquarters at that station
in preparation for a "short over-sea voyage to be taken" (R6). There was
a meeting of the battery commanders at headquarters at some time after 20
April 1944 and prior to 28 April 194/ whereat they were notified of the
alert order (R??.

(b) Extract copy of the morning report of Battery C, 430th Anti-
aircraft Artillery Automatic Weapons Battalion for 28 April 1944 (Pros.Ex,
1; R8) which in pertinent part reads as follows:

RECORD OF EVENTS

"Paragraphs la and 1b of letter, Headquarters
V Corps, subject 'Desertion' dated 21 Apr 44,
were read to the members of this Btry present
as per roll attached at a formation of the
Btry at 1115 hours on 28 Apr 44.

'Present:s Private Charles N, Durie,
ASN 33319577',"

(c) A true copy of the letter dated 21 April 1944 to which refer-

ence was made in the foregoing extract of the morning report, "Subject:
Desertion" (Pros.Ex.2; R8) of which the following is a relevant excerpt:

CONFIDENTIAL
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1, For the information, guidance and admoni~

tion of all concerned, it is directed that each
unit commander, down to and including companies,
as soon as practicable after his command re-
ceives orders and is alerted for participation
in the oversea invasion operation against the
enermy occupied European continent, read sub-
paragraphs a and b of this paragraph to all
officers and men of the unit at a formation of
the unit,

a,

b,

Desertion Facts,

(1) Any person who 'deserts! or 'attempts to
desert'! the service of the United States in
time of war shall suffer 'death! or such
other punishment as a court-martial may
direct, (AW 58),

(2) Any person who 'advises' or 'persuades’
or knowingly assists another to desert the
service of the United States in time of war
shall suffer death or such other punishment
as a court-martial may direct, (AW 59),

(3) Any person who quits his organization

or place of duty 'with intent to avoid
hazardous duty! or 'to shirk important ser-
vice' shall be deemed a deserter. (AW 28)

(4) For desertion committed in time of war
there is no limit to the time when the
deserter may be brought to trial. (AW 39).
(5) Confinement in a United States Peniten-
tiary is authorized for desertion committed
in time of war., (AW 42)

(6) Anyone dishonorably discharged or dis-
missed for deserting the military service

of the United States in time of war forfeits
his United States citizenship. (Section 40lg,
Nationality Act of 1940, as amended by Public
Law 221, 20 January 1944)

Each and everyone of yon is hereby notified:
(1) That your organization is now under
orders to participate in the oversea invasion
of the enemy occupied European continent,

(2) That your organization is now alerted for
this operation and that the operation is
imninent,

(3) That this operation will be both hazard-
ous duty and important service within the
meaning of the provisions of AW 28 as above
stated,

(4) That a careful morning report record will
be kept showing the fact of the presence of
each of you at this time and of the fact that
the foregoing information was revealed to you,
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(5) That any absence without leave by any of
you from now on will be deemed desertion to
avoid this duty and will subject you to being
tried by general court-martial as a deserter.
(6) That proof of your unauthorized absence
together with morning report proof of the
foregoing information being given you, in
connecticn with further proof of the fact that
your organization is now under orders and
alerted for participation in the imminent
oversea invasion operation against the enemy,
will authorize a court-martial to infer that
your unauthorized absence was with intent to
avoid such duty and, therefore to find you
guilty of such desertion.

(7) Court-martial sentences adjudging, in such
desertion cases, along with dishonorable dis-
charge and total forfeitures either the death
penalty or confinement at hard labor for the
natural term of life or for some definite
period of time up to fifty (50) years will
not be deemed inappropriate, Where death is
not adjudged it is contemplated that confine-
ment will be served by imprisonment in a
designated United States penitentiary,m

(d) Extract copy of the morning report of Battery C, 430th Anti-
aircraft Artillery Automatic Weapons Battalion for 1 May 1944 (Pros.Ex,3;
R9) reading in pertinent part as follows:

"SERIAL NUMBER NAME GRADE

33319577 Durie Pvt
: Fr dy to AWOL 0600"

(e) Eitractvcopy of morning report of Battery C, 430th Antiailr-
craft Artillery Automatic Weapons Battalion for 5 May 1944 (Pros.Ex,4; R9)
reading in pertinent part as follows:

"SERIAL NUMBER NAME GRADE
33319577 Durie (AWOL) Pvt
*Fr AWOL to conf 430th
AAA AW Bn G4 House this
sta awaiting trial charged
58th AW Qesertion"

AY

4e The evidence for the defense showed:

(2) By stipulation of prosecution and defense that accused on 30
April 1944 came into possession of $286.89 (R15),
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(b) That about = week prior to pay day (30 April 1944) accused
received from the Finance Officer k72 representing accumulated back pay.
He showed it to Private Harry Ceroni, a member of his battery. Accused
gave Ceroni the B72 for safe-keeping because Ceroni had a footlocker
equipped with a lock, Ceroni at that time returned to accused the sum of
B6 (R15,16,17). Thereafter during the week, Ceroni on several occasions
returned separate sums to accused, but on Sunday night, 30 April 1944,
Ceroni still retained 532 of accused's money. He returned this amount to
accused the night before the trial., Aside from this transaction, Ceroni
was indebted to accused (R16-18).

On Sunday 30 April 19// accused, after he wes paid, informed Ceroni
that "he was going to take a few days off, Take 2 or 3 days off and come
back, because of the way things were going on around the battery". Accused
had joined the battery on 18 March 1944 (R12), but had had no interview
with his battery officers, All of his duties had been "KP and guard"(R17).

Accused and Ceroni were present at formation on 28 April 1944
when Lieutenant Gluch an officer of the battery read the letter concerning
desertion (R18)., Accused stood next to Ceroni. The officer explained
the statement as he read it (R19), and "put it so we could understand it -
know what it meant" (R25)., Ceroni saw accused in the battery barracks the
night he returned from his absence and at that time Ceroni held &32 of
accused's money in the footlocker (rR19).

(¢) That accused had received about an hour's cursory examination
by Captein Francis T, Irwin, the battalion surgeon, who was of the opinion
that he knew the difference between right and wrong and had the ability to
carry out simple direct orders, but not the capacity to perform duties re-
quiring concentration or deliberation (R20-22),

The accused elected to remain silent,

5., (a) Accused is charged with absence without leave with intent (a)
to avoid hazardous duty and (b) to shirk important service, viz: participa-
tion in oversea invasion of the enemy occupied European continent,

"It is a well settled rule of criminal plead-
ing that, when an offense against a criminal
statute may be committed in one or more of
several ways, the indictment or information
may, in a single count, charge its commission
in any or all of the ways specified in the
statute, So where a penal statute mentioned
several acts disjunctively and prescribes
that each shall constitute the same offense
and be subject to the same punishment, an
indictment or information may charge all of
such acts conjunctively as a single offense,"
(31 c.J., sec.325, pp.764-765, footnotes 34
and 35),
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There is therefore no objection to the inclusion in the one
specification allegations of the two separate specific intents which must
be entertained by an accused in order to constitute the offense of deser-
tion laid under Articles of War 58 and 28, The prosecution was free to
prove either or both of the specific intents alleged (Sampson v, State 83
Texas Crim, 594, 204 S.W, 324).

(b) Accused's absence without leave for four days terminated by
his surrender at his home station is admitted. The prosecution's evidence
proved two other of the fundamental elements of its case:

1 - That accused's unit "was under orders or anticipated
orders involving either (a) hazardous duty or (b)
some important service" (MCM, 1921, par.409, pe344)
in the nature of "an oversea invasion of the enemy
occupied European continent";

2 = That notice of such order was actually brought home
to accused and that he recelved due and timely
notice of probable results of unanthorized absence
of military persomnel at that time.

Therefore the defects in proof considered by the Board of Review in its
holding in CM ETO 455, Nigg do not arise in the instant case,

There remains the question as to the existence of proof of accu-
sed'!s specific intent to avoid hazardous duty or to shirk important service
when at the time and place alleged he absented himself from his command,
This is the ¢ rucial problem of the instant case (ClM 231163 (1943), Bull,
JAG, Vol,II, Noy4, Apr 1943, sec.385, p.139; CM 224765 (1942), Bull,JAG,
Vol,I, No,6, Nov 1942, sec.385, p.322; CM 222861 (1942), Bull,JAG, Vol,I,
No.,2, Jul 1942, sec.385, p.103; CM ETO 455, Nigg; CM ETO 564, Neville),

In order to meet this burden of proof the prosecution relied solely upon
the evidence particularly summarized in paragraph 3 hereof in spite of
motion of defense counsel at the conclusion of prosecution's case in chief
for a finding of not guilty of the offense of desertion (R10,11) which

7otion gas renewed before the case went to the court for its deliberations
R26,27).,

The prosecution's evidence established thz facts that accused!s
unit was alerted for invaslon service, and that accused absented himself
for four days after he-received direct and positive warning of such status.
From such evidence, it was argued (R1l) that the necessary specific intent
on the part of-accused to avoid hazardous duty or shirk important service
may be inferred. Accused's intent was a fact which must be proved as any
other fact and for such purpose evidence of relevant and material circum-
stances is cogent and proper. From such circumstances and reasonable and
legitimate inferences therefrom, the intent may be discovered., Thers must
however, be in the record of trial proof of such circumstances and herein
lies the defect in the prosecution's case, Proof that accused went sbsent
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without leave when his battery was on an alert status after he received
notice that at some indefinite future time it was intended that it should
participate in a continental Zuropean invasion, without more, does not
furnish the required probative basis from which may be inferred the ultinm-
ate fact of intent - an element of equal quality and necessity to sustain
the charge of desertion with that of unauthorized absence, the alert and
notice thereof to accused.

When the evidence presented by the defense (which is uncontradicted)
is considered, the reason for the hiatus in the prosecution's case is made
apparent, Accused immediately prior to his departure had come into posses-
sion of a considerable sum of money representing beck pey which he placed
with his friend Ceroni for safe~keeping, On the day accused left camp he
stated to Ceroni "he was going to take a few days off. Tske 2 or 3 days
off and come back, because the way things were going on around the battery".
Accused joined the battery on 18 larch 1944, but according to Ceroni accused
wag dissatisfied because he had never had an interview with his battery
officers and had been kept on kitchen police and guard duties, VWhen accu-
sed departed he left 532 with Ceroni for safe-keeping. Accused voluntarily
returned to the battery after being absent four days.

The Board of Review scrupulously observed the restriction upon its
powers which prohibits it from judging the credibility of witnesses, weigh-
ing evidence or resolving conflicts in evidence (CM ETO 132, Kelly and Hyde;
CM ETO 895, Davis et al and authorities therein cited). It is equally
jealous of its duty to determine whether or not a record contains competent
substantial evidence to sustain a finding of guilty (CM 223336 (1942), Bull.
JAG, Vol,I, No.3, Aug 1942, sec.422, p,159; CM ETO 1661, Hass; CM ETO 804,
Ogletree et al; CM ETO 1567, Spicocchi).  When required, however, to pro-
nounce upon the sufficiency of evidence to sustain a conviction it will do
so without hesitation, In this instance the Board of Review believes the
prosecution failed in making proof of a vital element of its case, ‘then
the uncontradicted evidence on behalf of accused is placed in this hiatus
of prosecution's case, it becomes manifest that the record is not only in-
sufficient to prove accused!s intent to avoid hazardous duty or shirk import-
ant service, but is also affirmatively sufficient only to sustain a charge
of absence without leave. In principle accused's conduct was similar to
that of Neville in CM ETO 564, Neville., In that and in the instant case
neither accused knew when his unit would actually leave; both knew they were
abgsent without authority; and both must have known they were "taking a
chance"”, Neville walked 18 miles back to camp arriving about 10 hours
after his original departure. Durie was absent four days but left most of
his worldly weath with Ceroni and returned in four days in keeping with his
announced intention to "take 2 or 3 days off and come back", It is im-
possible to torture from accused's conduct the inference that he intended
to avoid hazardous duty or to shirk important service,

The Board of Review makes particular note of its recent holdings
in CM ETO 1400, Johnston; CM EIO 1403, Kummerle; CM ETO 1405, 01iff; CM ETO
1406, Pettapiece; CM ETO 1432, Good; CM ETO 1589, Heppding; CI ETO 1664,

-7 -
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Wilson; Cii ETO 1685, Dixon sustaining charges of desertion under the 58th
and 28th Articles of War. These cases cannot assist the findings in the
instant case inasmuch as they are "battle-line" cases arising out of the
campaigns in North Africa and Sieily, The circumstances connected with
the absence of each accused in the cited cases are entirely dissimilar to
those under which Durie absented himself,

For the reasons stated, the Board of Review is of the opinion that
the record of trial is legally sufficient to support only so much of the
findings of guilty of the Charge and Specification as involves findings
that the accused did, at the time and place alleged, absent himself without
leave until he surrendered himself at the time and place alleged in viola=-
tion of Article of War 61, and legally sufficient to support the sentence,

6. The charge sheet shows that accused is 27 years nine months of age,
and that he was inducted 25 June 1942 at Philadelphia, Pennsylvania to serve
for the duration of the war plus six months, No prior service is shown,

7. The court was legally constituted and had jurisdiction of the per-
son and offenses, No errors injuriously affecting the substantial rights
of accused were committed during the trial except as herein specifically
noted,

8. Penitentiary confinement is not authorized by AW 42 for the offense
of absence without leave (CM 238707, Bull.JAG, Vol.II, No.8, Aug 1943, sec,
419(4), p.308)). Confinement should be in a place other than a penlten-
tiary, Federal correctional institution or reformatory.

W ﬁ Judge Advocats
WJM
Judge Advocate

=

e

Judge Advocate
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lst Ind,

WD, Branch Office TJAG,, with ETOUSA, .29 MAY {944 TO: Commanding
General, V Corps, APO 305, U.S. Army.

1. In the case of Private CHARLES N, DURIE (33319577), Battery C,
430th Antiaireraft Artillery Automatic Weapons Battalion (Mobile), atten-
tion is invited to the foregoing holding by the Board of Review that the
record of trial is legally sufficient to support only so much of the find-
ings of guilty of the Charge and Specification as involves findings that
accused did, at the time and place alleged, absent himself without leave
until he surrendered himself at the time and place alleged in violation of
Article of War 61; and legally sufficient to support the sentence, which
holding is hereby approved, Under the provisions of Article of War 50%,
you now have authority to order execution of the sentence.

2, Attention is invited to the designated place of confinement,
which should be changed to a place other than a penitentiary, Federal
correctional institution or reformatory. This may be done in the publish-
ed general court-martial order,

3. In view of the reduction of the grade of the offense I believe
there should be a reduction in the period of confinement and I so recommend
I further suggest that accused be confined in Disciplinary Training Center
#2912, and that his dishonorable discharge be suspended until the soldier's
release from confinement,

4e The "tentative" general court-martial order is a millity., I do
not approve of the use of simuleted judicial process as a means of public=-
ity of General Court-Martial sentences (See my remarks in lst Ind,, CM ETO
2433, Meyer).

5. When copies of the published order are forwarded to this office
they should be accompanied by the foregoing holding and this indorsement,
The file number of the record in this office is ETO 2432, For convenience
of reference please place that number in brackets at the end of the order:

(ETO 2432),
Y
// é. C. McNEIL,

Brigadier General, United States Army,
Assistant Judge Advocate General,
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Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General
with the :
European Theater of Operations
APO 871
BOARD OF REVIEW
2 5 MAY 1944
ETO 2433
UNITED STATES ) V CORPS.
)
Ve ) Trial by G.C.M,, convened at Norton
) Manor Camp, Somerset, England, 16 liay
Private CHARLES MEYER ) 19/4. Sentence: Dishonorable dis-
(32713730), Company C, 254th ) charge, total forfeitures and confine=-
Engineer Combat Battalion, ) ment at hard labor for 25 years,
) Federal Reformatory, Chillicothe, Ohio.

HOLDING by the BOARD OF REVIEW
RITER, VAN BENSCHOTEN and SARGENT, Judge Advocates

ls The record of trisl in the case of the soldier named above has
been examined by the Board of Review,

2. Accused was tried upon the following Charge and Specification:

CHARGE: Violation of the 58th Article of War.

Specification: In that Private Charles leyer,
Company C, 254 Engineer Combat Battalion,
did, at Newquay, Cornwall, England on or
about 23 January 1944, desert the service
of the United States and did remain absent
in desertion until he surrendered himself
et London, England on or about 8 lMay 1944.

He pleaded not guilty to and was found guilty of the Charge and Specifica-
tion. No evidence of previocus convictions was introduced., He was
sentenced to be dishonorably discharged the service, to forfeit all pay and
allowances due or to become due and to be confined at hard labor for 25
years at such place as the reviewing authority may-direct, The reviewing
authority approved the sentence, designated the Federal Reformatory,
Chillicothe, Ohio as the place of confinement and forwarded the record of
trial for action pursuant to the provisions of Article of War 503,

3. Accused was absent from his organization for a period of 106 con-
secutive days., His confession indicates that during his absence he
entertained the specific intent to remain absent in the hope of being

-] - g
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ultimately court-martialed and transferred to another unit,

"The fact that such intent /not to return
to the service/ is coupled with a purpose
to return provided a particular but un-
certain event happens in the future * * %
does not constitute a defense® (MCM, 1928,
p&r.130§, Pe 142)

Court-martial proceedings might never have been instituted against accused
and had such proceedings followed there was no certainty that his "transfer
to another outfit" would result., Therefore, his prolonged absence coupled
with such declaration is substantial evidence from which the court was
Justified in inferring his specific intent to absent himself permanently
from the military service (Winthrop's Military Law & Precedents = Reprint -
p.638; CM 130018 (1919), Dig.Op.JAG, 1912-1940, sec.416(9), p.269; cm ETO
1629, O'Donnell),

4. The charge sheet shows that accused is 23 years four months of age;
that he was inducted into military service on 11 Jamuary 1943, was trans-
ferred to the Enlisted Reserve Corps and reported for active duty at Fort
Dix, New Jersey, 18 January 1943, No prior service is shown,

5« The court was legally constituted and had jurisdiction of the per-
son and offense, No errcrs injuriously affecting the substantial rights
of accused were committed during the trial, The Board of Review is of the
opinion thet the record of trial is legally sufficient to support the find-
ings of guillty and the sentence,

6. Confinement in a penitentiary is authorized for the offense of
desertion in time of war by AW 42, Inasmich as the sentence includes con-
finement at hard labor for 25 years, the place of confinement should be the

United States Penitentiary, Lewisburg, Pennsylvania, and not the Federal
Reformatory, Chillicothe, Ohio (Cir. 291, WD, 10 Nov 1943, sec.V, pers.3a

and b).
/ﬂ '}“‘A %{/ Judge Advocate
;é éf é 5 I Judge;Advocate

A

N’

':2?“’3udge Advocate
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1st Ind,

WD, Branch Office TJAG,, with ETOUSA, 2 SMAY 1944 TO: Commanding
General, V Corps, APO 305, U.S. Army,

1, In the case of Private CHARIES MEYER (32713730), Company C, 254th
Engineer Combat Battalion, attention is invited to the foregoing holding
by the Board of Review that the record of trial is legally sufficient to
support the findings of guilty axnd the sentence, which holding is hereby
approved, Under the provisions of Article of War 50%, you now have
authority to order execution of the sentence, This would be a proper
case for the suspension of the dishonorable discharge.

2. TFor the reasons stated in the holding of the Board of Review the
place of confinement should be changed from the Federal Reformatory,
Chillicothe, Ohio, to the United States Penitentiary, Lewisburg, Pennsyl-
vania,

3. The use of the so-called "tentative" general court-martial order
in the effort to give publicity among the troops of the sentence in this
case is without authority and is obJectionable., The order must be of the
date the reviewing suthority takes final action (MCM, 1928, par.87d, p.79).
Inasmich as the sentence cannot be ordered executed prior to the examina-
tion of the record of trial and approval of sentence by the Board of Review
end myself (AW 50%, par.3), the "tentative" order possesses no legal
efficacy, I recognize the expediency at this time of informing the per-
sonnel of the penalty for desertion and unauthorized absences, but it can
be done without the use of simulated judicial process for such purpose.
Such practice is not approved,

4e Vhen copies of the published order are forwarded to this office
they should be accompanied by the foregoing holding and this indorsement,
The fils number of the record in this office is ETO 2433, For convenience
of reference please place that number in brackets at the end of the order:
(ETO 2433},

Brigadier General, United States Army,
Agsistant Judge Advocate General,

-] -
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Branch Office of The Judge Advocate General
with the
European Theater of Operations
AP0 871
BOARD OF REVIEW
ETO 244l 2 JUN 1944

UNITED STATES ) 5TH INFANTRY DIVISION
) &
Ve ) Trial by G.CeM., convened at Camp
) Ballyedmond, County Down, Northern
Private PAUL E. WARNER ) Ireland 1 Mey 1944, Sentence:
(16017197), Company M, ) Dishonorable discharge, total fore
10th Infantry. ) feitures and confinement at hard
) labor for 30 years. United States
; Penitentiary, Lewisburg, Pennsyl-

vania,

HOLDING by the BOARD OF REVIEW
RITER, VAN BENSCHOTEN and SARGENT, Judge Advocates

le The record of triel in the case of the soldier neamed above has
been examined by the Board of Review.

2¢ Accused was tried upon the following charges and speci fications:

CHARGE Is+ Violation of the 933 Arxrticle of War.
(Finding of Not Guilty)e.
Specification: (Finding of Not Guilty).

CHARGE II: Violetion of the 58th Article of War.,

Speci fi cation:t In that Private Paul E, Warner,
Company M, 10th Infantry did, at Cemp Bally-
edmond, County Down, Northern Irelend on or
about 23 January 1944 Desert the service of
the United States and did remein absent in
desertion until he was apprehended at Goraghe
wood Station, County Antrim, Northern Ireland,
on or about 18 March 1944,

CHARGE III: Violation of the 96th Article of War.
Specification 1: (Finding of Not Guilty).

-] -
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(394) Specification 2¢ In that * * * did, at Dungannon,

County Tyrone, Northern Irelend, on or about
24 Februery 194/, without proper authority,
eppear in the uniform of an officer-of the
Army of the United States,

ADDITIONAL CHARGES

CHARGE I: Violation of the 934 Article of War.

Specification 1: In that * * *, did, at Dungannon,
County Tyrone, Northern Ireland, on or about
2} February 1944, with intent to defraud,
falsely indorse with the signature "Lt G
Valkenburg, lst Lt, US Army, APO 2" a certain
check in the amount of two hundred dollars
($200.00), daved 24 February 1944, payable to
cash, signed Albert Talbot, and drawn upon
the Firestone Saveing Bank, Akron, Ohio, which
said check and indorsement was a writing of a
private nature which might operate to the pre-
judice of another,

Specification 2: In that * * *, 3id, at Dungannon,
County Tyrone, Northern Ireland, on or about
2}, February 1944, with intent to defraud,
falsely indorse with the signature "G.A.
Valkenburg, 1st Lt, U.S.Army, APO 2" a certain
check in the amount of two hundred dollars
($200400), dated 24 Februery 19.4), peyable to
cash, signed Frank D, Price, and drawn upon the
First National Bank, Jackson, Michigan, which
said check and indorsement was a writing of a
private nature which might operate to the pre-
judice of another.

Specification 3¢ In that * * *, did, at Dungannon,
County, Tyrone, Northern Ireland, on or about
24 February 1944, with intent to defraud, falsely
indorse with the signature " G A, Valkenburg, lst
Lt, U.S.Army, APO 2% a certain check in the amount
of two hundred dollers ($200.00), deted 2 Feb-
ruary 1944, payable to cash, signed Joseph A.
Hunter, and drawn upon the Frist(sic) Nationas
Bank, Decatur, Illinois, which said check and
indorsement was a writing of a private nature
which might operate to the prejudice of another,

v 2 -
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Specification 4: In that * * *, did, at Dungannon,
- County Tyrone, Northern Ireland, on or about

24 February 13944, with intent to defraud, falsely
indorse with the signature "G.A. Valkenburg lst
Lt. US Army A.P.O. 2" a certain check in the
amount of one hundred dollars ($100.00), dated
24 Februery 1944, payasble to cash, signed Cecil
Ray, and drawn upon Farmer Trust Bank, Baxter
Springs, Kensas, which said check and indorse-
ment was a writing of a private nature which
might operate to the prejudice of another.

Specifi cation 5¢ In that * * %, did, at Dungannon,
County:Tyrone, Northern Ireland, on or about
2l February 1944, with intent to defraud, falsely
indorse with the signature *G.A. Valkenburg lst
Lts UsSe Army APO 2" a certain check in the amount
of one hundred and fifty dollars ($150.00), datea
2 Februery 1944, paysble to cash, signed Leonard
DuFont, and drawn upon the Second Netional Bank,
Toledo, Ohio, which said check and indorsement was
a writing of a private nature which mignt operate
to the prejudice of another.

Specification 63 In that * * *, did, at Dunganmon,
County Tyrone, Northern Ireland, on or about
2} February 1944, with intent to defraud,. falsely
indorse with the signeture "Lt G. Valkenburg lst
Lt US Army A.P.O+ 2" a certain check in the amount
of two hundred dollars ($200,00), dated 24 Feb«
ruary 194, payable to cash, signed James Nichols,
and drawn upon the First Nationel Bank, Cleveland,
Ohio, which said check and indorsement was a writ-
ing of a private nature which might operate to the
pre judice of another,

CHARGE II: Violation of the 96th Article of War.

Specification 1: In that * * *, did, at Dungennon,
County Tyrone, Northern Ireland, on or about
2l; February 194}, with intent to defraud, will-
fully, unlawfully, and feloniously pass as bearing
a true and genuine indorsement a certain check
dated 2/ February 1944 in the amount of two hundred
dollars ($200,00) payable to cesh, signed Albert
Talbot, and drawn upon the Firestone Saveing Bank,
Akron, OChio, and having the indorsement "Lt G
Valkenburg, lst Lt, US Army, AFO 2%, said check
being & writing of a private nature which might
operate to the prejudice of another, and which said
indorsement was, as he the smxd Private Paul E,
Warner, then well knew, falsely made and forged,

- 3 - :
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Specification 25 In that * * * 4id, at Dungannon,

County Tyrone, Northern Irelsnd, on or about

24 February 1394, with intent to defrsad, will-
fully, unlawfully, end feloniously pass as bear-
ing a true and genuine indorsement-a certain
check dated 2); February in the amount of two
hundred dollars ($200,00) payable to cash, signed
Frank D. Price, and drawn upon the First National
Bank, Jackson, Michigen, and having the indorse-
msnt*G.A.Valkenburg, 1st Lt, U.S.Army, AFO 2%,
c8aid ‘check being'a writing of e private nature
which might operate to the prejudice of another,
and which said indorsement was, as he, the said
Privete Paul E, Werner, then well knew, falsely
made and forged.

Specification 31 In thet * * *#, did, at Dungannon,
County Tyrone, Northern Ireland, on or about
-2l February 1944, with intent to defraud, wille
fully, unlawfully, and feloniously pass as bear-
ing & true and genuine indorsement a certain
check dated 24 February 194} in tne amount of
two hundred dollars ($200,00) payable to cash,
signed Joseph:As Hunter, and drawn upon the Frist
(sic) National Bank, Decatur, Illinois, and having
tne indorsement: "G A. Valkenburg, 1lst Li, U.S.Army,
APO 2%, said:check being a writing of a private
neture which might operate to the prejudice of
another, and which said indorsement was, as he,
the said Private Paul E. Warner, then well knew,
felsely made and forged.

Specification 43 In that * * * gdid, at Dungannon,
County Tyrone, Northern Ireland, on or about 24
February 194L, with intent to defraud, willfully,
unlawfully, and feioniously pass as bearing a true
and genuine indorsement a certain cnecik dated 24
February 1944 in the amount of one hundred dollars
($100,00) payable to cash, signed Cecil Ray, ami
drawn upon the Farmer Trust Bank, Baxter Springs,
Kanses, and having the indorsement *"G.A. Valkene
burg, 1lst Lt, US Army A.P.O. 2", sald check being
a writing of a private nature which might operate
to the prejudice of another, end whieh said
indorsement was, as he, tnhe sa1d Private Paul E,
Warner, then well knew, falsely made and forged.

-ll_-
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Specification 5:¢ In thet * * * did, at Dungannon,
County Tyrone, Northern Ireland, on or about
24 February 194, with intent to defraud, will-
fully, unlawfully, and feloniously pass as bear-
ing a true and genuine indorsement a certain
check dated 24 Februery 1944 in tne amount of
one hundred end fifty dollars ($150.00) payable
to cash, signed Leonard DuFont, and drawn upon
the Second National Bank, Toledo, Ohio, and
having the indorsement "G.A. Valkenburg lst 1Lt.
U.Se Army APO 2", said check being a writing of
e private nature which might operate to the
prejudice of another, and which sa1d indorsemsnt
was, as he, the said Private Paul E., Warner,
then well knew, falsely made and forged,

Specification 631 In that * * * did, at Dungannon,
County T o Northern Ireland, on or about
24y Febru s with intent to defraud, willfully,
unlawfully, and feloniously pass as besring a
trus and genuine indorsement a certain cneck
dated 24 February 1944 in the amount of two
hundred dollears ($200.00) payable to cash,
signed James Nichols, and drawn upon the First
Nationel Bank, Cleveland, Chio, and having the
indorsement "Lt G. Valkenburg lst Lt US Army A.P.C.
2", said check being a writing of a private nature
which might operate to the prejudice of another,
and which said indorsement was, as he, the said
Private Paul E, Warpner, then well knew, falsely
made and forged.

He pleaded not guilty to all charges and specifications end was found not
guilty of Charge 1 and its Specification end Specification 1 of Charge III
(original charge sheet), guilty of Charge II and its Specification, and
Specification 2 of Charge IIY and Charge III (original cherge sheet), and
guilty of both additionel charges amd their specificationses Evidence was
introduced of one previous conviction by special court-mertial for absence
without leave and failing to obey a lawful order of a superior officer in
violation of Articles of War 61 and 96, He was sentenced to be dishonor-
ably discharged the service, to forfeit all pay end allowances due or to
become due and to be confined at hard labor, at such place as the reviewing
authority may direct, for 30 yeers. The reviewing authority approved only
so much of the finding of guilty of the Specification of Charge II and of
Charge II (originsl charge sheet) as involved a finding of guilty of absence
without leave from 23 Januery 1944 to 18 March 1944 in violation of Article
of War 61, approved the sentence, designated the United States Penitentiary,
Lewi sburg, Pennsylvania, as the place of confinement and forwarded the
record of triel for action pursuant to the provisions of Article of War 50f.

-5
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3 This is a compenion case to that of Private Arthur A, Mills,
also of Company M, 10th Infantry. The Board of Review has recently held
the record of trial in that case legally sufficient to support the findings
of guilty and the sentence therein (M ETO 2293, Mills), which holding was
approved by the Assistent Judge Advocate General in charge of the Branch
Office of The Judge Advocete General with the European Theater of Opera-
tionse The offenses of which accused Mills was found guilty were of the
same patiern as those of which accused herein was found guilty., The evi=-
dence in the instent case considered &lone makes it plain that Mills and
Warner were confederates in the execution of the fraudulent scheme whereby
each secured from unsuspecting bankers substantial sums, The Board of
Review is of the opinion that the record herein is legally sufficient to
support the findings of guilty of the additional charges and their .
respective specifications (M ETO 2293, Mills; &M ETO,2273, Sherman;CM ETO

2216, Gallegher).

4s The Specification of Charge II alleges that accused's unauthor-
ized absence was terminated by apprehension at Goraghwood Station, County
Antrim, Northern Irelend, on or about 18 March 194/, The officer who
apprehended him testified thas Goraghwood Railroad Station was *just out-
side of Newry" in County Armagh, "the county adjoining the Irish Free State"
(R16~17)e A veriance in this perticuler between specification and proof
is not fatai in the case of desertion (AW 37; JA® 251.19, Jen, 9, 1919, Dig.
Op.JAG, 1912-1940, sec.416(1l), pe271); a fortiori it is not fatal where,
as here, a finding of guilty of absence without leave only has been approved
by the reviewing authority.

5¢ The charge sheets show that accused is 25 years nine months of
sge, that he enlisted 24 Octaober 1940 for three years at Peoria, Il1linois,
end that his service period is gowerned by the Service Extension Act of
1941, No prior service is shown.

6. The court was legally constituted and had jurisdiction of the
person snd offensess No errors injuriously affecting the substential
rights of accused were committed during the trial, The Board of Review
is of the opinion that the record of trial is legally sufficient to support
the findings of guilty and the sentence,

Te Confinement in a penitentiary is authorized for the offenses of
forgery and uttering a forged instrument (Secs.22-1401 (6:86) and 24~-L01
(6:401), District of Columbia Code))s The designation of tie United States
Penitentiary, Lewisburg, Pennsylvania is authorizecV (Cir.291, WD, 10 Nov
1943, sec.V. perde 3a end b).

Judge Advocate

i :g Z 5&/0@%«»@‘%«\, Judge Advocate

Judge Advoceate
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1st Ind.

WD, Branch Office TJAG., with ETOUSA. -2 JUN {944 TO: Commanding
General, 5th Infantry Division, AFPO 5, U.S.Army,

l. In the case of Private PAUL E. WARNER (16017197), Company M,
10th Infantry, attention is invited to the foregoing holding by the Board
of Review that the record of trial is legally sufficient to aupport the
findings of guilty end the sentence, which holding is hereby approved.
Under the provisions of Article of War 50%, you now have authority to
order execution of the sentence,

2» As in the companion case of Private Arthur A. Mills, also of
Company M, 10th Infantry (CM ETO 2293 and my lst Indorsement, 16 May 1944).
the evidence herein sustains the original finding of desertion. The Staff
Judge Advocate in his review of this case recommended that the reviewing
authority epprove only so much of the finding (Charge II and its Specifica-
tion) as involves absence without leave, because similar action had been
taken in the Mills case. This was dcne,

3. When copies of the published order are forwarded to this office,
they should be accompanied by the foregoing holding and this indorsement.
The file number of the record in this office is ETO 244iie For conveniencse
of reference please place that number in brackets at the eml of the order:

(ETO 2444y). /// 437

// E. Co McNEIL,
Brigedier General, United States Armv.
Assistant Judge Advocate General,
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